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VIA OVERNIGHT DELFVERY 

January 4, 2007 

RE: Renewal Application for Retail Generation Providers and Power Marketers 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. - Case Number 05-28-EL-CRS 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
Docketing Division 
180 East Broad Street 
13* Floor 
Columbus, OH 43215-3793 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed please find one original and ten (10) copies of Pepco Energy Services' Renewal 
Application for Retail Generation Providers and Power Marketers. The Public Utilities 
Commissions of Ohio ("PUCO") initially granted Pepco Energy Services, Inc. ("PES") a 
certificate to act as a Competitive Retail Electric Service provider on February 14, 2005 
(Certificate No. 05-127 [1]). 

As per Pepco Energy Services' discussions with PUCO staff, PES has only provided one 
copy of its parent company's 2005 10-K due to this document's extreme length. This 
single copy is included as part of the original copy of PES' renewal application. 
Additional copies of this 10-K are available for download firom 
www.pepcoholdings .com/investors, or will be sent to the PUCO by PES upon request. 

Should you have any questions regarding this application, please contact me at (703) 253-
1701. 

Sincerely, 

/-̂  

Greg Simmons 
Manager, Mid-Atlantic / Midwest Region 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

W.B i s t o ce r t i fy tha t th^ li«g*.B aPP««^l^ ^ ^ J ^ 
accurate and complete reproduction of a *=*"^^^t* - -
^ ^ l delivered in the regular course of b u e l ^ . 
» ^ a h n l c i a a _ _ - 2 Oate Procesaed / - HrV^a: 

1300 North 17th Street' Suite 1600 ' Arlington • VA • 22209 ' 703-253-1800 • Fax 703-253-1725 - www.pepcoenergy.com 

Pepco Energy Services, Inc. is not the same company as Potomac Electric Power Company (Pepco), tbe reflated 
utility, and prices and services of Pepco Energy Services, Inc. are not set by the Public Service Commission. 

http://www.pepcoholdings
http://www.pepcoenergy.com


Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

PUCO USE ONLY 

The PubUc Utilities Commission of Ohio 

Date Received Case Number 

05-28-EL-CRS 

Version 

August 2004 

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION 
PROVIDERS AND POWER MARKETERS 

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label 
and title (Example: Exhibit A-13 Company History). All attachments should bear the 
legal name ofthe Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related 
correspondence with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 
East Broad Sti^et, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793. 

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the 
form. You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use. 

A. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A-1 Applicant intends to be certified as: (circle all that apply) 
Retail Generation Provider Power Broker 

Power Marketer Aggregator 

A-2 Applicant's legal name, address, telephone number and web site address 

Legal Name: Pepco Energy Services. Inc. 
Address: 130Q Noith 17^ Street: Suite 1600: Arlington. VA 22209 
Telephoned (703) 253-1800 Web site address fif anyV www.pepcoenergy.com 

A-3 List name, address, telephone number and web site address under which 
Applicant will do business in Ohio 

UgalName: SAME AS ABOVE 
Address: 
Telephone #: Web site address (if any): 

A-4 List all names under which the applicant does business in North America 

Pepco Energy Services. Inc. Conectiv Energy Services^ Inc. 
PowerChoice By Pepco Energy Services North Atlantic Utilities 

PUCO Renewal Form 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

A-5 Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters 

Name: Sandy Guthom ^___ 
Titie: Manager. Energy Policy 
Business address: 1300 North 17*̂  Street. Suite 1600: Arlington. VA 22209 
Telephone #: (7031253-1702 Fax#: (703)253-1688 
E-mail address (if any): SGuthoni@PepcoEnergy.com 

A-6 Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer 
complaints 

Name: Pam Frambes 
Titie: Manager. Customer Operations 
Business address: 1300 North 17^ Street. Suite 1600: Arlington. VA 22209 
Telephone #: (703)253-1667 Fax#: (703)253-1724 
E-mail address (if any): PFrambes@PepcoEnergv.com 

A-7 Applicant's address and toll-free number for customer service and 
complaints 

Customer Service address: 1300 Nortii 17*̂  Street: Suite 1600. Arlington. VA 22209 
Toll-free Tel^hone#: l-SOO-ENERGY-9 or 1-800-363-7499 Fax #: (703)253-1724 
E-mail address (if any): CustServ@JepcoEnergv.com 

A-8 Applicant's federal employer identification number #: 52-1927068 

A-9 Applicant's form of ownership (circle one) 

Sole Proprietorship Partnership 
Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
Corporation I Other 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

A-10 Exhibit A-10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, 
titles, addresses and telephone numbers ofthe applicant's principal officers, 
directors, partners, or other similar officials. 

A-11 Exhibit A-11 "Corporate Structure," provide a description ofthe applicant's 
corporate structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of 
all affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or 
natural gas to customers in North America. 

PUCO Renewal Form 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B . A P P L I C A N T M A N A G E R I A L C A P A B I L I T Y A N D E X P E R I E N C E 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a list of all jurisdictions in 
which the applicant or any affiliated interest ofthe applicant is, at the date of 
filing the application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to 
provide retail or wholesale electric services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a description ofthe applicant's 
experience and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted 
services, providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and 
complaints in accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 
4928.10 of tiie Revised Code. 

B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a 
description of all existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent 
liabilities, revocation of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter 
that could adversely impact the applicant's financial or operational status or 
ability to provide the services it is seeking to be certified to provide. 

B-4 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor ofthe applicant, or any principal 
officer ofthe applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for 
violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 

H N o D Y e s 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of 
Consumer Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all 
relevant documents. 

B-S Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor ofthe applicant has had any 
certification, license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service 
denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 

0 No D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-7 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

PUCO Renewal Form 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C, APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

C-1 Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports," provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should 
provide similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not 
applicable and why. 

C-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filmgs," provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the 
SEC. If applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent 
company. If the applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may 
indicate in Exhibit C-2 tiiat the applicant is not required to file with tiie SEC and 
why. 

C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements," provide copies ofthe applicant's two most 
recent years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statranent, and 
cash flow statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide 
officer certified financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long 
enough to satisfy this requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial 
statements covering the life ofthe business. 

C-4 Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies ofthe applicant's 
financial arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, 
bank commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of 
forecasted financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement) for the applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, 
and the name, address, email address, and telephone number ofthe preparer. 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating," provide a statement disclosing the applicant's 
credit rating as reported by two of tiie following organizations: Duff & Phelps, 
Dun and Bradstreet Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors 
Service, Standard & Poors, or a similar organization. In instances where an 
applicant does not have its own credit ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings 
ofa parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement 
signed by a principal officer ofthe ^plicant's parent or affiliate organization that 
guarantees the obligations ofthe applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy ofthe applicant's credit report 
from Experion, Dim and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information," provide a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any otiier form of bankruptcy filings 
made by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the 

PUCO Renewal Fonn 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

obHgations ofthe applicant or any officer ofthe applicant in the current year or 
within the two most recent years preceding the application. 

C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information," provide a statement describing any 
dissolution or merger or acquisition ofthe applicant within the five most recent 
years preceding the application. 

D. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

D-1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations" provide a written description ofthe operational nature 
ofthe applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's operations will 
include the generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for 
transmission and delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as 
other services used to arrange for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail 
customers. 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise," given the operational nature ofthe 
applicant's business, provide evidence ofthe applicant's experience and technical 
expertise in performing such operations. 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel," provide the names, tities, e-mail 
addresses, telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in 
the operational aspects ofthe applicant's business. 

D-4 Exhibit D-4 "FERC Power Marketer License Number," provide a statement 
disclosing the applicant's FERC Power Marketer License nimiber. (Power 
Marketers only) 

Signature of Applicant and Title 

Swornjand subscribed before me this H day of -̂ kv^Xinpi , 6 00*7 
y " \ • , _ \ I Montb / Yeâ  

M ^ ^ » .™.™. J 

My commission expires on Beatrice Woods Starling 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Commonwe: !m of Virginia 
My Commission t̂ ^̂  cs 9/1/2007 

PUCO Renewal Form 
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State of y / r a i n i c y 

Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

AFFIDA VIT 

4fUf t fp f t ss. 
(Tovm) 

County of Atl i f tafoft : 

Mark S. Kumm , Affiant, being duly swom/affinned according to law, deposes and says that: 

He/she is the President. Asset Management Group (Office of Affiant) of Pepco Energy Services^ lax, 
(Name of Applicant); 

That he/she is authorized to and does make tliis affidavit for said Applicant, 

1. The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the 
application for certiHcation are true and complete and that it will amend its application while 
the ^jplication is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the infonnation provided 
in the a^jplication, 

2. The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities 
Commission of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-
hours of electricity pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 
4911.18, and Division (F) of Section 4928.06 ofthe Revised Code. 

3. The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to 
Sections 4905.10,4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 ofthe Revised Code. 

4. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
rules or orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 ofthe Revised Code. 

5. The Apphcant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio, and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer 
complaint regarding any service offered or provided by the Applicant 

6. The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of ttie Revised 
Code regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process. 

7. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal mles and 
regulations concemiog consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions. 

8. The Applicant herein, attests tiiat it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with 
whom it has a contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable 
hcensing requirements ofthe Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities 
Commission of Ohio. 

9. The Apphcant herein, attests that it will cooperate fiilly with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio, the electric distribution companies, the regional transmission entities, and other 
electric siqjpliers in the event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and 
reliability ofthe electric service in accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures 
as may be determined appropriate by the Commission. 

10. If appUcable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Apphcant herein, attests that it 
will adhere to the reUability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council 
(NERC), (2) the appropriate regional reliabiUty coxmcil(s), and (3) the Public Utihties 
Commission of Ohio. (Only applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering) 

11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the 
information suppUed in the application within 30 days of such material change, including any 
change in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in 
investigating customer complaints. 

P U C O Renewal Form 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief 
and that he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof. 

r7l(KrJn- ^y^i\y}/ryry\ - P/^i(^M^^ ^ t W " /^^wAt (hr̂ u (̂  
Signature of Affiant & Title 

Sworn and subscribed before me this H day of Acx fi (̂ (JCU ^ ^ C X ^ f f Month j Year 

- Signature cifciSk^al^admmistering^ath Print Name and Title / O 

Beatrice Woods Starling 
My commission expires on NQTARY r U B L i y 

Commonweaitn ot Virginia 
My Commission Expires 9/1/20(ff 

PUCO Renewal Form 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

A-10 

A-IO Exhibit A-10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners** provide the names, 
titles, addresses and telephone numbers ofthe applicant's principal officers, 
directors, partners, or other similar officials. 

The following is a list ofthe Applicant's principal officers: 

John Huffman 
President and Chief Operating Officer 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North 17* Street; Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
(703)253-1800 

Mark S. Kumm 
President 
Asset Management Group 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North \f^ Street; Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
(703)253-1651 

Caryn Bacon 
Senior Vice President, Operations 
Asset Management Group 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North 17* Street; Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
(703) 253-1646 

Jim McDonnell 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North 17* Street; Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
(703)253-1820 

Peter Meier 
Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Coimsel 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North 17* Street; Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
(703)253-1840 

Exhibit A-10 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B-1 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation,** provide a list of all Jurisdictions in 
which the applicant or any affiliated interest ofthe applicant is, at the date of 
filing the application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to 
provide retail or wholesale electric services. 

Applicant is a licensed retail supplier of electricity in Delaware, the District of Columbia, 
Illinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Texas 
and Virginia. 

Applicant's affiliates, Potomac Electric Power Company (PEPCO), Delmarva Power and 
Atlantic City Electric, are authorized to provide retail electric service in the District of 
Columbia, Maryland, Delaware, Virginia and New Jersey. 

In addition, Potomac Electric Power Company (PEPCO), Delmarva Power, Atlantic City 
Electric, Conectiv Energy and Potomac Power Resources are licensed to provide 
wholesale electric services. 

Exhibit B-1 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B-2 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans,** provide a description ofthe applicant's 
experience and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted 
services, providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and 
complaints in accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 
4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. 

Applicant was formed in 1995 with the restructuring ofthe retail electric and natural gas 
markets along the eastern seaboard and now offers a lull range of comprehensive energy 
solutions, includkig: retail electricity supply, retail natural gas supply, energy efficient 
equipment mstallation and maintenance, lighting, on-site generation, project financing, 
and energy operations and maintenance solutions. More information on these services 
can be found on our web site at www.pepcoenergy.com. In 2005, Apphcant served over 
had revenues of nearly of $ 1.5 Billion. Applicant currently provides retail electric supply 
in seven states and the District of Columbia. 

1) Contracting with Customers - Applicant plans to contract with commercial and 
industrial customers using a written contract and a team of direct sales 
representatives. Applicant has significant experience in this area and has been 
contracting directly with commercial and industrial customers since 1999, when it 
entered the deregulated electric market. 

2) Providing Contracted Services - As in other jurisdictions, after or simultaneously 
with reaching a contract with a retail customer. Applicant will acquire the 
wholesale energy services needed to meet the requirements ofthe customer. 
Applicant then coordinates with the various Regional Transmission Organizations 
and Electric Distribution Companies to ensure that the needs of its customers are 
properly fulfilled. Applicant has significant experience providing retail electricity 
services and currently works with mmierous wholesale counterparties to serve 
retail customers within the service territories of 12 electric distribution 
companies. 

3) Providing Billing Statements — Applicant typically provides two billing options 
when serving commercial and industrial customers: dual billing and utility 
consolidated billing. As appropriate. Applicant intends to continue offering these 
two billing options to customers in Ohio. Once a customer is under contract. 
Applicant typically allows the customer to select its preferred billing method fixjm 
among these options. Applicant has a great deal of experience in invoice 
production and anticipates leveraging that experience for the benefit of Ohio 
customers. 

4) Responding to Customer Inquires <Sc Complaints - In addition to our sales 
representatives continumg to service the customer after a sale, the Applicant has a 
customer service staff specifically empowered to quickly review and resolve all 

Exhibit B-2 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

customer service issues. Any customer may initiate a service inquiry by 
contacting its sales representative, by callhig the Pepco Energy Services customer 
service center or by dialing our 800 number. 

To the extent not already identified. Applicant intends to meet any and all requirements 
defined in Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code that are applicable to CRES providers. 

Exhibit B-2 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B-3 

B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Invest^ations," provide a 
description of all existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent 
liabilities, revocation of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter 
that could adversely impact the applicant's financial or operational status or 
ability to provide the services it is seeking to be certified to provide. 

The Applicant does not have any pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent 
liabilities, revocations of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that 
could adversely impact the Applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide 
the services it is seeking to be certified to provide. 

Exhibit B-3 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B-4 

B-4 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor ofthe applicant, or any principal 
officer ofthe applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for 
violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 

EiNo D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exliibit B-4 "Disclosure of 
Consumer Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all 
relevant documents. 

The Applicant, or a predecessor ofthe Applicant, has not been convicted or held liable 
for fraud or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five 
years. Likewise, no officer ofthe Applicant has been convicted or held liable for fraud or 
for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 

Exhibit B-4 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

B-5 

B-5 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor ofthe applicant has had any 
certification, license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service 
denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 

0 No n Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

The Applicant, or a predecessor ofthe Applicant, has not had any certification, license or 
application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, suspended, 
revoked or cancelled within the past two years. 

Exhibit B-5 
Page 1 of 1 



Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C-1 

C-I Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports,** provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should 
provide similar information in Exhibit C-I or indicate that Exhibit C-I is not 
applicable and why. 

The Applicant's parent company produces an Annual Report to Shareholders. The 
information included in these Annual Reports is identical to the information provided m 
the company's 10-K filings. The Applicant has provided a copy of its parent company's 
2005 10-K filing as part of Exhibit C-2. A copy of our parent company's 2004 10-K is 
not included with this renewal application. Copies of our parent company's 2004 10-K, 
as well as copies of our parent company's Annual Report, maybe downloaded fix>m 
http://www.T)epcoholdings.com/investors. 

Exhibit C-1 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C-2 

C-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filings," provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the 
SEC. If applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent 
company. If the applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may 
indicate in Exhibit C-2 that the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and 
why. 

Exhibit C-2 
Page 1 of 1 



UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D,C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF 
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Commission 
File Number 

001-31403 

001-01072 

001-01405 

001-03559 

For the fiscal year ended December 31.2005 

Name of Registrant, State of Incorporation, 
AdcJress of Principal Execnitive Offices, 

and Telephone Number 

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. 
(Pepco Holdings or PHI), a 
Delaware corporation 

701 Ninlh Street, N.W. 
Washington, B.C. 20068 
Telephone: (202)872-2000 

POTOMAC ELECTRIC POWER 
COMPANV 
(Pepco), a District of 
Colxnnbia and Virginia 
corporation 

701 Ninth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20068 
Telephone: (202)872-2000 

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT 
COMPANV 
(DPL), a Delaware and 
Virginia corporation 

800 King Street, P.O. Box 231 
Wihnington, Delaware 19899 
Telephone: (202)872-2000 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC 
COMPANV 
(ACE), a New Jersey 
corporation 

800 King Street, P.O. Box 231 
Wilmington, Delaware 19899 
Telephone: (202)872-2000 
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Identification Number 

52-2297449 

53-0127880 

51-0084283 

21-0398280 
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Yes X 
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No 
No X 

Pepco 
ACE 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ofthe Act: 

Name of Each Exchange 
Registrant Title of Each Class on Which Registered 

Pepco Holdings Common Stock, $.01 par value New York Stock Exchange 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ofthe Act: 

Pepco Serial Preferred Stock, $50 par value 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-knovra seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 ofthe 
Securities Act. 

Yes No _X_ 
Yes No X 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reporte pursuant to Section 13 or Section 
15(d) ofthe Act. 

Pepco Holdings Pepco 
DPL _ ACE J L 

Indicate by check mark whether each ofthe registrants (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by 
Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and (2) has been 
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X_. No _ . 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquoit filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not 
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in the definitive proxy or 
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this 
Form 10-K (applicable to Pqrco Holdings only). _ . 

Indicate by check mark whetiier the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non­
accelerated filer. See definition of "accelerated filer and larger accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 ofthe 
Exchange Act. 

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer Non-Accelerated Filer 
Pepco Holdings X 
Pepco X 
DPL _X_ 
ACE X 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). 

Fepco Holdings Yes No X Pepco Yes No X 
DPL Yes No . ^ _ ACE Yes No ^ L 

Pepco, DPL, and ACE meet the conditions set forth in Geno^l Instruction I(l)(a) and (b) of 
Form 10-K and are therefore filing this Form 10-K with the reduced disclosure format specified in General 
Instruction 1(2) of Form 10-K. 



Aggregate Market Value of Voting and Non-Voting Number of Shares of Common 
Common Equity Held by Non-Affihates of the Stock of the Registrant 

Registry Registrant at June 30> 2005 Outstandmg at March 1. 2006 
Pq>co Holdings $4.5 billion 189,993,166 

($.01 par value) 
Pepco None (a) 100 

($.01 par value) 
DPL NoneO>) 1.000 

($2.25 par value) 
ACE None(b) 8,546,017 

($3 par value) 

(a) All voting and non-voting common equity is owned by Pepco Holdings. 
(b) All voting and non-voting common equity is owned by Conectiv, a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Pqjco Holdings. 

THIS COMBINED FORM 10-K IS SEPARATELY FILED BY PEPCO HOLDINGS, PEPCO, DPL 
AND ACE. INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN RELATING TO ANY INDIVIDUAL 
REGISTRANT IS FILED BY SUCH REGISTRANT ON ITS OWN BEHALF, EACH REGISTRANT 
MAKES NO REPRESENTATION AS TO INFORMATION RELATING TO THE OTHER 
REGISTRANTS. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions ofthe Pepco Holdings, Inc. definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about March 30, 2006 are 
incorporated by reference into Part III ofthis report. 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Term 
ABO 
Accounting hedges 
ACE 
ACE Funding 
ACO 
Act 
ADITC 
AFUDC 
Agreement and Plan 
of Merger 

Ancillary services 
APB 
APBO 
APCA 
Asset Purchase and 

Sale Agreement 

Bankmptcy Court 
Bankruptcy 

Emergence Date 
BGS 

BGS-FP 
BGS-CIEP 
Bondable Transition 
Property 

BPU Financing Orders 
BTP 
CAA 
CAIR 
CAMR 
CBI 
CERCLA 

CESI 
Chcuit Court 
CO2 
Cooling Degree Days 

Competitive Energy 
Business 

Conectiv 

Definition 
Accumulated benefit obligation 
Derivatives designated as cash flow and fair value hedges 
Atlantic City Electric Company 
Atiantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC 
Administrative Consent Order 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 
Accimiulated deferred investment tax credits 
Allowance for Funds Used During Constmction 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 9, 2001, among 
PHI, Pepco and Conectiv 
Generally, electricity generation reserves and reliability services 
Accounting Principles Board 
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation 
Ah* Pollution Control Act 
Asset Purchase and Sale Agreem^it, dated a& of June 7,2000 and 
subsequentiy amended, between Pepco and Mirant (formerly Southem 
Energy, Inc.) relating to the sale of Pepco's generation assets 
Bankmptcy Court for the Northem District of Texas 
January 3, 2006, the date Mirant emerged from bankruptcy 

Basic generation service in New Jersey (the supply of energy to 
customers who have not chosen a competitive siq)plier) 
BGS-Fixed Price service 
BGS-Commercial and Industrial Energy Price service 
Right to collect a non-bypassable transition bond charge fixjm ACE 
customers pursuant to bondable stranded costs rate orders issued by the 
NJBPU 
Bondable stranded costs rate orders issued by the NJBPU 
Bondable Transition Property 
Federal Clean Air Act 
EPA's Clean Air Interstate mle 
EPA's Clean Air Mercury rule 
Conectiv Bethlehem, LLC 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability 
Act of 1980 
Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc. 
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Cm;uit 
Carbon Dioxide 
Daily difference in degrees by which the mean (high and low divided 
by 2) dry bulb temperature is above a base of 65 degrees Fahrenheit. 
Consists ofthe business operations of Conectiv Enei^ and Pepco 
Energy Services 
A wholly owned subsidiary of PHI which is a holding company under 
PUHCA 2005 and the parent of DPL and ACE 



Term 
Conectiv Energy 
Conectiv Power 
Delivery 

CRMC 
CTs 
CWA 
DCPSC 
DER 
District Court 
DNREC 

DPL 
DPSC 
DRP 
EDECA 
EDIT 
EITF 
Energy Act 
EPA 
ERISA 
Exchange Act 
FASB 
FERC 
Fmancing Order 

FirstEnergy 
FirstEnergy PPA 

First Motion to Reject 

OCR 
GPC 
Heating Degree Days 

IRC 
IRS 
ITC 
Kwh 
LEAC Liability 

LTIP 
March 2005 Orders 

Definition 
Conectiv Energy Holding Conqjany and its subsidiaries 
The trade name under which DPL and ACE formerly conducted then-
power delivery operations 
PHI's Corporate Risk Management Committee 
Combustion turbines 
Federal Clean Water Act 
District of Columbia Public Service Commission 
Discrete Emission Reduction Credits 
U,S. District Court for the Northem District of Texas 
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental 
Control 
Dehnarva Power & Light Company 
Delaware PubHc Service Commission 
PHI's Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
New Jersey Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act 
Excess Deferred Income Taxes 
Emerging Issues Task Force 
Energy Policy Act of 2005 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
En^loyment Retnement Income Security Act of 1974 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 
Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
Financing Order of tiie SEC under PUHCA 1935 dated June 30,2005, 
with respect to PHI and its subsidiaries 
FirstEnergy Corp., formerly Ohio Edison 
PPAs between Pepco and FirstEnergy Corp. and Allegheny Energy, 
Inc. 
The motion Mhant filed with the Bankmptcy Court m August 2003 
seeking authorization to reject the PPA-Related Obligations 
Gas Cost Recovery 
Generation Procurement Credit 
Daily difference m degrees by which the mean (high and low divided 
by 2) dry bulb temperature is below a base of 65 degrees Fahrenheit. 
Internal Revenue Code 
Internal Revenue Service 
Investment Tax Credit 
Kilowatt hour 
ACE's $59.3 million deferred energy cost Hability existing as of July 
31, 1999 related to ACE's Levelized Energy Adjustment Clause and 
ACE's Demand Side Management Programs 
Pepco Holdings' Long-Term Incentive Plan 
Orders entered in March 2005 by the District Court granting Pepco's 
motion to withdraw jurisdiction over rejection proceedings firom the 
Bankmptcy Court and ordering Mirant to continue to perform the 
PPA-Related Obligations 



Term 
Mcf 
MDE 
Mirant 
Mirant Parties 

Moody's 
MPSC 
MTC 
NJBPU 
NJDEP 
NJPDES 
New Mirant 

Common Stock 
Normalization 
provisions 

NOx 
NPDES 
NSR 
NUG 
OCI 
Panda 
Panda PPA 
PARS 
PCI 
Pepco 
Pepco's pre-merger 

subsidiaries 
Pepco Energy Services 
Pepco Holdings or PHI 
Pepco TP A Claim 

PJM 
POLR 

POM 
PPA 
PPA-Related 
Obligations 

Pre-Petition Claims 

PRP 

Definition 
One thousand cubic feet 
Maryland Department ofthe Environment 
Mirant Corporation and its predecessors and its subsidiaries 
Mirant Corporation and its afiQUate Mirant Americas Energy 
Marketing, LP 
Moody's Investor Service 
Maryland Public Service Commission 
Market Transition Charge 
New Jersey Board of Public Utilities 
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
New Jersey Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
Common stock of Mh-ant issued pursuant to the Reorganization Plan 

Sections ofthe Internal Revenue Code and related regulations that 
dictate how excess deferred income taxes resulting from the corporate 
income tax rate reduction enacted by the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and 
accumulated deferred investment tax credits should be treated for 
ratemaMng purposes 
Nitrogen oxide 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
New Source Review 
Non-Utility Generation 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Panda-Brandywine, L.P. 
PPA between Pepco and Panda 
Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock 
Potomac Capital Investment Corporation and its subsidiaries 
Potomac Electric Power Company 
PCI and Pepco Energy Services 

Pepco Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. 
Pepco's $105 milHon allowed, pre-petition general unsecured claim 
against each ofthe Mu-ant Parties 
PJM Interconnection, LLC 
Provider of Last Resort (the supply of energy to customers who have 
not chosen a competitive supplier) 
Pepco Holdings' NYSE t r a ^ g symbol 
Power Purchase Agreement 
Mirant's obligations to purchase from Pepco the capacity and energy 
that Pepco is obligated to purchase under the FirstEnergy PPA and the 
Panda PPA 
Unpaid obHgations of Mirant to Pepco existing at the time of filmg of 
Mirant's bankruptcy petition consisting primarily of payments due 
Pepco m respect ofthe PPA-Related Obligations 
Potentially Responsible Party 

ui 



Term 
PSD 
PUHCA 1935 

PUHCA 2005 

RARC 
Recoverable stranded 
costs 

Regulated electric 
revenues 

Reorganization Plan 
Retirement Plan 
RGGI 
RI/FS 
S&P 
SEC 
Settlement Agreement 

SMECO 
SMECO Agreement 
SO2 
SOS 

SPEs 
Standard Offer Service 
revenue or SOS revenue 

Starpower 
Stranded costs 

TPAs 

Transition Bonds 
Treasury lock 

VaR 
VEBA 
VRDB 
VSCC 

Definition 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
Public Utihty Holdmg Company Act of 1935, which was TCp&dled 
effective February 8,2006 
Public Utihty Holding Company Act of 2005, which became effective 
February 8,2006 
Regulatory Asset Recovery Charge 
The portion of stranded costs that is recoverable fiom ratepayers as 
approved by regulatory authorities 
Revenues for delivery (transmission and distribution) service and 
electricity supply service 
Murant's Plan of Reorganization 
PHI's noncontributory retirement plan 
Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative 
Remedial Investigation/Feasibihty Study 
Standard & Poor's 
Secxjrities and Exchange Commission 
Amended Settlement Agreement and Release, dated as of October 24, 
2003 between Pepco and the Mirant Parties 
Southem Maryland Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Capacity purchase agreement between Pepco and SMECO 
Sulfiir dioxide 
Standard Offer Service (the supply of energy to customers who have 
not chosen a competitive suppUer) 
Special Purpose Entities as defined in FIN 46R 
Revenue Pepco and DPL, respectively, receive for the procurement of 
energy for its SOS customers 
Starpower Communications, LLC 
Costs incurred by a utility in connection with providing service which 
would be xmrecovemble in a competitive or restructured market. Such 
costs may include costs for generation assets, purchased power costs, 
and regulatory assets and liabilities, such as acciunulated deferred 
income taxes. 
Transition Power Agreements for Maryland and the District of 
Columbia between Pepco and Mirant 
Transition bonds issued by ACE Funding 
A hedging transaction that allows a company to "lock-in" a specific 
interest rate corresponding to the rate ofa designated Treasury bond 
for a determined period of time 
Value at Risk 
Volimtary Enployee Beneficiary Association 
Variable Rate Demand Bonds 
Virginia State Corporation Commission 

IV 
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Iteml. BUSINESS 

OVERVIEW 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. (PHI or Pepco Holdings) is a public utility holding company that, 
through its operating subsidiaries, is engaged primarily m two principal business operations: 

• electricity and natural gas delivery (Power Delivery), and 

• competitive energy generation, marketing and supply (Competitive Energy). 

PHI was mcorporated hi Delaware in 2001, for the purpose of effecting the acqmsition of 
Conectiv by Potomac Electric Power Con^any (Pepco). The acquisition was completed on 
August 1, 2002, at which time Pepco and Conectiv became wholly owned subsidiaries of PHI. 
Conectiv was formed in 1998 to be the holding company for Delmarva Power & Light Company 
(DPL) and Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE) m connection with the combination of DPL 
and ACE. As a result, DPL and ACE are wholly owned subsidiaries of Conectiv. The following 
chart shows, in simpHfied form, the corporate stmcture of PHI and its principal subsidiaries. 

Pe^miae Weenie 
Power C^ ipsny 

(Pepco) 

CoeecHv 

iMnaamVevffrSt 
Lt0itCo.(DFL) 

Po^maeCapitel 
lavratmait 

Corporatlfw (PCI) 
^ r v k e s , l s c 

Atlantic Cky 
Electric Co. (ACE) 

At tsn tkO ly 
Eleelf lcTra»li l( 
l a d i n g U X (ACE 

On Febmary 8,2006, tiie PubHc Utility Holdmg Company Act of 1935 (PUHCA 1935) was 
repealed and the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005) went mto effect 
As a result, PHI has ceased to be regulated by the Securities and Exchange (2!ommission (SEC) 
as a pubHc utility holding company and is now subject to the regulatory oversight ofthe Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). As permitted under FERC regulations promiilgated 
under PUHCA 2005, PHI will give notice to FERC that it wiU continue, imtil further notice, to 
opemte pursuant to the authority granted m the financing order issued by the SEC under 
PUHCA 1935, which has an authorization period ending June 30, 2008, relating to the issuance 
of securities and guarantees, other financing transactions and the operation of the money pool. 
See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -
PUHCA Restrictions" for additional information. 



PHI Service Company, a subsidiary service company of PHI, provides a variety of support 
services, including legal, accounting, treasury, tax, purchasing and information technology 
services to PHI and its operating subsidiaries. These services are provided piumiant to a service 
agreement among PHI, PHI Service Company, and the participating operating subsidiaries 
which was filed with, and approved by, the SEC under PUHCA 1935. The expenses ofthe 
service company are charged to PHI and the participating operating subsidiaries in accordance 
with cost aUocation methodologies set forth in the service agreement. PHI expects to continue 
operating imder the service agreement and is evaluating whether to seek FERC approval ofthe 
cost allocation methodologies in the service agreement under PUHCA 2005. 

For financial information relating to PHI's segments, see Note (3) Segment Information to the 
consoHdated financial statements of PHI set forth in Item 8 ofthis Form 10-K. This segment 
infomiation includes a revision of PHI's segments for 2003 to reflect that, as of January 1,2004, 
the formerly separate segments of Pepco Power Delivery and Conectiv Power DeHvery were 
combmed to form one operatmg segment. Each of Pepco, DPL and ACE has one operatnig 
segment. 

Investor Information 

Each of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE is a reporting company under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). The Annual Reports on Form 10-K, (Quarterly 
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, of 
each ofthe companies are made available free of charge on PHI's internet Web site as soon as 
reasonably practicable after such documents are electronically filed with or furnished to the 
SEC. These reports may be found at http://www.pepcoholdings.com/investors. 

The following is a description of each of PHI's two principal areas of operation. 

Power Delivery 

The lai^est component of PHI's business is Power Delivery, which consists ofthe 
transmission and distribution of electricity and the distribution of natural gas. In 2005,2004 and 
2003, respectively, PHI's Power Delivery operations produced 58%, 61% and 55% of PHI's 
consolidated operating revenues (including intercompany transactions) and 74%, 70% and 82% 
of PHI's consolidated operating income (including income from intercompany transactions). 

PHI's Power DeHvery business is conducted by its three regulated utility subsidiaries: Pepco, 
DPL and ACE. Each subsidiary is a regulated public utility m the jurisdictions that comprise its 
service territory. PEPCO, DPL and ACE each owns and operates a network of wires, 
substations and other equipment that are classified either as transmission or distribution 
facilities. Transmission facilities are high-voltage systems that carry wholesale electricity into, 
or across, the utility's service territory. Distribution facilities are low-voltage systems that cany 
electricity to end-use customers in the utility's regulated service territory. 

Delivery of Electricity and Natural Gas and Default Electricity Supply 

Each company is responsible for the delivery of electricity and, in the case of DPL, natural 
gas m its service territory, for which it is paid tariff rates established by the local public service 
commission. Each con^any also suppHes electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its 
service territory who do not elect to purchase electricity from a competitive energy supplier. 

http://www.pepcoholdings.com/investors


The regulatory term for this supply service varies by jurisdiction as follows: 

Delaware Provider of Last Resort service (POLR) ~ before May 1,2006 

Standaixl Offer Service (SOS) - on and after May 1,2006 

District of Columbia SOS 

Maryland SOS 

New Jersey Basic Generation Service (BGS) 

Virginia Default Service 

PHI and its subsidiaries refer to this supply service in each of the jurisdictions generally as 
Default Electricity Supply. 

In the aggregate, the Power DeHvery business delivers electricity to more than 1.8 million 
customers in the mid-Atlantic region and distributes natural gas to approximately 120,000 
customers in Delaware. 

Transmission of Electricity and Relationship with PJM 

The transmission facilities owned by Pepco, DPL and ACE are interconnected with the 
transmission faciHties of contiguous utihties and as such are part of an interstate power 
transmission grid over which electricity is transmitted throughout the eastern United States. 
FERC has designated a number of regional transmission organizations to coordinate the 
operation and planning of portions of tiie interstate transmission grid. Pepco, DPL and ACE are 
members ofthe PJM Regional Transmission Organization. PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM) 
provides transmission plannii^ fimctions and acts as the independent system operator that 
coordinates the movement of electricity in all or parts of Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, 
Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolma, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, 
West Virginia and the District of Columbia. FERC has designated PJM as the sole provider of 
transmission service in the PJM region. Any entity that wishes to have electricity deHvered at 
any point in the PJM region must obtain transmission services fix)m PJM at rates approved by 
FERC. In accordance with FERC rules, Pepco, DPL, ACE and the other transmission-owning 
utilities hi the region make theu: transmission faciHties available to PJM and PJM dhects and 
controls the operation of these transmission faciHties. In return for the use of their transmission 
facilities, PJM pays the transmission owners fees approved by FERC. 

Distribution of Electricity and Deregulation 

Historically, elecfric utilities, mcluding Pepco, DPL and ACE, were vertically mtegrated 
businesses that generated aU or a substantial portion ofthe electric power that they delivered to 
customers in theu* service territories over their own distribution facilities. Customers were 
charged a bundled rate approved by the applicable regulatory authority that covered both the 
supply and delivery components ofthe retail electtic service. However, legislative and 
regulatory actions in each ofthe service territories in which Pepco, DPL and ACE operate have 
resulted in the "imbundlmg" ofthe supply and delivery components of retail electric service and 
in the opening ofthe supply component to competition fix)m non-regulated providers. 
Accordingly, while Pepco, DPL and ACE continue to be responsible for the distribution of 
electricity hi theu: respective service territories, as the result of deregulation, customers in those 



service territories now are permitted to choose their electricity supplier fix)m among a number of 
non-regulated, competitive suppliers. Customers who do not choose a competitive suppHer 
receive Default Electricity Supply on terms that vary depending on the service territory, as 
described more fuUy below. 

In connection with the deregulation of electric power supply, Pepco, DPL and ACE have 
divested substantially all of their generation assets, either by selling them to third parties or 
transferring them to the non-regulated affiliates of PHI that comprise PHI's Competitive Energy 
businesses. Accordingly, Pepco, DPL and ACE are no longer engaged in generation operations, 
except for the limited generation activities of ACE described in the "ACE" section, herein. 

Seasonality 

The power delivery business is seasonal and weather patterns can have a material impact on 
operating performance. In the region served by PHI, demand for electricity is generally greater 
in the summer months associated with cooHng and demand for electricity and natural gas is 
generally greater in the winter months associated with heating, as compared to other times ofthe 
year. Historically, the power delivery operations of each of PHI's utility subsidiaries have 
generated less revenues and uicome when weatiier conditions are milder in the winter and cooler 
in the summer. 

Regulation 

The retail operations of PHI's utility subsidiaries, including the rates they are permitted to 
charge customers for the deHvery of electricity and natural gas, are subject to regulation by 
governmental agencies in the jurisdictions hi which they provide utility service. Pepco's 
electricity delivery operations are regulated in Maryland by the Maryland Public Service 
C>>mmission (MPSC) and in Washington, D.C. by the District of Columbia Public Service 
Commission (DCPSC). DPL's electricity delivery operations are regulated in Maryland by the 
MPSC, m Virginia by the Virgmia State Corporation Commission (VSCC) and in Delaware by 
the Delaware Public Service Commission (DPSC). DPL's natural gas distribution operations in 
Delaware are regulated by the DPSC. ACE's electric delivery operations are r^:ulated m New 
Jersey by the New Jersey Board of Public Utihties (NJBPU). The wholesale and transmission 
operations for both electricity and natural gas of each of PHI's utility subsidiaries are regulated 
by FERC, 

Pepco 

Pepco is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electricity in Washington, D.C. and 
major portions of Prince (jeorge's and Montgomery Counties in suburban Maryland. Pepco was 
incorporated in Washington, D.C. in 1896 and became a domestic Virginia corporation in 1949, 
Pepco's service territory covers approximately 640 square miles and has a popiilation of 
approximately 2 milHoa As of December 31,2005, Pepco delivered electricity to 
approximately 747,000 customers, as compared to 737,000 customers as of December 31,2004. 
Pepco deHvered a total of approximately 27,594,000 megawatt hours of electricity m 2005, 
compared to approximately 26,902,000 megawatt hours in 2004. In 2005, approximately 30% 
was delivered to residential customers, 51% to commercial customers, and 19% to United States 
and District of Coliunbia government customers. 

Under a settiement approved by the MPSC m April 2003, Pepco is requu-ed to provide SOS 
to residential and smaU commercial customers through May 2008 and to medium-sized 



commercial customers through May 2006, and was reqmred to provide SOS to large commercial 
customers through May 2005. Pepco also has an obligation to provide service at hourly priced 
rates to the largest customers through May 2006. In accordance with the settlement, Pepco 
purchases the power supply reqmred to satisfy its SOS obligation fixtm wholesale suppliers 
under contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid procedure approved by the MPSC. 
Pepco is entitied to recover from hs SOS customers the cost ofthe SOS supply plus an average 
margm of approximately $.002 per kilowatt hour (calculated at the tune of tiie announcement of 
the contracts, based on total sales to residential and small and large commercial Maryland SOS 
customers over the twelve months ended December 31,2003). Because margins vary by 
customer class, the actual average margin over any given time period depends on the number of 
Maryland SOS customers from each customer class and the load taken by such customers over 
the time period. Pepco is paid tariff deHvery rates for the delivery of electricity over its 
transmission and distribution faciHties to both SOS customers and customers in Maryland who 
have selected another energy supplier. These deHvery rates are capped through December 31, 
2006 pursuant to tiie MPSC order issued in coimection with the Pepco acquisition of Conectiv, 
but are subject to adjustment if FERC transmission rates mcrease by more than 10%. 

Under an order issued by the DCPSC in March 2004, as amended by a DCPSC order issued 
ut July 2004, Pepco is obligated to provide SOS for small commercial and residential customers 
through May 31, 2011 and for large commercial customers through May 31,2007. Pepco 
purchases the power supply required to satisfy its SOS obligation fix)m wholesale suppliers 
under contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid procedure approved by the DCPSC. 
Pepco is entitied to recover from its SOS customers the costs associated with the acquisition of 
the SOS supply plus administrative charges that are uitended to allow Pepco to recover the 
administrative costs incurred to provide the SOS. These administrative charges include an 
average margin for Pepco of approximately $.00248 per kilowatt hour (calculated at the time of 
the announcement ofthe contracts, based on total sales to residential and small and large 
commercial District of Columbia SOS customers over the twelve months ended December 31, 
2003). Because margms vary by customer class, the actual average margm over any given time 
period depends on the number of District of Columbia SOS customers from each customer class 
and the load taken by such customers over the time period. Pepco is paid tariff deHvery rates for 
the delivery of electricity over its transmission and distribution facilities to both SOS customers 
arid customers m the District of Columbia who have selected another energy supplier. DeHvery 
rates in the District of Columbia generally are capped through July 2007, but are subject to 
adjustment if FERC transmission rates increase by more than 10%, except that for residential 
low-iacome customers, rates generally are capped through July 2009, 

For the twelve months ended December 31,2005, 62% of Pepco's Maryland sales (measured 
by megawatt hours) were to SOS customers, as compared to 71% hi 2004 and 42% of its District 
of Columbia sales were to SOS customers, as compared to 6^% in 2004. 

DPL 

DPL is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electricity in Delaware and portions of 
Maryland and Vkginia and provides natural gas distribution service in northem Delaware. In 
Delaware, service is provided m three counties, Kent, New Castie, and Sussex; in Maryland, 
service is provided m ten counties, Carolme, Cecil, Dorchester, Harford, Kent, Queen Aime's, 
Somerset, Talbot, Wicomico, and Worchester; and hi Virginia, service is provided to two 
counties, Accomack and Northampton. DPL was incorporated in Delaware in 1909 and became 
a domestic Virgmia corporation in 1979. DPL's electricity distribution service territory covers 
approximately 6,000 square miles and has a population of ^proximately 1.28 million. DPL's 
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natural gas distribution service territory covers approximately 275 square miles and has a 
population of approxunately 523,000. As of December 31,2005, DPL delivered electricity to 
approximately 510,000 customers and delivered natural gas to approximately 120,000 
customers, as compared to 501,000 electricity customers and 118,000 natural gas customers as 
ofDecember3i,2004. 

In 2005, DPL delivered a total of approximately 14,101,000 megawatt hours of electricity to 
its customers, as compared to a total of approximately 13,902,000 megawatt hours m 2004. In 
2005, approxunately 40% of DPL's retail electricity deliveries were to residential customers, 
38% were to commercial customers and 22% were to industrial customers. In 2005, DPL 
delivered approximately 20,700,000 Mcf (one thousand cubic feet) of natural gas to retail 
customers in its Delaware service territory, as compared to approxunately 21,600,000 Mcf in 
2004, In 2005, ^^proximately 41% of DPL's retail gas deliveries were sales to residential 
customers, 27% were sales to commercial customers, 5% were sales to industrial customers, and 
27% were sales to customers receiving a transportation-only service. 

Under a settiement approved by the DPSC, DPL is required to provide POLR service to 
customers m Delaware through April 2006. DPL is paid for supplying POLR service to 
customers in Delaware at fixed rates established in the settiement DPL obtains all ofthe energy 
needed to fulfiU its POLR obHgations in Delaware under a supply agreement with its affihate 
Conectiv Energy, which terminates m April 2006. DPL does not make any profit or mciu' any 
loss on the supply component ofthe POLR supply that it delivers to its Delaware customers. 
DPL is paid tariff delivery rates for the delivery of electricity over its transmission and 
distribution facilities to both POLR customers and customers who have selected another energy 
supplier. These delivery rates generally are frozen through April 2006, except that DPL is 
allowed to file for a one-time transmission rate change during this period. On March 22,2005, 
the DPSC issued an order approving DPL as the SOS provider after May 1, 2006, when DPL's 
current fixed rate POLR obligation ends. DPL wiU retain the SOS obligation for an indefmite 
period until changed by the DPSC, and wiU purchase the power siqjply requned to satisfy its 
SOS obligations from wholesale suppliers under contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive 
bid procedure. On October 11, 2005, the DPSC approved a settiement agreement, under which 
DPL wiH provide SOS to all customer classes, with no specified termination date for SOS, Two 
categories of SOS wUl exist: (i) a fixed price SOS available to all but the largest customers; and 
(ii) an Hourly Priced Service (HPS) for the largest customers, DPL will purchase the power 
supply reqmred to satisfy its fixed-price SOS obhgation from wholesale suppliers imder 
contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid procedure. Power to supply the HPS 
customers will be acquired on next-day and other short-term PJM markets. In addition to the 
costs of capacity, energy, transmission, and ancillary services associated with the fixed-price 
SOS and HPS, DPL's mitial rates will include a con^onent referred to as the Reasonable 
Allowance for Retail Margm (RARM). Components ofthe RARM mclude a fixed annual 
margin of $2.75 miUion, plus estimated incremental expenses, a cash working capital allowance, 
and recovery with a return over five years ofthe capitalized costs ofa biUing system to be used 
for billing HPS customers. 

Under a settiement approved by the MPSC m April 2003, DPL is required to provide SOS to 
residential and small commercial customers throu^ May 2008 and to medium-sized 
commercial customers through May 2006. In accordance with the settlement, DPL piuchases 
the power supply requked to satisfy its market rate SOS obligation from wholesale suppliers 
under contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid procedure approved and supervised by 
the MPSC. DPL is entitied to recover fix»m its SOS customers the costs ofthe SOS supply plus 



an average margm of $. 002 per kilowatt hour (calculated at the time of the annoimcement of the 
contracts, based on total sales to residential and small and large commercial Maryland SOS 
customers over the twelve months ended December 31, 2003). Because margins vary by 
customer class, the actual average margin over any given time period depends on the number of 
Maryland SOS customers fix)m each customer class and the load taken by such customers over 
the time period. DPL is paid tariff delivery rates for the delivery of electricity over its 
transmission and distribution facilities to both SOS customers and customers in Maryland who 
have selected another energy supplier. These delivery rates generaUy are capped through 
December 2006, subject to adjustment if FERC transmission rates hicrease by more than 10%. 

Under amendments to the Virginia Electric Utility Restmcturing Act implemented in March 
2004, DPL is obligated to offer Default Service to customers m Virgmia for an mdefinite period 
imtil relieved of that obligation by the VSCC. DPL cmrently obtams all of tiie energy and 
capacity needed to fulfill its Default Service obligations in Vu^inia under a supply agreement 
with Conectiv Energy that commenced on January 1, 2005 and expires m May 2006 (the 2005 
Supply Agreement). DPL entered mto the 2005 Supply Agreement after conductmg a 
competitive bid procedure in which Conectiv Enei^ was the lowest bidder. 

In October 2004, DPL filed an application witii the VSCC for approval to mcrease the rates 
that DPL charges its Default Service customers to allow it to recover its costs for power under 
the 2005 Supply Agreement plus an administrative charge and a marguL A VSCC order issued 
in November 2004 allowed DPL to put interim rates mto effect on January 1,2005, subject to 
refund if the VSCC subsequentiy determined the rates are excessive. The interim rates reflected 
an increase of 1.0247 cents per kilowatt hour (Kwh) to the fuel rate, which provides for recovery 
ofthe entire amount being paid by DPL to Conectiv Energy, but did not include an 
administrative charge or margin, pending fiirther consideration ofthis issue. In January 2005, 
the VSCC ruled that the administrative chaise and margin are base rate items not recoverable 
through a fuel clause. On March 25,2005, the VSCC ^jproved a settiement resolving all other 
issues and making the interim rates final. 

DPL is paid tariff delivery rates for the deHvery of electricity over its transmission and 
distribution facilities to both Default Service customers and customers hi Vhgmia who have 
selected another energy supplier. These delivery rates generally are fix)zen until December 31, 
2010, except that DPL can propose two changes hi delivery rates - one prior to July 1,2007 and 
another between July 1,2007 and December 31, 2010. 

In Maryland, DPL sales to SOS customers represented 77% of total sales (measured by 
megawatt hours) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, as compared to 80% m 2004. 
In Delaware, DPL sales to POLR customers represented 90% of total sales (measured by 
megawatt hours) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, as compared to 89% in 2004. 
In Virgmia, DPL sales to Default Supply customers represented 100% of total sales (measiu-ed 
by megawatt hours) m both 2005 and 2004. 

DPL also provides regulated natural gas supply and distribution service to customers hi its 
Delaware natural gas service territory. Large and medium volume commercial and industrial 
natural gas customers may purchase natural gas either fiom DPL or fixim other suppliers. DPL 
uses its natural gas distribution facilities to transport gas for customers that choose to purchase 
natural gas fiom other si^pliers. These customers pay DPL distribution service rates approved 
by the DPSC. DPL purchases natural gas siqjpHes for resale to its sales service customers fix)m 
marketers and producers through a combination of long-term agreements and next-day delivery 
arrangements. For the twelve months ended December 31,2005, DPL suppHed 72,8% ofthe 
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natural gas that it delivered, compared to 71.8% in 2004. 

ACE 

ACE is primarily engaged m the transmission and distribution of electricity in a service 
territory consisting of Gloucester, Camden, Burlington, Ocean, Atiantic, Cape May, Cumberland 
and Salem counties in southem New Jersey. ACE was incorporated in New Jersey in 1924. 
ACE's service territory covers approximately 2,700 square miles and has a popitiation of 
approximately 998,000. As of December 31, 2005, ACE delivered electricity to approximately 
532,000 customers in its service territory, as compared to approximately 524,000 customers as 
of December 31,2004. ACE delivered a total of approximately 10,080,000 megawatt hours of 
electricity in 2005 compared to approximately 9,874,000 megawatt hours m 2004. In 2005, 
approximately 44% was deHvered to residential customers, 43% was delivered to commercial 
customers and 13% was delivered to industrial customers. 

In accordance with a process mandated by the NJBPU, electric customers in New Jersey who 
do not choose another supplier receive BGS fiom their electric distribution company. Each of 
New Jersey's electric distribution companies, mcluding ACE, jointiy prociu^ the supply to meet 
their BGS obHgations fixim conqietitive suppliers selected through two concurrent auctions 
authorized by tiie NJBPU for New Jersey's total BGS requirement each February. The wiimmg 
bidders in the auction are requu^d to supply a specified portion ofthe BGS customer load with 
full requirements service, consisting of power supply and transmission service. 

ACE provides two types of BGS: 

« BGS-Fixed Price (BGS-FP), which is supplied to smaller commercial and residential 
customers at seasonally-adjusted fixed prices. BGS-FP rates change annually on June 1 
and are based on the average BGS price obtained at auction in the current year and two 
prior years. ACE's BGS-FP load is approximately 2,050 megawatts, which represents 
approximately 87% of ACE's total BGS load. Approxunately one-thuii ofthis total load 
is auctioned off each year for a three-year term. 

• BGS-Commercial and Industrial Energy Price (BGS-CDEP), which is suppHed to larger 
customers at hourly PJM real-time market prices for a term of 12 months. ACE's BGS-
CIEP load is approximately 300 megawatts, which represents ^iproximately 13% of 
ACE's BGS load. This total load is auctioned off each year for a one-year term. 

As of December 31,2005, Conectiv Energy served four 100 megawatt blocks of BGS load hi 
tiie ACE territory. 

ACE is paid tariff deHvery rates for the deHvery of electricity over its transmission and 
distribution facilities to both BGS customers and customers in its service territory who have 
selected another energy suppHer. ACE is also paid tariff rates estabHshed by the NJBPU that 
compensate it for the cost of obtainmg the BGS from competitive suppliers. ACE does not 
make any profit or inciu- any loss on the supply component ofthe BGS it provides to customers. 



ACE is paid tariff delivery rates for the delivery of electricity over its transmission and 
distribution facilities to both BGS customers and customers in its service territory who have 
selected another energy supplier. ACE is also paid tariff rates established by the NJBPU that 
compensate it for the cost of obtaining the BGS fixim competitive suppliers. ACE does not 
make any profit or incur any loss on the supply component ofthe BGS it provides to customers. 

ACE sales to New Jersey BGS customers represented 78% of total sales (measured by 
megawatt hours) for the twelve months ended December 31,2005 and 2004. 

In addition to its electricity transmission and distribution operations, as of December 31, 
2005, ACE owned the B.L. England electric generating facility (with a generating capacity of 
447 megawatts) and a 2.47% imdivided interest in the Keystone electric generating facility and a 
3.83% undivided interest in the Conemaugh electric generating facility. The combined 
generating capacity of these facilities is 555 megawatts. See Item 2 ~ "Properties." ACE also 
has contracts with non-utility generators under which ACE purchased 3.8 million megawatt 
hours of power in 2005. ACE sells the electricity produced by the generating facilities and 
purchased under the non-utility generator contracts in the wholesale market administered by 
PJM. During 2005, ACE's generation and wholesale electricity sales operations produced 
approximately 30% of ACE's operating revenue. 

On November 15, 2005, ACE entered mto an agreement to sell its undivided interests ni 
the Keystone and Conemaugh generating facilities to Duquesne Light Holdings Inc. for $173.1 
milHon. The sale, subject to approval by the NJBPU, as weU as other regulatory agencies and 
certain other legal conditions, is expected to be completed mid-year 2006. In December 2005, 
ACE filed testimony with the NJBPU in estimatmg that its net gains on the sale ofthe 
generating stations will be qiproximately $126.9 million; however, the net gains ultimately 
realized wiU be dependent upon the timing ofthe closing ofthe sale, transaction costs and other 
factors. The net gains will be an offset to stranded costs. 

ACE is continuing its efforts to sell the B.L. England generating facility. On January 24, 
2006, PHI, Conectiv and ACE entered into an administrative consent order (ACO) with the New 
Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and the Attomey General of New 
Jersey, which provides that ACE wiU permanentiy cease operation ofthe B.L. England 
generating facilify by December 15, 2007 if it does not sell the facility before then. The shut­
down is contingent upon the receipt by ACE of necessary approvals fix>m applicable regulatory 
authorities and permits to constmct certain electric transmission facilities in southem New 
Jersey. See "Environmental Matters - Air Quality Regulation." 

In 2001, ACE established Atiantic City Electric Transition Fimdmg L.L.C. (ACE Fundmg) 
solely for the purpose of securitizing authorized portions of ACE's recoverable stranded costs 
through the issuance and sale of bonds (Transition Bonds). The proceeds ofthe sale of each 
series of Transition Bonds have been transferred to ACE in exchai^e for the transfer by ACE to 
ACE Funding ofthe right to collect a non-bypassable transition bond charge from ACE 
customers pursuant to bondable stranded costs rate orders issued by the NJBPU in an amount 
sufficient to fimd the principal and interest payments on the Transition Bonds and related taxes, 
expenses and fees (Bondable Transition Property). The assets of ACE Funding, including the 
Bondable Transition Property, and the Transition Bond charges collected fix)m ACE's customers, 
are not available to creditors of ACE. The holders of Transition Bonds have recourse only to the 
assets of ACE Funding. 



Competitive Energy 

PHI's Competitive Energy business provides non-regulated generation, marketing and supply 
of electricity and natural gas, and related energy management services, m the mid-Atiantic 
region. In 2005,2004 and 2003, respectively, PHI's Competitive Energy operations produced 
51%, 50% and 55% of PHI's consoHdated operating revenues. In 2005 and 2004, respectively, 
PHI's Competitive Energy operations produced 16% and 19% of PHI's consolidated operating 
income. In 2003, PHFs Competitive Energy operations incurred an operating loss equal to 20% 
of PHI's consolidated operating income. PHI's Competitive Energy operations are conducted 
through subsidiaries of Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services. 

Conectiv Energy 

Conectiv Energy provides wholesale electric power, capacity, and ancillary services in the 
wholesale markets administered by PJM and also supplies electricity to other wholesale market 
participants under long and short-term bilateral contracts. Among its bilateral contracts are the 
power supply agreements imder which Conectiv Energy sells to DPL electricity required by 
DPL to fulfiU its Default Electricity Supply obligations for customers in Delaware and Virginia 
and for a portion of its Maryland customers, (^nectiv Energy also supplies electric power to 
satisfy a portion of ACE's Default Electric Supply load, as weU as Default Electric Supply load 
to other mid-Atiantic utilities. Other than its Default Electricity Supply sales, Conectiv Energy 
does not participate in the retail competitive power supply market. Conectiv Energy obtains the 
electricity required to meet its power supply obHgations fiom its own generating plants, under 
bilateral contracts entered into with other wholesale market participants and fix)m purchases in 
the wholesale market administered by PJM. 

Conectiv Energy's generation asset strategy focuses on mid-merit plants witii operating 
flexibilify and multi-fuel capability that can quickly change their output level on an economic 
basis. Like "peak-load" plants, mid-merit plants generaUy operate during times when demand 
for electricity rises and prices are higher. However, mid-merit plants usually operate more 
frequentiy and for longer periods of tune than peak-load plants because of better heat rates. As 
of December 31,2005, Conectiv Energy owned and operated mid-merit plants with a combined 
2,713 megawatts of capacity, peak-load plants with a combined 639 megawatts of capacity and 
base-load generating plants with a combhied 340 megawatts of capacity. See Item 2 
"Properties," Conectiv Energy also owns three uninstalled combustion turbines with a book 
value of $57.0 miUion. Conectiv Energy will determine whether to instaU these turbines as part 
of an existing or new generating facility or sell the turbines to a third party based upon market 
demand and transmission system needs and requirements. 

Conectiv Energy also sells natural gas and fuel oil to very large end-users and to wholesale 
market participants under bilateral agreements. Conectiv Energy obtains the natural gas and fuel 
oil required to meet its supply obligations through market purchases for next day delivery and 
under long- and short-term bilateral contracts with other market participants. 

Conectiv Energy actively engages in commodity risk management activities to reduce its 
financial exposure to changes in the value of its assets and obHgations due to commodity price 
fluctuations. A portion of these risk management activities are conducted using mstruments 
classified as derivatives, such as forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-traded and 
over-the-counter options. Conectiv Energy also manages commodity risk with contracts that are 
not classified as derivatives. Conectiv Energy has two primary risk management objectives: to 
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manage the spread between the cost of fuel used to operate its electric generation plants and the 
revenue received from the sale ofthe power produced by those plants; and to manage the cost of 
its contracts relating to Default Electricity Supply in order to ensure stable and known minimum 
cash flows and lock-in favorable prices and margins when they become available. To a lesser 
extent, Conectiv Energy also engages in market activities in an effort to profit from short-term 
geographical price differentials in electricity prices among markets. 

Conectiv Energy's goal is to hedge economically a targeted portion of both the expected 
power output of its generation facilities and the expected costs of fuel used to operate those 
faciHties. The hedge goals are approved by PHI's Corporate Risk Management Committee and 
may change from time to tune based on market conditions, and the actual level of coverage may 
vary from the target depending on the extent to which the company is successfiti in 
implementii^ its hedging strategies. In July 2003, Conectiv Energy entered into an agreement 
with an international investment banking firm consisting of a series of energy contracts designed 
to hedge more effectively approximately 50% of Conectiv Energy's generation output and 
approximately 50% of its supply obligations, with the intention of providing Conectiv Energy 
with a more predictable earnings stream during the term ofthe agreement. The agreement will 
expire in May 2006. For additional discussion of Conectiv Energy's hedging activities, see Item 
7A "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk." 

Pepco Energy Services 

Pepco Energy Services sells retail electricity and natural gas primarily to commercial, 
industrial and governmental customers primarily in the mid-Atiantic region. Pepco Energy 
Services also provides integrated energy management services to commercial, industrial and 
governmental customers, including energy-efficiency contracting, development and construction 
of "green power" facilities, central plant and other equipment operation and maintenance, and 
fuel management. Subsidiaries of Pepco Energy Services provide high voltage constmction and 
maintenance services to utihties and other customers throughout the United States and low 
voltage electric and telecommunication constmction and maintenance services in the 
Washington, D.C. area. 

Pepco Energy Services owns peak-load electricity generation plants with approximately 800 
megawatts of peak-load capacity, the ou^ut of which is sold in the wholesale market 
admirustered by PJM. See Item 2 "Properties." 

Pepco Energy Services actively er^ages in commodity risk management activities to reduce 
the financial exposure to changes in the value of its supply contracts and sales commitments due 
to commodity price and volume fluctuations. Certain of these risk management activities are 
conducted using instruments classified as derivatives, such as forward contracts, fixtures, swaps, 
and exchange-traded and over-the-counter options. Pepco Energy Services' primary risk 
management objective is to manage the spread between its retail electric and natural gas sales 
commitments and the cost of supply used to service those commitments in order to secure 
favorable margins. Because ofthe age and design of Pepco Energy Services' power plants, these 
faciHties have a high variable cost of operation and Pepco Energy Services generally does not 
hedge the ou^ut of these plants. For additional discussion of Pepco Energy Services* hedging 
activities, see Item 7A "CJuantitative and (JuaHtative Disclosures About Market Risk." 
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Competition 

The imregulated energy generation, supply and marketing busmesses m the mid-Atiantic 
region are characterized by intense competition at both the wholesale and retail levels. At the 
wholesale level, Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services compete with numerous non-
utility generators, independent power producers, wholesale power marketers and brokers, and 
traditional utilities that continue to operate generation assets. In the retail energy supply market 
and in providing energy management services, Pq)co Energy Services conqietes with numerous 
competitive energy marketers and other service providers. Competition in both the wholesale 
and retail markets for energy and energy management services is based primarily on price and, 
to a lesser extent, the range of services offered to customers and quality ofservice. 

Seasonality 

Like the Power DeHvery business, the power generation, supply and marketing busmesses are 
seasonal and weather patterns can have a material impact on operating performance. Demand 
for electricity generally is greater in the summer months associated with cooling and demand for 
electricity and natural gas generaUy is greater in the winter months associated with heating, as 
con:q)ared to other times ofthe year. Historically, the competitive energy operations of Conectiv 
Energy and Pepco Energy Services have produced less revenue when weather conditions are 
milder than normal. Such weather conditions can also negatively inq)act income fixtm these 
operations. Energy management services generally are not seasonal. 

Other Business Operations 

Over the last several years, PHI has discontinued its investments in non-energy related 
busioesses, including the sale of its afrcraft investments and the sale of its 50% interest m 
Starpower Communications LLC (Starpower). Through its subsidiary, Potomac Capital 
Investment Corporation (PCI), PHI continues to maintain a portfolio of cross-border energy 
sale-leaseback transactions, with a book value at December 31, 2005 of approximately $1,3 
billion. For additional information concerning these cross-border lease transactions, see Note 
(12) "(^mmitments and Contingencies" to the consolidated financial statements of PHI mcluded 
in Item 8 and Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations - Risk Factors." This activity constitutes a separate operating segment for 
financial reporting purposes which is designated "Other Non-Regulated." 

EMPLOYEES 

At December 31, 2005, PHI had 5,481 employees, including 1,526 employed by Pepco, 898 
employed by DPL, 632 en^loyed by ACE and 1,709 en^loyed by PHI Service Company. The 
balance was employed by PHI's competitive energy and other non-regulated businesses. 
Approximately 2,950 employees (including 1,145 employed by Pepco, 730 employed by DPL, 
457 employed by ACE, 349 employed by PHI Service Company, and the balance employed by 
PHI's Competitive Energy businesses) are covered by collective bargaining agreements with 
various locals ofthe International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

PHI, through its subsidiaries, is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and 
local authorities with respect to the envuxinmental effects of its operations, uicluding ah and water 
quahty control, solid and hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In addition, 
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federal and state statutes authorize governmental agencies to compel responsible parties to clean 
up certain abandoned or unremediated hazardous waste sites. PHI's subsidiaries may uicur costs 
to clean up currently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to be contaminated, as well as 
other faculties or sites that may have been contaminated due to past disposal practices. PHI 
currentiy estimates that capital expenditures for environmental control faciHties by its subsidiaries 
will be $4.2 miUion m 2006 and $20.2 mUHon m 2007. However, tiie actual costs of 
environmental conqiHance may be materially different from these estimates depending on the 
outcome ofthe matters addressed below or as a result ofthe imposition of additional 
environmental requurements or new or different interpretations of existing environmental laws and 
regulations. 

Air Quality Regulation 

The generation facilities and operations of PHI's subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and 
local laws and regulations, including the federal Clean An Act (CAA), that limit emissions of 
air pollutants, require permits for operation of facilities and impose recordkeeping and 
reporting requirements. 

Among other things, the CAA regulates total sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions fix)m affected 
generation units mid aUocates "allowances." The generation faciHties of PHI's subsidiaries that 
require SO2 allowances use allocated allowances or allowances acquired, as necessary, in the 
open market to satisfy appUcable regulatory requirements. Also under current regulations 
implementing CAA standards, 22 eastem and mid-westem states and the District of Columbia 
regulate nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions finm generation units and aUocate NOx aUowances. 
Most ofthe generation units operated by PHI subsidiaries are subject to NOx emission Hntits 
and are required to hold, either through aUocations or purchases, NOx allowances as necessary 
to achieve con^Hance. 

The NJDEP administers CAA programs m New Jersey as well as afr quaUfy requirements 
imposed by New Jersey laws and regulations. In Febmaiy 2000, the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and NJDEP requested information fixim AGE regarding the 
operation of coal-fired boilers at ACE's B.L. England faciHty and Conectiv Energy's (formerly 
ACE's) Deepwater facility to determme whether they were in compliance with the New Source 
Review (NSR), Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) and non-attainment NSR 
reqiurements ofthe CAA. Generally, these regulations require that operators of major sources 
of certain air pollutants obtain permits, install pollution control technology and obtain offeets 
in some circumstances when those sources imdei^o a "major modification," as defined in the 
regulations 

In 2003, EPA published a final rule clarifymg the types of activities that qualify as "routine 
maintenance, repair and replacement" rather than "major modifications" and are therefore 
excluded fiom NSR requirements. A number of states, industrial entities, and environmental 
groups have challenged the rule and the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
Circuit has stayed the mle's applicabiUty. 

On Januaiy 24,2006, PHI, Conectiv and ACE entered mto an ACO witii NJDEP and tiie 
Attomey General of New Jersey. This ACO is the definitive agreement contemplated by the 
April 26, 2004 preluninary settlement agreement among the parties. The ACO resolves New 
Jersey's clahn for alleged violations ofthe CAA and the NJDEP's concerns regarding ACE's 
compliance with NSR requirements and the New Jersey Air Pollution Control Act (APCA) 
with respect to the B.L. England generating facility and various other envhonmental issues 
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relating to ACE and C!onectiv Energy facUities in New Jersey. Among other things, the ACO 
provides that: 

• (^ntingent upon the receipt of necessary approvals for the constmction of substation and 
transmission facUities to compensate for the shut down of B.L. England, ACE will 
permanentiy cease operation ofthe B.L. England generating facUity by December 15, 
2007 if ACE does not sell the facility. In the event that ACE is unable to shut down the 
B.L. England facUity by December 15, 2007 through no fault of its own, (i) ACE may 
operate B.L. England Unit 1 after December 15,2007 for certain limited purposes and/or 
for electric system reliabilify diuing the summer months in the years 2008 to 2012, and 
(ii) B.L. England Unit 1 and 2 would be required to comply with stringent emissions 
limits by December 15,2012 and May 1, 2010, respectively, ff ACE fails to meet those 
2010 and 2012 deadlines for reducing emissions, ACE would be required to pay up to 
$10 mUHon in civil penalties. 

• If B.L. England is shut down by December 15, 2007, ACE will surrender to NJDEP 
certain SO2 and NOx allowances allocated to B.L. England Units 1 and 2, contingent 
upon approval by the NJBPU recognizing cost impacts ofthe surrender. 

• In the event that ACE is unable to shut down B.L. England Units 1 and 2 by December 
15,2007 through no fault of its own, ACE will surrender NOx and SO2 allowances not 
needed to satisfy the operational needs of B.L. England Units 1 and 2, contingent upon 
approval by the NJBPU recognizing cost impacts ofthe surrender, 

• To resolve any possible civil liabilify (and without admitting liabilify) for violations of 
APCA and tiie PSD provisions ofthe CAA, ACE paid a $750,000 civil penalfy to NJDEP 
in June 2004 and will undertake environmental projects that are beneficial to the state of 
New Jersey and approved by the NJDEP or donate property valued at $2 million. 

• To resolve any possible civil liabilify (and without admittmg liabilify) for natural resource 
damages resulting from groundwater contamination at ACE's B.L. England facUify and 
Conectiv Energy's Deepwater facUify and ACE's operations center near Pleasantville, 
New Jersey, ACE and Conectiv Energy paid NJDEP $674,162 and will remediate the 
groundwater contamination at all three sites 

• The ACO allows the sale of the B.L. England facUity tiirough the B.L. England auction 
process to a third party that is not committmg to repower or otherwise meet the ACO's 
emissions limits, subject to a 45-day right of first refusal in favor of NJDEP for purchase 
of B.L, England on terms and conditions no less favorable to ACE than those offered by a 
thud party. In the event that ACE enters mto a third-party agre^nent through the B.L. 
England auction process with an entity that commits to repower B.L. England or otherwise 
meet the ACO's emission limits, NJDEP does not have a right of first refiisal. 

• If ACE does not seU B.L. England and the facUity is shut down by December 15,2007, ACE 
will give NJDEP or a charitable conservancy six months to negotiate an agreement to 
purchase B.L. England. If no agreement is reached, ACE may seek bids for B.L. England 
flx)m third parties, subject to a 45-day right of first refiisal in favor of NJDEP for purchase of 
B.L. England on terms and conditions no less favorable to ACE than those offered by a third 
party. 
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The ACO does not resolve any federal claims for alleged violations at the B.L. England 
generating station or any federal or state claims regarding alleged violations at Conectiv 
Energy's Deepwater generating station or any other facilities. PHI does not beUeve that any of 
its subsidiaries has any liabiHty with respect thereto, but cannot predict the consequences ofthe 
federal and state inquiries. 

On May 4, 2002, ACE and Conectiv Energy entered into an ACO with NJDEP to address 
the mabihty of ACE and Conectiv Energy to procure Discrete Emission Reduction (DER) 
credits to comply fully with New Jersey's NOx Reasonably Available Control Technology 
requu-ements, as well as NJDEP's contention that ACE had failed to comply with DER credit 
use restrictions from 1996 to 2001. The ACO (i) eluninated requirements for ACE and 
Conectiv Energy to purchase DER credits for certain generation units through May 1,2005, (ii) 
provided for instaUation of new controls on certam Conectiv Energy electric generatir^ units at 
an estimated cost of $10.7 mUHon, (iii) imposed a $1 million penalty, (iv) required the 
contribution of $1 million to promote, develop and enhance an urban air shed reforestation 
project, and (v) imposed operating hour limits at Conectiv Energy's Deepwater generating 
facility Unit No. 4. In August 2005, NJDEP terminated the ACO based on its determination 
that ACE and Conectiv Energy had achieved compliance with all ofthe terms ofthe ACO. 

EPA finalized its Clean Ah- Mercury Rule (CAMR) on May 18, 2005. CAMR establishes 
mercury emissions standards for new or modified sources and caps state-wide emissions of 
mercury beginning in 2010. States may implement CAMR by adopting EPA's trading program 
for coal-fired utility boilers or through regulations that at a minimum achieve the reductions 
that wUl be achieved through EPA's program. These regulations may require instaUation of 
pollution control devices and/or fuel modifications for generating uruts owned by ACE, 
Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services. As discussed below. New Jersey facilities will be 
required to satisfy state mercury emissions standards that are more stringent than CAMR, 
Closely related to CAMR is EPA's Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR), released on March 10, 
2005, which unposes additional reductions of SO2 and Nox emissions fi-om electric generating 
units m 28 Eastem states and the District of Columbia with implementation commencing m 
2009. CAIR caps state-wide emissions of SO2 and Nox in two stages beguming m 2009 (Nox) 
and 2010 (SO2). As witii CAMR, states may implement CAIR by adoptmg EPA's tradmg 
program or through regulations that at a minimum achieve the reductions that will be achieved 
through implementation of EPA's program. These regulations may require mstallation of 
pollution control devices and/or fuel modifications for generating uruts owned by ACE, 
Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services. 

In a March 14,2005 nUemaking, EPA removed coal- and oil-fired units from the list of 
source categories requiring Maximum Achievable Control Technology for hazardous air 
poUutants under CAA Section 112, thus, for the time being, eliminating the possibility that 
control devices would be required under this section ofthe CAA to reduce nickel emissions 
from Conectiv Energy's Edge Moor Unit 5 and ACE's B.L. England Unit 3. 

In December 2004, NJDEP published final rules regulating mercury emissions from power 
plants and industrial faciHties in New Jersey that impose standards that are significantly stricter 
than EPA's federal CAMR for coal-fired plants. In lieu of meeting these standards for all New 
Jersey coal-fired units by December 15, 2007, NJDEP's final mercury rules allow an owner or 
operator to enter into an enforceable agreement to comply with the mercuiy limits for 50% of a 
company's total coal-fjred capacity by the December 15, 2007 deadUne and to comply with the 
mercury standards, as well as with stringent standards regulatmg emissions of Nox, SOj and 
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particulate matter, for the remaining 50% of its units by December 2012. Alternatively, if an 
owner or operator enters into an enforceable agreement with NJDEP by December 15,2007 to 
shut down coal unit(s) by December 15,2012, then the mercury limitations would not be 
applicable to that particular unit Contingent upon receipt of necessary approvals from the 
NJBPU, PJM, North American ReHabUity Counsel, FERC and other regulatory authorities and 
the receipt of permits to constmct certam transmission faciHties m southern New Jersey, if ACE 
does not seU the B.L, England facility, ACE plans to shut down tiie facility by December 15, 
2007. In this event, no significant capital improvements will be needed at B.L. England to 
comply with NJDEP's final mercury emission rules or CAMR. Conectiv Energy is 
investigating what, if any, capital or operational improvements are needed at the Deepwater 
generating facUity in order to comply with NJDEP's final mercury regulations and CAMR and 
at Edge Moor to comply with CAMR. At this time, Conectiv Energy anticipates that activated 
carbon injection will be needed at Deepwater to meet these regulations at a cost of 
approxunately $300,000. 

In September 2005, NJDEP adopted regulations regarding the fiirther control of Nox 
emissions from combustion sources. These regulations significantiy reduce the Nox limit on 
B.L. England's diesel generators beginning in 2007. 

In November 2005, NJDEP finalized regulations that classify carbon dioxide (CO2) as an air 
contaminant ai^ enable NJDEP potentially to regulate CO2 emissions from power plants and 
other sources. Through its rulemaking and other public announcements, NJDEP has indicated 
that it will take action to limit or reduce emissions of CO2 from electric utilities in New Jersey 
in the near future. New Jersey is one of seven states, including Delaware, Connecticut, Maine, 
New Hampshire, Vermont and New York, that has agreed to participate in the Regional 
(jreenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI), which is expected to cap and eventually reduce emissions of 
CO2 from power plants within the participating states. 

As RGGI signatories, it is anticipated that both New Jersey and Delaware wiU adopt 
implementing CO2 regulations m 2006. These regulations are expected to reqmre New Jersey 
and Delaware fossil fhel-fired electric generating units to hold CO2 allowances equivalent to its 
historic baseluie CO2 emissions commencing in 2009 and to incrementally reduce CO2 
emissions beginning in 2015 to achieve a 10% reduction baseline by 2019. Because each state 
has freedom to adopt its own regulations and can develop its own allowance aUocation 
mechanisms, PHI cannot predict, at this time, if any allowance allocations by these two states 
will fall below its future predicted emissions of CO2, and what the regulations' potential 
economic impact may be. 

On January 6,2006, the Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental 
Control (DNREC) informed Conectiv Energy of DNREC's intent to develop a new regulation to 
"facilitate the reduction of air emissions fi^m Delaware's coal and residual oil fired power 
plants." This "multipollutant" regulation wiU ftuther control SO2, Nox, and mercury from the 
Edge Moor generation facility, mdependent ofthe federal CAIR and CAMR regulations. 
According to DNREC's Start Action Notice, the regulation will help to attain the ambient afr 
quality standards for ozone and fine particulate matter, address local scale fine particulate and 
mercury problems attributable to coal and oil fired electric generating stations, satisfy the 
federal CAIR and CAMR rules, improve visibiUty and satisfy Delaware's regional haze 
obHgations. Conectiv Energy will participate as a stakeholder in the regulation's development, 
which is expected to occur during tiie fall of 2006. 
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Water Quality Regulation 

Section 402(a) ofthe federal Water PoUution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water 
Act (CWA), establishes the basic legal stmcture for regulating the discharge of pollutants fixan 
point sources to surface waters ofthe Uiuted States. Among other things, CWA Section 
402(a) requires that any person wishing to discharge poUutants fiom a point source (generally 
a confined, discrete conveyance such as a pipe) obtain a National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the EPA or by a state agency under a federally 
authorized state program. All ofthe steam generation facilities operated by PHPs subsidiaries 
have NPDES permits authorizing thefr pollutant discharges, which are subject to periodic 
renewal. 

In July 2004, the EPA issued final regulations under Section 316(b) ofthe CWA that are 
intended to minimize potential adverse environmental impacts fiom power plant cooling water 
intake structures on aquatic resources by establishing performance-based standards for the 
operation of these stmctures at large existing electric generating plants. These regulations may 
require changes to cooling water intake stmctures at facilities operated by ACE, Conectiv 
Energy and Pepco Energy Services. However, the capital expenditures the regulations may 
require at each facUity, if any, will not be known until each faciHty completes various studies 
in accordance with schedules established consistent with the regulations and related permit 
requirements. Based on these studies, the appUcable permitting authority wUl specify any 
changes to cooling water intake stmctures that are required in a facility's NPDES renewal 
permit. 

The EPA has del^ated authority to administer the NPDES program to a number of state 
agencies includmg DNREC. The NPDES permit for Conectiv Energy's Edge Moor generation 
faciHty expired on October 30,2003, but has been administratively extended until DNREC 
issues a renewal permit. Conectiv Energy submitted a renewal application to the DNREC hi 
April 2003. Studies required under the existing permit to determine the impact on aquatic 
organisms ofthe plant's cooling water intake stmctures were convicted in 2002. Site-specific 
altemative technology and operational smdies were evaluated and are being discussed with 
DNREC, Expenditures to con^ly with EPA's CWA Section 316(b) performance-based 
standards are dependent upon DNREC's mput, PHI caimot predict the extent of these 
expenditures until DNREC provides a direction or comments on PHI's proposed strategy. 

Under the New Jersey Water Pollution Control Act, NJDEP implements regulations, 
administers the New Jersey Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NJPDES) program with 
EPA oversight, and issues and enforces NJPDES permits. The NJPDES renewal permit for 
Conectiv Energy's Deepwater generating facility, effective through September 30, 2007, 
requires several studies to determine whether or not Deepwater's cooling water intake 
stmctures satisfy appUcable requirements for protection ofthe environment. The studies 
required by Deepwater's NJPDES permit are consistent with requirements under EPA's 
regulations miplementmg CWA Section 316(b). NJDEP will consider the results of tiiese 
studies, as well as other related infonnation submitted in accordance with EPA's CWA Section 
316(b) regulations, in connection with the faciHty's NJPDES permit renewal application, which 
wiU be filed in 2007. 

The renewal NJPDES permit for tiie B.L. England generatmg faciHty was issued by NJDEP 
in February 2005. Under the terms of the permit, ACE is requfred to submit all federally 
required studies and complete constmction of all facUities necessary to satisfy the EPA's new 
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cooling water intake stmcture regulations in accordance with a schedule established by the 
NJDEP that takes into account ACE's agreement to shut down the B.L. England faciHty by 
December 15,2007, subject to receipt of all regulatory approvals. 

Pepco and a subsidiary of Pepco Energy Services discharge water from a steam generation 
plant and service center located in the District of Columbia under a NPDES permit issued by 
EPA in November 2000. Pepco filed a petition with the EPA Environmental A|^eals Board 
seeking review and reconsideration of certain provisions of EPA's permit determination. In 
May 2001, Pepco and EPA reached a settlement on Pepco's petition, under which EPA 
withdrew certain contested provisions and agreed to issue a revised draft permit for public 
comment. The EPA has not issued the revised draft permit. A timely renewal ^jpHcation was 
filed in May 2005 and the companies are operating under the November 2000 permit, 
excluding the withdrawn conditions, in accordance with the settlement agreement. 

Hazardous Substance Regulation 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liabilify Act of 1980 
(CERCLA), authorizes the EPA, and comparable state laws authorize state environmental 
authorities, to issue orders and bring enforcement actions to con^el responsible parties to 
investigate and take remedial actions at any site that is determined to present an actual or 
potential threat to human health or the envuronment because of an actual or threatened release 
of one or more hazardous substances. Parties that generated or transported hazardous 
substances to such sites, as well as the owners and operators of such sites, may be deemed 
liable under CERCLA or comparable state laws. Pepco, DPL and ACE each has been named 
by the EPA or a state environmental agency as a potentially responsible party (PRP) at certain 
contaminated sites. See Item 3 "Legal Proceedings — Environmental Litigation." In addition, 
DPL and ACE have undertaken efforts to remediate currently or formerly owned faciHties 
found to be contaminated, including two former manufactured gas plant sites and other owned 
property. See Item 3 "Legal Proceeduigs ~ Environmental Litigation" and Item 7 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ~ 
Coital Resources and Liquidity ~ Capital Requirements ~ Envhonmental Remediation 
Obligations." 

ItemlA. RISK FACTORS 

Pepco Holdings 

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Risk Factors." 

Pepco 

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations ~ Risk Factors." 

DPL 

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Risk Factors." 
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ACE 

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fhiancial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Risk Factors." 

Item IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

Pepco Holdings 

None. 

Pepco 

Not appHcable, 

DPL 

Not applicable, 

ACE 

Not applicable. 
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Item 2. PROPERTIES 

Generation Facilities 

The foUowing table identifies the electric generation faciHties owned by PHI's subsidises at 
December 31,2005. 

F^ectri4; Qenerating Facilities 

Coal-Fired 
Edge Moor 
B L England'^ 
Conemaugh^ 
Keystone 
Deepwater 

Oil Fired 
Beiming Road 
Edge Moor 
B L England" 
Deepwater 

Combustion Turbines/Combined Cvcle 
Hay Road Unifs 1-4^ 
Hay Road Units 5-8 
Bethlehem Units l-S 
Buzzard Point 
Cumberiond 
Sherman Avenue 
Middle 
Carll's Comer 
Cedar 
Missouri Avenue 
Micldeton 
Christiaoa 
Edge Moor 
West 
Delaware City 
Tasley 

Landfill Gas Unite 
Fauquier County Project 
Rolling Hills Project 

Diesel Units 
Crisfield 
Bayview 
B L England** 
Keystone' 
Conemau^^ 

Total Electric Gener^iJig C^acity 

Location 

Wilmington, DE 
Beesley'sPt.,NJ 
New Florence, PA 
Shelocta, PA 
Pennsville, NJ 

Washington, DC 
Wilmington, DE 
Beesley'sR,NJ 
Pennsville, NJ 

Wihuington, DE 
Wilmington, DE 
Bethlehem, PA 
Washington, DC 
MillviUe,NJ 
Vineland, NJ 
RioGrMidcNJ 
Upper Deerfield Twp., NJ 
CedM^Run,NJ 
Atlantic Ci(y, NJ 
Mickleton, N J 
Wilmington, DE 
Wibmngton, DE 
Marshallton, DE 
Etelawaie City, DE 
Tasley, VA 

Fauquio* County, V A 
Berks County, PA 

Crisfield, MD 
Bayview, VA 
Beesley's Pt, NJ 
Shelocta, PA 
New Florence, PA 

Owner 

Conectiv Energy' 
ACE 
ACE 
ACE 
Conectiv E n e i ^ 

Pepco Ener^ Services* 
Conectiv E n e i ^ ' 
ACE 
Conectiv E n e i ^ 

Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv E n e i ^ ' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Pepco Energy Services* 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv E n e i ^ ' 
Conectiv E n e i ^ ' 
Conectiv E n e i ^ ' 

Pepco Energy Services 
Pepco Energy Services 

Conectiv Energy' 
Conectiv Energy' 
ACE 
ACE 
ACE 

Generating 
Capacity 

fkilowatte) 

260,000 
284,000 

65,000 
42,000 
80.000 

731.000 

550,000 
445,000 
155,000 
86.000 

1.236.000 

545,000 
545,000 

1,092,000 
256,000 

84,000 
S1,000 
77,000 
73,000 
68.000 
60,000 
59,000 
45,000 
13,000 
15,000 
16,000 
26.000 

3.055.000 

2,000 
5.500 
7.500 

10,000 
12,000 
8,000 

300 
400 

30.700 
S 060 500 

AD holdings of ConetSiv Energy are owned by its various subsidiaries. 
ACE holds a 3.83% undivided interest as a tenant in common. Durii^ the fourth quarter of 2005, ACE entered into an ̂ reement to sell 
ite interest in this generation asset. The sale is expected to be completed by the third quarter of 2006. 
ACE holds a 2.47% undivided itawest as a tenant in common. Dorii^ the fourth quarter of 2005, ACE ejiteied into an agreement to sell 
its interest in this generation asset. Thesateisexpectedtobeconyjleledbylhethirdqttarterof2006. 
On Januaiy 24,2006, ACE entered into an ACO with flie NJDEP agreeing to shut down and peraianendy cease operations at flie B.L. 
England geneiatiiig fecility by December 15,2007. 
Effective June 2005, tbe capacity of Hay Road units 1-4 was increased to 545,000 kw. 
Owned by a subsidiary of Pepco Energy Services. 
Ilus fecHity is ovmed by Fauquier LandfiU Gas, LLC, of which Pepco Energy Services holds a 75% membersh^j. 
Hus ^iciUty is owned by RoU^g Hills Landfill Gas, LLC, of which Pepco Energy Services holds an 82% membership. 
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The preceding table sets forth the summer electric generating capacity ofthe electric 
generating plants owned by Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries. Although, due to thermoelectric 
factors, the generating capacity of these facilities may be higher during the winter months, the 
plants operated by PHI's subsidiaries are used to meet summer peak loads that are generally 
higher than winter peak loads. Accordingly, the summer generating capacity more accurately 
reflects the operational capability ofthe plants. 

ACE's generation facilities are subject to the lien ofthe mortgage under which its First 
Mortgage Bonds are issued. 

Transmission and PistributJon Systems 

On a combined basis, the electric transmission and distribution systems owned by Pepco, 
DPL and ACE at December 31, 2005 consisted of approximately 3,600 transmission circuit 
miles of overhead lines, 160 transmission circuit miles of undergroimd cables, 22,740 
distribution cu-cuit miles of overhead lines, and 19,030 distribution cu-cuit miles of underground 
cables, primarily in their respective service territories. Pepco also operates a distribution system 
control center in Maryland. The computer equ^ment and systems contained in the control 
center are financed through a sale and leaseback transaction. 

DPL has a Uquefied natural gas plant located in Wihnington, Delaware, with a storage 
capacity of 3.045 million gallons and an emergency sendout capability of 45,000 Mcf per day. 
DPL owns eight natural gas city gate stations at various locations in New Castle County, 
Delaware. These stations have a total sendout edacity of 225,000 Mcf per day. DPL also owns 
approximately 111 pipeline miles of gas transmission mains, 1,755 pipeline miles of gas 
distribution mains, and 1,281 gas pipeline miles of service lines. The gas transmission mains 
include 7.2 miles of pipeline of which DPL owns 10%, which is used for gas operations, and of 
which Conectiv Energy owns 90%, which is used for delivery of gas to electric generation 
facihties. 

Substantially all ofthe transmission and (distribution property, plant and equipment owned by 
each of Pepco, DPL and ACE are subject to the liens ofthe respective mortgages under which 
the companies issue First Mortgage Bonds. See Note (7) "Debt" to the consoHdated fmancial 
statements of PHI included in Item 8. 

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Pepco Holdings 

The legal proceedings for Pepco Holdings consist solely of those of its subsidiaries, as 
described below. 

GENERAL LITIGATION 

During 1993, Pepco was served with Amended Complaints filed in the state Circuit Courts of 
Prince George's County, Baltimore City and Baltimore County, Maryland m separate ongoing, 
consolidated proceedings known as "In re: Personal Injury Asbestos Case." Pepco and other 
corporate entities were brought into these cases on a theory of premises liability. Under this 
theory, the plaintiffs ai^ed that Pepco was negligent in not providuig a safe woric environment 
for employees or its contractors, who allegedly were exposed to asbestos while woridng on 
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Pepco's property. Initially, a total of approximately 448 individual plaintiffs added Pepco to their 
complaints. While the pleadings are not entirely clear, it appears that each plaintiff sought $2 
million in compensatory damages and $4 million in punitive damages finm each defendant. 

Since the initial filings in 1993, additional uidividual suits have been filed against Pepco, and 
significant numbers of cases have been dismissed. As a result of two motions to dismiss, 
numerous hearings and meetings and one motion for summary judgment, Pepco has had 
approximately 400 of these cases successfully dismissed with prejudice, either volimtarily by the 
plaintiff or by the court. As of December 31,2005, there are approximately 265 cases still 
pending against Pepco in the State Courts of Maryland; of those approximately 265 remainii^ 
asbestos cases, approximately 85 cases were filed afler December 19, 2000, and have been 
tendered to Mirant Corporation for defense and indemnification pursuant to the terms ofthe Asset 
Purchase and Sale Agreement. Mnanf s Plan of Reorganization, as approved by the Bankruptcy 
Court in connection with the Mirant bankruptcy, does not alter Mirant's indemnification 
obligations. However, litigation relating to Mirant's efforts to reject its contract obligations under 
the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement is continuing. In the event Mkant's efforts to reject 
obHgations under the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, including the indemnity obHgations, 
were to be successful, Mirant would be relieved of these indemnity obligations and Pepco would 
have a pre-petition claim for the value ofthe damages uicurred. 

While the aggregate amount of monetary damages sought in the remaining suits (excluding 
those tendered to Mirant) exceeds $400 milHon, Pepco beHeves the amounts claimed by current 
plaintiffs are greatiy exaggerated. The amount of total liabiHty, if any, and any related insurance 
recovery cannot be determined at this time; however, based on information and relevant 
circumstances known at this time, Pepco does not believe these suits wiU have a material adverse 
effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, if an unfavorable 
decision were rendered against Pepco, it could have a material adverse effect on Pepco's and 
PHI's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

ENVIRONMENTAL LITIGATION 

PHI, through its subsidiaries, is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and 
local authorities with respect to the environmental effects of its operations, including air and 
water quality control, solid and hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In 
addition, federal and state statutes authorize governmental agencies to compel responsible parties 
to clean up certain abandoned or unremediated hazardous waste sites. PHI's subsidiaries may 
mcur costs to clean up currently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to be contaminated, as 
well as other facilities or sites that may have been contaminated due to past disposal practices. 
Although penalties assessed for violations of environmental laws and regulations are not 
recoverable fixim customers ofthe operating utilities, environmental clean-up costs incurred by 
Pepco, DPL and ACE would be included by each con^any in its respective cost of service for 
ratemaking purposes. 

In July 2004, DPL entered into an ACO with the Maryland Department ofthe Environment 
(MDE) to perform a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) to fiirther identify the 
extent of soil, sediment and ground and surface water contamination related to former 
manufactured gas plant (MOP) operations at the Cambridge, Maryland site on DPL-owned 
property and to investigate the extent of MGP contamination on adjacent property. The MDE has 
approved the RI and DPL has completed and submitted the FS to MDE. The costs for completing 
the RI/FS for this site were approximately $150,000. The costs of cleanup resulting fi-om the 
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RI/FS will not be determinable until MDE identifies the appropriate remedy. 

In the early 1970s, both Pepco and DPL sold scrap transformers, some of which may have 
contained some level of PCBs, to a metal reclaimer operating at the Metal Bank/Cottman Avenue 
site in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, owned by a nonaffiliated company. In December 1987, Pepco 
and DPL were notified by EPA that they, along with a number of other utilities and non-utilities, 
were PRPs m connection with the PCB contamination at the site. 

In 1994, an RI/FS including a number of possible remedies was submitted to the EPA. In 
1997, the EPA issued a Record of Decision tiiat set fortii a selected remedial action plan with 
estimated implementation costs of approximately $17 million. In 1998, the EPA issued a 
unilateral administrative order to Pepco and 12 other PRPs directing them to conduct the design 
and actions called for in its decision. In May 2003, two ofthe potentially liable owner/opemtor 
entities filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 ofthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In October 2003, 
the bankruptcy court confirmed a reorganization plan that incorporates the terms ofa settiement 
among the two debtor owner/operator entities, the United States and a group of utility PRPs 
including Pe5>co (the Utility PRPs). Under the bankmptcy settlement, the reorganized entity/site 
owner will pay a total of $ 13.25 million to remediate tiie site (the Bankruptcy Settiement), 

On September 2, 2005 the United States lodged with the U.S. District Court for the Eastem 
District of Pennsylvania global consent decrees for the Metal Bank/Cottman Avenue site, entered 
into on August 23,2005 involvmg tiie Utility PRPs, the U.S. Department of Justice, EPA, The 
City of Philadelphia and two owner/operators ofthe site. Under the terms of tiie settlement, the 
two owner/operators wiU make payments totaling $5.55 milHon to the U.S. and totaling $4.05 
miUion to the Utility PRPs. The UtiHty PRPs will perform the r^nedy at the site and will be able 
to draw on the $13.25 million fixjm the Bankruptcy Settiement to accon^Hsh the remediation (the 
Bankruptcy Funds). The Utility PRPs will contribute funds to the extent remediation costs 
exceed the Bankruptcy Funds available. The UtiHty PRPs also wiU be liable for EPA costs 
associated with overseeing the monitoring and operation ofthe site remedy after the remedy 
construction is certified to be complete and also the cost of performing the "5 year" review of site 
conditions required by CERCLA. Any Bankmptcy Funds not spent on the remedy may be used 
to cover the UtiHty PRPs' Habilities for future costs. No parties are released fi'om potential 
liability for damages to natural resources. The global settlement agreement is subject to approval 
by the court. 

As of December 31,2005, Pepco had accmed $1.7 milHon to meet its liabiHty for a remedy at 
the Metal Bank/Cottman Avenue site. While final costs to Pepco ofthe settiement have not been 
determined, Pepco beHeves that its liabiHty at this site wiU not have a material adverse effect on 
its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In 1999, DPL entered into a de minimis settiement with EPA and paid approximately 
$107,000 to resolve its liability for cleanup costs at the Metal Bank/Cottman Avenue site. The de 
minimis settiement did not resolve DPL's responsibiHty for natural resource damages, if any, at 
the site. DPL believes that any Hability for natural resource damages at this site will not have a 
material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In June 1992, EPA identified ACE as a PRP at tiie Bridgeport Rental and Oil Services 
Superfund site in Logan Township, New Jersey. In September 1996, ACE along with other PRPs 
signed a consent decree with EPA and NJDEP to address remediation ofthe site. ACE's liabiHty 
is limited to ,232 percent ofthe aggregate remediation liability and thus far ACE has made 
contributions of approximately $105,000. Based on information currentiy available, ACE 
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anticipates that it may be required to contribute approximately an additional $52,000. ACE 
believes that its liability at this site will not have a material adverse effect on its financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In November 1991, NJDEP identified ACE as a PRP at the DeHlah Road Landfill site m Egg 
Harbor Township, New Jersey. In 1993, ACE, along with other PRPs, signed an ACO with 
NJDEP to remediate the site. The soil cap remedy for the site has been completed and the NJDEP 
conditionaUy approved the report submitted by the parties on the implementation ofthe remedy m 
January 2003. In March 2004, NJDEP approved a Groimd Water Sampling and Analysis Plan. 
Positive results of groimdwater monitoring events have resulted in a reduced level of groundwater 
monitoring. In March 2003, EPA demanded fi*om the PRP group reimbursement for EPA's past 
costs at the site, totaling $168,789. The PRP group objected to the demand for certain costs, but 
agreed to reimburse EPA approximately $19,000. Based on information currently available, ACE 
anticipates that its share of additional cost associated with this site will be approximately 
$626,000. ACE believes that its liabiHty for post-remedy operation and maintenance costs will 
not have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

On January 24,3006, PHI, Conectiv and ACE entered into an ACO with NJDEP and the 
Attomey General of New Jersey. This ACO is the definitive agreement contemplated by the 
April 26, 2004 preliminary settlement agreement among the parties. The ACO resolves the 
NJDEP's concerns regarding ACE's compHance with NSR requirements with respect to the B.L. 
England generating facility and various other environmental issues relating to ACE and Conectiv 
Energy facilities in New Jersey. See Item 1 "Business ~ Environmental Matters ~ Air QuaHty 
Regulation." 

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

Pepco Holdings. Inc. 

None, 

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS 
THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(l)(a) AND 
(b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FACING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT. 
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Part II 

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EOUITY. RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EOUITY SECURITIES 

The New York Stock Exchange is the principal market on which Pepco Holdings common 
stock is traded. The following table presents the dividends declared per share on the Pepco 
Holdings common stock and the high and low sales prices for common stock as reported by the 
New York Stock Exchange during each quarter in the last two fiscal years. 

Period 
2005: 
First Quarter 
Second (Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

2004: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

Dividends 
Per Share 

$,25 
.25 
.25 
.25 

$1.00 

$..25 
.25 
.25 
.25 

$1.00 

Price Range 
High 
$23.25 
24.20 
24.46 
23.89 

$21.71 
20.70 
20.70 
21.68 

Low 
$20.26 
20.50 
21.87 
20.36 

$19.08 
16.94 
17.90 
19.88 

See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations ~ Capital Resources and Liquidity" for information regarding restrictions on the 
ability of PHI and its subsidiaries to pay dividends. 

At December 31, 2005, there were approximately 73,154 holders of record of Pepco Holdings 
common stock. 

PHI Subsidiaries 

AU ofthe common equity of Pepco, DPL, and ACE is owned directiy or indirectiy by PHI. 
Pepco, DPL and ACE each customarily pays dividends on its common stock on a quarterly basis 
based on its earnings, cash flow and capital structure, and after taking into account the business 
plans and financial requirements of PHI and its other subsidiaries. 
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Pepco 

AU of Pepco's common stock is held by Pepco Holdmgs. The table below presents the 
aggregate amount of common stock dividends paid by Pepco to PHI during the periods indicated. 

Period 
2005: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

2004: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

Aggregate 
Dividends 

$ 14,933,000 

48,000,000 

$62,933,000 

$11,832,000 
30,329,000 
52,532,000 
7.697.000 

$102,390,000 

DPL 

AU of DPL's common stock is held by Conectiv. The table below presents the aggregate 
amount of common stock dividends paid by DPL to Conectiv during the periods indicated. 

Period 
2005: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

2004: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

Abrogate 
Dividends 

$ 24,384,000 
12,052,000 

-
_ 

$ 36.436.000 

$22,067,000 
22,393,000 
13,693,000 
9.845.000 

$67,998,000 
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ACE 

All of ACE's common stock is held by Conectiv. The table below presents the aggregate 
amount of common stock dividends paid by ACE to Conectiv during the periods indicated. 

Period 
2005: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

2004: 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

Aggregate 
Dividends 

$ 7,348,000 
40,539,000 

-
48,000.000 

$95,887,000 

$ 5,647,000 
-
-

4.973.000 
$10,620,000 

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers. 

Pepco Holdings. Inc. 

None. 

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS 
THEY MEET THE CONDmONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(l)(a) AND 
(b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILD^G FORMAT. 
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lEBL^ SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

PEPCO HOLDINGS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

CoBSolidated Ooeratiiif Remits 
Total Operatiiig Revetme 
Total Operatii^ Expoises 
Oper^tng Income 
Other E:q>ense3 
Preferred Stock Dividend 

RequireiiKnts of Siib^diaries 
iDcome BeSMB Income Tax ̂ pensc and 
ExHaotdiTuiy Item 

Incorae Tax Expense 
Income Before Extraordinaiy Item 
Extraordioaiy Item 
Net Income 
Redenqttion Prcmium on 
Preferred Stock 

Earnings Available for 
Contmon Stock 

Common Stock [Bfitrmstinn 
Basic Eaminga Per Share of Common 
Stock Before Extraordinaiy Item 

Basic - Bxtraordinaty Item Per 
Share of Common Stodt 

Basic EamiDgB I ^ Share 
of Common Stock 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
S 

$ 

s 

$ 

% 

s 

2005 

8,065.5 
7,160.1 (b)(c)(d) 

905.4 
285.5 

2.5 

617.4 
255.2 (e) 
362.2 

9.0 
371.2 

(.1) 

371.1 

1.91 

.05 

1.96 

(Restated) 
2004(a) 

7^23.1 
6.451.0 

772.1 
341.4 

2.8 

427.9 
167.3 (0 
260.6 

-
260.6 

.5 

261.1 

1.48 

-
1.48 

(Restated) 
2003(a) 

(I^vlously 
Reported) 

2002 
(b) millions, racept per share data] 

7,268.7 
6,658.0 

610.7 
433.3 

13.9 

163.5 
62.1 

101.4 
5.9 

107.3 

-

107.3 

.60 

.03 

.63 

(g) (i) 

(b) 

4,324J 
3,778.9 

545.6 
190.4 

20.6 

334.* 
124.1 
210.5 

-
210.5 

-

210.5 

1.61 

-
1.61 

(Restated) 
2002(a) 

4,324.5 
3,778.6 

545.9 
191.4 

20.6 

333.9 
124.9 
209.0 

-
209.0 

-
209.0 

1.39 

-
1.59 

(Previonsly 
Reported) 

2001 

2371.2 
2,004.8 (j) 

366.4 
105J 

14.2 

246.9 
83J 

163.4 

-
163.4 

-

163.4 

1.51 

-
1.51 

(Restated) 
2001 (a) 

2371.2 
2,004.7 0) 

366.5 
104.8 

142 

247.3 
S3.1 

164.4 

-
164.4 

-
164.4 

L52 

-
1.52 

Dituted Earnings Per Share 
of Common Stock Before 
Enlraordinary ttem 

Diluted - Extraordinaty Item Per 
Share of Common Stock 

Diluted EaintDgs Per Share 
of Common Stock 

Basic Common Shares OntUandit^ (Avg.) 
Dihited Common Shares Outstanding (Avg.) 
Cash Dividends Per Share 
of Common Stock 

Year-End Stock Price 
Book Vahie per Common Share 

Other Information 

Investment in Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

Net Investment in Prq»i^, Mant 
andEquipnsnt 

Total Assets 

Cgpltalizatten 
Sbott-ierm Debt 
Long-tenn Debt 
Current Maturities of Long-Tenn Debt 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Fnnding 
Capital Lease Obl^tiom due within one 

year 
Capital Lease Obl^ations 
Long-Tenn Prtgect Funding 
Dd>^mres issued to FinanciBg Tnist 
Trust Preferred Securities 
Prefoired Stock of Subsidiaries 
Common Shareholders' Equity 

Total Capitalization 

1.91 

.05 

i 

i 
i 
$ 

1.96 
189.0 
189.3 

1.00 
22J7 
18.88 

$ 11,384.2 

1.48 ,60 

.03 

1.61 1.59 1.50 

11,047.8 10,748.0 10,623.0 10,626J 4,361.9 

l .Sl 

l.St 
1.48 

176.8 
176.8 

1.00 
21.32 
17,74 

.63 
170.7 
170.7 

1.00 
19.54 
17.31 

1.61 
13L1 
13hl 

1.00 
1939 
17.62 

1.59 
131.1 
I3L1 

1.00 
19.39 
17.49 

1.50 
108.3 
108.8 

1.165 
22.57 
17.00 

108.3 
108.8 

1.165 
22.57 
16.81 

4361.9 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

t 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

7,312,0 
14,017.8 

156.4 
4,202.9 

469.5 
494.3 

5.3 
116.6 
25.5 

, 
-

45.9 
3,584.1 
9,100.5 

7,090.6 

13,350.8 

319.7 
4362.1 

5163 
5233 

4.9 
122.1 
65.3 

. 

. 
54.9 

3339.0 
9307.6 

6,965.7 

13369.0 

518.4 
4388.9 

3S4.9 
5513 

4.4 
126.8 
68.6 
98.0 

. 
108.2 

2,974.1 
9,423.8 

7,043.3 

13368-5 

971.1 
4,287.3 

408.1 
425J 

4.1 
1313 
28.6 

. 
290.0 
110.7 

2,995.8 
9,652.5 

7,044.8 

13,406.2 

971.1 
4,287.5 

408.1 
425.3 

4.1 
131.3 
28.6 

-
290.0 
110.7 

2,972.8 
9,629,5 

2,819.0 

5,395.7 

350.2 
1,602.1 

109.2 

-

3.3 
132.2 
21.7 

. 
123.0 
84.8 

1,823.2 
4,251.7 

2,819.0 

5,4003 

350J 
1,602.1 

109.2 

-
3.3 

132J 
21.7 

-
125.0 
84.8 

1,301.8 
4,2303 
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Note: As a result ofthe acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco that was completed on August 1,2002, PHI's 2005,2004 
and 2003 amounts include PHI and its aibsidiaries' results for the ftill year. PHTs 2002 amounts include 
Conectiv and its subsidiaries post-August 1,2002 results with Pepco and its pre-merger subsidiaries (PCI and 
Pepco Energy Services) results for the fiill year in 2002. The amounts presented for 2001 represent only 
Pepco and its pre-merger subsidiaries' results. 

(a) As discu^ed in Note (15) to the consolidated financial statements of Pepco Holdings included in Item 8 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,'* Pepco Holdings restated its financial statements to reflect 
the correction ofthe accounting for certain deferred compensation arrangements and other errors that 
management deemed to be immaterial. 

(b) Includes $68.1 million ($40.7 million after tax) gain from sale of non-utility land owned by Pepco at Buzzard 
Point. 

(c) Includes $70,5 million ($42.2 million after tax) gain (net of customer sharing) from settlement ofthe Pepco 
TPA Claim and the Pqjco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankruptcy estate. 

(d) Includes $13.3 million ($8.9 million aftertax) related to PCPs liquidation ofa financial investment that was 
written off in 2001. 

(e) Includes $10.9 million in income tax expense related to the mixed service cost issue imder IRS Ruling 2005-
53. 

(f) Includes a $19.7 million charge related to an IRS settlement. Also includes $13.2 million tax benefit related 
to issuance of a local jurisdiction's final consolidated tax return regulations. 

(g) Includes a charge of $50.1 million ($29.5 million after tax) related to a CT contract cancellation. Also 
includes a gain of $68.8 million ($44.7 million after tax) on the sale ofthe Edison Pl^e office building. 

(h) Includes an unpairment charge of $102.6 million ($66.7 million after tax) related to mvestment in Starpower 
Communications, LLC. 

(i) Includes the unfavorable impact of $44.3 million ($26.6 million after tax) resulting fix)m t r ^ n g losses prior 
to the cessation of proprietary trading. 

(j) Includes S55.5 million ($36.1 million after tax) impairment charge related to the write-down of aircraft 
leasing portfolio. 
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INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS 
THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(l)(a) AND 
(b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT. 

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The information required by this item is contained herein, as follows: 

Registrants Page No. 

Pepco Holdings 32 

Pepco 109 

DPL 122 

ACE 135 

30 



TfflS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. 

RESTATEMENT 

Pepco Holdings restated its previously reported consolidated financial statements as of 
December 31,2004 and for the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, the quarterly fin^icial 
information for the first three quarters in 2005, and all quarterly periods in 2004, to correct the 
accounting for certain deferred compensation arrangements. The restatement includes the 
correction of other errors for the same periods, primarily relating to unbilled revenue, taxes, and 
various accrual accounts, which were considered by management to be immaterial. These other 
errors would not themselves have required a restatement absent the restatement to correct the 
accounting for deferred compensation arrangements. This restatement was required solely 
because the cumulative impact ofthe correction, if recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, would 
have been material to that period's reported net income. See Note 15 "Restatement" for fiirther 
discussion, 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. (PHI or Pepco Holdings) is a public utihty holding con^any that, 
through its operating subsidiaries, is engaged primarily in two principal business operations: 

• electricity and natural gas dehvery (Power Delivery), and 
• conipetitive energy generation, marketing and supply (Competitive Enei^). 

The Power Delivery business is the largest component of PHI's business. For each ofthe 
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the operating revenues ofthe Power Delivery 
business (including intercompany amounts) were equal to 58%, 61%, and 55%, respectively, of 
PHI's consolidated operating revenues, and the operating income ofthe Power Delivery business 
(including income fi-om intercompany transactions) was equal to 74%, 70%, and 82% of PHI's 
consohdated operating income, respectively. The Power Delivery business consists primarily of 
the transmission, distribution and default supply of electric power, which was responsible for 
94%, 95%, and 95% of Power Delivery's operatmg revenues for the years ended December 31, 
2005,2004, and 2003, respectively, ^ d the distribution of natural gas, which contributed 6%, 
5%, and 5% of Power Delivery's operating revenues over the same periods, respectively. Power 
Dehvery represents one operating segment for financial reporting purposes. 

The Power Delivery busmess is conducted by three regulated utility subsidiaries: Potomac 
Electric Power Company (Pepco), Delmarva Power <&; Light Company (DPL) and Atiantic City 
Electric Company (ACE). Each of these companies is a regulated pubHc utility in the 
jurisdictions that comprise its service territory. Each company is responsible for the distribution 
of electricity and, in the case of DPL, natural gas in its service territory, for which it is paid tariff 
rates established by the local pubKc service cormnissions. Each company also supplies 
electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its service territory who do not elect to 
purchase electricity fix)m a competitive energy supplier. The regulatory term for this supply 
service varies by jurisdiction as follows: 
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Delaware Provider of Last Resort service (POLR) -- before May 1, 2006 

S t a n d i Offer Service (SOS) - on and aft^ May 1,2006 

District of Columbia SOS 

Maryland SOS 

New Jersey Basic Generation Service (BGS) 

Virginia Default Service 
PHI and its subsidiaries refer to this supply service in each of the jurisdictions generally as 

Defiiult Electricity Supply. 

Pepco, DPL and ACE are also responsible for the transmission of wholesale electricity into 
and across their service territories. The rates each company is permitted to charge for the 
wholesale transmission of electricity are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC). 

The profitability of the Power Delivery business depends on its ability to recover costs and 
earn a reasonable return on its capital investments through the rates it is permitted to charge. 

Power Delivery's operating revenue and income are seasonal, and weath^ patterns may have 
a material impact on operating results. 

The Competitive Energy business provides competitive generation, marketing and supply of 
electricity and gas, and related energy management services primarily in the mid-Atlantic region. 
These operations are conducted through subsidiaries of Conectiv Energy Holdmg Con^any 
(collectively, Conectiv Energy) and Pepco Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries 
(collectively, Pepco Energy Services), each of which is treated as a separate operating segment 
for financial reportuig purposes. For the years ended December 31,2005,2004, and 2003, the 
operating revenues ofthe Competitive Energy business (including intercompany amounts) were 
equal to 51%, 50%, and 55%, respectively, of PHPs consolidated operating revenues, and the 
operating income ofthe Competitive Energy business (including operating income fi-om 
intercompany transactions) was 16% and 19% of PHI's consoHdated operating income for the 
years ended December 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2003, PHPs Competitive Energy 
operations incurred an operating loss equal to 20% of PHI's consolidated operating income. For 
die years ended December 31,2005,2004 and 2003, amounts equal to 14%, 16% and 16%, 
respectively, ofthe operating revenues ofthe (Competitive Energy business were attributable to 
electric energy and capacity, and natural gas sold to the Power Delivery segment. 
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• Conectiv Energy provides wholesale electric power, capacity and anciUaiy services in 
the wholesale markets administered by PJM Intercoimection, LLC (PJM) and also 
supplies electricity to other wholesale market participants under long- and short-term 
bilateral contracts. PHI refers to these wholesale supply operations as Merchant 
Generation. Conectiv Enei^ has a power supply agreement under which it provides 
DPL with all ofthe electric power needed for distribution to its Default Electricity 
Supply customers in Delaware and Virginia. Conectiv Energy also supplies electric 
power to satisfy a portion of ACE's Default Electricity Supply load and DPL's Maryland 
Default Electricity Supply load, as well as Default Electricity Supply load shares of 
other mid-Atlantic utilities. PHI refers to the supply of energy by Conectiv Energy to 
utilities to fulfill their Default Electricity Supply obligations as FuU Requirements Load 
Service. Conectiv Energy obtains the electricity required to meet its Merchant 
Generation and Full Requirements Load Service power supply obligations fix)m its own 
generation plants, imder bilateral contract purchases fix)m other wholesale maiket 
participants and from purchases in the PJM wholesale market Conectiv Energy also 
sells natural gas and fiiel oil to very large end-users and to wholesale market 
participants under bilateral agreements. PHI refers to these sales operations as Other 
Power, Oil & Gas Marketing, 

• Pepco Energy Services sells retail electricity and natural gas and provides integrated 
energy management services, primarily in the mid-Atiantic region, and its subsidiaries 
own and operate generation plants located in PJM. Pepco Energy Services also 
provides high voltage construction and maintenance services to utilities and other 
customers throughout the United States and low voltage electric and telecommunication 
construction and maintenance services primarily in the Washington, D.C. area. 

Conectiv Energy's primary objective is to maximize the value of its generation fleet by 
leveraging its operational and fuel flexibilities. Pepco Energy's primary objective is to capture 
retail energy supply and service opportunities primarily in the mid-Atiantic region. The 
financial results ofthe Competitive Energy business can be significantiy affected by wholesale 
and retail energy prices, the cost of fixel to operate the Conectiv Energy plants, and the cost of 
purchased energy necessmy to meet its power supply obligations. 

In order to lower its financial exposure related to commodity price fluctuations, Conectiv 
Energy entered into an agreement consisting of a series of energy contracts with an international 
investment banking firm. This agreement is designed to hedge approximately 50% of Conectiv 
Energy's generation output and approximately 50% of its supply obHgations, with the intention 
of providing Conectiv Energy with a more predictable earnings stream during the term ofthe 
agreement. This agreement consists of two major components: (i) a fixed price energy supply 
hedge that will be used to reduce Conectiv Energy's financial exposure under its current Default 
Electricity Supply commitment to DPL which extends through April 2006 and (u) a generation 
off-take agreement under which Conectiv Energy wiH receive a fixed monthly payment fi-om the 
coimteiparty, and the coimterparty will receive the profit reaHzed fix>m the sale of approximately 
50% ofthe electricity generated by Conectiv Energy's plants (excluding the Edge Moor faciHty). 

Conectiv Energy has taken steps to hedge its generation output and siqjply obligations after 
May 2006 by entering into various new standard product supply agreements, full requirement 
supply contracts, bilateral energy and capacity sales agreements and various fuel and power 
supply transactions to hedge the related fuel and power requirements. 
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The Competitive Energy business, like the Power DeHvery business, is seasonal, and 
therefore weather patterns can have a material impact on operating results. 

Over the last several years, PHI has discontinued its investments in non-energy related 
businesses, and has sold its aircraft investments and its 50% interest in Starpower 
Commimications LLC (Starpower). Through its subsidiary, Potomac Capital Investment 
Corporation (PCI), PHI continues to maintain a portfolio of cross-border energy sale-leaseback 
transactions with a book value at December 31,2005 of approximately $1.3 billion. This 
activity constitutes a fourth operating segment, which is designated as "Other Non-Regulated," 
for financial reporting purposes. 

BUSINESS STRATEGY 

PHI's busuiess strategy is to remain a regional diversified energy delivery utility and 
competitive energy services company focused on value creation and operational excellence. 
This strategy has three primary components: 

• Achieving growing earnings in the Power DeHvery business by focusing on 
infrastructure investments and constructive regulatory outcomes, while mauitaming a 
high level of operational excellence. 

• Supplementing PHI's utility earnings growth through conqjetitive energy businesses 
that focus primarily on servuig the competitive wholesale and retail markets in PJM. 

• Strengthening PHI's credit profile through continued debt reduction efforts. 

EARNINGS OVERVIEW 

Year Ended December 31,2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31,2004 

PHI's net income for the year ended December 31,2005 was $371.2 milHon compared to 
$260.6 million for the year ended December 31,2004. 

Net income for 2005 included the (charges) and/or credits set forth below (which are 
presented net of tax and in miUions of doUars). The segment that recognized the (chmrge) or 
credit is also indicated. 

• Power Delivery 

- Favorable impact ofthe ACE base rate case settiement as follows: 

Ordinary loss from write-offs for disallowance of regulatory assets, 
net of reserve $ (3.9) 

Extraordinary gain from reversal of restructuring reserves 9.0 

Aggregate impact $ 5.1 

- Gain on sale of non-utiHty land. Buzzard Point $ 40.7 

- Increase in income tax expense for the interest accrued on the potential impact of 
the IRS mixed service cost issue $(10.9) 
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- Gain on Settlement of Pepco TPA Claun and Pepco asbestos claun agamst 
Mirant $ 42.2 

• Conectiv Energy 

- Impairment charge to reduce the value of an investment in a jointiy owned 
generation project $ (2,6) 

• Other Non-Regulated 

- Gain related to the final liquidation ofa financial investment that was written off 
in 2001 $ 8.9 

Net income for 2004 included the (charges) and/or credits set forth below (which are 
presented net of tax and in millions of dollars). Where attributable to a single segment, the 
segment that recognized the (charge) or credit is also indicated. 

• Tax benefits related to issuance ofa local jurisdiction's final consolidated tax 
return regulations, which were retroactive to 2001 (spplies to all segments) $ 13.2 

• Power Delivery 

- Gain on disposition of distribution assets associated with Vineland 

condemnation settiement $ 8.6 

- Severance costs accruals $ (6.7) 

• Conectiv Energy 

- Gain on disposition of assets associated with Vineland co-generation facility $ 6.6 

- Charge associated with the early pay-off of the Bethlehem mid-merit faciHty 

debt $ (7,7) 

• Other Non-Regulated 

- Impairment charge used to reduce the book value ofthe Starpower mvestment $ (7.3) 

- Charge resulting fix)m a tax settiement with the IRS related to PCI's non-lease 
financial assets $(19.7) 

Excluding the items listed above, net income would have been $287.8 milHon in 2005 and 
$273.6 railHon in 2004. 
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PHI's net income for the ye^ ended December 31,2005 compared to the year ended 
December 31,2004 is set forth in the table below: 

Power Delivery 
Conectiv Energy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Other Non-Regulated 
Corporate & Other 

Total PHI Net hicome (GAAP) 

2005 

$ 302.1 
48.1 
25.7 
47.9 

(52.6) 
$ 371.2 

2004 Change 
(Millions of doUars) 

$ 227.1 
60.2 
12.9 
25.6 

(65.2) 
$ 260.6 

$ 75,0 
(12.1) 
12,8 
22.3 
12,6 

$ 110.6 

Discussion of Segment Net Income Variances (the net income variance amounts are 
reflected net of tax); 

Power Delivery's higher earnings of $75.0 million are primarily due to the following: 
(i) $42.2 miUion of increased earnings related to the settiement ofthe TPA ^ d asbestos claims 
with Mirant, (ii) $32.1 million of increased earnings related to the gain on sale of assets 
primarily Buzzard Point non-utility land ($40.7 million), partially offset by the gain on 
disposition of distribution assets associated with Vineland condemnation settlement ($8.6 
million), (iii) $16.7 million of increased earnings related to higher sales (14.7% Cooling Degree 
Day increase as compm-ed to 2004), (iv) $5,1 tnilHon increase attributable to the ACE base rate 
case settlement, and (v) $14.1 million of increased earnings primarily associated with lower 
interest expense, other taxes and other net; partiaUy offset by (vi) $5.2 miUion revenue reduction 
due to a change in the estimation of unbiUed revenue, (vii) $5.9 nulHon decrease due to lower 
Default Electricity Supply margins primarily due to increased customer migration, partially 
offset by the mplementation ofthe competitive bid process (change fix^m TPA calculation 
method), (viii) $7.5 miUion increase in operation and maintenance expense, primarily employee 
related costs, system maintenance, software write-off, outside legal fees associated with the 
Mirant banknqjtcy proceedings and transmission matters; partially offset by a reduction in the 
uncollectible account reserve to reflect the amount expected to be coUected on Pepco's Pre-
Petition Claims with Mirant, and a decrease in PJM administrative office expenses, and (ix) 
$16.0 miUion for increased tax expense (primarily mixed service costs and 2004 tax 
adjustments). 

Conectiv Energy's lower earnings of $12.1 miUion are primarily due to the following: (i) a 
$19.3 million decrease due to lower Full Requirements Load Service earnings as a result of 
higher power costs to meet load obligations, (ii) higher earnings of $6.6 million in 2004 as the 
result ofthe gam on disposition associated with Vmeland co-generation facility, (iii) a one-time 
gain of $5.2 miUion on a group of coal contracts in 2004, and (iv) a $2.6 million impairment 
charge to reduce the value of an investment in an energy project, partially offset by (v) $9,2 
million increase in Merchant Generation earnings, due primarily to higher output and increased 
spark spreads, (vi) a $3.9 miUion increase related to Other Power, Oil & Gas Marketing Services 
(which consists of all Conectiv Energy activities not included in Merchant Generation or Full 
Requirements Load Service), (vii) a $6.6 milHon decrease in interest expense primarily due to 
the early pay-off of the Bethlehem mid-merit facility debt in 2004, and (viii) higher eammgs of 
$2.9 million from lower depreciation expense due to a change in the estimated useful Hfe of 
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generation assets. 

Pepco Energy Services' higher earnings of $12.8 miUion are primarily due to the following: 
(i) $9.2 miUion increased earnings from its retail commodity business resulting fitJm increased 
commercial and industrial load acqmsition, (ii) $3.6 mUlion increase related to higher generation 
from its Benning and Buzzard Point power plants, and (iii) $2.9 miUion increased earnings 
primarily fixtm energy service activities, partially offset by (iv) $1.5 million decrease related to 
the 2004 tax benefit related to issuance ofa local jurisdiction's final consolidated tax return 
regulations and (v) a $1.4 million decrease in interest expense. 

Other Non-Regulated higher earnings of $22,3 million are primarily due to the foUowing: 
(i) $19,7 million increase due to a 2004 charge resultii^ from a tax settiement with the IRS 
related to PCI's non-lease fiaancial assets, (ii) $8.9 miUion increase from a gain on the final 
Hquidation of a financial mvestment that was written off in a prior year, (Hi) $7.3 rmlHon mcrease 
related to an impairment charge to reduce the value ofthe Starpower investment recorded in 
2004, and (iv) $4.8 mUlion gain on the sale of PCI's Solar Electric Generation Stations (SEGS) 
investment in 2005, partiaUy offset by (v) $8.8 milHon decrease due to the 2004 tax benefit 
related to issuance of a local jurisdiction's final consoHdated tax return regulations, (vi) $4.8 
mUlion due to the gain on sale of akcraft uivestments in 2004, and (vii) $4.5 million decrease hi 
financing/investment earnings related to 2004 activity. 

Corporate and Other higher earnings of $12.6 million are primarily due to a reduction m net 
interest expense. 

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The accompanying results of operations discussion is for the year ended December 31, 
2005, compared to the year ended December 31,2004, All amounts in the tables (except sales 
and customers) are in millions. 

Year Ended December 31,2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,2004 

Operating Revenue 

A detail ofthe components of PHFs consolidated operatmg revenues is as follows: 

Power Delivery 
Conectiv Eneigy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Other Non-Regulated 
Corporate and Other 

Total Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 4,702,9 

2,603,6 
1,487.5 

81.9 
(810.4) 

$ 8,065.5 

2004 
$4,377.7 
2,409.8 
1,166.6 

87.9 
(818.9) 

$7,223.1 

Change 
$ 325.2 

193.8 
320.9 

(6.0) 
8.5 

$ 842.4 
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Power Deliverv Business 

The following table categorizes Power Delivery's operating revenue by type of revenue. 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 
Defeult Supply Revenue 
Other Electric Revenue 

Total Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 
Other Gas Revenue 

Total Gas Operating Revenue 

Total Power Delivery Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 1,618.5 

2,753.0 
69.9 

4,441.4 

198.7 
62.8 

261.5 

$ 4,702.9 

2004 
$1,566.6 
2,514.7 

67.8 
4,149.1 

169.7 
58,9 

228.6 

$4,377.7 

Change 
$ 51.9 

238.3 
2.1 

292.3 

29.0 
3.9 

32.9 

$ 325.2 

Regulated Transmission and Distribution (T&D) Electric Revenue consists of revenue firon 
the transmission and the delivery of electricity to PHI's customers within its service territories at 
regulated rates. 

Default Supply Revenue is the revenue received for Default Electricity Supply. The costs 
related to the supply of electricity are included in Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services 
Cost of Sales. 

Other Electric Revenue consists of utiHty-related work and services performed on behalf of 
customers, including other utihties. 

Regulated Gas Revenue consists of revenues for on-system natural gas sales and the 
transportation of natural gas for customers within PHFs service territories at regulated rates. 

Other Gas Revenue consists of off-system natural gas sales and the release of excess system 
edacity. 

Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (Includes PJM) 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

2005 2004 Change 

$ 613.0 
726.8 
36.8 

241.9 
$ 1,618.5 

$ 597.7 
692.3 
37.4 

239.2 
$1,566.6 

$ 15.3 
34.5 

(,6) 
2.7 

$ 51.9 
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Regulated T&D Electric Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Sales 

2005 

18,045 
29,441 
4,288 

51,774 

2004 

17,759 
28,448 

4,471 
50,678 

Change 

286 
993 

(183) 
1,096 

Regulated T&D Electric Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Customers 

2005 

1,591 
196 

2 
1,789 

2004 

1,567 
193 

2 
1,762 

Change 

24 
3 

27 

The Pepco, DPL and ACE service territories are located within a corridor extending fix)m 
Washington, D.C, to southem New Jersey. These service territories are economically diverse 
and include key industries that contribute to the regional economic base. 

• Commercial activity in the region includes banking and other professional services, 
government, insurance, real estate, strip malls, casinos, stand alone construction, and 
tourism. 

• Industrial activity in the region mcludes automotive, chemical, glass, pharmaceutical, 
steel manufacturing, food processing, and oil refining. 

Regulated T&D Revenue mcreased by $51.9 million primarily due to the followmg: (i) $19.3 
mUlion due to customer growth, the result ofa 1.5% customer mcrease in 2005, (u) $17,6 
mUlion increase as a result ofa 14.7% increase in Cooling Degree Days in 2005, (Hi) $1.9 
million (including $3.3 mUlion in tax pass-throughs) increase due to net adjustments for 
estimated imbilled revenues recorded in the second and fourth quarters of 2005, reflecting a 
modification in the estimation process, primarily reflecting higher estimated power ime losses 
(estimates of electricity expected to be lost in the process of its transinission and distribution to 
customers) and (iv) $21.7 million increase in tax pass-throughs, principally a coimty surcharge 
(offset in Other Taxes) offset by (v) $8.6 raillion other sales and rate variances. 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Supply Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (Includes PJM) 

Total Default Supply Revenue 

2005 

$ 1,161.7 
994.9 
134.2 
462.2 

$ 2,753.0 

2004 

$ 993.6 
1,060.9 

140,7 
319.5 

$2,514,7 

Change 

$ 168.1 
(66.0) 
(6.5) 

142.7 
$ 238.3 
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Default Electricity Supply Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other 

Total Default Electricity Supply Sales 

2005 

17,490 
15,020 
2,058 

157 
34,725 

2004 

16,775 
19,203 
2,292 

226 
38,496 

Change 

715 
(4,183) 

(234) 
(69) 

(3,771) 

Default Electricity Supply Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Defaitit Electricity Supply Customers 

2005 

1,557 
181 

2 
2 

1,742 

2004 

1,509 
178 

2 
2 

1,691 

Change 

48 
3 

51 

Defaitit Supply Revenue mcreased $238.3 miUion primarily due to the following: (i) $251.9 
million due to higher retail energy rates, the result of market-based SOS competitive bid 
procedures implemented in Maryland in June 2005 and the District of Columbia in February 
2005, (ii) $142.2 miUion increase m wholesale energy revenues resulting from sales of generated 
and purchased energy into PJM due to higher market prices m 2005, (in) $44.8 miUion due to 
weather (14.7% mcrease m Coolmg Degree Days), (iv) $48.2 million increase due to customer 
growth, and (v) $8.1 million due to otiier sales and rate variances, offset by (vi) $245.0 million 
decrease due primarily to higher commercial customer migration, and (vii) $11.9 milHon 
decrease due to net adjustments for estimated uribiUed revenues recorded in the second and 
fourth quarters of 2005, primarily reflecting higher estimated power line losses (estimates of 
electricity expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers). 

Other Electric Revenue mcreased $2.1 milHon to $69.9 mUHon from $67.8 million m 2004 
primarily due to mutual assistance work related to storm damage m 2005 (offset m Other 
Operations and Maintenance expense). 

Gas Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Revenue 

2005 

$ 115.0 
68,5 
10.6 
4.6 

$ 198.7 

2004 

$ 100.2 
56.7 

8.3 
4.5 

$ 169.7 

Change 

$ 14.8 
11,8 
2.3 

.1 
$ 29.0 
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Regulated Gas Sales (Bcf) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Sales 

2005 

8.4 
5.6 
1.1 
5.6 

20.7 

2004 

8.7 
5.5 
1.2 
6,2 

21.6 

Change 

(.3) 
.1 

(.1) 
(.6) 
(.9) 

Regulated Gas Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Customers 

2005 

111 
9 

120 

2004 

109 
9 

118 

Change 

2 

2 

Power DeHvery's natural gas service territory is located in New Castie County, Delaware, 
Several key industries contribute to the economic base as well as to growtii. 

• Commercial activity in the region mcludes banking and other professional services, 
government, insurance, real estate, strip malls, stand alone construction and tourism. 

• Industrial activity in the region includes automotive, chemical and pharmaceutical. 

Regulated Gas Revenue increased by $29.0 mUHon primarily due to a $30.6 million hicrease 
in the Gas Cost Rate (GCR) effective November 2004 and 2005, due to higher natural gas 
commodity costs. 

Other Gas Revenue increased by $3.9 mUlion to $62.8 miUion from $58.9 ui 2004 primarily 
due to uicreased capacity release revenues compared to the same period last year. 

Competitive Energy Businesses 

Conectiv Energy 

The following table divides Conectiv Energy's operating revenues among its major business 
activities. 

MfflXJhant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketing Services 

Total Conectiv Energy Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 675.7 

848,7 
1,079.2 

$ 2,603.6 

2004 
$ 684.5 

960.2 
765.1 

$ 2,409.8 

Change 
$ (8.8) 

(111.5) 
314,1 

$ 193.8 
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Merchant Generation includes sales of electric power, capacity and anciUary services from 
its power plants mto PJM, tolling arrangements, hedges of generation power and capacity, and 
fuel-switching activities where the lowest cost fiiel is utilized and the more expensive fuel is 
sold. Excess generation capacity is used to manage risk associated with FuU Requirements 
Load Service. 

FuU Requirements Load Service includes service provided to affiliated and non-affiUated 
companies to satisfy Defaitit Energy Supply obligations, other full requirements electric power 
sales contracts, and related hedges. 

Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketmg Services consist of all other Conectiv Energy activities 
not included above. These activities include primarily wholesale gas marketing, oil marketing, 
a lai^e operatii^ services agreement with an unaffiliated power plant, and the activities ofthe 
real-time power desk, which engages in arbitrage between power pools. 

Total Conectiv Energy Operating Revenue includes $801.8 million and $820.3 million of 
affiliate transactions for 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The impact of revenue changes with respect to the Conectiv Energy component ofthe 
Competitive Energy business are encon^assed within the discussion below under tiie heading 
"Conectiv Energy Gross Margm." 

Pepco Energy Services 

The following table presents Pepco Energy Services' operating revenues. 

2005 2004 Change 
Pepco Energy Services $ 1,487,5 $ 1,166.6 $ 320.9 

The mcrease in Pepco Energy Services' operating revenue of $320.9 miUion is primarily due 
to (i) an mcrease of $228,1 million due to commercial and industrial retaU load acquisition by 
Pepco Energy Services hi 2005 at higher prices than in 2004, (ii) an mcrease of $39.3 million 
due to higher generation from its Bemung and Buzzard Point power plants in. 2005 due to 
warmer weather conditions, and (ui) an increase of $49.5 miUion due to higher energy services 
activities in 2005 resulting from contracts signed with customers under which Pepco Energy 
Services provides services for energy efficiency and high voltage mstallation projects. As of 
December 31,2005, Pepco Energy Services had 2,004 megawatts of commercial and industrial 
load, as con^ared to 1,553 megawatts of commercial andindustrial load atthe end of2004. In 
2005, Pepco Energy Services' power plants generated 237,624 megawatt hours of electricity as 
compared to 45,836 hi 2004. 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales 

A detail of PHI's consoHdated Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales is 
as follows: 
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Power Delivery 
Conectiv Energy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Corporate and Other 

Total 

2005 
$ 2,720.5 

2,344,4 
1,357,5 
(805.7) 

$5,616.7 

2004 
$2,524.2 
2,130.9 
1,064.4 
(823.3) 

$4,896.2 

Change 
$ 196.3 

213.5 
293.1 

17.6 
$ 720.5 

Power Delivery Business 

Power Delivery's Fuel and Purchased Energy costs increased by $196.3 milHon primarily due 
to (i) $326.7 miUion increase for highea- average energy costs resulting fi*om Default Electricity 
Supply contracts implemented hi 2005, (u) $65,6 million increase due to customer growth, (iii) 
$33.1 mUHon increase for gas commodity purchases, (iv) $25.8 miUion increase m other sales 
and rate variances, offset by (v) $254.9 miUion decrease due to higher customer migration. This 
expense is primarily offset in Default Supply Revenue. 

Competitive Energy Business 

Conectiv Energy 

The following table divides Conectiv Energy's Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other 
Services Cost of Sales among its major business activities. 

Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil and Gas Maiketing Services 

Total Conectiv Biergy F\iel and Purchased 
Eneigy and Other Services Cost of Sales 

2005 
$ 418.6 

857.7 
1,068.1 

$ 2,344.4 

2004 
$ 444.3 

933.1 
753.5 

$ 2430.9 

Change 
$ (25.7) 

(75.4) 
314.6 

$ 213.5 

The totals presented include $217.7 million and $245.4 miUion of affiliate transactions for 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The impact of Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales changes with 
respect to the Conectiv Energy component ofthe Competitive Energy business are encompassed 
within the discussion below under the heading "Conectiv Energy Gross Margin." 
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Conectiv Energy Gross Margin 

Management beUeves that gross margin (Revenue less Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other 
Services Cost of Sales) is a better comparative measurement ofthe primary activities of 
Conectiv Energy than Revenue and Fuel and Purchased Energy by themselves. Gross margin is 
a more stable comparative measurement and it is used extensively by management hi internal 
reportmg. The followhig is a summary of gross margins by activity type (Millions of dollars): 

Megawatt Hour Supply (Megawatt Hours) 
Merchant Generation output sold into market 

Operating Revenue: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Reqiurements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil, and Gas Marketing 

Total Operating Revenue 

Cost of Sales: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil, and Gas Marketing 

Total Cost of Sales 

Gross Margin: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketing 

Total Gross Margin 

December 31, 
2005 

5,595,149 

$ 675.7 
848.7 

1,079,2 
$2,603.6 

$ 418.6 
857.7 

1,068,1 
$2,344.4 

$ 257.1 
(9.0) 
11.1 

$ 259.2 

2004 

5,161,682 

$ 684,5 
960.2 
765.1 

$2,409.8 

$ 444.3 
933.1 
753.5 

$2,130,9 

$ 240.2 
27.1 
11.6 

$ 278.9 

Warmer weather during the summer months of 2005 and continued PJM load growth 
resulted m increased demand for power and higher prices for power, causing higher Merchant 
Generation output and an increase in the gross margin. The higher gross margin fiom the sale 
of generation output was partially offset by negative hedge results. 

The 2005 decrease in the Lower Full Requirements Load Service gross margm resulted from 
higher fuel and energy prices during 2005. Full Requirements Load Service is hedged by both 
contract purchases with tlurd parties and by the output ofthe generation plants operated by 
Conectiv Eneigy, 

Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketing margins decreased because ofa one-tune gain of $8.7 
million on a group of coal contracts in 2004. This was partially offset by higher margin sales 
for oil marketing ($5.6 million) and gas marketing ($2.0 miUion) during the fourth quarter of 
2005, 
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Pepco Energy Services 

The following table presents Pepco Energy Services' Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other 
Services cost of sales. 

The increase in Pepco Energy Services' fuel and pm-chased energy and other services cost of 
sales of $293.1 mUHon resulted from (i) higher volumes of electricity purchased at higher prices 
in 2005 to serve commercial and industrial retail customers, (ii) higher fuel and operating costs 
for the Benning and Buzzard Pomt power plants in 2005 due to higher electric generation that 
resulted from warmer weather m 2005, and (iii) higher energy services activities in 2005 
resulting from contracts signed with customers imder which Pepco Energy Services provides 
services for enei^ efficiency and high voltage instaUation projects. 

Other Operation and Maintenance 

A detail of PHI's other operation and maintenance expense is as follows: 

Power DeHvery 
Conectiv Energy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Other Non-Regulated 
Corporate and Other 

Total 

2005 
$ 643.1 

107.7 
71.2 

6.1 
(12.4) 

$ 815.7 

2004 
$ 623.9 

103.8 
71.5 

6.9 
(9,5) 

$ 796.6 

Change 
$ 19.2 

3.9 
(-3) 
(.8) 

(2.9) 
$ 19.1 

PHFs other operation and maintenance increased by $19.1 miUion to $815,7 mUlion for the 
year ended 2005 fix>m $796.6 ntilUon for the year ended 2004 primarily due to the foUowing: (i) 
a $10.3 million mcrease in employee related costs, (ii) 9,0 milHon increase m corporate services 
allocation, (iii) $3.9 miUion mcrease due to the write-off of software, (iv) $3.2 miUion increase 
due to mutual assistance work related to storm damage in 2005 (offset m Other Electric 
Revenues), and (v) $2.1 mUlion increase in maintenance expenses, partially offset by (vi) $4.9 
miUion reduction in the uncollectible account reserve to reflect the amount expected to be 
collected on Pepco's Pre-Petition Claims with Mirant and (vii) a %5.5 million decrease in PJM 
administrative expenses. 
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Depreciation and Amortization 

PHI's depreciation and amortization expenses decreased by $17.9 miUion to $422.6 million m 
2005 fixMn $440,5 million in 2004. The decrease is primarily due to a $7.6 miUion decrease 
from a change hi depreciation technique resulting from a 2005 final rate order from the NJBPU 
and a $4.8 million decrease due to a change m the estimated useful lives of Conectiv Energy's 
generation assets. 

Other Taxes 

Otiier taxes mcreased by $30.8 million to $342.2 mUHon m 2005 fixim $311.4 mUHon m 2004 
due to higher pass-throughs, mamly as the result of a county surcharge rate increase (primarily 
offset in Regulated T&D Electric Revenue). 

Deferred Electric Service Costs 

Deferred Electric Service Costs, which relates only to ACE, mcreased by $83.9 million to 
$120.2 mUHon m 2005, fit)m $36.3 miUion m 2004. At December 31, 2005, DESC represents 
the net expense or over-recovery associated with New Jersey NUGs, market transition change 
(MTC) and other restructuring items. The $83.9 mUlion increase represents (i) $77.1 miUion net 
over-recovery associated with New Jersey BGS, NUGS, maiket transition charges and other 
restmcturing items, and (ii) $4.5 miUion in regulatory disallowances (net of amounts previously 
reserved) associated with the April 2005 NJBPU settiement agreement. ACE's rates for the 
recovery of those costs are reset aimually and the rates will vary fixjm year to year. At 
December 31, 2005, ACE's balance sheet included as a regulatory Hability an over-recovery of 
$40,9 mUHon with respect to these items, which is net ofa $47.3 mUHon reserve for items 
disallowed by the NJBPU in a ruling that is under appeal. 

Gain on Sales of Assets 

Pepco Holdings recorded a Gahi on Sales of Assets of $86.8 miUion for the year ended 
December 31,2005, compared to $30.0 miUion for the year ended December 31, 2004. The 
$86.8 million gain in 2005 primarily consists of: (i) a $68.1 miUion gain fixwn the 2005 sale of 
non-utility land owned by Pepco located at Buzzard Point in the District of Columbia, and (ii) a 
$13.3 million gam recorded by PCI from proceeds related to the final liquidation ofa financial 
investment tiiat was written off in 2001. The $30.0 miUion gam m 2004 consists of: (i)a$14.7 
mUlion gain from the 2004 condemnation settiement with the City of Vineland relating to the 
transfer of ACE's distribution assets and customer accounts to the city, (ii) a $6.6 milHon gain 
from the 2004 sale of land, and (iii) an $8.3 mUHon gain on the 2004 sale of aircraft uivestments 
by PCI. 

Gain on Settlement of Claims with Mirant 

The Gain on Settiement of Claims with Mirant of $70.5 million represents a settiement (net 
of customer sharing) with Mirant m the fourth quarter of 2005, ofthe Pepco TPA Claim ($70 
million gain) and a Pepco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate ($.5 million gain). 
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Other Income (Expenses) 

Other expenses (which are net of other income) decreased by $55,9 nullion to $285.5 million 
m 2005 fix)m $341.4 million m 2004, primarily due to the followmg: (i) a decrease in net 
interest expense of $35.7 milHon, which primarily resulted from a $23.6 million decrease due to 
less debt outstanding during the 2005 period and a decrease of $12.8 million of interest expense 
that was recorded by Conectiv Energy in 2004 related to costs associated with the prepayment 
of debt related to the Bethlehem mid-merit faciHty, (ii) an $11,2 nulHon iir^iakment charge on 
the Starpower investment that was recorded during 2004, (iii) income of $7,9 miUion received 
by PCI in 2005 from the sale and liquidation of energy investments, and (iv) mcome of $3.9 
miUion in 2005 fix>m cash distributions from a jomt-owned co-generation facility, partially 
offset by (v) an impairment charge of $4.1 miUion in 2005 related to a Conectiv Energy 
investment in a jointly owned generation project, and (vi) a pre-tax gain of $11.2 milHon on a 
distribution from a co-generation joint-venture that was recognized by Conectiv Energy during 
the second quarter of 2004. 

Income Tax Expense 

Pepco Holdings' effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2005 was 41% as 
compared to the federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state 
hicome taxes (net of federal benefit), the flow-through of certain book/tax depreciation 
differences, and changes in estimates related to tax liabiUties of prior tax years subject to audit, 
partially offset by the flow-through of Deferred Investment Tax Oedits and tax benefits related 
to certain leveraged leases. 

Pepco Holdings' effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2004 was 39% as 
compared to the federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state 
income taxes (net of federal benefit), the flow-through of certain book/tax depreciation 
differences, and the settlement with the IRS on certain non-lease financial assets, partiaUy offset 
by the flow-through of Deferred Investment Tax Credits and tax benefits related to certain 
leveraged leases. 

Extraordinary Items 

On April 19, 2005, ACE, tiie staff of tiie New Jersey Board of PubHc Utilities (NJBPU), tiie 
New Jersey Ratepayer Advocate, and active intervenor parties agreed on a settiement in ACE's 
electric distribution rate case. As a result ofthis settlement, ACE reversed $15.2 million in 
accmals related to certain deferred costs that are now deemed recoverable. The after-tax credit 
to hicome of $9.0 mUlion is classified as an extraordinary gain in the 2005 financial statements 
since the original accrual was part of an extraordmary charge in conjunction with the accounting 
for competitive restmcturing in 1999. 
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The accompanying results of operations discussion is for the year ended December 31, 
2004, compared to the year ended December 31,2003, All amounts in the tables (except sales 
and customers) are in millions. 

Operating Revenue 

A detail ofthe components of PHI's consolidated operating revenue is as follows: 

Power Delivery 
Conectiv Energy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Other Non-Regulated 
Corporate and Other 

Total Operating Revenue 

2004 
$4,377.7 
2,409.8 
1,166.6 

87.9 
(818.9) 

$7,223.1 

2003 
$4,015.7 
2,857.5 
1,126.2 

100.1 
(830,8) 

$7,268.7 

Change 
$362.0 
(447.7) 

40.4 
(12.2) 
11.9 

$(45.6) 

Power Deliverv Business 

The following table categorizes Power Delivery's operating revenue by type of revenue. 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 
Default Supply Revenue 
Other Electric Revenue 

Total Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 
Other Gas Revenue 

Total Gas Operating Revenue 

Total Power DeHvery Operating Revenue 

2004 
$1,566.6 
2,514.7 

67.8 
4,149.1 

169.7 
58.9 

228.6 

$4,377.7 

2003 
$1,521.0 
2,206.1 

97.6 
3,824.7 

150.2 
40.8 

191.0 

$4,015.7 

Change 
$45.6 
308.6 
(29.8) 
324.4 

19.5 
18,1 
37.6 

$362.0 

Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (hicludes PJM) 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

2004 

$ 597.7 
692.3 

37.4 
239.2 

$1,566.6 

2003 

$ 576.2 
674.7 
41.0 

229.1 

$1,521.0 

Chanee 

$21.5 
17.6 
(3.6) 
10.1 

$45.6 
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Regulated T&D Electric Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Sales 

2004 

17,759 
28,448 
4,471 

2003 Change 

17,147 
27,648 

4,874 

612 
800 

14031 

50,678 49,669 1,009 

Regulated T&D Electric Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Customers 

2004 

1,567 
193 

2 

1,762 

2003 

1,547 
191 

2 

1,740 

Change 

20 
2 

22 

Regulated T&D Electric Sales, as measured on a Gwh basis, increased by 2% in 2004, driven 
by residential and commercial customer classes. Regulated T&D Revenue increased by $45.6 
million primarily due to the followmg: (i) $14.4 million increase due to growth and average 
customer usage, (u) $4.8 million increase due to higher average effective rates, (in) $9.1 miUion 
due to weather, and (iv) $39.9 mUHon increase in tax pass-throughs, principally a county 
surcharge (offset in Other Taxes expense). These increases were offset by (v) $20.5 mUlion 
decrease primarily related to PJM network transmission revenue and the impact of customer 
choice, and (vi) $2.1 miUion related to a Delaware competitive transition charge that ended in 
2003. Cooling Degree Days increased by 11.0% and heating degree days decreased by 6,3% for 
the year ended December 31, 2004 as con^ared to the same period m 2003. 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Supply Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (Includes PJM) 

Total Default Supply Revenue 

2004 

$ 993,6 
1,060.9 

140.7 
319.5 

$2,514.7 

2003 

$ 875,2 
946.4 
156,1 
228,4 

$2,206.1 

Clianee 

$118.4 
114.5 
(15.4) 
91.1 

$308.6 

Default Electricity Supply Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Sales 

2004 

16,775 
19,203 
2,292 

226 
38,496 

2003 

16,048 
18,134 
2,882 

94 
37,158 

C l̂iange 

727 
1,069 
(590) 
132 

1,338 
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Default Electricity Supply Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Customers 

2004 

1,509 
178 

2 
2 

1,691 

PEPCO HOLDINGS 

2003 Change 

1,460 49 
175 3 

2 
1 1 

1,638 53 

DefauU Supply Revenue increased $308.6 million primarily due to the followmg: (i) $109.2 
miUion as the result of higher retaU energy rates, the result of effective rate increases in Delaware 
beguming October 2003 and in Maryland beguming m June and July 2004, (ii) $92.3 million 
primarily due to a reduction in customer migration in D.C, (iii) $83.1 miUion mcrease in 
wholesale energy prices as the result of higher market prices in 2004, and (iv) $24,4 milHon 
increase in average customer usage. 

Other Electric Revenue decreased $29.8 million primarily due to a $43.0 milHon decrease that 
resulted from the expiration on December 31,2003 ofa contract to supply electricity to Delaware 
Municipal Electric Corporation (DMEC). This decrease was partiaUy offset by a $14.0 million 
increase in customer requested work (related costs in Operations and Maintenance expense). 

Gas Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
IndusUial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Revenue 

2004 

$ 100.2 
56.7 

8.3 
4.5 

$169.7 

2003 

$88.8 
47.7 

9.2 
4.5 

$150.2 

Change 

$11.4 
9,0 
(.9) 

$19,5 

Regulated Gas Sales (Bcf) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Sales 

2004 

8.7 
5.5 
1.2 
6.2 

21.6 

2003 

9.0 
5.5 
1.6 
6.8 

22.9 

Change 

(.3) 
-

(-4) 
(.6) 

(1.3) 
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Regulated Gas Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Customers 

2004 

109 
9 

118 

2003 

108 
9 

117 

Change 

1 

1 

Regulated Gas Revenue increased $19.5 miUion principaUy due to the followmg: (i) $21.0 
miUion increase in the Gas Cost Rate due to higher natural gas commodity costs, effective 
November 1, 2003, (ii) $8.2 million mcrease in Gas Base Rates due to higher operatmg expenses 
and cost of capital, effective December 9,2003, and (Hi) $2.0 million trae up adjustment to 
unbilled revenues in 2003. These increases were partiaUy offset by (iv) $9.4 million decrease due 
to 2003 being significantiy colder than normal, and (v) $2.9 million reduction related to lower 
industrial sales. Heating degree days decreased 7.1% for the year ended December 31,2004 as 
compared to the same period in 2003. 

Other Gas Revenue increased $18.1 miUion largely related to an increase in off-system sales 
revenues of $17.3 mUlion. The gas sold off-system was made available by wanner winter weather 
and reduced customer demand. 

Competitive Enemy Businesses 

Conectiv Energy 

The foUowing table divides Conectiv Enei^'s operating revenues among its major business 
activities. 

Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketing Services 

Total Conectiv Energy Operating Revenue 

2004 
$ 684.5 

960.2 
765.1 

$2,409.8 

2003 
$ 540.2 
1,630.3 

687.0 
$2,857.5 

Ch^iee 
$ 144,3 
(670.1) 

78.1 
$(447.7) 

The totals presented hiclude $820.3 mUlion and $822.1 mUlion of affihate transactions for 
2004 and 2003, respectively. 

The impact of revenue changes with respect to the Conectiv Energy component ofthe 
Competitive Energy business are encompassed within the discussion below under the heading 
"Conectiv Energy Gross Margm." 

Pepco Energy Services 

The following table presents Pepco Energy Services' operating revenues. 
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Pepco Energy Services 
2004 

$ 1,166.6 
2003 

$1,126.2 
Change 

$ 40.4 

The mcrease m Pepco Energy Services' operating revenue of $40.4 mUHon resulted from 
higher volumes of electricity sold to customers in 2004 at more favorable prices than m 2003, 
partially offset by a decrease in natural gas revenues. 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales 

A detail of PHI's consolidated Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales is 
as foUows: 

Power Delivery 
Conectiv Energy 
Pepco Energy Services 
Corporate and Other 

Total 

2004 
$2,524.2 
2,130.9 
1,064.4 
(823.3) 

$4,896.2 

2003 
$2,295.4 
2,696.1 
1,033.1 
(820.8) 

$5,203,8 

Change 
$228.8 
(565,2) 

31.3 
(2,5) 

$(307.6) 

Power Deliverv Business 

Power Delivery's Fuel and Purchased Energy costs increased by $228.8 miUion primarily due 
to the following: (i) a $212,9 milHon increase related to higher average ene i^ costs, the result of 
new Default Supply rates for Maryland beginning in June and July 2004 and for New Jersey 
beginning in June 2004, and less customer migration primarily in D.C, (ii) $45,1 milHon higher 
costs due to the increased cost of electricity supply under the Amended Settiement Agreement 
and Release with Mhant, effective October 2003, and (iii) a $30.2 miUion mcrease for gas 
commodity purchases, partially offset by (iv) $43.0 milHon related to the DMEC 2003 contract 
expiration, and (v) a $14.5 million reserve recorded m September 2003 to reflect a potential 
exposure related to a pre-petition receivable from Mirant for which Pepco filed a creditor's claim 
in the bankmptcy proceedings. 

Competitive Energy Businesses 

Conectiv Energy 

The following table categorizes Conectiv Energy's Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other 
Services Cost of Sales into major profit centers. 

Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil & Gas Marketmg Services 

Total Conectiv Energy Fuel and Purchased 
Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales 

2004 
$ 444.3 

933.1 
753.5 

$2,130.9 

2003 
$ 356.5 
1,591.9 

747.7 

$2,696,1 

Chanee 
$ 87,8 
(658.8) 

5,8 

$(565.2) 
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Totals presented mclude $245.4 mUHon and $161.1 million of affiliate transactions for 2004 
and 2003, respectively. 

The impact of Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales changes for 
Conectiv Energy's component ofthe Competitive Enei^ business is detailed within the 
discussion below under the heading "Conectiv Energy Gross Margin." 

Conectiv Energy Gross Margin 

Management believes that gross margin is a better comparative measurement ofthe primary 
activities of Conectiv Energy than Revenue and Fuel and Purchased Energy by themselves. 
Gross margin is a more stable comparative measurement and it is used extensively by 
management in intemal reportmg. The foUowing is a summary of gross margins by activity 
type (MiUions of dollars): 

Megawatt Hour Supply (Megawatt Hours) 
Merchant Generation output sold into market 

Operating Revenue: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, OU, and Gas Marketmg 

Total Operating Revenue 

Cost of Sales: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, OU, and Gas Markethig 

Total Cost of Sales 

Gross Margin: 
Merchant Generation 
Full Requirements Load Service 
Other Power, Oil and Gas Marketing 

Total Gross Margin 

December 31, 
2004 

5,161,682 

$ 684.5 
960.2 
765.1 

$2,409.8 

$ 444.3 
933.1 
753.5 

$2,130,9 

$ 240.2 
27.1 
11.6 

$ 278.9 

2003 

5,261,878 

$ 540.2 
1,630.3 

687.0 
$2,857.5 

$ 356.5 
1,591.9 

747.7 
$2,696.1 

$ 183.7 
38.4 

(60.7) 
$ 161.4 

The higher Generation gross margin in 2004 was due to the addition of new more efficient 
combined cycle generation at Bethlehem (which lowered fuel cost and increased Mwhs sold), 
unit flexibility (which mcreased margin by providhig quick standard controls over unit running 
time), mcreased fuel switching (which generated fuel savings) and nuclear uitit outages during 
the 4'** quarter of 2004 (which increased output and price for power in eastem PJM). The higher 
margins were partially offset by cooler than normal summer weather which resulted in lower 
unit output in 2004. Conectiv Energy's power plants achieved a substantial portion ofthe 
hicrease ($18.9 mUlion) during the month of December 2004 due to unplanned nuclear outages 
in the region. 

The lower Full Requirements Load Service gross margin resulted fixjm the termination of 
various full requirements load contracts and related power hedges m 2003 which contamed 
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favorable margins. This was partiaUy offset by higher POLR rates m 2004 and lower cost of 
sales. 

Other Power, OU and Gas Marketing margins uicreased primarily because 2003 results 
included proprietary trading losses totaling $44 milHon. In addition, 2004 contained a 
substantial coal contract gain. 

Pepco Energy Services 

The following table presents Pepco Energy Services' Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other 
Services cost of sales. 

Pepco Energy Services 
2004 

$ 1,064.4 
2003 

$ 1,033.1 
Chmige 

$ 31.3 

The increase in Pepco Energy Services* fuel and purchased energy and other services cost of 
sales of $31.3 million resulted fix)m higher volumes of electricity purchased in 2004 to serve 
customers, partially offset by a decrease in volumes of natural gas purchased m 2004 to serve 
customers. 

Other Operation and Maintenance 

PHI's other operation and maintenance increased by $25.2 miUion to $796.6 million in 2004 
fix)m $771.4 million in 2003 primarUy due to (i) $12.1 milHon of customer requested work (offset 
hi Other Electric Revenue), (ii) $10.6 million higher electric system operation and maintenance 
costs, (in) $9.4 miUion in Sarbanes-Oxley external compliance costs, and (iv) $12.8 million in 
severance costs, partially offset by (v) $10.6 milHon incremental storm costs primarily related to 
Hurricane Isabel in September 2003. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

PHI's depreciation and amortization expenses increased by $18.4 miUion to $440.5 million m 
2004 from $422.1 milUon in 2003 primarily due to a $17.0 miUion increase attributable to the 
Power Delivery business resulting fix)m (i) a $12.8 million increase for amortization of New 
Jersey bondable transition property as a result of additional transitional bonds issued in December 
2003, (ii) $3.8 mUHon for the amortization ofthe New Jersey deferred service costs balance 
which began in August 2003, and (Hi) a $2.4 mUlion increase for amortization ofa regulatory tax 
asset related to New Jersey stranded costs. Additionally, depreciation expense attributable to the 
Competitive Energy business increased by $5.9 nullion from 2003 due to a fuU year of 
depreciation expense during 2004 at Conectiv Energy's Bethlehem facility. 

Other Taxes 

Otiier taxes mcreased by $39.2 million to $311.4 mUlion in 2004 fixjm $272,2 million m 2003, 
This increase primarily resulted from a $30.1 mUlion increase attributable to the Power Delivery 
business due to higher county surcharge pass-throughs of $33.9 mUHon and $3.6 mUlion higher 
gross receipts/deUvery taxes (offset in Regulated T&D Electric Revenue). 
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Deferred Electric Service Costs 

Deferred Electric Service Costs (DESC), which relates only to ACE, increased by $43.3 milHon 
to $36.3 miUion in 2004 fix)m a $7.0 miUion operating expense credit m 2003, At December 31, 
2004, DESC represents the net expense or over-recovery associated with New Jersey NUGs, MTC 
and other restmcturing items. A key driver ofthe $43.3 mUHon change was $27.5 million for tiie 
New Jersey deferral disallowance fix)m 2003. ACE's rates for the recovery of these costs are reset 
annually and the rates will vary fixim year to year. On ACE's balance sheet, regulatory assets 
include an under-recovery of $97.4 miUion as of December 31, 2004. This amount is net ofa $46.1 
million write-off on previously disallowed items under appeal. 

Impairment Losses 

The inqiairment losses recorded by PHI in 2003 consist of an impairment charge of $53,3 
miUion fi^m the cancellation of a CT contract and an $ 11.0 miUion aircraft investments 
impairment. 

Gain on Sales of Assets 

During 2004, PHI recorded $30.0 million in pre-tax gains on the sale of assets compared to a 
$68.8 milHon pre-tax gain in 2003. The 2004 pre-tax gains primarily consist of (i) a $14.7 miUion 
pre-tax gain fiT>m the condemnation settiement with the City of Vineland relating to the ACE 
transfer of distribution assets and customer accounts, (ii) an $8.3 milHon pre-tax gain on the sale of 
aircraft investments by PCI, and (Hi) a $6.6 milHon pre-tax gain on the sale of land. The $68.8 
million pre-tax gain in 2003 represents the gain on the sale of PHI's office buildmg which was 
owned by PCI, 

Other Income (Expenses) 

Other expenses (which are net of other income) decreased $91.9 milHon to $341.4 mUlion in 
2004 from $433.3 million in 2003. The decrease was primarily due to a pre-tax unpairment 
chaise of $102.6 miUion related to PHI's investment hi Starpower in 2003, compared to a pre-tax 
impakment charge of $ 11.2 milHon related to Starpower that was recorded in 2004. 

Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements of Subsidiaries 

Preferred Stock Dividend Reqiurements decreased by $11,1 mUlion to $2,8 million in 2004 
fixim $13.9 mUlion m 2003. Ofthis decrease, $6.9 mUlion was attributable to SFAS No. 150, 
which requires that dividends on Mandatorily Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock declared 
subsequent to July 1,2003 be recorded as interest expense. An additional $4.6 million ofthe 
decrease resulted from lower dividends in 2004 due to the redemption ofthe Trust Originated 
Preferred Securities in 2003. 

Income Tax Expense 

Pq>co Holdmgs' effective tax rate for 2004 was 39% as compared to the federal statutory rate 
of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net of federal benefit), the 
flow-through of certain book/tax depreciation differences, and the settiement with the IRS on 
certain non-lease financial assets (which is the primary reason for the higher effective tax rate as 
compared to 2003), partially offset by the flow-throi^ of Deferred Investment Tax Credits and 
tax benefits related to certain leveraged leases, and the benefit associated with the retroactive 
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adjustment for the issuance of final consolidated tax return regulations by a taxing authority. 

Pepco Holdings' effective tax rate for 2003 was 37% as compared to the federal statutory rate 
of 35%, The major reasons for this difference were state mcome taxes (net of federal benefit) and 
the flow-through of certain book/tax depreciation differences, partiaUy offset by the flow-through 
of Deferred Investment Tax Credits and tax benefits related to certain leveraged leases. 

Extraordinary Item 

In July 2003, the NJBPU approved the recovery of $149.5 miUion of stranded costs related to 
ACE's B.L. England generating facility. As a result ofthe order, ACE reversed $10.0 milHon of 
accruals for the possible disallowances related to these stranded costs. The credit to income of 
$5.9 million is classified as an extraordinary gain in the financial statements, since the original 
accrual was part of an extraordinary charge in conjunction with the accounting for competitive 
restmcturing in 1999. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY 

This section discusses Pepco Holdings' capital stmcture, cash flow activity, capital spending 
plans and other uses and sourees of capital for 2005 and 2004, 

Capital Structure 

The components of Pepco Holdings' capital stmcture are shown below as of December 31, 
2005 and 2004 in accordance with GAAP. The table also shows the following adjustments to 
components ofthe capital stmcture made for the reasons discussed in the footnotes to the table: 
(i) the exclusion from debt ofthe Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding, and (ii) the treatment 
of tiie Variable Rate Demand Bonds (VRDBs) issued by certain of PHI's subsidiaries as long-
term, rather than short-term, debt obHgations (MUlions of dollars): 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries (a) 
Long-Terra Debt 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding 
Long-Term Project Funding 
Capital Lease Obligations 
Capital Lease Obligations due within one year 
Short-Term Debt 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 

Total 

Per 
Balance 

Sheet 
$ 3.584.1 

45.9 
4,202,9 

494.3 
25.5 

116.6 
5.3 

156.4 
469,5 

$ 9,100.5 

2005 

Adjustments 
$ -

-
156.4 0>) 

(494.3) (c) 
-
-
-

(156.4) (b) 
(29.0) (d) 

$(523.3) 

As 
Adjusted 
$3,584.1 

45.9 
4,359.3 

-
25.5 

116.6 
5.3 

-
440.5 

$8,577.2 

As 
Adjusted 

% 
41.8% 

.5% 
50.8% 

-
.3% 

1.4% 
.1% 

-
5.1% 

100.0% 
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Common Shareholders' Equity 
Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries (a) 
Long-Term Debt 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding 
Long-Term Project Funding 
Capital LcEise Obligations 
Capital Lease Obligations due within one year 
Short-Term Debt 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 

Total 

Per 
Balance 

Sheet 
$3,339.0 

54.9 
4,362.1 

523,3 
65.3 

122.1 
4.9 

319,7 
516,3 

$9,307.6 

2004 

Adjustments 
$ 

-
158.4 (b) 

(523.3) (c) 
-
-
-

(158.4) 0>) 
(28.1) (d) 

$(551.4) 

As 
Adjusted 
$3,339.0 

54.9 
4,520.5 

-
65.3 

122.1 
4.9 

161.3 
488.2 

$8,756.2 

As 
Adjusted 

% 
38.1% 

.6% 
51.7% 

-
.7% 

1.4% 
.1% 

1.8% 
5.6% 

100.0% 

(a) Consists of Serial Preferred Stock and Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock issued by subsidiaries of PHI. 

(b) In acconlaiH» with GAAP, the VM>Bs are inchided in short-term debt on tbe Balance Sheet of PHI becai^ 
by tbe holder. However, under die terms of ttie VRDBs, when dematd is made for payment by ttie holder (^)ecificaUy, when Jhe VRDBs 
are submitted f(H-piuvhase hy die bolder), the VRDBs are remaiisted by a remaricetii^ agent on a best eStn^ 
resets the interest mte at maitet rates. Due to the creditwoTthJDess of tbe issuers, I W expects that any VRDBs sulnni 
be soccessfiilly remarketed. Because of these characteristics ofthe VRDBs, PHI, from a debt management standpoint, views the VRDBs 
(wfaidbi have nominal maturity dates rangii^ fiom 2009 to 2031) as Long-Term Debt and, accordingly, ihe adjustment reduces Short-Tenn 
Debt Mid increases Lcmg-Term Debt by an amount equal to die principal amomrt ofthe VRDBs. 

(c) Adjusted to exchide Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding. Because repayment of the Transiticm Bonds is fimded solely by chaises 
collected &om ACE's customers and is not a general oblation of ACE or PHI, PHI exchides the Transition Bonds from capitaHzaticai 
from a debt management stanc^int 

(d) Adjusted to exclude the current nmhirities of Transition Bonds issued }yy ACE Fun^i^. 

In 2003, PHI established a goal of reducing its total debt and preferred stock outstanding by 
$1 billion by the end of 2007 to improve PHI's interest coverage ratios and to achieve a ratio of 
consolidated equity to total capitalization (excluding Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding) 
in the mid-40% range. Because the net proceeds of $278 million fix)m a public offering of PHI 
common stock in 2004 was not contemplated in the original $1 billion debt reduction plan, PHI 
raised its debt reduction goal to $1,3 billion by 2007. 

PHI expects to meet its debt reduction goal through a combination of internally generated 
cash, equity issuances through the Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP), and asset 
dispositions. (See "Risk Factors" for a description of factors that could cause PHI to not meet this 
goal.) 

The total debt and preferred stock reduction achieved through year end 2005 is $ 1.14 billion. 

Set forth below is a summary ofthe equity and long-term debt financing activity during 2005 
for Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries. 

Pepco Holdings issued 1,228,505 shares of common stock under the DRP and various benefit 
plans. The proceeds fixHn the issuances were added to PHI's general fiinds. 

Pepco Holdings issued $250 million of floating rate unsecured notes due 2010. The net 
proceeds of $248,5 million were used to repay commercial paper issued to fund the reden^tions 
of Conectiv debt. 
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Pepco issued $175 million of 5.40% senior secured notes due 2035. The net proceeds of 
$172,8 milUon, plus additional funds, were used to pay at maturity and redeem higher interest 
rate securities of $175 million. 

DPL issued $100 milUon of unsecured notes due in 2015. The net proceeds of $98.9 million, 
plus additional funds, were used to redeem higher interest rate securities of $100 million. 

Proceeds from Sale of Claims with Mirant 

In December 2005, Pepco received proceeds of $112.9 million for the sale ofthe Pepco TPA 
Claim and the Pepco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankruptcy estate. After customer 
sharing, Pepco recorded a pre-tax gain of $70.5 million related to the setdement of these claims. 

Sale of Buzzard Point Property 

In August 2005, Pepco sold for $75 milUon in cash 384,051 square feet of excess non-utility 
land owned by Pepco located at Blizzard Point in the District of Columbia. The sale resulted in a 
pre-tax gain of $68.1 million which was recorded as a reduction of Operating Expenses in the 
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. 

Financial Investment Liquidation 

In October 2005, PCI received $13.3 million in cash and recorded an after tax gain of $8.9 
million related to the liquidation ofa financial investment that was written-off in 2001. 

Working Capital 

At December 31, 2005, Pepco Holdings' current assets on a consolidated basis totaled $2.2 
billion and its current liabiHties totaled $2.4 billion. At December 31,2004, Pepco Holdings' 
current assets totaled $1.7 billion and its current liabilities totaled $1.9 billion. 

PHI's working capital deficit results in large part from the fact that, in the normal course of 
business, PHPs utility subsidiaries acquire energy supplies for their customers before the 
supplies are delivered to, metered and billed to customers. Short-term financing is used to meet 
liquidity needs. Short-term financing is also used, at times, to fund temporary redemptions of 
long-term debt, until long-term replacement financings are completed. 

At December 31, 2005, Pepco Holdings' cash and cash equivalents and its restricted cash, 
totaled $144.5 million, of which $112.8 million was net cash collateral held by subsidiaries of 
PHI engaged in Con^etitive Energy and Default Electricity Supply activities (none of which 
was held as restricted cash). At December 31,2004, Pepco Holdings' cash and cash equivalents 
and its restricted cash totaled $71.5 million, of which $21 million was net cash collateral held by 
subsidiaries of PHI engaged in Competitive Energy and Default Electricity Supply activities (of 
which $7.6 million was held as restricted cash). See "Capital Requirements ~ Contractual 
Arrangements with Credit Rating Triggers or Margining Rights" for additional information. 
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A detail of PHI's short-term debt balance and its current maturities of long-term debt and 
project funding balance follows: 

Tvpe 
Variable Rate 
Demand Bonds 

Floating Rate 
Note 

Comtn»x;ial Paper 
Total Short-
Term Debt 

Current M^urities 
of Long-Term Debt 
and Project 
Funding 

PHI 
Parent 

$ -

. 
-

$ -

$300.0 

Peoco 

$ -

-
-

$ -

$50.0 

DPL 

$104.8 

-
-

$104.8 

$22.9 

ACE 

$22.6 

-
-

$22.6 

$65.0 

As of December 31.200S 
(Millions of dollars) 

ACE Conectiv 
Fundinfl Enersrv PES 

$ - $ - $29.0 

_ 
_ 

$ - $ - $29.0 

$29.0 $ - $ 2,6 

PCI 

$ -

-
-

$ -

s -

Conectiv 

$ -

-
-

$ -

$ -

PHI 
Consolidated 

$156,4 

-
-

$156.4 

$469,5 

Type 
Variable Rate 
Demand Bonds 

Floating Rate 
Note 

Commercial Paper 
Total Short-
Term Debt 

Current Maturities 
of Long-Term Debt 
and Project 
Fimding 

PHI 
Parent 

$ -

50.0 
78.6 

$128.6 

$ -

Peoco 

$ -

-
-

$ -

$100.0 

DPL 

$104.8 

-
-

$104.8 

$ 2.7 

ACE 

$22.6 

-
32.7 

$55.3 

$40.0 

As of Decendier 31.2004 
(Millions of dollars) 

ACE Conectiv 
Fundine Enerev PES 

$ - $ - $31.0 

-
. 

$ - $ - $31.0 

$28.1 $ - $5.5 

PCI 

$ -

-
-

$ -

$60.0 

Cpnectiv 

$ -

-
-

$ -

$280.0 

PHI 
Q?PWli<lSt¥Sl 

$158.4 

50,0 
111,3 

$319.7 

$516.3 

Cash Flow Activity 

PHI's cash flows for 2005, 2004, and 2003 are summarized below. 

Operating Activities 
Investing Activities 
Financing Activities 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash Source (Use) 
2005 2004 2003 

(Millions of dollars) 
$986.9 $715.7 $662.4 
(333.9) (417.3) (252,7) 
(561.0) (359.1) (370,7) 
$ 92,0 $(60.7) $ 39.0 

60 



PEPCO HOLDINGS 

Operating Activities 

Cash flows from operating activities are summarized below for 2005,2004, and 2003. 

Net Income 
Non-cash adjustments to net income 
Changes in working capital 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Source (Use) 
2005 2004 2003 

(Millions of dollars) 
$371.2 $260.6 $107,3 

156.5 521.9 643,8 
459.2 (66.8) (88.7) 

$986.9 $715.7 $662.4 

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by $271.2 milUon in 2005 as compared to 
2004. A $110.6 million increase in net mcome in 2005 as compared to 2004 is a result of 
improved operating results at PHI's regulated utilities. Other increases in operatii^ activities 
include the following: (i) Pepco's receipt of $112.9 million in proceeds in December 2005 for 
the sale ofthe Pepco TPA Claim and the Pepco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankruptcy 
estate, (ii) a decrease of approximately $29 million in interest paid on debt obligations in 2005 as 
compared to 2004 due to a decrease in outstanding debt, (iii) an increase in power broker 
payables in 2005 as a result of higher electricity prices, and (iv) an increase from $21 million to 
$112.8 million m the cash collateral held in connection with Competitive Energy activities. 

Cash flows fiom operating activities increased by $53.3 million to $715,7 million in 2004 
from $662.4 million in 2003. The $53.3 million increase was largely the resuh of improved 
operatmg results at PHI's Regulated utilities. Regulated T&D Electric experienced 2% growth in 
Gwh sales in 2004, and Regulated T&D Revenue increased by $45,6 milUon primarily due to 
customer growth and increased average usage, higher average effective rates, and favorable 
wanner weather. 

The Power Delivery busmess produced over 80% of consolidated cash from operations in 
2005, 2004 and 2003. 

Investing Activities 

The most significant items included in cash flows related to investing activities during 2005, 
2004, and 2003 are summarized below. 

Capital expenditures 
Cash proceeds from sale of: 

Starpower investment 
Marketable securities, net 
OfSce building and other properties 

All other investing cash flows, net 
Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash Source (Use) 
2005 2004 

(Millions of dollars) 
$(467.1) 

-
-

84.1 
49.1 

$(333.9) 

$(517.4) 

29.0 
19.4 
46.4 

5.3 
$(417.3) 

2003 

$(598,2) 

-

156.6 
147.7 
41.2 

$(252.7) 
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Net cash used by investing activities decreased by $83.4 million m 2005 con^ared to 2004. 
The decrease is primarily due to a $50.3 million decrease in capital expenditures, net proceeds of 
$73.7 milUon received from the sale of non-utility land in 2005, and proceeds of $33.8 milUon 
received by PCI fix)m the sale of an energy investment and fii^m the final liquidation ofa 
financial investment that was written off in 2001. 

In 2004, capital expenditures decreased $80.8 million to $517.4 miUion tcom $598.2 miUion 
in 2003. The decrease was primarily due to lower construction expenditures for Conectiv 
Energy, offset by an mcrease in Power Delivery capital requirements to upgrade electric 
transmission and distribution systems. 

In 2004, PHI sold its 50% interest in Starpower for $29 milUon in cash. Additionally m 2004, 
PCI continued to liqueiy its marketable securities portfoUo and PHI received proceeds from the 
sale of aircrafl and land. 

In 2003, PCI liquidated its marketable securities portfolio. AdditionaUy, in 2003, PHI 
received cash proceeds of $147.7 miUion from the sale by PCI of an office building known as 
Edison Place (which serves as headquarters for PHI and Pepco). 

Financing Activities 

Common stock dividends 
Common stock issuances 
Preferred stock redemptions 
Long-term debt issuances 
Long-term debt redemptions 
Short-term debt, net 
Otiier 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Cash Source (Use 
2005 2004 

(MiUions of dollars) 
$ (188.9) $ (176.0) 

33.2 318.0 
(9.0) (53.3) 

532.0 650.4 
(755.8) (1,214.7) 
(161.3) 136.3 
(11.2) (19.8) 

$ (561.0) $ (359.1) 

i 
2003 

$(170,7) 
32.8 

(197.5) 
1,136.9 
(692.2) 
(452.7) 
(27,3) 

$(370.7) 

Net cash used by financing activities increased by $201.9 miUion in 2005 as compared to 
2004. 

Common stock dividend payments were $188.9 million in 2005, $176,0 mUUon in 2004 and 
$170.7 milUon in 2003. The increase in common dividends paid in 2005 and 2004 was due to 
the issuance of 14,950,000 shares of common stock in September 2004 and issuances of 
1,228,505 and 1,471,936 shares in 2005 and 2004, respectively, of common stock under the 
DRP. 
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Preferred stock redemptions in 2005 totaled $9.0 million and included the followmg: (i) in 
October 2005, Pepco redeemed 22,795 shares of its $2.44 Series 1957 Serial Preferred Stock at 
$1.1 milUon, 74,103 shares of its $2.46 Series 1958 Serial Preferred Stock at $3.7 million, and 
13,148 shares of its $2.28 Series 1965 Serial Preferred Stock at $.7 million, (u) in August 2005, 
ACE redeemed 160 shares of its 4.35% Serial Preferred Stock at $.02 milUon, and (iii) in 
December 2005, DPL redeemed aU of tiie 35,000 shares of its 6.75% Serial Preferred Stock 
outstanding at $3.5 miUion. 

In 2005, Pepco Holdings issued $250 mUlion of floating rate unsecured notes due 2010. The 
net proceeds, plus additional fimds, were used to repay commercial paper issued to fimd the 
redemption of $300 million of Conectiv debt. 

In September 2005, Pepco used die proceeds from the June 2005 issuance of $175 milUon in 
senior secured notes to fimd the retirement of $100 million in first mortgage bonds at maturity as 
well as the redemption of $75 million in first mortgage bonds prior to maturity. 

In 2005, DPL issued $100 million of imsecured notes due 2015 to redeem $100 million of 
higher rate securities. 

In December 2005, Pepco paid down $50 milUon of its $100 miUion bank loan due December 
2006. 

In 2005, ACE retired at maturity $40 mUlion of medium-term notes. 

hi 2005, PCI redeemed $60 mUlion of Medium-Term Notes. 

Described above are $525 nullion ofthe $532 miUion total 2005 long-term debt issuances and 
$725 milUon of tiie $755.8 million total 2005 long-term debt redemptions. 

As a result ofthe 2004 common stock issuance, Pepco Holdings received $278.5 million of 
proceeds, net of issuance costs of $10.3 milUon. The proceeds in combination with short-term 
debt were used to prepay in its entirety the $335 miUion Conectiv Bethlehem term loan. 

In 2004, Pepco redeemed all ofthe 900,000 shares of $3.40 series mandatorily redeemable 
preferred stock then outstanding for $45 nulUon, and 165,902 shares of $2.28 series preferred 
stock for $8.3 mUUon. 

In 2004, Pepco Holdings redeemed $200 milUon of variable rate notes at maturity. 
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In 2004, Pepco issued $275 milHon of secured senior notes with maturities of 10 and 30 
years, the net proceeds of which were used to redeem higher interest rate securities of $210 
million and to repay short-term debt. Pepco borrowed $ 100 mUUon under a bank loan due in 
2006, and proceeds were used to redeem mandatorily redeemable preferred stock and repay 
short-term debt. DPL issued $100 milUon of unsecured notes that mature in 2014, the net 
proceeds of which were used to redeem trust preferred securities and repay short-term debt. 
ACE issued $54.7 miUion of insured auction rate tax-exempt securities and $120 million of 
secured senior notes which mature in 2029 and 2034, respectively; the net proceeds of $173.2 
million were used to redeem higher interest rate securities. Conectiv redeemed $50 million of 
Medium-Term Notes, and PCI redeemed $86 million of Medium-Term Notes in 2004. In 2004, 
redemptions of mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities included $70 miUion for DPL 
and $25 milUon for ACE, 

Described above are $649.7 million ofthe $650.4 million total 2004 long-term debt issuances 
and $1,149.2 mUUon ofthe $1,214.7 mUlion total 2004 long-term debt redemptions. 

In 2003, Pepco Holdings issued $700 miUion of unsecured long-term debt with maturities 
ranging from 1 year to 7 years, the net proceeds of which were used to repay short-term debt. 
Pepco issued $200 milUon of secured senior notes, and proceeds were used to refinance $125 
million trust preferred seciuities and repay short-term debt. Pepco redeemed $50 milUon of First 
Mortgage Bonds at maturity, $140 million of First Mortgage Bonds, and $15 million of 
Medium-Term Notes during 2003, DPL issued $33.2 miUion of tax-exempt bonds having 
maturities ranging fix)m 5 to 35 years, the net proceeds of which were used to refinance higher 
interest debt of $33 miUioa DPL also redeemed $85 million of First Mortgage Bonds at 
maturity and $32 mUlion of higher interest rate securities. ACE redeemed $40 milUon of First 
Mortgage Bonds and $30 million Medium-Term Notes at maturity, and redeemed $58 miUion of 
higher interest rate securities. ACE Funding issued $152 miUion of Transition Bonds with 
maturities ranging fix)m 8 to 17 years, the net proceeds of which were used to recover the 
stranded costs associated with an ACE generation asset and transaction costs. PCI redeemed 
$141 million ofMedium-TermNotes in 2003. Conectiv redeemed $50 nulUon of Medium-Term 
Notes. Also, in 2003, redemptions of mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities included 
$125 mUUon for Pepco, and $70 miUion for ACE. 

Described above are $1,085.2 milUon ofthe $1,136.9 miUion total 2003 long-term debt 
issuances and $647 million ofthe $692,2 mUlion total 2003 long-term debt reden:q)tions. 

Subsequent Financing 

On February 9,2006, certain institutional buyers tentatively agreed to purchase in a private 
placement $105 milUon of ACE's senior notes having an interest rate of 5.80% and a term of 30 
years. The execution of a definitive purchase agreement and closing is expected on or about 
March 15, 2006. The proceeds from the notes would be used to repay outstanding commercial 
paper issued by ACE to fimd the payment at maturity of $105 miUion in principal amount of 
various issues of medium-term notes. 

On March 1, 2006, Pepco redeemed all outstanding shares of its Serial Preferred Stock of 
each series, at 102% of par, for an aggregate redemption amount of $21.9 mUUon. 
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Capital Requirements 

Construction Expenditures 

Pepco Holdings' construction expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2005 totaled 
$467.1 milUon of which $432.1 million was related to the Power Delivery businesses and the 
remainder related to Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services. 

For the five-year period 2006 through 2010, approximate construction ejqjenditures are 
projected as follows: 

Total 

Power Delivery related 

2006 

$571 

$535 

2007 

$505 

$477 

For the Year 
2008 2009 

$500 $480 

$470 $454 

2010 

$492 

$469 

Total 

$2,548 

$2,405 

These amounts include estimated costs for environmental compliance by PHI's subsidiaries. 
See Item 1 "Business — Environmental Matters." Pepco Holdings expects to fimd these 
expenditures through intemaUy generated cash from the Power Delivery businesses. 

Dividends 

Pepco Holdings' annual dividend rate on its common stock is determined by the Board of 
Directors on a quarterly basis and takes into consideration, among other factors, current and 
possible fiiture developments that may affect PHI's income and cash flows. PHI's Board of 
Directors declared quarterly dividends of 25 cents per share of common stock payable on 
March 31,2005, June 30, 2005, September 30,2005 and December 31,2005. 

On Januaiy 26,2006, Pepco Holdings declared a dividend on common stock of 26 cents per 
share payable March 31,2006, to shareholders of record March 10,2006. 

PHI generates no operating income of its own. Accordingly, its abUity to pay dividends to its 
shareholders depends on dividends received fiom its subsidiaries. In addition to their future 
financial performance, the ability of PHI's direct and indirect subsidiaries to pay dividends is 
subject to limits imposed by: (i) state corporate and regulatory laws, which impose limitations on 
the fijnds that can be used to pay dividends and, in the case of regulatory laws, as applicable, 
may require the prior approval ofthe relevant utihty regulatory commissions before dividends 
can be paid, (ii) the prior rights of holders of existing and fiiture preferred stock, mortgage bonds 
and other long-term debt issued by the subsidiaries, and any other restrictions imposed in 
connection with the incurrence of liabUities, and (iii) certain provisions ofthe charters of Pepco, 
DPL and ACE, which impose restrictions on the payment of common stock dividends for the 
benefit of preferred stockholders. 

Pepco's articles of incorporation and DPL's certificate and articles of incorporation each 
contain provisions restricting the amoimt of dividends that can be paid on common stock when 
preferred stock is outstanding if the applicable company's capitalization ratio is less than 25%. 
For this purpose, the capitalization ratio is equal to (i) common stock capital plus surplus, 
divided by (ii) total capital (including long-term debt) plus surplus. In addition, DPL's certificate 
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and articles of incorporation and ACE's certificate of incorporation each provide that, if 
preferred stock is outstanding, no dividends may be paid on common stock if, after payment, the 
applicable company's comanon stock capital plus surplus would be less than the involimtary 
liquidation value ofthe outstandmg preferred stock. Pepco has no shares of preferred stock 
outstanding. Currentiy, the restriction in the ACE charter does not limit its ability to pay 
dividends. 

Pension Funding 

Pepco Holdings has a noncontributory retirement plan (the Retirement Plan) that covers 
substantially all employees of Pepco, DPL and ACE and certain employees of other Pepco 
Holdings' subsidiaries. 

As ofthe 2005 valuation, the Retirement Plan satisfied the minimum fimding requirements of 
the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) without requiring any 
additional funding. However, PHFs funding policy with regard to the Retirement Plan is to 
maintain a funding level in excess of 100% of its accimiulated benefit obligation (ABO). In 
2005 and 2004, PHI made discretionary tax-deductible cash contributions to the Retirement Plan 
in accordance with its fimding poUcy as described below. 

In 2005, the ABO for the Retirement Plan increased over 2004, due to the accrual of an 
additional year of service for participants and a decrease in the discount rate used to value the 
ABO obligation. The change in the discount rate reflected the continued decline in long-term 
interest rates m 2005. The Retirement Plan assets achieved returns in 2005 below the 8.50% 
level assumed in the valuation. As a result ofthe combination of these factors, in December 
2005 PHI contributed $60 nullion (aU of which was fimded by ACE) to the Retirement Plan. 
The contribution was made to ensure that under reasonable assun:q)tions, the fimding level at 
year end would be m excess of 100% of die ABO. hi 2004, PHI contributed a total of $ 10 
nulUon (all of which was fimded by Pepco) to the Retirement Plan. Assuming no chaises to the 
current pension plan assumptions, PHI projects no funding will be required under ERISA in 
2006; however, PHI may elect to make a discretionary tax-deductible contribution, if required to 
maintain its assets in excess of ABO for the Retirement Plan. 
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Contractual Obligations And Commercial Commitments 

Summary information about Pepco Holdings' consolidated contractual obUgations and 
commercial comrmtments at December 31, 2005, is as foUows: 

Obliaation 

Variable rate demand bonds 
Long-term debt 
Interest payments on debt 
Capital leases 
Operating leases 
Non-derivative fuel and 
purchase power contracts (a) 

Total 

Total 

$ 156.4 
5,170.3 
2,787.9 

213.9 
561.0 

7,406.8 
$16,296.3 

Contractual Maturitv 
Less than 1-3 

1 Year Years 
3-5 

Years 
(MiUions of dollars) 

$ 156.4 $ 
467.1 1,178.4 
280.1 468.6 

15.8 30.9 
38.3 77.2 

1,823.7 1,705.0 
$2,781.4 $3,460.1 

$ 
614.1 
384.7 
30.4 
78.0 

754.3 
$1,861.5 

After 
5 Years 

$ 
2,910.7 
1,654.5 

136.8 
367.5 

3,123,8 
$8,193.3 

(a) Excludes the PPA Related ObUgations that are part ofthe back-to-back agreement that 
was entered into with Mirant (See "Relationship with Mirant Corporation" for additional 
infonnation) and excludes ACE's BGS load supply. 

Third Party Guarantees, Indemnifications and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Pepco Holdings and certam of its subsidiaries have various financial and performance 
guarantees and indemnification obligations which are entered into in the normal course of 
business to faciUtate commercial transactions with third parties as discussed below. 

As of December 31, 2005, Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries were parties to a variety of 
agreements pursuant to which they were guarantors for standby letters of credit, performance 
residual value, and other commitments and obUgations. The fair value of these commitments 
and obUgations was not required to be recorded in Pepco Holdings' ConsoHdated Balance 
Sheets; however, certain energy marketing obUgations of Conectiv Energy were recorded. The 
commitments and obligations, ki mUlions of doUars, were as follows: 

Energy marketing obligations of Conectiv Enwgy (1) 
Energy procurenient obligations of Pepco Energy Services (1) 
Guaranteed lease residual values (2) 
Other(3) 
Total 

PHI 
$ 167.5 

13.4 
.6 

18.3 
$ 199.8 

Guarantor 
DPL ACE 

$ - $ -

3.3 3.2 

$ 3.3 $ 3.2 

Other 
S 

2.4 
$ 2.4 

Total 
S 167.5 

13.4 
7.1 

20.7 
$ 208.7 

Pepco Holdings has contractual commitments for performance and related payments of Conectiv Energy 
and Pepco Energy Services to coimterparties related to routine energy sales and procuremrait obUgations, 
including requirements under BGS contracts entered into with ACE. 

Subsidiaries of Pepco Holdings have guaranteed residual values in excess of fmr value related to certain 
equipment and fleet vehicles held through lease agreements. As of December 31,2005, obligations 
under the guarantees were approximately $7.1 million. Assets leased under agreements subject to 

67 



PEPCO HOLDINGS 

residual value guarantees are typically for periods ranging from 2 years to 10 years. Historically, 
payments under the guarantees have not been made by the guarantor as, under normal conditions, the 
contract runs to full term at which time the residual value is minimal. As such, Pepco Holdings believes 
the likelihood of payment being required under the gu£uantee is remote. 

3. Other gua-aitees consist of: 

• Pepco Holdings has guaranteed payment of a bond issued by a subsidiay of $14.9 raillion. 
Pepco Holdings does not expect to fund the full amount ofthe exposure under the guarantee. 

• Pepco Holdings has guaranteed a subsidiary building lease of $3.4 million. Pepco Holdings 
does not expect to fund the full amoimt ofthe exposure under the guarantee. 

• PCI has guaranteed facUity rental obligations related to contracts entered into by Starpower. As 
of December 31,2005, the guarantees cover the remaining $2.4 million in rent^ obligations. 

Pepco Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries have entered into various indemnification 
agreements related to purchase and sale agreements and other types of contractual agreements 
with vendors and other third parties. These indemnification agreements typically cover 
environmental, tax, litigation and other matters, as weU as breaches of representations, 
warranties and covenants set forth in these agreements. TypicaUy, claims may be made by third 
parties under these indemnification agreements over various periods of time depending on the 
nature ofthe claim. The maximum potential exposure under these indemnification agreements 
can range fi^m a specified dollar amount to an unlimited amount depending on the nature ofthe 
claim and the particular transaction. The total maximum potential amoimt of future payments 
under these mdemnification agreements is not estimable due to several factors, including 
uncertainty as to whether or when claims may be made under these indemnities. 
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Energy Contract Net Asset Activity 

The following table provides detaU on changes in net asset or liability position ofthe 
Competitive Energy business with respect to enei^y commodity contracts fiijm one period to the 
next: 

Roll-forward of Mark-to-Market Energy Contract Net Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31,2005 

(Dollars are pre-tax and in millions) 

Total Marked-to-Market (MTM) Energy Contract Net Assets 
at December 31,2004 
Total change in unrealized fair value excluding 
reclassification to realized at settlement of contracts 

Reclassification to reaUzed at settiement of contracts 
Effective portion of changes in fair value - recorded 
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Ineffective portion of changes in fair value -
recorded in earnings 

Changes in valuation techniques and assumptions 
Purchase/sale of existing contracts or portfolios 
subject to MTM 

Total MTM Energy Contract Net Assets at December 31, 200^ 

Proprietary 
Tradine f U 

$ .9 

.1 
(1.0) 

_ 

_ 

-

_ 

> $ -

Other Energy 
Conunoditv (2) 

$ 25.7 

36.2 
(124.6) 

121.9 

.3 
-

.4 
$ 59.9 

Detail of MTM Energy Contract Net Assets at December 31,2005 (see above) 
Current Assets (other current assets) 
Noncurrent Assets (other assets) 
Total MTM Energy Assets 
Current Liabilities (other current liabUities) 
Noncurrent Liabilities (other liabilities) 
Total MTM Energy Contract LiabiUties 
Total MTM Enei^y Contract Net Assets 

Total 

$ 26.6 

36.3 
(125.6) 

121.9 

.3 
-

.4 
$ 59.9 

Total 
$173.3 

65.1 
238.4 

(114.2) 
(64,3) 

(178.5) 

$ ^9.9 

Notes: 

(1) Includes all contracts held for proprietary trading since the discontinuation of that activity in 
2003. 

(2) Includes all SFAS No. 133 hedge activity and non-proprietary trading activities mariced-to-
market through earnings. 
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The following table provides the source of fair value information (exchange-traded, provided 
by other external sources, or modeled intemaUy) used to determine the carrying amount ofthe 
Competitive Energy business' total mark-to-market energy contract net assets. The table also 
provides the maturity, by year, ofthe Competitive Energy business' mark-to-market energy 
contract net assets, which indicates when the amounts will settle and either generate cash for, or 
require payment of cash by, PHI. 

PHI uses its best estimates to determine the fair value ofthe commodity and derivative 
contracts that its Competitive Energy busmess hold and sell. The fair values in each category 
presented below reflect forward prices and volatility factors as of December 31,2005 and are 
subject to change as a result of changes in these factors: 

Maturity and Source of Fair Value of Mark-to-Market 
Energy Contract Net Assets 

As of December 31,2005 
(Dollars are pre-tax and in millions) 

Fair Value of Contracts at December 3 L 2005 
Maturities 

Source of Fair V^ue 

Proprietary Trading 

Actively Quoted (i.e., exchange-traded) prices 

Prices provided by other external sources 

Modeled 

Total 

Other Enei^ Conunoditv. net (11 

Actively Quoted (i.e., exchaige-traded) prices 

Prices provided by other external sources (2) 

Modeled (3) 

Total 

2006 2007 2008 

Total 
2009 and Fair 
Beyond Value 

$ -

$88.4 

(68.6) 

39.3 

$59.1 

$ -

$45.5 

(52.1) 

-

$(6.6) 

$ -

$9.9 

(1.9) 

-

$8.0 

S -

$ .4 

(1.0) 

-

$(.6) 

$ -

$144.2 

(123.6) 

39.3 

$ 59.9 

Notes: 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Includes all SFAS No. 133 hedge activity and non-proprietary trading activities marked-to-market 
through AOCI or on the Statement of Earnings, as required. 

Prices provided by other external sources reflect information obtained from over-the-counter brokers, 
industry services, or multiple-party on-line platforms. 

The modeled hedge position is a power swap for 50% ofthe POLR obligation in the DPL territory. The 
model is used to approximate the forward load quantities. Pricing is derived from the broker market. 
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Contractual Arrangements with Credit Rating Triggers or Margining Rights 

Under certain contractual arrangements entered into by PHI's subsidiaries in connection with 
competitive energy and other transactions, the subsidiary may be required to provide cash 
collateral or letters of credit as security for its contractual obUgations if the credit ratings ofthe 
subsidiary are downgraded one or more levels. In the event of a downgrade, the amount 
required to be posted would depend on the ^nount ofthe underlying contractual obligation 
existing at the time ofthe downgrade. As of December 31, 2005, a one-level downgrade in the 
credit rating of PHI and all of its affected subsidiaries would have reqiured PHI and such 
subsidiaries to provide aggregate cash collateral or letters of credit of up to approximately $181 
million. An additional approximately $328 milUon of aggregate cash collateral or letters of 
credit would have been required in the event of subsequent downgrades to below investment 
grade. PHI beheves that it and its utility subsidiaries maintain adequate short-term fimding 
sources in the event the additional collateral or letters of credit are required. See "Sources of 
Capital ~ Short-Term Funding Sources." 

Many ofthe contractual arrangements entered Uito by PHI's subsidiaries in connection with 
conq)etitive energy activities include margining rights pursuant to which the PHI subsidiary or a 
counterparty may request collateral if the market value ofthe contractual obUgations reaches 
levels in excess ofthe credit thresholds established m the appUcable arrangements. Pursuant to 
these margining rights, the affected PHI subsidiary may receive, or be required to post, collateral 
due to energy price movements. As of December 31, 2005, Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries 
engaged in competitive energy activities and default supply activities were in receipt of (a net 
holder of) cash collateral in the amount of $112.8 million in connection with their con^etitive 
energy activities. 

Environmental Remediation Obligations 

PHI's accrued Uabilities as of December 31,2005 include approximately $22.3 mUUon, of 
which $5.6 milUon is expected to be incurred in 2006, for potential cleanup and other costs 
related to sites at which an operating subsidiary is a PRP, is aUeged to be a third-party 
contributor, or has made a decision to clean up contamination on its own property. For 
information regarding projected expenditures for envhonmental control facilities, see Item 1 
"Business ~- Environmental Matters," The principal environmental remediation obligations as of 
December 31,2005, were: 

• $6.8 miUion, of which $1.0 miUion is expected to be incurred in 2006, payable by DPL 
in accordance with a consent agreement reached with DNREC during 2001, for 
remediation, site restoration, natural resource damage coir^ensatory projects and other 
costs associated with environmental contamination that resulted from an oU release at the 
Indian River power plant. That plant was sold on June 22,2001. 

• ACE's entry into a sale agreement in 2000 (which was subsequentiy terminated) for the 
B.L. England and Deepwater generating facilities (ACE transferred the Deepwater 
generating facility to Conectiv Energy on February 29, 2004) triggered the applicabiUty 
ofthe New Jersey Industrial Site Recovery Act requirir^ remediation at these facilities. 
When the prospective purchaser of these generating faciUties terminated the agreement 
of sale m accordance with the agreement's termination provisions, ACE decided to 
continue the environmental investigation process at these facilities. ACE and Conectiv 
Energy are continuing the investigation with oversight from NJDEP. ACE anticipates 
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that it will incur approximately $2.2 milUon in environmental remediation costs, of 
which $860,000 is expected to be incurred in 2006, associated with the B.L. England 
generating facility. Conectiv Enei^ anticipates that it will incur approximately $6.0 
million in environmental remediation costs, of which $690,000 is expected to be incurred 
in 2006, associated with the Deepwater generating facility. 

• As a result ofa December 7,2003 oil spill at the B.L. England generatmg facility, 
$811,000 was accrued in December 2003 for estimated clean up, remediation, 
restoration, and potential NJDEP natural resources damage assessments. As of 
December 31,2005, ACE has spent $611,000 for clean up, remediation, and restoration. 
The remaining liability of $200,000 is anticipated to cover future restoration efforts to be 
monitored for three years ending in May 2007. The NJDEP natural resource damage 
assessments, if any, have not been determined at this time. 

• DPL expects to incur costs of approximately $2.6 million in connection with a site 
located in Wilmington, Delaware, to remediate residual material from the historical 
operation of a manufactured gas plant. Approximately $2.0 milUon is expected to be 
incurred in 2006. 

• Pepco expects to incur approximately $1.3 million for long-term monitoring in 
connection with a pipeUne oil release, of which $140,000 is expected to be incurred in 
2006. 

Sources Of Capital 

Pepco Holdings' sources to meet its long-term funding needs, such as capital expenditures, 
dividends, and new investments, and its short-term funding needs, such as working coital and 
the temporary fimding of long-term fiinding needs, include internally generated fimds, securities 
issuances and bank financing under new or existing facilities. PHI's abiUty to generate funds 
from its operations and to access capital and credit markets is subject to risks and uncertainties. 
See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of important factors that may impact these sources of capital. 

Internally Generated Cash 

The primary source of Pepco Holdings' internally generated funds is the cash flow generated 
by its regulated utility subsidiaries in the Power Delivery business. Additional sources of fimds 
include cash flow generated from its non-regulated subsidiaries and the sale of non-core assets. 

Short-Term Funding Sources 

Pepco Holduigs and its regulated utility subsidiaries have traditionally used a number of 
sources to fulfiU short-term funding needs, such as commercial paper, short-term notes and bank 
lines of credit. Proceeds from short-term borrowings are used primarily to meet working capital 
needs but may also be used to fund temporarily long-term capital reqiurements. 

Pepco Holdings maintains an ongoing commercial paper program of up to $700 miUion. 
Pepco, DPL, and ACE have ongoing commercial paper programs of up to $300 miUion, i^ to 
$275 million, and up to $250 million, respectively. The commercial paper can be issued with 
maturities up to 270 days fix)m the date of issue. The commercial paper programs of PHI, 
Pepco, DPL, and ACE are backed by a $1.2 biUion credit facility. 
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Long-Term Funding Sources 

The sources of long-term funding for PHI and its subsidiaries are the issuance of debt and 
equity securities and borrowing under long-term credit agreements. Proceeds from long-term 
financings are used primarily to fund long-term capital requirements, such as capital 
expenditures and new investments, and to repay or refin^ice existing indebtedness. 

PUHCA Restrictions 

Because Pepco Holdings is a public utility holding company that was registered under the 
Public UtUity Holding Company Act of 1935 (PUHCA 1935), it was required to obtain 
Securities aiid Exchange Commission (SEC) approval to issue securities. PUHCA 1935 also 
prohibited Pepco Holdings from borrowing from its subsidiaries. Under an SEC Fmancing 
Order dated June 30,2005 (the Financing Order), Pepco Holdings is authorized to issue equity, 
preferred securities and debt securities ui an aggregate amount not to exceed $6 billion through 
an authorization period ending June 30,2008, subject to a ceiling on the effective cost of these 
fimds. Pepco Holdings is also authorized to enter into guarantees to third parties or otherwise 
provide credit support with respect to obligations of its subsidiaries of up to $3.5 billion. Ofthis 
amount, only $1.75 bUlion may be on behalf of subsidiaries engaged in energy marketing 
activities. As permitted under FERC regulations promulgated under the newly effective Public 
Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005), Pepco Holdmgs will give notice to 
FERC that it wUl continue to operate pursuant to the authority granted in the Financing Order 
until further notice. 

Under the Financing Order, Pepco Holdings is limited to issuing no more than an aggregate 
of 20 nulUon shares of common stock under the DRP and employee benefit plans during the 
period ending June 30,2008. 

The Financing Order requires that, in order to issue debt or equity securities, including 
commercial paper, Pepco Holdings must maintain a ratio of common stock equity to total 
capitalization (consisting of common stock, preferred stock, if any, long-term debt and short-
term debt for this purpose) of at least 30 percent. At December 31, 2005, Pepco Holdmgs' 
common equity ratio for purposes of the Financing Order was 40,1 percent. The Financing 
Order also requires that dl rated securities issued by Pepco Holdings be rated "investment 
grade" by at least one nationally recogiuzed rating agency. Accordingly, if Pepco Holdings* 
common equity ratio were less than 30 percent or if no nationally recognized rating agency rated 
a security mvestment grade, Pepco Holdings could not issue the security without first obtaining 
an amendment to tiie Fmancing Order from FERC, 

If an amendment to tiie Financing Order or other FERC authority pursuant to the Federal 
Power Act or FERC regulations is required to enable Pepco Holdmgs or any of its subsidiaries to 
effect a financing, there is no certainty that such an amendment or authority could be obtamed 
nor certainty as to the timing of FERC action. 

The foregoing financing limitations also generally apply to Pepco, DPL, ACE and certain 
other Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries. 
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Money Pool 

Under the Financing Order, Pepco Holdings has received SEC authorization under PUHCA 
1935, which will continue untU June 30,2008 under PUHCA 2005, to establish the Pq>co 
Holdings system money pool. The money pool is a cash management mechanism used by Pepco 
Holdings to manage the short-term investment and borrowing requirements ofthe PHI 
subsidiaries that participate in the money pool. Pepco Holdings may invest in but not borrow 
from the money pool. Eligible subsidiaries with surplus cash may deposit those funds in the 
money pool. Deposits in tiie money pool are guaranteed by Pepco Holdmgs. Eligible 
subsidiaries with cash requirements may borrow from the money pool. Borrowings fixim the 
money pool are unsecured. Depositors in the money pool receive, and borrowers from the 
money pool pay, an interest rate based primarUy on Pepco Holdings' short-term borrowing rate, 
Pepco Holdings deposits funds in the money pool to the extent that the pool has insufficient 
fimds to meet the borrowing needs of its participants, which may require Pepco Holdings to 
borrow funds for deposit from external sources. Consequentiy, Pepco Holdings' external 
borrowing requirements fluctuate based on the amount of fimds required to be deposited in the 
money pool. 

REGULATORY AND OTHER MATTERS 

Relationship with Mirant Corporation 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantially aU of its electricity generation assets to Mirant Corporation, 
formerly Southern Energy, Inc. As part ofthe Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, Pepco 
entered into several ongoing contractual airangements with Mirant Corporation and certain of its 
subsidiaries. In July 2003, Mirant Corporation and most of its subsidiaries filed a voluntary 
petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 ofthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Court for the Northem District of Texas (the Bankruptcy Court). On December 9, 
2005, the Banknqjtcy Court approved Mu-ant's Plan of Reorganization (the Reorganization Plan) 
and the Mirant business emerged fi-om bankruptcy on January 3, 2006 (the Bankruptcy 
Emergence Date), in the form of a new corporation ofthe same name (together with its 
predecessors, Mirant). However, as discussed below, the Reorganization Plan did not resolve aU 
ofthe outstanding matters between Pepco mid Mirant relating to the Mirant bankruptcy and the 
litigation between Pepco and Mirant over these matters is ongoing. 

Depending on the outcome of ongoing litigation, the Mirant bankruptcy could have a material 
adverse effect on the results of operations and cash flows of Pepco Holdings and Pepco, 
However, management believes that Pepco Holdings and Pepco currentiy have sufficient cash, 
cash flow and borrowmg capacity under then- credit facilities and in the capital markets to be 
able to satisfy any additional cash requirements that may arise due to the Mirant bankruptcy. 
Accordingly, management does not anticipate that the Mirant bankruptcy will impair the ability 
of either Pepco Holduigs or Pepco to fulfill its contractual obUgations or to fimd projected 
capital expenditures. On this basis, management currentiy does not believe that the Mirant 
bankruptcy wUl have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of either company. 
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Transition Power Agreements 

As part ofthe Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, Pepco and Mirant entered into Transition 
Power Agreements for Maryland and the District of Columbia, respectively (collectively, the 
TPAs). Under the TPAs, Mirant was obligated to supply Pepco with all ofthe capacity and 
energy needed to fulfiU Pepco's SOS obligations during the rate cap periods in each jurisdiction 
immediately following deregulation, which in Maryland extended through June 2004 and in the 
District of Columbia extended until January 22,2005. 

To avoid the potential rejection ofthe TPAs by Mirant in the bankruptcy proceeding, Pepco 
and Mirant in October 2003 entered into an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release (the 
Settlement Agreement) pursuant to which the terms ofthe TPAs were modified to increase the 
purchase price ofthe capacity and energy suppUed by Mirant. In exchange, the Settiement 
Agreement provided Pepco with an allowed, pre-petition general unsecured claim against Mirant 
Corporation in the amount of $105 mUUon (the Pepco TPA Claun). 

On December 22, 2005, Pepco completed the sale of tiie Pepco TPA Claim, plus the right to 
receive accrued interest thereon, to Deutsche Bank for a cash payment of $112.4 mUUon. 
Additionally, Pepco received $0.5 miUion m proceeds fitim Mirant in settiement of an asbestos 
claim against the Mirant bankruptcy estate. Pepco Holdings and Pepco recognized a total gain 
of $70.5 mUlion (pre-tax) related to the settiement of these claims. Based on the regulatory 
settiements entered into in coimection with deregulation in Maryland and the District of 
Columbia, Pepco is obligated to share with its customers the profits it realizes from the 
provision of SOS during the rate cap periods. The proceeds ofthe sale ofthe Pepco TPA Claim 
wiU be included in the calculations of the amounts required to be shared with customers in both 
jurisdictions. Based on the applicable sharing formulas in the respective jurisdictions, Pepco 
anticipates that customers will receive (through biUing credits) approximately $42.3 mUlion of 
the proceeds over a 12-month period beginning in March 2006 (subject to DCPSC and MPSC 
approvals). 

Power Purchase Agreements 

Under agreements with FirstEnergy Corp., formerly Ohio Edison (FkstEnergy), and 
Allegheny Energy, Inc., both entered into in 1987, Pepco was obUgated to purchase 450 
megawatts of capacity and energy from FirstEnergy annually through December 2005 (the 
FirstEnergy PPA). Under the Panda PPA, entered into in 1991, Pepco is obUgated to purchase 
230 megawatts of capacity and energy fix)m Panda annually throng 2021. At the time ofthe 
sale of Pepco's generation assets to Mirant, the purchase price ofthe enei^ and capacity under 
the PPAs was, and since that time has continued to be, substantially in excess ofthe market 
price. As a part ofthe Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, Pepco entered into a "back-to-back" 
arrangement with Mirant. Under this arrangement, Mu-ant (i) was obligated, through December 
2005, to purchase from Pq>co the capacity and energy that Pepco was obligated to purchase 
imder the FirstEnergy PPA at a price equal to Pepco's purchase price frora. FirsfEnei^, and 
(ii) is obUgated through 2021 to purchase fit)m Pepco the capacity and energy that Pepco is 
obligated to purchase under the Panda PPA at a price equal to Pepco's purchase price from 
Panda (the PPA-Related Obligations). Mirant currentiy is making these required payments. 
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Pepco Pre-Petition Claims 

At the time the Reorganization Plan was approved by the Bankruptcy Court, Pepco had 
pending pre-petition claims against Mirant totaling approximately $28.5 million (the Pre-
Petition Claims), consisting of (i) approximately $26 million in payments due to Pepco in 
respect ofthe PPA-Related Obligations and (u) approximately $2.5 nullion that Pepco has paid 
to Panda in settlement of certain bilUng disputes under the Panda PPA that related to periods 
after the sale of Pepco's generation assets to Mirant and prior to Mirant's bankruptcy filing, for 
which Pepco believes Mirant is obligated to reimburse it under the terms ofthe Asset Purchase 
and Sale Agreement. In the bankruptcy proceeding, Mirant filed an objection to the Pre-Petition 
Claims. The Pre-Petition Claims were not resolved in the Reorganization Plan and are the 
subject of ongoing litigation between Pepco and Mirant, To the extent Pepco is successful ui its 
efforts to recover the Pre-Petition Claims, it would receive under the terms ofthe Reorganization 
Plan a number of shares of common stock of the new corporation created pursuant to the 
Reorgaiuzation Plan (the New Mirant Common Stock) equal to (i) the amount ofthe allowed 
claun (u) divided by the market price of the New Mirant Common Stock on the Bankruptcy 
Emerg^ioe Date. Because the number of shares is based on the market price of the New Mirant 
Common Stock on the Bankruptcy Emergence Date, Pepco would receive the benefit, and bear 
the risk, of any change in the market price ofthe stock between the Bankruptcy Emergence Date 
and the date the stock is issued to Pepco. 

As of December 31,2005, Pepco maintamed a receivable in the amount of $28.5 mUlion, 
representing the Pre-Petition Claims, which was offset by a reserve of $14.5 nullion established 
by an expense recorded in 2003 to reflect the uncertainly as to whether the entire amount ofthe 
Pre-Petition Claims is recoverable. As of December 31,2005, this reserve was reduced to %9.6 
miUion to reflect the fact that there was no longer an objection to $15 nulUon of Pepco's claim. 

Mirant's Efforts to Reject the PPA-Related Obligations and Disgorgement Claims 

In August 2003, Mirant filed with the Bankruptcy Court a motion seeking authorization to 
reject the PPA-Related Obligations (the First Motion to Reject). Upon motions filed with the 
U.S. District Court for the Northem District of Texas (the District Court) by Pepco and FERC, 
the District Court in October 2003 withdrew jurisdiction over this matter from the Bankruptcy 
Court. In December 2003, the District Court denied Miranf s motion to reject the PPA-Related 
Obligations on jurisdictional grounds. Mirant appealed the District Court's decision to the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit (the Court of Appeals). In August 2004, the Court of 
Appeals remanded the case to the District Court holdh^ that the District Court had jurisdiction 
to rule on the merits of Mirant's rejection motion, suggesting that in doing so the court apply a 
"more rigorous standard" than the business judgment rule usually ^pUed by bankruptcy courts 
in ruling on rejection motions. 

In December 2004, the District Court issued an order again denying Mirant's motion to reject 
the PPA-Related Obligations, The District Court found that the PPA-Related Obligations are 
not severable fix)m the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement and that the Asset Purchase and Sale 
Agreement cannot be rejected in part, as Mirant was seeking to do, Mirant has appealed the 
District Court's order to the Court of Appeals. 
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In January 2005, Mirant filed in the Bankmptcy Court a motion seeking to reject certain of its 
ongoing obligations under the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, including the PPA-Related 
ObUgations (the Second Motion to Reject). In March 2005, the District Court entered orders 
granting Pepco's motion to withdraw jurisdiction over these rejection proceedings fixim the 
Bankmptcy Court and ordering Mirant to continue to perform the PPA-Related Obligations (the 
March 2005 Orders). Mirant has appealed the March 2005 Orders to the Court of Appeals. 

In March 2005, Pepco, FERC, tiie Office of People's Counsel ofthe District of Columbia (tiie 
District of Columbia OPC), the MPSC and the Office of People's Counsel of Maryland 
(Maryland OPC) filed in the District Court oppositions to the Second Motion to Reject. In 
August 2005, the District Court issued an order informaUy staying this matter, pending a 
decision by the Court of Appeals on the March 2005 Orders. 

On February 9, 2006, oral arguments on Mirant's appeals ofthe District Court's order relating 
to the First Motion to Reject and the March 2005 Orders were held before the Court of Appeals; 
an opinion has not yet been issued. 

On December 1, 2005, Mirant filed with the Bankmptcy Court a motion seeking to reject the 
executory parts ofthe Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement and its obligations under all other 
related agreements with Pepco, with the exception of Mirant's obligations relating to operation 
ofthe electric generating stations owned by Pepco Energy Services (the Third Motion to Reject). 
The Third Motion to Reject also seeks disgorgement of payments made by Mirant to Pepco in 
respect ofthe PPA-Related Obligations after fiUng of its bankmptcy petition in July 2003 to the 
extent the payments exceed the maiket value ofthe capacity and energy purchased. On 
December 21,2005, Pepco filed an opposition to the Tlurd Motion to Reject m the Bankmptcy 
Court 

On December 1, 2005, Mirant, in an attempt to "recharacterize" the PPA-Related 
Obligations, filed a complaint with the Bankmptcy Court seeking (i) a declaratory judgment that 
the payments due under the PPA-Related Obligations to Pepco are pre-petition debt obligations; 
and (U) an order entitling Mirant to recover all payments that it made to Pepco on account of 
these pre-petition obligations after the petition date to the extent permitted under bankmptcy law 
(i.e., disgorgement). 

On December 15, 2005, Pepco filed a motion with the District Court to withdraw jurisdiction 
over both ofthe December 1 filings from the Bankruptcy Court. The motion to withdraw and 
Mirant's underlying complaint have both been stayed pending a decision ofthe Court of Appeals 
in the appeals described above. 

Each ofthe theories advanced by Mirant to recover funds paid to Pepco relating to the PPA-
Related Obligations as a practical matter seeks reimbursement for the above-market cost ofthe 
capacity and energy purchased fi^m Pepco over a period beginning, at the earUest, fix)m the date 
on which Mirant filed its bankmptcy petition and ending on the date of rejection or the date 
through which disgorgement is approved. Under these theories, Pepco's financial exposure is 
the amoimt paid by Mirant to Pepco in respect ofthe PPA-Related Obligations during the 
relevant period, less the amount realized by Mirant fi'om the resale ofthe purchased energy and 
capacity. On this basis, Pepco estimates that if Mirant ultimately is successful in rejecting the 
PPA-Related Obligations or on its altemative claims to recover payments made to Pepco related 
to the PPA-Related Obligations, Pepco's maximum reimbursement obligation would be 
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approximately $263 miUion as of March 1,2006. 

If Mirant were ultimately successful in its effort to reject its obligations relating to the Panda 
PPA, Pepco also would lose the benefit on a going-forward basis ofthe offsetting transaction 
tiiat negates the financial risk to Pepco ofthe Panda PPA. Accordingly, if Pepco were reqiured 
to purchase capacity and energy from Panda commencing as of March 1,2006, at the rates 
provided in the PPA (with an average price per kilowatt hour of approximately 17.1 cents), and 
resold the capacity and energy at market rates projected, given the characteristics ofthe Panda 
PPA, to be approximately 11.0 cents per kilowatt hour, Pepco estimates that it would incur 
losses of ^jproximately $24 million for the remainder of 2006, ^proximately $30 miUion in 
2007, and approximately $27 mUUon to $3 8 million annually thereafter through the 2021 
contract termination date. These estimates are based in part on current market prices and 
forward price estimates for energy and capacity, and do not include financuig costs, all of which 
could be subject to significant fluctuation. 

Pepco is continuing to exercise aU available legal remedies to vigorously oppose Mirant's 
efforts to reject or recharacterize the PPA-Related ObUgations under the Asset Purchase and 
Sale Agreement in order to protect the interests of its customers and shareholders. While Pepco 
beUeves that it has substantial legal bases to oppose these efforts by Mirant, the ultimate legal 
outcome is uncertain. However, if Pepco is required to repay to Mirant any amounts received 
from Mirant in respect ofthe PPA-Related Obligations, Pepco believes it wUl be entitled to file a 
claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate in an amoimt equal to the amount repaid. Likewise, 
if Mirant is successful in its efforts to reject its future obUgations relating to the Panda PPA, 
Pepco will have a claun against Murnit in an amount corresponding to the mcreased costs that it 
would incur. In either case, Pepco anticipates that Mirant wUl contest the claim. To the extent 
Pepco is successful in its efforts to recover on these claims, it would receive, as in the case ofthe 
Pre-Petition Claims, a number of shares of New MUant Common Stock that is calculated using 
the market price ofthe New Mumit Common Stock on the Bankmptcy Emergence Date and 
accordingly would receive the benefit, and bear the risk, of any change in the market price of the 
stock between the Bankmptcy Emergence Date and the date the stock is issued to Pepco. 

Regulatory Recovery of Mirant Bankruptcy Losses 

If Mirant were ultimately successfiti in rejecting the PPA-Related Obligations or on its 
altemative claims to recover payments made to Pepco related to the PPA-Related ObUgations 
and Pepco's corresponding claims agamst the Mirant bankmptcy estate are not recovered in fiiU, 
Pepco would seek authority fix>m the MPSC and the DCPSC to recover its additional costs. 
Pepco is committed to working with its regulatory authorities to achieve a result that is 
appropriate for its shareholders and customers. Under the pmvisions ofthe settiement 
agreements approved by the MPSC and the DCPSC in the deregulation proceedings in which 
Pepco agreed to divest Us generation assets under certain conditions, the PPAs were to become 
assets of Pepco's distribution business if they could not be sold. Pepco beUeves that these 
provisions would allow the stranded costs ofthe PPAs that are not recovered from the Mnant 
bankmptcy estate to be recovered from Pepco's customers through its distribution rates. If 
Pepco's interpretation ofthe settlement agreements is confirmed, Pepco expects to be able to 
estabUsh the amount of its anticipated recovery fix>m customers as a regulatory asset. However, 
there is no assurance that Pepco's mterpretation ofthe settiement agreements would be 
confirmed by the respective public service commissions. 
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Pepco's Notice of Administrative Claims 

On January 24,2006, Pepco filed Notice of Administrative Claims in the Bmikmptcy Court 
seeking to recover: (i) costs in excess of $70 nulUon associated with the transinission upgrades 
necessitated by shut-down ofthe Potomac River Power Station; and (ii) costs in excess of 
$8 million due to Mirant's unjustified post-petition delay in executing the certificates needed to 
permit Pepco to refinance certain tax exempt pollution control bonds. Mirant is expected to 
oppose both of these claims, which must be approved by the Bankmptcy Court. There is no 
assurance that Pepco wUl be able to recover the amounts claimed. 

Mirant's Fraudulent Transfer Claim 

In July 2005, Mutant filed a complaint in the Bankmptcy Court against Pepco alleging that 
Mirant's $2.65 billion purchase of Pepco's generating assets in June 2000 constituted a 
fraudulent transfer for which it seeks compensatory and punitive damages. Mirant alleges in 
the conq)laint that the value of Pepco's generation assets was "not fair consideration or fair or 
reasonably equivalent value for the consideration paid to Pepco" and that the purchase ofthe 
assets rendered Mirant insolvent, or, aUematively, that Pepco and Southem Energy, Inc. (as 
predecessor to Mirant) intended that Mirant would incur debts beyond its ability to pay them. 

Pepco believes this claim has no merit and is vigorously contesting the claun, which has been 
withdrawn to the District Court On December 5,2005, the District Court entered a stay 
pending a decision ofthe Court of Appeals in the appeals described above. 

The SMECO Agreement 

As a term ofthe Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, Pepco assigned to Mirant a facility and 
capacity agreement with Southem Maryland Electric Cooperative (SMECO) under which Pepco 
was obUgated to purchase the capacity of an 84-raegawatt combustion turbine instaUed and 
owned by SMECO at a former Pepco generatmg faciUty (the SMECO Agreement). The 
SMECO Agreement expires in 2015 and contemplates a monthly payment to SMECO of 
approximately $.5 mUUon. Pepco is responsible to SMECO for the performance ofthe SMECO 
Agreement if Mirant faUs to perform its obligations thereunder. At this time, Mirant continues 
to make post-petition payments due to SMECO. 

On March 15,2004, Mirant filed a complamt with the Bankmptcy Court seekmg a 
declaratory judgment that the SMECO Agreement is an unejqjired lease of non-residential real 
property rather than an executory contract and that if Mu-ant were to successfully reject the 
agreement, any claim against the bankmptcy estate for damages made by SMECO (or by Pepco 
as subrogee) would be subject to the provisions ofthe Bankmptcy Code that lunit the recovery 
of rejection damages by lessors. 

On November 22,2005, the Bankmptcy Court issued an order granting summary judgment in 
favor of Mirant, finding that the SMECO Agreement is an unexpired lease of nonresidential real 
property. On the basis ofthis ruling, any claim by SMECO (or by Pepco as subrogee) for 
damages arising from a successful rejection are Umited to the greater of (i) the amoimt of future 
rental payments due over one year, or (ii) 15% ofthe fixture rental payments due over the 
remaining term ofthe lease, not to exceed tiiree years. 
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On December 1,2005, Murant filed both a motion with the Bankmptcy Court seeking to 
reject the SMECO Agreement and a complaint agamst Pepco and SMECO seekmg to recover 
payments made to SMECO after the entry ofthe Bankmptcy Court's November 22, 2005 order 
holding that the SMECO Agreement is a lease of real property. On December 15,2005, Pepco 
filed a motion with the District Court to withdraw jurisdiction ofthis matter from the 
Bankmptcy Court. The motion to withdraw and Mirant's underlying motion and complaint have 
been stayed pending a decision ofthe Court of Appeals in the appeals described above. 

If the SMECO Agreement is successfiilly rejected by Mutant, Pepco will become responsible 
for the performance ofthe SMECO Agreement. In addition, if the SMECO Agreement is 
ultimately determined to be an unexpired lease of nonresidential real property, Pepco's claim for 
recovery against the Mutant bankmptcy estate would be Umited as described above. Pepco 
estimates that its rejection claim, assuming the SMECO Agreement is determined to be an 
unexpired lease of nonresidential real property, would be approximately $8 million, and that the 
amount it would be obUgated to pay over the remaining nine years ofthe SMECO Agreement is 
approximately $44.3 miUion. While that amount would be offset by the sale of capacity, under 
current projections, the maiket value ofthe capacity is de minimis. 

Rate Proceedings 

Delaware 

On October 3,2005, DPL submitted Us 2005 gas cost rate (GCR) filing to tiie DPSC, which 
permits DPL to recover gas procurement costs through customer rates. In its fUing, DPL seeks 
to increase its GCR by approximately 38% in anticipation of mcreasing natural gas commodity 
costs. The proposed rate became effective November 1,2005, subject to refund pending final 
Delaware Public Service Commission (DPSC) approval after evidentiary hearings. A pubUc 
input hearing was held on January 19,2006. DPSC staff and the Division ofthe Public 
Advocate filed testimony on Febmary 20, 2006. 

As authorized by the April 16,2002 settiement agreement in Delaware relating to the 
acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco (the Delaware Merger Settiement Agreement), on May 4, 
2005, DPL filed with the DPSC a proposed increase of approximately $6.2 million in electric 
transmission service revenues, or about 1.1% of total Delaware retail electric revenues. This 
revenue increase covers the Delaware retail portion ofthe increase ui the "Delmarva zonal" 
transmission rates on file with FERC under the PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) 
and other transition of PJM charges. This level of revenue increase will decrease to the extent 
that competitive suppUers provide the si5)ply portion and its associated transmission service to 
retail customers. In that circumstance, PJM would charge the competitive retaU suppUer the 
PJM OATT rate for transmission service mto the Dehnarva zone and DPL's charges to the retail 
customer would exclude as a "shopping credit" an amount equal to the SOS supply charge and 
the transmission and ancillary charges that would otherwise be charged by DPL to the retail 
customer. DPL began collecting tMs rate change for service rendered on and after June 3,2005, 
subject to refimd pending final approval by the DPSC. 

On September 1,2005, DPL filed witii the DPSC its first comprehensive base rate case in ten 
years. This application was filed as a result of increasing costs and is consistent with a provision 
m the Delaware Merger Settiement Agreement reqmring DPL to file a base rate case by 
September 1, 2005 and permitting DPL to apply for an increase m rates to be effective no earlier 
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tiian May 1,2006. In the application, DPL sought approval of an annual increase of 
approximately $5.1 miUion in its electric rates, with an increase of approximately $1.6 million to 
its electric distribution base rates after proposing to assign approximately $3.5 million in costs to 
the supply component of rates to be coUected as part ofthe SOS. Ofthe approximately $1.6 
million in net increases to its electric distribution base rates, DPL proposed that approximately 
$1.2 mUUon be recovered through changes m delivery charges and that the remaining 
approximately $0.4 milUon be recovered through changes in premise collection and reconnect 
fees. The full proposed revenue increase is approximately 0.9% of total annual electric utiUty 
revenues, while the proposed net increase to distribution rates is 0,2% of total annual electric 
utiUty revenues. DPL's distribution revenue requirement is based on a proposed return on 
common equity of 11%. DPL also has proposed revised depreciation rates and a number of 
tariff modifications. 

On September 20,2005, the DPSC issued an order approving DPL's request that the rate 
increase go into effect on May 1,2006; subject to refund and pending evidentiary hearings. The 
order also suspends effectiveness of various proposed tariff rule changes untU the case is 
concluded. The discovery process commenced on October 21,2005. In its direct testimony, 
DPSC staff has proposed a variety of adjustments to rate base, operating expenses including 
depreciation and rate of return with an overaU recommendation ofa distribution base rate 
revenue decrease of $14.3 million. The DPSC staffs testimony also addresses issues such as 
rate design, allocation of any rate decrease and positions regarding the DPL's proposes on 
certain non-rate tariff modifications. The Delaware Division of PubUc Advocate has proposed 
many ofthe same adjustments and others with an overaU recommendation ofa distribution base 
rate revenue decrease of $18.9 million. DPL filed rebuttal testimony on January 17, 2006, 
which supports a distribution base rate revenue mcrease of $2 million. On January 30,2006, the 
DPSC staff requested the Hearing Examiner approve a modification ofthe procedural schedule 
ui the case to allow for inclusion of testiir«>ny regarding recalculation of DPSC staff's proposed 
depreciation rates to allow for a separate amortization ofthe cost of removal reserve. DPL 
objected to this modification ofthe procedural schedule. The Hearing Examiner issued a letter 
mluig on Febmary 1, 2006, which denied DPSC staffs request for a modified procedural 
schedule. On February 2, 2006, DPSC staff fUed an emergency motion requesting the DPSC to 
permit consideration ofthe issue by the Hearii^ Examiner in this docket. On February 6,2006, 
the DPSC mled to allow the issue in the case. A revised procedural schedule was established by 
the Hearing Examiner on February 10,2006. OnFebruaiy 15,2006, DPL fiUed an interlocutory 
appeal ofthe Hearing Examiner's rulmg on the procedural schedule with the DPSC. On 
February 28,2006, tiie DPSC upheld the Hearing Examiner's ruling and procedural schedule set 
on Febmary 10, 2006. DPSC staff filed testimony related to this issue on February 17, 2006. 
DPSC staffs revised depreciation proposal reduces theu- recommended proposed rate decrease 
to $18.9 nullion, plus the amortization ofthe cost of removal of $58.4 rnUlion, which DPSC 
staff has recommended be retumed to customers through either a 5-, 7- or 10-year amortization. 
DPL continues to oppose the inclusion ofthis issue in the case for substantive and procedural 
grounds. Evidentiary hearings were held in early Febmary, Hearings on the separate issue 
related to the depreciation ofthe cost of removal are scheduled to be held March 20,2006. 
Briefs are due on March 31, 2006 and DPSC deliberation is scheduled to occur on April 25, 
2006. DPL cannot predict the outcome ofthis proceeding. 

District of Columbia and Maryland 

On February 27,2006, Pepco filed for tiie period February 8, 2002 tiirough Febmary 7, 2004 
and for the period February 8,2004 through Febmary 7, 2005, an update to the District of 
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Columbia Generation Procurement Credit (GPC), which provides for sharing ofthe profit from 
SOS sales; and on Febmary 24, 2006, Pqico filed an update for the period July 1,2003 through 
June 30, 2004 to tiie Maryland GPC. The updates to the GPC m botii the District of Columbia 
and Maryland take into account the proceeds fix)m the sale ofthe $105 million claim against the 
Murant bankmptcy estate related to the TPA Settlement on December 13,2005 for $112.4 
million. The filings also incorporate tme-ups to previous disbursements in the GPC for both 
states. In the filings, Pepco requests that $24.3 nullion be credited to District of Columbia 
customers and $17.7 mUlion be credited to Maryland customers during the twelve-month-period 
beginning April 2006. 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

On January 31,2005, Pepco, DPL, and ACE filed at FERC to reset tiieir rates for network 
transmission service using a formula methodology. The companies also sought a 12.4% retum 
on common equity and a 50-basis-point retum on equity adder that FERC had made available to 
transmission utilities who had joined Regional Transmission Orgaiuzations and thus turned over 
control of their assets to an independent entity, FERC issued an order on May 31,2005, 
approving the rates to go into effect June 1,2005, subject to refund, hearings, and further orders. 
The new rates reflect a decrease of 7.7% in Pepco's transmission rate, and increases of 6.5% and 
3.3% in DPL's and ACE's transmission rates, respectively. The companies continue in 
settlement discussions under tiie supervision ofa FERC administrative law judge and cannot 
predict the ultimate outcome ofthis proceeding. 

Restructuring Deferral 

Pursuant to orders issued by the NJBPU under New Jersey Electric Discount and Enei^ 
Competition Act (EDECA), beginning August 1,1999, ACE was obUgated to provide BGS to 
retail electricity customers in its service territoiy who did not choose a competitive energy 
supplier. For tiie period August 1,1999throughJitiy 31,2003, ACE's aggregate costs that it 
was allowed to recover fix>m customers exceeded its aggregate revenues fix)m supplying BGS. 
These under-recovered costs were partially offset by a $59.3 milUon deferred energy cost 
liability existing as of July 31,1999 (LEAC Liability) that was related to ACE's Levelized 
Energy Adjustment Clause and ACE's Demand Side Management Programs. ACE established a 
regulatory asset in an amount equal to the balance of under-recovered costs. 

In August 2002, ACE filed a petition with the NJBPU for the recovery of approximately 
$176.4 miUion in actual and projected deferred costs relating to the provision of BGS and other 
restmcturing related costs uicurred by ACE over the four-year period August 1,1999 through 
July 31,2003, net of tiie $59.3 milUon offset for tiie LEAC Liability. The petition also 
requested that ACE's rates be reset as of August 1, 2003 so tiiat there would be no under-
recovery of costs embedded in the rates on or after that date. The increase sought represented an 
overall 8.4% annual increase in electric rates and was in addition to the base rate increase 
discussed above. ACE's recovery ofthe deferred costs is subject to review and approval by the 
NJBPU m accordance witii EDECA. 

In July 2004, the NJBPU issued a final order in the restmcturing deferral proceeding 
confirmmg a July 2003 summary order, which (i) permitted ACE to begm coUecting a portion of 
the deferred costs and reset rates to recover on-going costs incurred as a result of EDECA, 
(ii) approved the recovery of $125 million ofthe deferred balance over a ten-year amortization 
period beginning August 1,2003, (iii) transferred to ACE's then pending base rate case for 
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further consideration approximately $25.4 million ofthe deferred balance, and (iv) estimated the 
overaU deferral balance as of July 31,2003 at $195 milUon, of which $44.6 nullion was 
disaUowed recovery by ACE. ACE believes the record does not justify the level of disallowance 
ur^osed by the NJBPU in the final order. In August 2004, ACE filed with the AppeUate 
Division ofthe Superior Court of New Jersey, which hears appeals of New Jersey administrative 
agencies, mcludmg the NJBPU, a Notice of Appeal with respect to the July 2004 final order. 
ACE's mitial brief was filed on August 17,2005. Cross-appellant briefs onbehalf of the 
Division ofthe New Jersey Ratepayer Advocate and Cogentrix Energy Inc., the co-owner of two 
cogeneration power plants with contracts to sell ACE approximately 397 megawatts of 
electricity, were filed on October 3,2005. The NJBPU Staff filed briefs on December 12,2005. 
ACE filed its reply briefs on January 30, 2006. 

Divestiture Cases 

District of Columbia 

Final briefs on Pepco's District of Columbia divestiture proceeds sharing application were 
filed in July 2002 following an evidentiary hearing m June 2002. That apphcation was filed to 
implement a provision of Pepco's DCPSC-approved divestiture setdement that provided for a 
sharing of any net proceeds from the sale of Pepco's generation-related assets. One ofthe 
principal issues in the case is whether Pepco should be required to share with customers the 
excess deferred income taxes (EDIT) and accumulated defeixed investment tax credits (ADITC) 
associated with the sold assets and, if so, whether such sharing would violate the normaUzation 
provisions ofthe Intemal Revenue Code and its implementing regulations. As of December 31, 
2005, the District of Columbia allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC associated with the 
divested generation assets were approximately $6.5 million and $5.8 nullion, respectively. 

Pepco believes that a sharing of EDIT and ADITC would violate the Intemal Revenue 
Service (IRS) normalization mles. Under these rules, Pepco could not transfer the EDIT and the 
ADITC benefit to customers more quickly than on a straight Ime basis over the book life ofthe 
related assets. Since the assets are no longer owned there is no book life over which the EDIT 
and ADITC can be retumed. If Pepco were required to share EDIT and ADITC and, as a result, 
the normalization mles were violated, Pepco would be unable to use accelerated depreciation on 
District of Columbia allocated or assigned property. In addition to sharing witii customers the 
generation-related EDIT and ADITC balances, Pepco would have to pay to the IRS an amount 
equal to Pepco's District of Columbia jurisdictional generation-related ADITC balance 
($5,8 mUUon as of December 31, 2005), as weU as its District of Columbia jurisdictional 
transmission and distribution-related ADITC balance ($5.3 miUion as of December 31, 2005) in 
each case as those balances exist as ofthe later ofthe date a DCPSC order is issued and aU 
rights to appeal have been exhausted or lapsed, or the date tiie DCPSC order becomes operative. 

In March 2003, the IRS issued a notice of proposed mlemaking (NOPR), which would allow 
for tiie sharing of EDIT and ADITC related to divested assets with utility customers on a 
prospective basis and at the election ofthe taxpayer on a retroactive basis. In December 2005 a 
revised NOPR was issued which, among otiier thmgs, withdrew the March 2003 NOPR and 
eliminated the taxpayer's ability to elect to apply the regulation retroactively. Comments on the 
revised NOPR are due by March 21,2006, inA a public hearing wUl be held on April 5,2006. 
Pepco filed a letter with the DCPSC on Januaiy 12, 2006, in which it has reiterated that the 
DCPSC should continue to defer any decision on the ADITC and EDIT issues untU the IRS 
issues final regulations or states that its regulations project wUl be terminated without the 
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issuance of any regulations. Other issues in the divestiture proceeding deal with the treatment of 
intemal costs and cost aUocations as deductions from the gross proceeds ofthe divestiture. 

Pepco believes that its calculation ofthe District of Columbia customers' share of divestiture 
proceeds is correct. However, depending on the ultimate outcome ofthis proceeding, Pepco 
could be required to make additional gain-sharing payments to District of Columbia customers, 
including the payments described above related to EDIT and ADITC. Such additional payments 
(which, other than the EDIT ^ d ADfTC related payments, cannot be estimated) would be 
charged to expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is rendered and could have a 
material adverse effect on Pepco's and PHI's results of operations for those periods. However, 
neither PHI nor Pepco believes that additional gain-sharing payments, if any, or the ADITC-
related payments to the IRS, if reqiured, would have a material adverse impact on its financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows. It is uncertain when the DCPSC wiU issue a 
decision regarding Pepco's divestiture proceeds sharing application. 

Maryland 

Pepco filed its divestiture proceeds plan application m Maryland in April 2001. The principal 
issue in the Maryland case is the same EDIT and ADITC sharing issue that has been raised m 
the District of Columbia case. See the discussion above under "Divestiture Cases - District of 
Columbia." As of December 31, 2005, tiie MPSC allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC 
associated with the divested generation assets were approximately $9.1 million and 
$10.4 miUion, respectively. Other issues deal with the treatment of certain costs as deductions 
fix»m the gross proceeds ofthe divestiture. In November 2003, the Hearing Examiner in the 
Maryland proceeding issued a proposed order with respect to the application that concluded that 
Pepco's Maryland divestiture settlement agreement provided for a sharing between Pepco and 
customers ofthe EDIT and ADITC associated with the sold assets. Pepco beUeves that such a 
sharing would violate the normalization mles (discussed above) and would result in Pq>co's 
inabiUty to use accelerated depreciation on Maryland aUocated or assigned property. If the 
proposed order is affirmed, Pepco would have to share with Us Maryland customers, on an 
approximately 50/50 basis, the Maryland aUocated portion ofthe generation-related EDIT 
($9.1 million as of December 31, 2005), and the Maryland-allocated portion of generation-
related ADITC. Furthermore, Pepco would have to pay to the IRS an amount equal to Pepco's 
Maryland jurisdictional generation-related ADITC balance ($10.4 mUlion as of December 31, 
2005), as well as its Maryland retaU jurisdictional ADITC transrrussion and distribution-related 
balance ($9,5 million as of December 31,2005), in each case as those balances exist as ofthe 
later ofthe date a MPSC order is issued and all rights to appeal have been exhausted or lapsed, 
or the date the MPSC order becomes operative. The Hearing Exammer decided aU other issues 
in favor of Pepco, except for the determination that only one-half of the severance payments that 
Pepco included in its calculation of corporate reorganization costs should be deducted from the 
sales proceeds before sharing ofthe net gain between Pepco and customers. Pepco filed a letter 
with tiie MPSC on January 12, 2006, in which it has reiterated that the MPSC should continue to 
defer any decision on the ADITC and EDIT issues until the IRS issues final regulations or states 
that its regulations project will be terminated without the issuance of any regulations. 
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Pepco has appealed the Hearing Examiner's decision as it relates to the treatment of EDIT 
and ADITC and corporate reorganization costs to the MPSC. Consistent with Pepco's position 
in the District of Columbia, Pepco has argued that the only pmdent course of action is for the 
MPSC to await the issuance of final regulations relating to the tax issues or a termination by the 
IRS of its regulation project without the issuance of any regulations, and then allow the parties 
to file supplemental briefs on the tax issues. Pepco believes that its calculation ofthe Maryland 
customers' share of divestiture proceeds is correct. However, depending on the ultimate 
outcome ofthis proceeding, Pepco could be required to share with its customers approximately 
50 percent ofthe EDIT and ADITC balances described above and make additional gain-sharing 
payments related to the disallowed severance payments. Such additional payments would be 
charged to expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is rendered and could have a 
material adverse effect on results of operations for those periods. However, neither PHI nor 
Pepco believes that additional gaui-sharing payments, if any, or the ADITC-related payments to 
the IRS, if required, would have a material adverse impact on its financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

Default Electricity Supply Proceedings 

District of Columbia 

Under an order issued by the DCPSC in March 2004, as amended by a DCPSC order issued 
in July 2004, Pepco is obligated to provide SOS for small commercial and residential customers 
through May 31, 2011 and for large commercial customers through May 31, 2007. In August 
2004, the DCPSC issued an order adopting administrative charges for residential, small and 
large commercial District of Columbia SOS customers that are intended to allow Pepco to 
recover the administrative costs incurred to provide the SOS supply. The approved 
admiiustrative charges include an average margin for Pepco of approximately $.00248 per 
kilowatt hour, calculated based on total sales to residential, small and large commercial District 
of Columbia SOS customers over the twelve months ended December 31, 2003. Because 
margins vary by customer class, the actual average margm over any given time period wUl 
depend on the number of SOS customers fixim each customer class and the load taken by such 
customers over the time period. The administrative charges went into effect for Pepco's SOS 
sales on February 8, 2005. 

The TPA with Mirant under which Pepco obtained the fixed-rate SOS supply ended on 
January 22,2005, whUe the new SOS supply contracts with the winning bidders in the 
competitive procurement process began on Febmary 1, 2005. Pepco procured power s^arately 
on tiie market for next-day deUveries to cover the period fix)m January 23 through January 31, 
2005, before the new SOS contracts began. Consequently, Pepco had to pay the difference 
between the procurement cost of power on the market for next-day deliveries and the current 
SOS rates charged to customers during the period fixtm January 23 through January 31, 2005. In 
addition, because the new SOS rates did not go into effect until February 8,2005, Pepco had to 
pay the difference between the procurement cost of power under the new SOS contracts and the 
SOS rates charged to customers for tiie period from Febm^y 1 to Febmary 7, 2005. The total 
amount ofthe difference is estimated to be approximately $8.7 million. This difference, 
however, was included in the calculation of tiie GPC for the District of Columbia for the period 
Febmaiy 8,2004 tiirough Febmaiy 7,2005, which was filed on July 12,2005 witii tiie DCPSC. 
The GPC provides for a sharing between Pepco's customers and shareholders, on an annual 
basis, of any margins, but not losses, that Pepco earned providuig SOS in the District of 
Columbia during the four-year period from Febmary 8, 2001 through February 7,2005. At the 
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time ofthe filing, based on the rates paid to Mirant by Pepco under the TPA Settiement, there 
was no customer sharing. On December 22,2005 Pepco received $112.4 million ui proceeds 
fiom the sale ofthe Pepco TPA Claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate. A portion ofthis 
recovery related to the period February 8, 2004 through February 7,2005 covered in the July 12 
DCPSC fiUng. As a consequence, on Febmary 27, 2006, Pepco filed with tiie DCPSC an 
updated calculation ofthe customer sharing for this period, which also takes into account the 
losses incurred during tiie January 22,2005 through Febmary 7,2005 period. The updated 
fifing shows that both residential and commercial customers will receive customer sharing that 
totals $17.5 raUUon. Without the mclusion ofthe $8.7 miUion loss from ihe January 22, 2005 
through Febmary 7, 2005 period, the amount shared with customers would have been 
approximately $22.7 milUon, or $5.2 milUon greater, so that the net effect ofthe loss on the SOS 
sales during this period is approximately $3.5 million. 

On February 3,2006, Pepco armounced proposed rates for its District of Columbia SOS 
customers to take effect on June 1,2006. The new rate wUl raise the average monthly bUI for 
residential customers by approximately 12%. The proposed rates must be approved by the 
DCPSC. 

Delaware 

Under a settiement approved by the DPSC, DPL is requked to provide POLR to customers in 
Delaware through April 2006. DPL is paid for POLR to customers in Delaware at fixed rates 
established m the settlement. DPL obtains all ofthe energy needed to fulfiU its POLR 
obligations m Delaware under a supply agreement with its affihate Conectiv Energy, which 
terminates in May 2006. DPL does not make any profit or mcur any loss on the supply 
component ofthe POLR supply that it delivers to its Delaware customers. DPL is paid tariff 
delivery rates for the delivery of electricity over its transmission and distribution facilities to 
both POLR customers and customers who have selected another energy supplier. These 
delivery rates generally are frozen through April 2006, except that DPL is allowed to file for a 
one-time transntission rate change during this period. On March 22, 2005, the DPSC issued an 
order approvmg DPL as tiie SOS provider after May I, 2006, when DPL's current fixed rate 
pOLR obligation ends. DPL wiU retain the SOS obligation for an mdefinite period until 
changed by the DPSC, and will purchase the power supply required to satisfy its SOS 
obUgations fiom wholesale suppUers under contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid 
procedure. 

On October 11, 2005, the DPSC approved a settiement agreement, under which DPL will 
provide SOS to all customer classes, with no specified termination date for SOS. Two 
categories of SOS will exist: (i) a fixed price SOS available to all but the largest customers; and 
(ii) an Hourly Priced Service (HPS) for die largest customers. DPL wiU purchase the power 
supply required to satisfy its fixed-price SOS obligation fix)m wholesale suppUers under 
contracts entered into pursuant to a competitive bid procedure. Power to supply the HPS 
cvistomers wUl be acquired on next-day and other short-term PJM markets, hi addition to the 
costs of capacity, energy, transmission, and ancillary services associated with the fixed-price 
SOS and HPS, DPL's initial rates wiU include a component referred to as the Reasonable 
Allowance for Retail Margin (RARM). Components ofthe RARM include a fixed annual 
margin of $2.75 nullion, plus estimated mcremental expenses, a cash working capital aUowance, 
and recovery with a retum over five years of tiie capitalized costs of a billing system to be used 
for bilUng HPS customers. 
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Bids for fixed-priced SOS supply for the May 1, 2006 through May 31, 2007 period were 
accepted and approved by the DPSC m December 2005 and January 2006. The new SOS rates 
are scheduled to be effective May 1, 2006. 

On Febmary 7,2006, the Governor of Delaware issued an Executive Order directing the 
DPSC and otiier state agencies to examine ways to mitigate the electric rate increases that are 
expected in May 2006 as a result of rising energy prices. The Executive Order directed the 
DPSC to examine tiie feasibility of: (1) deferring or phasing-in the increases; (2) requiring DPL 
to build generation or enter into long-term supply contracts to meet all, or a portion of, the SOS 
supply requirements under a traditional regulatory paradigm; (3) directing DPL to conduct 
integrated resource planning to ensure fiiel diversity and least-cost supply altematives; and (4) 
requiring DPL to implement demand-side management, conservation and energy efficient 
programs. 

In response to the Executive Order and to help facilitate discussion on several key issues 
facing the State of Delaware, particularly the issue of rising energy prices, DPL presented a 
proposed plan to the DPSC on Febmary 28, 2006. A key feature of DPL's proposed plan is a 
phase-in of rate increases to assist DPL's residential and small commercial customers with the 
impact of rising energy prices. The proposed phase-in ofthe rate hicrease would be in three 
steps, with one third ofthe increase to be phased in on May 1, 2006, another one-third on 
January 1,2007 and the remainder on June 1,2007. The phase-in would create a deferral 
balance of ^proximately $60 miUion doUars that would accme interest and would be recovered 
through a surcharge imposed for a 24-month period beguming June 1,2007. DPL believes that 
this proposal offers a fair and reasonable solution to the concerns identified in the Executive 
Order. 

The Delaware Governor's Cabinet Committee on Energy filed its report with the Governor on 
March 8,2006, The report outlines a proposal that recommends: (1) a phase-in ofthe SOS 
hicrease; (2) long-term steps to ensure more stabilized prices and supply; (3) aggregation ofthe 
state of Delaware's power needs; and (4) reduction of Delaware's dependence on traditional 
energy sources through conservation, energy efficiency, and mnovation. 

DPL intends to file with the DPSC, on or about March 15,2006, an knplementation plan with 
proposed tariffs based on its proposed phase-in plan as described above. DPL also anticipates 
that others may advance other legislative or regulatory proposals to address the concerns 
expressed in the Executive Order. Accordingly, the nature and impact of any changes 
precipitated by the Executive Order are uncertain and DPL cannot predict at this time whether 
this phase-m proposal will be implemented. 

Maryland 

Because of rising energy prices and the resultant expected increases in Pepco's and DPL's 
rates, on March 3,2006 the MPSC issued an order mitiating an investigation to consider a 
residential rate stabilization plan for Pepco and DPL. This investigation is driven by the 
unprecedented national and international events. The MPSC dkected the MPSC staff, Pepco 
and DPL to file comments addressii^ whether or not the rate stabilization plan that the f̂f*SC 
adopted for Baltimore Gas & Electric Company in a March 6,2006 order also should be used 
for Pepco and DPL. Comments are to be fUed by March 16, 2006. 
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On March 7,2006, Pepco and DPL each announced the results of competitive bids to supply 
electricity to its Maryland SOS customers for one year beginning June 1,2006. The proposed 
new rates must be approved formally by the MPSC. IXie to significant increases in the cost of 
fiiels used to generate electricify, the average monthly electric bill will increase by about 38.5% 
and 35% for Pepco's and DPL's Maryland residential customers, respectively. 

Virginia 

Under amendments to the Virginia Electric UtiUty Restmcturing Act unplemented in March 
2004, DPL is obligated to offer Default Service to customers m Vu-gmia for an indefinite period 
until relieved of that obhgation by the VSCC. DPL currentiy obtams aU ofthe energy and 
capacity needed to fulfill its Default Service obUgations in Virgmia under a supply agreement 
with Conectiv Energy that commenced on January 1, 2005 and ej^hes m May 2006 (the 2005 
Supply Agreement). A prior agreement, also with Conectiv Energy, terminated effective 
December 31,2004. DPL entered into the 2005 Supply Agreement after conducting a 
competitive bid procedure in which Conectiv Energy was the lowest bidder. 

In October 2004, DPL filed an apphcation witii the VSCC for approval to increase the rates 
that DPL charges its Default Service customers to allow it to recover its costs for power under 
the 2005 Supply Agreement plus an admirustrative charge and a margm. A VSCC order issued 
in November 2004 allowed DPL to put interim rates into effect on January 1, 2005, subject to 
refund if the VSCC subsequentiy determined the rate is excessive. The interim rates reflected an 
increase of 1.0247 cents per Kwh to the fiiel rate, which provide for recovery ofthe entire 
amount being paid by DPL to Conectiv Energy, but did not include an administrative charge or 
margin, pending further consideration ofthis issue. In January 2005, the VSCC ruled that the 
administrative charge and margin are base rate items not recoverable through a fuel clause. In 
March 2005, the VSCC approved a settlement resolving all other issues and making the interim 
rates final. 

On March 10,2006, DPL filed a rate mcrease with tiie VSCC to reflect proposed rates for its 
Virgirua Default Service customers to take effect on June 1, 2006. The new rates wUI raise the 
average monthly bill for residential customers by approximately 43%. The proposed rates must 
be approved by tiie VSCC. 

New Jersey 

On October 12,2005, the NJBPU, foUowing the evaluation of proposals submitted by ACE 
and the other three electric distribution conpanies located in New Jersey, issued an order 
reaffirming the current BGS auction process for the annual period fix)m June 1,2006 through 
May 2007. The NJBPU order maintains the current size and make up ofthe Commercial and 
Industrial Energy Pricing class (CIEP) and approved the electric distribution companies' 
recommended approach for the CIEP auction product, but deferred a decision on the level ofthe 
retail margin funds. 

Proposed Shut Down of B.L. England Generating Facility 

In April 2004, pursuant to a NJBPU order, ACE filed a report with the NJBPU recomm^iding 
that ACE's B.L. England generating facility, a 447 megawatt plant, be shut down. The report 
stated that, while operation ofthe B.L. England generating facility was necessary at the time of 
the report to satisfy reliability standards, those reliability standards could also be satisfied m 
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other ways. The report concluded that, based on B.L. England's current and projected operating 
costs resulting fix)m compUance with more restrictive environmental reqiurements, the most 
cost-effective way in which to meet reliability standards is to shut down the B.L. England 
generating faciUfy and construct additional transmission enhancements in southem New Jersey. 

In December 2004, ACE filed a petition witii tiie NJBPU requesting that the NJBPU establish 
a proceeding that will consist of a Phase I and Phase II and that the procedural process for the 
Phase I proceeding require intervention and participation by all persons interested in the 
pmdence ofthe decision to shut down B.L. England generating facility and the categories of 
stranded costs associated with shutting down and dismantiing the facility and remediation ofthe 
site. ACE contemplates that Phase II ofthis proceeding, which would be initiated by an ACE 
filmg in 2008 or 2009, would establish the actual level of prudentiy mcurred stranded costs to be 
recovered fix>m customers in rates. The NJBPU has not acted on this petition. 

In a January 24,2006 Administrative Consent Order (ACO)^among PHI, Conectiv, ACE, the 
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and the Attomey General of New 
Jersey, ACE agreed to shut down and pemianently cease operations at the B.L. England 
generating facility by December 15, 2007 if ACE does not sell the plant. The shut-down ofthe 
B.L. England generating facUity will be subject to necessary approvals from the relevant 
agencies and the outcomes ofthe auction process, discussed under "ACE Auction of Generatmg 
Assets," below. 

ACE Auction of Generation Assets 

In May 2005, ACE announced that it would again auction its electric generation assets, 
consisting of its B.L. England generating faciUty and its ownership interests in the Keystone and 
Conemaugh generating stations. On November 15,2005, ACE announced an agreement to seU 
its interests Ui the Keystone and Conemaugh generating stations to Duquesne Light Holdings 
Inc. for $173.1 mUUoa The sale, subject to approval by the NJBPU as well as other regulatory 
agencies and certain other legal conditions, is expected to be completed mid-year 2006. 

Based on the expressed need ofthe potential B.L, England bidders for the details ofthe ACO 
relating to the shut down ofthe plant that was being negotiated between ACE and the NJDEP, 
ACE elected to delay the final bid due date for B.L. England untU such time as a final ACO was 
complete and available to bidders. With the January 24,2006 execution ofthe ACO by all 
parties, ACE is proceeding witii the auction process. Indicative bids were received on February 
16,2006 and final bids are scheduled to be submitted on or about AprU 19,2006. 

Under the terms of sale, any successful bid for B.L. England must include assumption of aU 
environmental liabilities associated with the plant in accordance with the auction standards 
previously issued by the NJBPU. 
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Any sale of B.L. England wiU not affect the stranded costs associated with the plant that 
aheady have been securitized. If B.L. England is sold, ACE anticipates that, subject to 
regulatory approval in Phase II ofthe proceeding described above, approximately $9.1 milUon 
of additional assets may be eligible for recovery as stranded costs. The net gains on the sale of 
the Keystone and Conemaugh generating stations wUl be an offset to stranded costs associated 
with the shutdown of B. L. England or wiU be offset through other ratemaking adjustments. 
Testimony fUed by ACE with the NJBPU in December 2005 estimated net gains of 
approximately $126.9 milUon; however, the net gains ultimately realized will be dependent upon 
the timing ofthe closing ofthe sale of Keystone and Conemaugh generating stations, transaction 
costs and other factors. 

Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-Border Leases 

PCI maintains a portfoUo of cross-border energy sale-leaseback transactions, which, as of 
December 31,2005, had a book value of approximately $1.3 bUlion, and fixjm which PHI 
currentiy derives approximately $55 miUion per year in tax benefits in the form of interest and 
depreciation deductions. 

On Febmary 11,2005, tiie Treasury Department and IRS issued Notice 2005-13 mforming 
taxpayers that the IRS intends to challenge on various grounds the purported tax benefits 
claimed by taxpayers entering mto certam sale-leaseback transactions with tax-indifferent parties 
(i.e., municipalities, tax-exempt and governmental entities), includUig those entered into on or 
prior to March 12,2004 (the Notice). All of PCI's cross-border energy leases are with tax 
mdifferent parties and were entered mto prior to 2004. In addition, on June 29,2005 the IRS 
published a Coordinated Issue Paper concerning the resolution of audit issues related to such 
transactions. PCfs cross-border energy leases are similar to those sale-leaseback transactions 
described in the Notice and the Coordinated Issue Paper. 

PCI's leases have been under examination by the IRS as part ofthe normal PHI tax audit. On 
May 4,2005, the IRS issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment to PHI that challenges the tax 
benefits realized fixim interest and depreciation deductions claUned by PHI with respect to these 
leases for the tax years 2001 and 2002. The tax benefits claimed by PHI with respect to these 
leases fix)m 2001 tiirough December 31,2005 were approxunately $230 miUion. The ultimate 
outcome ofthis issue is uncertam; however, if the IRS prevaUs, PHI would be subject to 
additional taxes, along with interest and possibly penalties on the additional taxes, which could 
have a material adverse effect on PHFs financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows, 

PHI believes that its tax position related to these transactions was proper based on appUcable 
statutes, regulations and case law, and intends to contest the final adjustments proposed by the 
IRS; however, there is no assurance that PHFs position will prevail. 

On November 18,2005 tiie U.S. Senate passed The Tax Relief Act of 2005 (S.2020) which 
would apply passive loss Umitation rules to leases with foreign tax indifferent parties effective 
for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2005, even if the leases were entered into on or 
prior to March 12,2004. On December 8,2005 the U.S. House of Representatives passed the 
Tax Relief Extension Reconciliation Act of 2005 (H.R. 4297), which does not contam any 
provision which would modify the current treatment of leases with tax indifferent parties. 
Enactment mto law ofa bill that is smiilar to S.2020 m its current form could result in a material 
delay ofthe income tax benefits that PCI would receive in connection with its cross-border 
energy leases and thereby adversely affect PHI's financial condition and cash flows. The U.S. 
House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate are expected to hold a conference m the near 
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future to reconcile the differences in the two bUls to determine the final legislation. 

Under SFAS No. 13, as currently mterpreted, a settiement with the IRS or a change in tax law 
that results in a deferral of tax benefits that does not change the total estimated net income fix)m 
a lease does not require an adjustment to the book value ofthe lease. However, if the IRS were 
to disallow, rather than require the deferral of, certain tax deductions related to PHI's leases, PHI 
would be required to adjust the book value ofthe leases and record a charge to earnings equal to 
the repricmg impact ofthe disallowed deductions. Such a charge to earnings, if required, is 
likely to have a material adverse effect on PHI's financial condition, results of operations, and 
cash flows for the period in which the charge is recorded. 

In July 2005, the FASB released a Proposed Staff Position paper tiiat would amend SFAS 
No. 13 and require a lease to be repriced and the book value adjusted when there is a change or 
probable change in the timing of tax benefits. Under this proposal, a material change in the 
timing of cash flows under PHI's cross-border leases as the result ofa settiement with the IRS or 
a change in tax law also would require an adjustment to the book value. If adopted in its 
proposed form, the application ofthis guidance could result in a material adverse effect on PHI's 
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows, even if a resolution with the IRS or a 
change in tax law is limited to a deferral ofthe tax benefits reaUzed by PCI from its leases. 

IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue 

During 2001, Pepco, DPL, and ACE changed tiieir methods of accounting with respect to 
capitalizable constmction costs for income tax purposes, which allow the comparues to 
accelerate the deduction of certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. 
Through December 31, 2005, these accelerated deductions have generated incremental tax cash 
flow benefits of approximately $205 million (consisting of $94 miUion for Pepco, $62 milUon 
for DPL, and $49 mUlion for ACE) for the companies, primarily attributable to then- 2001 tax 
returns. On August 2, 2005, the IRS issued Revenue Rulk^ 2005-53 (the Revenue Ruling) that 
wUl linut the abUity ofthe companies to utilize this method of accounting for income tax 
purposes on their tax returns for 2004 and prior years. PHI intends to contest any IRS 
adjustment to its prior year income tax returns based on the Revenue Ruling, However, if the 
IRS is successful in applying this Revenue Ruling, Pepco, DPL, and ACE would be required to 
capitalize and depreciate a portion ofthe constmction costs previously deducted and repay the 
associated mcome tax benefits, along with Uiterest thereon. During 2005, PHI recorded a $10.9 
million increase in income tax expense consisting of $6.0 million for Pepco, $2.9 miUion for 
DPL, and $2.0 million for ACE, to account for the accmed interest that would be paid on the 
portion of tax benefits that PHI estimates would be deferred to future years if the constmction 
costs previously deducted are required to be capitalized and depreciated. 

On the same day as the Revenue Ruluig was issued, the Treasury Department released 
regulations that, if adopted in their current form, would require Pepco, DPL, and ACE to change 
their method of accounting with respect to capitaUzable constmction costs for income tax 
purposes for all future tax periods beginning in 2005. Under tiiese regulations, Pepco, DPL, and 
ACE will have to capitaUze and depreciate a portion ofthe constmction costs that they have 
previously deducted and include the Unpact ofthis adjustment in taxable income over a two-year 
period beginning with tax year 2005. PHI is continuing to work with the industry to determine 
an altemative method of accounting for capitaUzable constmction costs acceptable to the IRS to 
replace the method disallowed by the proposed regulations. 
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In February 2006, PHI paid ^>proximately $121 miUion of taxes to cover the amount of taxes 
management estimates will be payable once a new final method of tax accounting is adopted on 
its 2005 tax retum, due to the proposed regulations. Although the increase in taxable income 
will be spread over the 2005 and 2006 tax retum periods, the cash payments would have all 
occurred in 2006 with the filing ofthe 2005 tax retum and the ongoing 2006 estimated tax 
payments. This $121 million tax payment was accelerated to eliminate the need to accme 
additional federal interest expense for the potential IRS adjustment related to the previous tax 
accounting method PHI used during the 2001-2004 tax years. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 

The SEC has defined a company's most critical accounting policies as the ones that are most 
important to the portrayal of its financial condition and results of operations, and which require 
the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result ofthe need to 
make estimates of matters that are inherentiy uncertain. Critical estimates represent those 
estimates and assunqjtions that may be material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment 
necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or the susce^tibiHty of such matters to change, 
and that have a material intact on financial condition or operating performance. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, such as Statement of Position 94-6, "Disclosure of 
Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties," requires management to make certain estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, 
and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the consohdated financial 
statements and accompanying notes. 

Examples of significant estimates used by Pepco Holdings include the assessment of 
contingencies and the need/amount for reserves of fiiture receipts from Mirant (see "Relationship 
with Mirant Corporation"), the calculation of future cash flows and fan: value amounts for use in 
goodwiU and asset impairment evaluations, fair value calculations (based on estimated market 
pricing) associated with derivative instruments, pension and other postretirement benefits 
assumptions, unbiUed revenue calculations, and the judgment involved witii assessing the 
probability of recovery of regulatory assets. Additionally, PHI is subject to legal, regulatory, 
and other proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Pepco 
Holdings records an estimated liabiUty for these proceedings and claims based upon the probable 
and reasonably estimable criteria contained in SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies." 
Although Pepco Holdings believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are 
based upon information available to management at the time the estimates are made. Actual 
results may differ significantly fi^m these estimates. 
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Goodwill Impairment Evaluation 

Pepco Holdings believes that the estimates involved in its goodwill impairment evaluation 
process represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) they may be susceptible to change 
from period to period because management is required to make assumptions and judgments 
about the discounting of fiiture cash flows, which are inherentiy uncertain, (u) actual results 
could vory from those used in Pepco Holdings' esthnates and the impact of such variations could 
be material, and (iii) the impact that recognizmg an impakment would have on Pepco Holdings' 
assets and the net loss related to an impaUment charge could be material. 

The provisions of SFAS No. 142, "GoodwiU and Other Intangible Assets," requhe the 
evaluation of goodwill for impairment at least annually and more fi^quently if events and 
cUcumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. SFAS No. 142 mdicates that if the fair 
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, including goodwUl, an impairment charge 
may be necessary. The goodwiU generated m the transaction by which Pepco acqmred Conectiv 
in 2002 was allocated to Pepco Holdings' Power Dehvery segment. In order to estimate the fair 
value of its Power DeUvery segment, Pepco Holdings discounts the estimated future cash flows 
associated with the segment using a discounted cash flow model with a single uiterest rate that is 
commensurate with the risk involved with such an investment. The estimation of fair value is 
dependent on a number of factors, including but not limited to interest rates, future growth 
assumptions, operatmg and capital expenditure requhements and other factors, changes in which 
could materially impact the resuUs of impairment testing. Pepco Holdings tested its goodwiU for 
in^ahment as of July 1,2005. This testing concluded that Pepco Holdings' goodwiU balance 
was not impaired. A hypothetical decrease in the Power Delivery segment's forecasted cash 
flows of 10 percent would not have resulted in an inqjairment charge. 

Long-Lived Assets Impairment Evaluation 

Pepco Holdings believes that the estimates involved in its long-lived asset impairment 
evaluation process represent "Critical Accountmg Estimates" because (i) they are highly 
susceptible to change from period to period because management is reqiured to make 
assumptions and judgments about undiscounted and discounted future cash flows and fair 
values, which are inherentiy uncertam, (ii) actual results could vary from those used m Pepco 
Holdmgs' estimates and the impact of such variations could be material, and (iii) the impact that 
recognizing an impairment would have on Pepco Holdmgs' assets as weU as the net loss related 
to an impahment charge could be material. 

SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," requhes 
that certain long-lived assets must be tested for recoverabUity whenever events or circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss may only be 
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable and the carrying amount exceeds 
its fair value. The asset is deemed not to be recoverable when its carrying amount exceeds the 
sum ofthe undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual 
disposition ofthe asset. In order to estimate an asset's future cash flows, Pepco Holdmgs 
consid^s historical cash flows. Pepco Holdings uses its best estimates in making these 
evaluations and considers various factors, including forward price curves for energy, fuel costs, 
legislative mitiatives, and operating costs. The process of determming fair value is done 
consistent with the process described in assessing the fair value of goodwill, which is discussed 
above. 
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Derivative Instruments 

Pepco Holdings beUeves that the estimates involved in accounting for its derivative 
instruments represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) the fah value ofthe 
instruments are highly susceptible to changes in market value and interest rate fluctuations, (ii) 
there are significant uncertainties in modeling techniques used to measure fair value in certain 
circumstances, (ui) actual results could vary fixim those used in Pepco Holdings' estimates and 
the impact of such variations could be material, and (iv) changes in fair values and market prices 
could result in material impacts to Pepco Holdings' assets, liabiUties, other comprehensive 
income(loss), and results of operations. See Note 2, "Summaryof Significant Accounting 
Policies - Accounting for Derivatives" to the consolidated financial statements of PHI included 
in Item 8 for infonnation on PHI's accounting for derivatives. 

Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries use derivative instruments primarily to manage risk 
associated with commodity prices and interest rates. SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended, governs tiie accounting treatment for 
derivatives and requires that derivative instruments be measured at fan: value. The fair value of 
derivatives is determined using quoted exchange prices where available. For instruments that 
are not traded on an exchange, external broker quotes are used to determine fair value. For some 
custom and complex instruments, an intemal model is used to interpolate broker quaUty price 
infonnation. The same valuation methods are used to determine the value of non-derivative, 
commodity exposure for risk management purposes. 

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 

Pepco Holdings beUeves that the estimates involved in reporting the costs of providing 
pension and other postretirement benefits represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) 
they are based on an actuarial calculation that includes a number of assumptions which are 
subjective in nature, (ii) they are dependent on numerous factors resititing fixim actual plan 
experience and assumptions of fiiture experience, and (in) changes in assumptions could impact 
Pepco Holdings' expected future cash funding requirements for the plans and would have an 
inqiact on the projected benefit obUgations, the reported pension and other postretirement benefit 
liability on the balance sheet, and the reported annual net periodic pension and other 
postretirement benefit cost on the income statement. In terms of quantifying the anticipated 
impact of a change in assumptions, Pepco Holdmgs estimates that a ,25% change in the discount 
rate used to value the benefit obligations could result in a $5 million impact on its consoUdated 
balance sheets and statements of earnings. AdditionaUy, Pepco Holdings estimates that a .25% 
change in the expected retum on plan assets could result in a $4 mUUon impact on the 
consolidated balance sheets and statements of earnings and a .25% change in the assumed 
healthcare cost trend rate could result in a $.5 million impact on its consoUdated balance sheets 
and statements of earnings. Pepco Holdings' management consults with its actuaries and 
investment consultants when selecting its plan assumptions. 

Pepco Holdings follows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for 
Pensions," and SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than 
Pensions," when accounting for these benefits. Under these accounting standards, assumptions 
are made regarding the valuation of benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets. In 
accordance with these standards, the impact of changes in these assumptions and the difference 
between actual and expected or estimated results on pension and postrethement obligations is 
generally recognized over the working lives ofthe employees who benefit under the plans rather 
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than immediately recognized in the statement of earnings. Plan assets ârc stated at their market 
value as ofthe measurement date, which is December 31. 

Regulation of Power Delivery Operations 

The requirements of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of 
Regulation," apply to the Power Delivery busmesses of Pepco, DPL, and ACE. Pepco 
Holdings believes that the judgment involved in accounting for its regulated activities 
represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) a significant amount of judgment is 
required (includuig but not limited to the interpretation of laws and regulatory commission 
orders) to assess the probability ofthe recovery of regulatory assets, (u) actual results and 
interpretations could vary from those used in Pepco Holdings' estimates and the impact of 
such variations could be material, and (iii) the unpact that writing off a regulatory asset would 
have on Pepco Holdings' assets and the net loss related to the charge could be material. 

Unbilled Revenue 

UnbiUed revenue represents an estimate of revenue earned fix)m services rendered by 
Pepco Holduigs' utility operations that have not yet been bUled. Pepco Holduigs' utility 
operations calculate unbilled revenue usmg an output based methodology. This methodology 
is based on the supply of electricity or gas distributed to customers. Pepco Holdings believes 
that the estimates involved in its unbilled revenue process represent "Critical Accounting 
Estimates" because management is required to make assumptions and judgments about input 
factors such as customer sales mix and estimated power line losses (estimates of electricity 
expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers), all of 
which are inherentiy uncertain and susceptible to change from period to period, the impact of 
which could be material. 

New Accounting Standards 

SFAS No. 154 

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, "Accountmg Changes and Error 
Corrections (SFAS No. 154), a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 
3." SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes 
and error corrections. It establishes, urtiess impracticable, retrospective ^jplication as the 
required method for reporting a change in accounting principle in the absence of expUcit 
transition requhements specific to the newly adopted accounting principle. The reporting of a 
correction of an error by restating previously issued financial statements is also addressed by 
SFAS No. 154. This Statement is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors 
made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,2005 (the year ended December 31,2006 for 
Pepco Holdings). Early adoption is permitted. 

SFAS No. 155 

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155, "Accounting for Certam Hybrid 
Fmancial Instruments-an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" (SFAS No. 155). 
This Statement amends FASB Statements No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities", and No, 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets 
and Extinguishments of Liabilities." This Statement resolves issues addressed m Statement 133 
Implementation Issue No. Dl, "Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in 
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Securitized Financial Assets." SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acqmred 
or issued after the beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begms after September 15, 2006. 
Pepco Holdmgs is in the process of evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 155 but does not 
anticipate that its implementation will have a material unpact on Pepco Holdings overall 
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 

SAB 107 and SFAS No. 123R 

hi March 2005, tiie SEC issued Staff Accounting BuUetin No. 107 (SAB 107) which provides 
implementation guidance on tiie interaction between FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), 
"Share-Based Payment" (SFAS No. 123R), and certain SEC rules and regulations, as well as 
guidance on the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for pubUc companies. 

hi April 2005, tiie SEC adopted a rule delaymg tiie effective date of SFAS No. 123R for 
pubUc comparues. Under the rule, most registrants must comply with SFAS No. 123R 
begirming with the first mterim or annual reportmg period of their first fiscal year beginning 
after June 15, 2005 (the year ended December 31,2006 for Pepco Holduigs). 

In November 2005, tiie FASB published FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 123R-3, "Transition 
Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards" (FSP FAS 
123R-3), which provides guidance regarding an altemative transition election for accounting for 
the tax effects of share-based payments. FSP FAS 123R-3 was effective upon issuance. 

In February 2006, tiie FASB published FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)-4, "Classification of 
Options and Sirmlar Instruments Issued as Employee Compensation that Allow for Cash 
Settlement upon the Occurrence ofa Contingent Event" (FSP FAS 123(R)-4), which incorporate 
the concept of when cash settiement features of options and similar instruments meet the 
condition outlined in SAFS No. 123R. FSP FAS 123(R)-4 is effective upon mitial adoption of 
SFAS No. 123R or the first reporting period after its issuance, if SFAS No. 123R has been 
adopted. 

Pqjco Holdings is in the process of completing its evaluation ofthe impact of SFAS No. 
123R, FSP FAS 123(R)-3, and FSP FAS 123(R)-4, and does not anticipate tiiat tiieu-
in^lementation or SAB 107 wUl have a material effect on Pepco Holdings' overall financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

FIN47 

Pepco Holdings adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset 
Retirement Obligations" (FIN 47), on December 31, 2005. A conditional asset retirement 
obligation refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing 
and/or method of setdement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be withm the 
control ofthe entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity applies even though 
imcertamty exists about the time and/or metiiod of settiement. FIN 47 requires an entity to 
recognize a hability for tiie fah value of a conditional asset returement obligation, when mcurred, 
if the fair value ofthe liabiUty can be reasonably estimated. Uncertainty about the timing and/or 
method of settiement ofthe conditional asset retUement obligation should be factored into the 
measurement ofthe liability when sufficient infonnation exists. 

In adoptmg FIN 47, Pepco Holdings identified that it has asset retirement obligations to (1) 
remove retired underground storage tanks located in multiple locations, (2) cap and moiutor an 
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ash disposal site, (3) remove asbestos at one generating station and (4) remove thermal 
equipment instaUed under contract with a Delaware court house at the termination ofthe 
contract. As a result of these obligations, during 2005 Pepco Holdings recorded both a 
conditional asset retirement obhgation of $1.5 milUon and a de mimmis transition Uability. 
Accretion expense for 2005 which relates to the Power Delivery segment has been recorded as a 
regulatory asset. 

EITF 04-13 

In September 2005, tiie FASB ratified EITF Issue No, 04-13, "Accountuig for Purchases and 
Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty" (EITF 04-13), which addresses circumstances 
under which two or more exchange transactions involving inventory with the same counterparty 
should be viewed as a single exchange transaction for the purposes of evaluating the effect of 
APB Opiiuon 29. EITF 04-13 is effective for new arrangements entered into, or modifications 
or renewals of existing arrangements, beginning in the first interim or annual reporting period 
begmnh^ after March 15,2006 (April 1, 2006 for Pepco Holdings). EITF 04-13 would not 
affect Pepco Holdings' net mcome, overall financial condition, or cash flows, but rather could 
result in certain revenues and costs, including wholesale revenues and purchased power 
expenses, being presented on a net basis. Pepco Holdings is in the process of evaluating the 
impact of EITF 04-13 on its Consolidated Statements of Earnings presentation of purchases and 
sales. 

RISK FACTORS 

The businesses of PHI and its subsidiaries are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, 
includmg the events or conditions identified below. The occurrence of one or more of these 
events or conditions could have an adverse effect on the business of PHI and its subsidiaries, 
including, dep^iding on the circumstances, tiieir financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows. 

PHI and its subsidiaries are subject to substantial governmental regulation. If PHI or any 
of its subsidiaries receives unfavorable r^ulatory treatment, PHI's business could be 
negatively affected. 

PHI's Power DeUvery businesses are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local 
regulatory agencies that significantly affects their operations. Each of Pepco, DPL and ACE is 
regulated by state public service commissions in its service territories, with respect to, among 
other things, the rates it can charge retail customers for the supply and distribution of electricity 
(and additionally for DPL tiie supply and distribution of gas). In addition, the rates that the 
companies can charge for electricity transmission are regulated by FERC. The companies 
carmot change supply, distribution, or transmission rates without approval by the applicable 
regulatory authority. While the approved distribution and transmission rates are intended to 
permit the comparues to recover their costs ofservice and earn a reasonable rate of return, the 
profitabiUty ofthe companies is affected by the rates they are able to charge. In addUion, if the 
costs incurred by any ofthe comparues in operating its transmission and distribution facilities 
exceed the allowed amounts for costs included in the approved rates, the financial results of that 
company, and correspondingly, PHI, will be adversely affected, 

PHI's subsidiaries also are required to have numerous permits, approvals and certificates from 
governmental agencies that regulate then- businesses, PHI beUeves that its subsidiaries have 
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obtained or sought renewal ofthe material permits, approvals and certificates necessary for their 
existing operations and that their businesses are conducted in accordance with applicable laws; 
however, PHI is unable to predict the unpact of future regulatory activities of any of these 
agencies on its business. Changes in or reinterpretations of existing laws or regulations, or the 
imposition of new laws or regulations, may reqmre PHI's subsidiaries to mcur additional 
expenses or to change the way they conduct their operations. 

PHI*s business could be adversely affected by the Mirant bankruptcy. 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantiaUy all of its electricity generation assets to Mirant. As part of 
the sale, Pepco entered into several ongoing contractual anangements with Mirant and certain of 
its subsidiaries. On July 14,2003, Mhant and most of its subsidiaries filed a voluntary petition 
for reorganization under Chapter 11 ofthe U.S. Bankmptcy Code in the U.S. Bankmptcy Court 
for the Northern District of Texas. Depending on the outcome ofthe proceedings related to the 
bankmptcy, the Mirant bankmptcy could adversely affect PHI's business. See "Relationship 
with Mirant Corporation" for additional information. 

Pepco may be required to make additional divestiture proceeds gain-sharing payments to 
customers in the District of Columbia and Maryland. 

Pepco currentiy is involved in regulatory proceedings in Maryland and the District of 
Columbia related to the sharing ofthe net proceeds from the sale of its generation-related assets. 
The principal issue in the proceedings is whether Pepco should be required to share with 
customers the excess defened income taxes and accumulated deferred investment tax credits 
associated with the sold assets and, if so, whether such sharing would violate the normalization 
provisions ofthe Internal Revenue Code and its implementing regulations. Depending on the 
outcome ofthe proceeduigs, Pepco could be required to make additional gain-faring payments 
to customers and payments to the IRS in the amoimt ofthe associated accumulated deferred 
investment tax credits, and Pepco nught be unable to use accelerated depreciation on District of 
Columbia and Maryland allocated or assigned property. See "Regulatory and Other Matters" for 
additional information. 

The operating results of PHI*s Power Delivery and Competitive Energy businesses 
fluctuate on a seasonal basis and can be adversely affected by changes in weather. 

PHI's Power DeUvery and Competitive Energy businesses are seasonal and weather patterns 
can have a material impact on their operating performance. Demand for electricity is generaUy 
greater in the summer months associated witii cooling and demand for electricity and gas is 
generally greater in the wmter months associated with heatmg as compared to other times ofthe 
year. Historically, the competitive energy operations of Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy 
Services have produced less revenues when weather conditions are milder than normal. Such 
weather conditions can also negatively impact income from these operations. Energy 
management services generaUy are not seasonal. 

The facilities of PHI's subsidiaries may not operate as planned or may require significant 
maintenance expenditures, which could decrease their revenues or increase their expenses. 

98 



PEPCO HOLDUSIGS 

Operation of generation, transmission and distribution facilities mvolves many risks, 
including tiie breakdown or failure of equipment, accidents, labor disputes and performance 
below expected levels. Older facilities and equipment, even if maintained in accordance with 
sound engineering practices, may require significant capital expenditures for additions or 
upgrades to keep them operating at peak efficiency, to comply with changing environmental 
requirements, or to provide reliable operations. Natural disasters and weather-related incidents, 
including tornadoes, hurricanes and snow and ice storms, also can dismpt generation, 
transmission and distribution delivery systems. Operation of generation, transntission and 
distribution facilities below expected capacity levels can reduce revenues and result in the 
incurrence of additional expenses that may not be recoverable from customers or through 
insurance. Furtiiermore, if PHI's operating subsidiaries are unable to perform their contractual 
obligations for any of these reasons, they may incur penalties or damages. 

The transmission faciUties of PHI's Power Delivery business are interconnected with the 
facilities of other transmission facUity owners whose actions could have a negative impact 
on the operations of PHPs subsidiaries. 

The transinission facilities of Pepco, DPL and ACE are directiy intercormected with the 
transmission facilities of contiguous utihties and, as such, are part of an interstate power 
transmission grid. FERC has designated a number of regional transmission operators to 
coordinate the operation of portions ofthe interstate transinission grid. Each of Pepco, DPL and 
ACE is a member of PJM, which is the regional transmission operator that coordinates the 
movement of electricity m all or parts of Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, 
Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvaiua, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virgmia 
and the District of Columbia. Pepco, DPL and ACE operate their transmission facilities under 
the direction and control of PJM. PJM and the other regional transinission operators have 
established sophisticated systems that are designed to ensure the reliability ofthe operation of 
transmission facilities and prevent the operations of one utUity from having an adverse impact 
on the operations ofthe other utihties. However, the systems put in place by PJM and the other 
regional transmission operators may not always be adequate to prevent problems at other utihties 
from causmg service mtermptions in tiie transmission facilities of Pepco, DPL or ACE. If any 
of Pepco, DPL or ACE were to suffer such a service intermption, it could have a negative impact 
on its and PHI's business. 

The cost of compliance with environmental laws is significant and new environmental laws 
may increase the expenses of PHI and its subsidiaries. 

The operations of PHI's subsidiaries, both regulated and unregulated, are subject to extensive 
federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules and regulations, relating to air quality, water 
quality, spill prevention, waste management, natural resources, site remediation, and health and 
safety. These laws and regulations require PHI's subsidiaries to make capital expenditures and 
to Uicur other expenditures to, among other things, meet emissions standards, conduct site 
remediation and perform environmental morutoring. PHI's subsidiaries also may be required to 
pay significant remediation costs with respect to third party sites. If PHI's subsidiaries fail to 
comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations, even if caused by factors beyond 
their control, such failure could result m the assessment of civil or criminal penalties and 
liabilities and the need to expend significant sums to come into compliance. 
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In addition, PHI's subsidiaries incur costs to obtain and comply with a variety of 
environmental permits, licenses, inspections and other approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining 
any required envhonmental regulatory approval, or if PHI's subsidiaries fail to obtain, mamtam 
or comply with any such approval, operations at affected facilities could be halted or subjected 
to additional costs. 

New envhonmental laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existmg laws and 
regulations, could impose more stringent limitations on the operations of PHI's subsidiaries or 
require them to incur significant additional costs. PHI's current con^Uance strategy may not 
successfiilly address the relevant standards and interpretations ofthe future. 

Failure to retain and attract key skiUed professional and technical employees could have 
an adverse effect on the operations of PHI. 

Implementation of PHI's strategy is dependent on its abUity to recruit, retain and motivate 
en^loyees. Competition for skilled employees in some areas is high and the inabiUty to retain 
and attract these employees could adversely affect PHI's business, operations, and financial 
condition. 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses are highly competitive. 

The unregulated energy generation, supply and marketing businesses in the mid-Atiantic 
region are characterized by intense competition at both the wholesale and retail levels. PHI's 
Competitive Energy busUiesses compete with numerous non-utility generators, independent 
power producers, wholesale and retml energy marketers, and traditional utihties. This 
con^etition generaUy has the effect of reducing marguis and requires a continual focus on 
controUing costs. 

PHI's Competitive E n e r ^ businesses rely on some transmission, storage, and distribution 
assets that they do not own or control to deliver wholesale and retail electricity and natural 
gas and to obtain fuel for their generation facilities. 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses depend upon electric transmission faciUties, natural gas 
pipelines, and gas storage facilities owned and operated by others. The operation of their 
generation facilities also depends upon coal, natural gas or diesel fiiel supplied by others. If 
electric transmission, natural gas pqieUnes, or gas storage are dismpted or edacity is inadequate 
or unavaUable, the Competitive Energy businesses' ability to buy and receive and/or sell and 
deliver wholesale and retaU power and natural gas, and therefore to fitifUl their contractual 
obligations, could be adversely affected. SimU^ly, if the fuel supply to one or more of tiieir 
generation plants is disnqjted and storage or other alternative sources of supply are not available, 
the Con^etitive Energy businesses' abiUty to operate then* generating facilities could be 
adversely affected. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect PHI's Power Delivery and Competitive Energy 
businesses. 

Research and development activities are ongoing to improve altemative technologies to 
produce electricity, including fiiel cells, micro turbines and photovoltaic (solar) ceUs, It is 
possible that advances in these or other alternative technologies wUl reduce the costs of 
electricity production fix>m tiiese technologies, thereby makmg the generating faciUties of PHI's 
Competitive Energy businesses less con^etitive. In addition, increased conservation efforts and 
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advances in technology could reduce demand for electricity supply and distribution, which could 
adversely affect PHFs Power Delivery and Competitive Energy businesses. Changes in 
technology also could alter the channels through which retail electric customers buy electricity, 
which could adversely affect PHI's Power Delivery business. 

PHI's risk management procedures may not prevent losses in the operation of its 
Competitive Energy businesses. 

The operations of PHI's Competitive Energy businesses are conducted in accordance with 
sophisticated risk management systems that are designed to quantify risk. However, actual 
results sometimes deviate from modeled expectations. In particular, risks in PHI's energy 
activities are measured and monitored utilizing value-at-risk models to determine the effects of 
potential one-day favorable or unfavorable price movements. These estimates are based on 
historical price volatUity and assume a normal distribution of price changes and a 95% 
probability of occurrence. Consequentiy, if prices significantiy deviate from historical prices, 
PHPs risk management systems, mcluding assumptions supporting risk lunits, may not protect 
PHI fixim significant losses. In addition, adverse changes in energy prices may result in 
economic losses in PHI's earnings and cash flows and reductions in the value of assets on its 
balance sheet under applicable accounting rules. 

The commodity hedging procedures used by PHI's Competitive Energy businesses may not 
protect them from significant losses caused by volatile commodity prices. 

To lower the financial exposure related to commodity price fluctuations, PHFs Competitive 
Energy businesses routinely enter into contracts to hedge the value of their assets and operations. 
As part ofthis strategy, PHI's Competitive Energy busmesses utilize fixed-price, forward, 
physical purchase and sales contracts, tollmg agreements, futures, financial swaps and option 
contracts traded ui the over-the-counter markets or on exchanges. Each of these various hedge 
instruments can carry a unique set of risks m their application to PHI's energy assets. PHI must 
apply judgment in determining the application and effectiveness of each hedge instrument. 
Changes in accounting mles, or revised interpretations to existing nties, may cause hedges to be 
deemed ineffective. This could have material earnings implications for the period or periods in 
question. Conectiv Energy's objective is to hedge a portion of the expected power output of its 
generation facilities and the costs of fuel used to operate those faciUties so it is not completely 
exposed to spot energy price movements. Hedge targets are approved by PHI's Corporate Risk 
Management Comntittee and may change fix)m time to time based on market conditions. 
Conectiv Energy generally establishes hedge targets aimually for the next three succeeding 12-
month periods. Within a given 12 month horizon, the actual hedged positioning any month may 
be outside ofthe targeted range, even if the average for a 12 month period falls withm the stated 
range. Management exercises judgment in determining which months present the most 
significant risk, or opportunity, and hedge levels are adjusted accordingly. Since energy markets 
can move significantiy in a short period of time, hedge levels may also be adjusted to reflect 
revised assumptions. Such factors may include, but are not Umited to, changes in projected plant 
output, revisions to fuel requirements, transinission constraints, prices of alternate fiiels, and 
improving or deteriorating supply and demand conditions. In addition, short-term occurrences, 
such as abnormal weather, operational events, or mtra-month commodity price volatUity may 
also cause the actual level of hedging coverage to vary fixim the established hedge targets. 
These events can cause fluctuations in PHfs earnings from period to period. Due to the high 
heat rate ofthe Pepco Energy Services generation facilities, Pepco Energy Services generaUy 
does not enter into wholesale contracts to lock in the forward value of its plants. To the extent 
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that PHI's Competitive Energy businesses have unhedged positions or their hedguig procedures 
do not work as planned, fluctuatir^ commodity prices coitid result in significant losses. 
Conversely, by engaging in hedging activities, PHI may not realize gains that otherwise could 
result firom fluctuating commodity prices. 

Acts of terrorism could adversely affect PHI's businesses. 

The threat of, or actual acts of, terrorism may affect the operations of PHI and its subsidiaries 
in unpredictable ways and may cause changes in the insurance markets, force PHI and its 
subsidimies to increase security measures and cause dismptions of fliel suppUes and maikets. If 
any of PHI's infi^stmcture facUities, such as its electric generation, fiiel storage, transmission or 
distribution facilities, were to be a direct target, or an indirect casualty, of an act of teirorism, its 
operations could be adversely affected. Instability in the financial markets as a result of 
terrorism also could affect the ability of PHI and its subsidiaries to raise needed capital. 

The insurance coverage of PHI and its subsidiaries may not be sufficient to cover all 
casualty losses that they might incur. 

PHI and its subsidiaries currentiy have msurance coverage for tiieir facilities and operations 
in amounts and with deductibles that they consider appropriate. However, there is no assurance 
that such insurance coverage will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms. 
In addition, some risks, such as weatiier related casualties, may not be insurable. In the case of 
loss or damage to property, plant or equipment, there is no assurance that the insurance proceeds, 
if any, received will be sufficient to cover the entire cost of replacement or repair. 

PHI and its subsidiaries may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generally result in decreased demand for power, 
particularly by industrial and large commercial customers. As a consequence, recessions or 
other downturns in the economy may result in decreased revenues and cash flows for PHI's 
Power DeUvery and Competitive Energy businesses. 

The IRS challenge to cross-border energy sale and lease-back transactions entered into by 
a PHI subsidiary could result in loss of prior and future tax benefits. 

PCI maintains a portfoUo of cross-border energy sale-leaseback transactions, which as of 
December 31,2005, had a book value of approximately $ 1.3 bUUon and fiijm which PHI 
currentiy derives approximately $55 nullion per year in tax benefits in the form of interest and 
depreciation deductions. All of PCPs cross-border energy leases are with tax mdifferent parties 
and were entered mto prior to 2004. On Febmary 11,2005, the Treasury Department and IRS 
issued a notice informing taxpayers that the IRS intends to challenge the tax benefits claimed by 
taxpayers with respect to certam of these transactions. In addition, on June 29, 2005, the IRS 
pubUshed a CoortUnated Issue Paper concerning the resolution of audit issues related to such 
transactions. 

PCI's leases have been under examination by tiie IRS as part of tiie normal PHI tax audit. On 
May 4,2005, the IRS issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment to PHI tiiat chaUenges the tax 
benefits realized from interest and depreciation deductions claimed by PHI with respect to these 
leases for the tax years 2001 and 2002. The tax benefits claimed by PHI with respect to tiiese 
leases from 2001 through December 31,2005 were approximately $230 miUion. The ultimate 
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outcome ofthis issue is uncertain; however, if the IRS prevaUs, PHI would be subject to 
additional taxes, along with interest and possibly penalties on the additional taxes, which could 
have a material adverse effect on PHI's results of operations and cash flows. 

In addition, a disallowance, rather than a deferral, of tax benefits to be realized by PHI fixmi 
these leases will require PHI to adjust the book value of its leases and record a charge to 
earnings equal to the repricing impact ofthe disallowed deductions. Such a change would likely 
have a material adverse effect on PHI's results of operations for the period in which the charge is 
recorded. 

See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Regulatory and Other Matters" for additional information. 

Pending tax legislation could result In a loss of future tax benefits from cross-border 
energy sale and lease-back transactions entered into by a PHI subsidiary. 

On November 18,2005, tiie U.S. Senate passed The Tax ReUef Act of 2005 (S.2020) which 
would apply passive loss limitation rules to leases with foreign tax indifferent parties effective 
for taxable years begirming after December 31,2005, even if the leases were entered into on or 
prior to March 12,2004. On December 8, 2005, the U.S. House of Representatives passed the 
Tax Relief Extension Reconciliation Act of 2005 (H.R. 4297), which does not contam any 
provision which would modify the current treatment of leases with tax mdifferent parties. 
Enactment into law ofa bill that is similar to S.2020 in its current form coitid result in a material 
delay ofthe mcome tax benefits that PCI would receive in connection with its cross-border 
energy leases and thereby adversely affect PHI's cash flow. The U.S. House of Representatives 
and the U.S. Senate are expected to hold a conference in the near future to reconcile the 
differences in the two bills to determine the final legislation. 

In July 2005, the FASB released a Proposed Staff Position paper that would amend SFAS 
No. 13 and require a lease to be repriced and the book value adjusted when there is a change or 
probable change in the timing of tax benefits. Adoption ofthis Proposed Staff Position Paper 
and enactment of a bill that is similar to S.2020 could result in a material adverse effect on PHI's 
results of operations and cash flows. 

See "Regulatory and Other Matters" for additional infonnation. 

IRS Revenue RuUng 2005-53 on Mixed Service Costs could require PHI to incur additional 
tax and interest payments in connection with the IRS audit of tiiis issue for the tax years 
2001 through 2004 (IRS Revenue Ruling 2005-53). 

During 2001, Pepco, DPL, and ACE changed their methods of accounting with respect to 
capitalizable constmction costs for income tax purposes, which aUow the companies to 
accelerate the deduction of certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. 
Through December 31, 2005, these accelerated deductions have generated incremental tax cash 
flow beneflts of approximately $205 million (consisting of $94 million for Pepco, $62 million 
for DPL, and $49 million for ACE) for the companies, primarily attributable to then- 2001 tax 
returns. On August 2,2005, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2005-53 (the Revenue RuUng) that 
will limit the abUity ofthe comparues to utilize this method of accounting for income tax 
purposes on their tax retums for 2004 and prior years. PHI intends to contest any IRS 
adjustment to Us prior year income tax retums based on the Revenue Ruling. However, if the 
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IRS is successfiti m applymg this Revenue Ruling, Pepco, DPL, and ACE would be reqmred to 
capitalize and depreciate a portion ofthe constmction costs previously deducted and repay the 
associated income tax benefits, along with interest thereon. During 2005, PHI recorded a $10.9 
nullion increase in income tax expense, consisting of $6.0 miUion for Pepco, $2.9 mUUon for 
DPL, and $2.0 miUion for ACE, to account for the accmed interest that would be paid on the 
portion of tax benefits that PHI estimates would be deferred to fiiture years if the constmction 
costs previously deducted are required to be capitalized and depreciated. 

On the same day as the Revenue Ruling was issued, the Treasury Department released 
regulations that, if adopted in their current form, would require Pepco, DPL, and ACE to change 
their method of accounting with respect to capitalizable constmction costs for income tax 
purposes for all future tax periods beginning in 2005. Under these regulations, Pepco, DPL, and 
ACE will have to capitalize and depreciate a portion ofthe constmction costs that they have 
previously deducted, and include the impact ofthis adjustment in taxable income over a two 
year period beginning with tax year 2005. PHI is working with the industry to identify an 
altemative method of accounting for capitalizable construction costs acceptable to the IRS to 
replace the method disallowed by the proposed regulations. 

In Febmary 2006, PHI paid approximately $121 million of taxes to cover the amount of taxes 
management estimates will be payable once a new final method of tax accounting is adopted on 
its 2005 tax return, due to the proposed regulations. Although the increase in taxable income 
will be spread over the 2005 and 2006 tax retum periods, the cash payments would have aU 
occurred in 2006 with the filing ofthe 2005 tax retum and the ongoing 2006 estimated tax 
payments. This $121 mUUon tax payment was accelerated to eliminate the need to accme 
additional Federal interest expense for the potential IRS adjustment related to the previous tax 
accounting method PHI used during the 2001-2004 tax years. 

PHI beUeves that the $ 121 mUUon tax payment is a reasonable estimate, based on current 
infonnation, ofthe additional taxes that will be due once a new method of tax accounting is 
adopted. For the 2001 through 2004 period currentiy under audit by the IRS, there is a risk that 
the IRS could successfuUy chaUenge the tax accounting method utiUzed m 2001 through 2004, 
and assert additional taxes above the $121 mUUon payment. If the IRS were to be successful in 
this contention, PHI would be responsible for the additional taxes above the $121 miUion 
amount, as well as interest on the additional taxes. 

PHI and its subsidiaries are dependent on their ability to successfully access capital 
markets. An inability to access capital may adversely affect their business. 

PHI and its subsidiaries rely on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term 
capital markets as a source of liquidity and to satisfy their capital requirements not satisfied by 
the cash flow fix)m their operations. Capital market dismptions, or a downgrade in credit ratings 
of PHI or its subsidiaries, could increase the cost of borrowmg or could adversely affect their 
ability to access one or more financial markets. In addition, a reduction in PHI's credit ratings 
could require PHI or its subsidiaries to post additional collateral in connection with some of its 
wholesale marketing and financmg activities. Dismptions to the capital markets could include, 
but are not Umited to: 

• recession or an economic slowdown; 

• the bankmptcy of one or more energy comparues; 
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• sigruficant increases m the prices for oU or other fuel; 

• a terrorist attack or threatened attacks; or 

• a significant transinission failure. 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 said the SEC mles 
thereunder, PHI's management is responsible for establishing and maintainmg intemal control 
over financial reporting and is required to assess annually the effectiveness of these controls. 
The inability to certify the effectiveness of these controls due to the identification of one or more 
material weaknesses in these controls also could increase the financing costs of PHI and its 
subsidiaries or could adversely affect their ability to access one or more financial markets. 

PHI's future defined benefit plan funding obligations are affected by its assumptions 
regarding the valuation of its benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets; actual 
experience which varies from the assumptions could result in an obligation of PHI to make 
significant unplanned cash contributions to the plan. 

PHI foUows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," in 
accounting for pension benefits under tiie Rethement Plan, a non-contributory defined benefit 
plan. In accordance with these accounting standards, PHI makes assumptions regarding the 
valuation of benefit obUgations and the performance of plan assets. Changes in assumptions, 
such as the use ofa different discount rate or expected retum on plan assets, affect the 
calculation of projected benefit obligations, accumulated benefit obligation (ABO), reported 
pension Uability on PHI's balance sheet, and reported annual net periodic pension benefit cost on 
PHI's statement of earnings. 

Fiuthermore, if actual pension plan experience is different from that which is expected, the 
ABO could be greater than the fair value of pension plan assets. If this were to occur, PHI could 
be reqiured to recognize an additional minimum UabUity as prescribed by SFAS No. 87. The 
liabiUty would be recorded as a reduction to common equity through a charge to Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI), and would not affect net income for the year. The charge to OCI 
would be restored through common equity Ui future periods when the fair value of plan assets 
exceeded the accumulated benefit obligation. PHI's funding policy is to make cash contributions 
to the pension plan sufficient for plan assets to exceed the ABO, and avoid the recognition of an 
additional minimum UabUity. 

Use of altemative assumptions could also impact the expected future cash funding 
requirements for the pension plan if PHI's defined benefit plan did not meet the minimum 
fimding requirements of ERISA. 

PHI's cash flow, abUity to pay dividends and ability to satisfy debt obligations depend on 
the performance of its operating subsidiaries. PHI's unsecured obUgations are effectively 
subordinated to the liabilities and the outstanding preferred stock of its subsidiaries. 

PHI is a holding company that conducts its operations entuely through its subsidiaries, and 
aU of PHI's consoUdated operating assets are held by its subsidiaries. Accorduigly, PHI's cash 
flow, its abUity to satisfy its obligations to creditors and its abUity to pay dividends on its 
common stock are dependent upon the earnings of the subsidiaries and the distribution of such 
earnings to PHI in the form of dividends. The subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities 
and have no obligation to pay any amounts due on any debt or equity securities issued by PHI or 
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to make any funds available for such payment. Because the claims ofthe creditors and preferred 
stockholders of PHI's subsidiaries are superior to PHPs entitlement to dividends, the imsecured 
debt and obligations of PHI are effectively subordinated to all existing and future UabiUties of its 
subsidiaries and to the rights ofthe holders of preferred stock to receive dividend payments. 

Energy companies are subject to adverse publicity, which may render PHI and its 
subsidiaries vulnerable to negative regulatory and litigation outcomes. 

The energy sector has been among the sectors ofthe economy that have been the subject of 
highly publicized allegations of misconduct in recent years. In addition, many utility con^anies 
have been pubUcly criticized for their performance during recent natural disasters and weather 
related incidents. Adverse pubUcity of this nature may render legislatures, regulatory 
authorities, and other government officials less likely to view energy companies such as PHI and 
its subsidiaries in a favorable light, and may cause PHI and its subsidiaries to be susceptible to 
adverse outcomes with respect to decisions by such bodies. 

Provisions ofthe Delaware General Corporation Law and PHI's organizational documents 
may discourage an acquisition of PHI. 

The Delaware General Corporation Law and PHI's organizational documents both contain 
provisions that could unpede tiie removal of PHI's directors and discourage a third party from 
making a proposal to acquire PHI. As a Delaware corporation, PHI is subject to the business 
combination law set forth in Section 203 ofthe Delaware General Corporation Law, which could 
have the effect of delaying, discouraging or preventing an acquisition of PHI. PHI has a 
staggered board of directors that is divided into three classes of equal size, with one class elected 
each year for a term of three years. At the 2005 Annual Meeting, the shareholders approved an 
amendment to PHI's Certificate of Incorporation that will eliminate the staggered board over a 
two-year period. As a resiUt, beginning with the 2007 Annual Meeting, all ofthe directors will 
be elected for one-year terms. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Some ofthe statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act and are subject to 
the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These 
statements include declarations regarding Pepco Holdings' Uitents, beliefs and current 
expectations. In some cases, you can identify forward-lookuig statements by terminology such 
as "may," "wUl," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "beUeves," "estimates," "predicts," 
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. Any 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results could 
differ materially fix)m those indicated by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 
statements involve estimates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that may cause PHI's actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be 
materially different fix)m any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements 
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified in theur entirety by reference 
to the following unportant factors, which are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties, are 
beyond Pepco Holdmgs' control and may cause actual results to differ materially fiom those 
contained in forward-looking statements: 
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PrevaiUng governmental policies and regulatory actions affecting the enei^ industry, 
including with respect to allowed rates of retum, industry and rate stmcture, acquisition 
and disposal of assets and facilities, operation and constmction of plant facilities, 
recovery of purchased power expenses, and present or prospective wholesale and retail 
competition; 

Changes in and compUance with enviromnental and safety laws and policies; 

Weather conditions; 

Population growth rates and demographic patterns; 

Competition for retail and wholesale customers; 

General economic conditions, Uicluding potential negative impacts resulting from an 
economic dovratum; 

Growth m demand, sales and edacity to fulfiU demand; 

Changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation; 

Potential changes Ui accountmg standards or practices; 

Changes m project costs; 

Unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

The abiUty to obtain funding in the capital markets on favorable terms; 

Restrictions Ui^osed by Federal and/or state regulatory commissions; 

Legal and admirustrative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settiements that 
mfluence PHI's business and profitability; 

Pace of entry into new markets; 

Volatility in market demand and prices for energy, capacity and fuel; 

Interest rate fluctuations and credit market concerns; and 

Effects of geopolitical events, including the threat of domestic terrorism. 

Any forward-looking statements speak oiUy as to the date ofthis Annual Report and Pepco 
Holdings undertakes no obhgation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or 
circumstances after the date on which such statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of 
unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for Pepco 
Holdings to predict all of such factors, nor can Pepco Holdings assess the impact of any such 
factor on its business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause 
results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. 

The foregoing review of factors should not be constmed as exhaustive. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCL^ CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

POTOMAC ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY 

RESTATEMENT 

Pepco restated its previously reported financial statements as of December 31,2004 and for 
the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, the quarterly finmicial uiformation for the first 
three quarters in 2005, and all quarterly periods in 2004, to correct the accounting for certain 
defened compensation arrangements. The restatement includes the correction of other errors for 
the same periods, primarily relating to unbilled revenue, taxes, and various accmal accounts, 
which were considered by management to be immaterial. These other errors would not 
themselves have required a restatement absent the restatement to conect the accounting for 
deferred compensation anangements. This restatement was required solely because the 
cumulative impact ofthe conection, if recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, would have been 
material to that period's reported net income. See Note 13 "Restatement" for further discussion. 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

Potomac Electric Power Conqiany (Pepco) is engaged in the transmission and distribution of 
electricity in Washington, D.C. and major portions of Montgomery County and Prince George's 
County in suburban Maryland. Pepco provides Default Electricity Supply, which is the supply 
of electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its territories who do not elect to purchase 
electricity fix)m a competitive supplier, in both the District of Columbia and Maryland. Default 
Electricity Supply is knovm as Standard Offer Service (SOS) in both the District of Columbia 
and Maryland. Pepco's service territory covers approximately 640 square miles and has a 
population of approximately 2 million. As of December 31,2005, approximately 57% of 
deUvered electricity sales were to Maryland customers and approximately 43% were to 
Washington, D.C. customers. 

Pepco is a whoUy owned subsidiary of Pepco Holdings, Inc. (PHI or Pepco Holdings). 
Because PHI is a public utility holding company subject to the Public Utility Holding Company 
Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005), the relationship between PHI and Pepco and certam activities of 
Pepco are subject to the regulatory oversight of FERC under PUHCA 2005. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The accompanying results of operations discussion is for the year ended December 31, 
2005 compared to ihe year ended December 31,2004, Other than this disclosure, information 
under this item has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction I(2)(a) to the Form 
10-K, All amounts in the tables (except sales and customers) are in millions. 

Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 
Default Supply Revenue 
Other Electric Revenue 

Total Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 880.6 

929.8 
34.9 

$ 1,845.3 

2004 
$ 845.4 

924,5 
36.0 

$ 1,805,9 

Change 
$ 35.2 

5.3 
(1.1) 

$ 39.4 

The table above shows the amount of Operating Revenue earned that is subject to price 
regulation (Regulated T&D (Transmission and Distribution) Electric Revenue and Default 
Supply Revenue) and that which is not subject to price regulation (Other Electric Revenue). 
Regulated T&D Electric Revenue consists ofthe revenue Pepco receives for delivery of 
electricity to its customers for which service Pepco is paid regulated rates. Default Supply 
Revenue is the revenue received from Default Electricity Supply. The costs related to the 
supply of electricity are included in Fuel and Purchased Energy expense. Other Electric 
Revenue includes work and services performed on behalf of customers including other utihties, 
which is not subject to price regulation. Work and services includes mutual assistance to other 
utihties, highway relocation, rents, late payments, and collection fees. 

Regulated T&D Electric 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (hicludes PJM) 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

2005 

$ 253.4 
513.9 

-

113.3 
$ 880.6 

2004 

$ 248.8 
480.9 

-

115.7 
$ 845.4 

Change 

$ 4.6 
33.0 

-

(2.4) 
$ 35.2 

Regulated T&D Electric Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Sales 

2005 

8,024 
19,407 

163 
27,594 

2004 

8,135 
18,601 

166 
26,902 

Change 

(111) 
806 

(3) 
692 
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Regulated T&D Electric Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Customers 

2005 

674 
73 

747 

2004 

665 
72 

737 

Change 

9 
1 

10 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue increased by $35.2 million primarily due to the following: 
(i) $21.7 milUon increase in tax pass-throughs, offset in Otiier Taxes, (ii) $10.2 miUion due to 
customer growth, the result ofa 1.4% customer hicrease Ui 2005, (iii) $7.1 million increase in 
estimated unbiUed revenue recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, primarily reflecting a 
modification m the estimation process (includes $3.3 million in tax pass-throughs), and (iv) $6.8 
million increase due to weather, the result of a 10% increase in Cooling Degree Days in 2005, 
offset by $10.6 million due to other sales and rate variances. 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Supply Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (Includes PJM) 

Total Default Supply Revenue 

2005 

$ 470.1 
455.0 

-

4.7 
$ 929.8 

2004 

$ 377.6 
541.9 

-

5.0 
$ 924,5 

Change 

$ 92.5 
(86,9) 

-

(.3) 
$ 5.3 

Default Electricity Supply Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other 

Total DefauU Electricity Supply Sales 

2005 

7,446 
7,170 

60 
14,676 

2004 

7,191 
11,497 

131 
18,819 

Change 

255 
(4,327) 

(71) 
(4,143) 

Default Electricity Supply Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier _ 

Total Default Electricity Supply Customers 

2005 

641 
61 

702 

2004 

608 
61 

669 

Change 

33 

33 
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Default Supply Revenue mcreased by $5.3 million primarily due to: (i) $195.8 milUon higher 
retail energy rates, the result of market based SOS beginning in Maryland Ui July 2004 and in 
the District of Columbia in February 2005 (partially offset in Fuel and Purchased Energy 
expense), (ii) $23.9 million due to customer growth, (iii) $9.1 mUUon increase due to weather, 
and (iv) $5.5 million mcrease due to other sales and rate variances, partially offset by (v) $227.8 
million decrease resulting from higher commercial customer migration, and (vi) $1.2 milUon 
decrease in estimated unbilled revenue recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, primarily 
reflecting modifications in the estimation process. Default Supply Revenue is partially offset in 
Fuel and Purchased Power expense. 

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, Pepco's Maryland customers served by an 
alternate supplier represented 38% of Pepco's total Maryland sales, and Pepco's District of 
Columbia customers served by an altemate supplier represented 58% of Pepco's total District of 
Columbia sales. For tiie twelve months ended December 31, 2004, Pepco's Maryland customers 
served by an altemate supplier represented 29% of Pepco's total Maryland sales, and Pepco's 
District of Columbia customers served by an altemate supplier represented 32% of Pepco's total 
District of Columbia sales. 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy 

Fuel and Purchased Energy increased by $15.5 milUon to $913,7 milUon in 2005, from 
$898.2 miUion in 2004. The increase is primarily due to: (i) $209.3 milUon increase in higher 
average energy costs, the result of new SOS supply contracts in 2005 and (ii) $33.1 mUUon 
increase due to customer growth and (iii) $3.9 miUion increase in other sales and rate variances, 
partially offset by (iv) $230.8 million decrease due to higher commercial customer migration. 
This expense is primarily offset in Default Supply Revenue, 

Other Operation and Maintenance 

Other Operation and Maintenance expenses increased by $7.1 miUion to $280.3 million in 
2005, fix>m $273.2 million in 2004. The hicrease was primarily due to tiie followmg: (i) $8.9 
nullion increase in employee related costs, (ii) $3.9 mUUon due to the write-off of software and 
(iii) $2.0 mUUon in emergency restoration and maintenance expenses, partially offset by (iv) 
$5.5 milUon decrease in PJM administrative expenses due to market based SOS in 2005 and (v) 
$4.9 million reduction in the uncollectible account reserve to reflect the amoimt expected to be 
coUected on Pepco's Pre-Petition Clauns with Mhant. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and Amortization expenses decreased by $4.5 mUUon to $161.8 milUon in 2005, 
from $166.3 miUion in 2004. The decrease is primarily due to $5.7 miUion lower amortization 
of non-regulated assets that have been fully amortized. 

Other Taxes 

Other Taxes increased by $27.1 mUlion to $276.1 milUon m 2005, from $249.0 million m 
2004. The increase was primarily due to higher pass-throughs, mamly as the result of a county 
surcharge rate mcrease (partially offset in Regulated T&D Electric Revenue), 
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Gain on Settlement of Claims with Mirant 

The Gain on Settiement of Clauns with Mu-ant of $70.5 miUion represents a settiement (net 
of customer sharing) with Mirant in tiie fourth quarter of 2005 related to the TPA between Pepco 
and Mirant ($70 miUion gain) and a Pepco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate 
($.5 million gain). 

Gain on Sales of Assets 

Gain on Sales of Assets increased $65,5 million to $72.4 million in 2005, fixjm $6.9 mUUon in 
2004. This increase is primarily due to a $68.1 million gain from the sale of non-utility land 
located at Buzzard Point in the third quarter of 2005. 

Other Income (Expenses) 

Other Expenses decreased by $10.2 million to a net expense of $63.7 million in 2005, from a 
net expense of $73.9 miUion m 2004. This decrease was primarily due to: (i) $3.9 milUon 
increase in interest and dividend income, (ii) $2.8 million increase in other income due to higher 
gross up percentages appUed to contributions in aid of constmction (offset in Income Tax 
expense) and (ui) $2.2 million gain from the sale of stock in 2005. 

Income Tax Expense 

Pepco's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,2005 was 44% as compared to the 
federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net 
of federal benefit), the flow-through of certam book tax depreciation differences, and changes in 
estimates related to tax UabUities of prior tax years subject to audit (which, m addition to the 
mixed service cost issued under IRS Ruling 2005-53, were the reasons for the higher effective 
tax rate as compared to 2004), partially offset by the flow-through of tax credits. 

Pepco's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,2004 was 37% as compared to the 
federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net 
of federal benefit) and the flow-through of certain book tax depreciation differences, partiaUy 
offset by the flow-through of tax credits and changes in esthnates related to tax liabilities of 
prior tax years subject to audit (which was the primary reason for the lower effective tax rate as 
compared to 2003). 

RISK FACTORS 

The busuiess of Pepco is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, mcluding the events or 
conditions identified below. The occunence of one or more of these events or conditions could 
have an adverse effect on the business of Pepco, mcluding, depending on the cUcumstances, 
their results of operations and financial condition. 
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Pepco is a pubtic utUity that is subject to substantial governmental regulation. If Pepco 
receives unfavorable regulatory treatment, Pepco's business could be negatively affected. 

Pepco's utility business is subject to regulation by various federal, state and local regulatory 
agencies that significantly affects its operations. Pepco's operations are regulated in Maryland 
by the MPSC and in Washington, D.C. by the DCPSC with respect to, among other things, the 
rates it can charge retail customers for the supply and distribution of electiicity. In addition, the 
rates that Pepco can charge for electricity transmission are regulated by FERC. Pepco cannot 
change supply, distribution or transinission rates without approval by tiie applicable regulatory 
authority. While the approved distribution and transmission rates are intended to permit Pepco 
to recover its costs ofservice and earn a reasonable rate of retum, Pepco's profitability is 
affected by the rates it is able to charge. In addition, if the costs mcurred by Pepco in operatmg 
its transmission and distribution facUities exceed the allowed amounts for costs included in the 
approved rates, Pepco's financial results wiU be adversely affected. 

Pepco also is required to have numerous permits, approvals and certificates from 
governmental agencies that regulate its busuiess. Pepco believes that it has obtamed or sought 
renewal ofthe material perrmts, approvals and certificates necessary for its existing operations 
and that its business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, Pepco is unable 
to predict the iirqjact of fiiture regulatory activities of any of these agencies on its business. 
Changes in or reinterpretations of existing laws or regulations, or the imposition of new laws or 
regulations, may require Pepco to mcur additional expenses or to change the way it conducts its 
operations. 

Pepco's business could be adversely affected by the Mirant bankruptcy. 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantially all of its electricity generation assets to Mirant As part of 
the sale, Pepco entered into several ongoing contractual arratigements with Mirant and certam of 
its subsidiaries. On July 14,2003, Mirant and most of its subsidiaries filed a voluntary petition 
for reorganization under Chapter 11 ofthe U.S. Bankmptcy Code in the U.S. Banknqjtcy Court 
for the Northem District of Texas. Depending on the outcome ofthe proceedings related to 
bankmptcy, the Mirant bankmptcy could adversely affect Pepco's busmess. See "Relationship 
with Mirant Corporation" for additional mformation. 

Pepco may be required to make additional divestiture proceeds gain-sharing payments to 
customers in the District of Columbia and Maryland. 

Pepco currentiy is involved in regulatory proceedings in Maryland and the District of 
Columbia related to the sharing ofthe net proceeds fix)m the sale of its generation-related assets. 
The principal issue in the proceedings is whether Pepco should be requUed to share with 
customers the excess deferred income taxes and accumulated deferred investment tax credits 
associated with the sold assets and, if so, whether such sharing would violate the normalization 
provisions ofthe Intemal Revenue Code and its implementing regulations. Depending on the 
outcome ofthe proceeduigs, Pepco could be required to make additional gain-sharing payments 
to customers and payments to the IRS in the amoimt ofthe associated accumulated deferred 
investment tax credits, and Pepco might be unable to use accelerated depreciation on District of 
Columbia and Maryland aUocated or assigned property. See Item 7 "Regulatory and Other 
Matters" for additional information. 
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The operating results of Pepco fluctuate on a seasonal basis and can be adversely affected 
by changes in weather. 

Pepco's electric utiUty business is seasonal and weather patterns can have a material impact 
on its operating performance. Demand for electricity is generaUy greater Ui the summer months 
associated with cooUng and in the winter months associated with heating as compared to other 
times ofthe year. Accordingly, Pepco historically has generated less revenues and income when 
weather conditions are milder in the winter and cooler in the summer. 

Pepco's faciUties may not operate as planned or may require significant maintenance 
expenditures, which could decrease its revenues or increase its expenses. 

Operation of transmission and distribution faciUties uivolves many risks, mcluding the 
breakdown or failure of equipment, accidents, labor disputes and performance below expected 
levels. Older facUities and equipment, even if maintained m accordance with sound engineering 
practices, may require significant capital expenditures for additions or upgrades to keep them 
operating at peak efficiency, to comply with changing environmental requirements, or to provide 
reliable operations. Natural disasters and weather-related incidents, including tornadoes, 
hurricanes and snow and ice storms, also can dismpt transmission and distribution delivery 
systems. Operation of transmission and distribution facilities below expected capacity levels 
can reduce revenues and result in the incurrence of additional expenses that may not be 
recoverable fix)m customers or through insurance. Furthermore, if Pepco is unable to perfoim its 
contractual obligations for any of these reasons, it may incur penalties or damages. 

Pepco's transmission facilities are interconnected with the facilities of other transmission 
facUity owners whose actions could have a negative impact on Pepco's operations. 

The transmission faciUties of Pepco are directiy interconnected with the transinission 
facilities of contiguous utihties and as such are part of an interstate power transmission grid. 
FERC has designated a number of regional transmission operators to coordhiate the operation of 
portions ofthe interstate transmission grid. Pepco is a member of PJM, which is the regional 
transmission operator that coordinates the movement of electricity in all or parts of Delaware, 
Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Vfrgmia, West Virginia and the District of Columbia, Pepco operates 
its transmission faciUties under the direction and control of PJM. PJM and the other regional 
transmission operators have established sophisticated systems that are designed to ensure the 
reliability ofthe operation of transmission facilities and prevent the operations of one utility 
from having an adverse impact on the operations ofthe other utUities. However, the systems put 
in place by PJM and the other regional transmission operators may not always be adequate to 
prevent problems at other utihties fix>m causuig service mtermptions in the transmission 
facilities of Pepco. If Pepco were to suffer such a service intermption, it could have a negative 
impact on its business. 

The cost of compliance with environmental laws is significant and new environmental laws 
may increase Pepco's expenses. 

Pepco's operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, 
rules and regulations relating to air quaUty, water quality, spill prevention waste management, 
natural resources, site remediation, and health and safety. These laws and regulations require 
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Pepco to make capital expenditures and to incm- other expenditures to, among other things, 
conduct site remediation and perform environmental monitoring. Pepco also may be required to 
pay significant remediation costs with respect to third party sites. If Pepco faUs to comply with 
applicable environmental laws and regulations, even if caused by factors beyond its control, such 
failure could result in the assessment of civil or criminal penalties and UabUities and the need to 
expend significant sums to come into compliance. 

In addition, Pepco incurs costs to obtain and comply with a variety of envfrottmental permits, 
Ucenses, inspections and other approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required 
environmental regulatory approval, or if Pepco fails to obtain, maintam or comply with any such 
approval, operations at affected faciUties could be halted or subjected to additional costs. 

New environmental laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existing laws and 
regulations, could urqjose more stringent limitations on Pepco's operations or require it to incur 
significant additional costs. Pepco's current compliance strategy may not successfully address 
the relevant standards and interpretations ofthe future. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect Pepco's business. 

Increased conservation efforts and advances in technology could reduce demand for 
electricity supply and distribution, which could adversely affect Pepco's busmess. In addition, 
changes in technology also could alter the channels through which retaU electric customers buy 
electricity, which could adversely affect Pepco's business. 

Acts of terrorism could adversely affect Pepco's business. 

The threat of, or actual acts of, terrorism may affect Pepco's operations m unpredictable ways 
and may cause changes in the insurance markets, force Pepco to increase security measures and 
cause dismptions of power markets. If any of Pepco's transmission or distribution facilities were 
to be a direct target, or an indirect casualty, of an act of terrorism, its operations could be 
adversely affected. InstabUity m the financial markets as a result of terrorism also could affect 
the ability of Pqjco to raise needed capital. 

Pepco's insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover all casualty losses that it might 
incur. 

Pepco cunently has insurance coverage for its facilities and operations in amounts and with 
deductibles that it considers appropriate. However, there is no assurance that such insurance 
coverage wUl be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms. In addition, some 
risks, such as weather related casualties, may not be insurable. In the case of loss or damage to 
property, plant or equipment, there is no assurance that the insurance proceeds, if any, received 
will be sufficient to cover the entire cost of replacement or repair. 

Pepco may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generally result in decreased demand for power, 
particularly by industrial and large commercial customers. As a consequence, recessions or 
other downturns in the economy may result in decreased revenues and cash flows for Pepco. 
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pepco is dependent on its ability to successfully access capital markets. An inabUity to 
access capital may adversely affect its business. 

Pepco reUes on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term capital m^kets as a 
source of liquidity and to satisfy its capital requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from its 
operations. Capital market dismptions, or a downgrade in Pepco's credit ratings, could increase 
the cost of borrowmg or could adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial 
markets. Dismptions to the capital markets could include, but are not limited to: 

• recession or an economic slowdown; 
• the bankmptcy of one or more energy companies; 
• significant increases in the prices for oil or other fuel; 
• a terrorist attack or threatened attacks; or 
• a significant transmission failure. 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the SEC rules 
thereunder, Pepco's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
control over financial reporting and is required to assess annually the effectiveness of these 
controls. The inability to certify the effectiveness of these controls due to the identification of 
one or more material weaknesses in these controls also could increase the financing costs of 
PHI and its subsidiaries or could adversely affect their ability to access one or more financial 
markets. 

Pepco's future defined benefit plan funding obligations are affected by its assumptions 
regarding the valuation of its benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets; 
victual experience which varies from the assumptions could result in an obligation of 
pepco to make significant unplanned cash contributions to the plan. 

Pepco follows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accountmg for Pensions" in 
accounting for pension benefits under the Retirement Plan, a non-contributory defined benefit 
plan. In accordance with these accounting standards, Pepco makes assumptions regarding the 
valuation of benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets. Changes in assumptions 
such as the use ofa different discount rate or expected retum on plan assets, affect the 
calculation of projected benefit obUgations, accumulated benefit obligations (ABO), reported 
pension Uability on Pepco's balance sheet, and reported annual net periodic pension benefit cost 
on Pepco's statement of earnings. 

Furthermore, if actual pension plan experience is different from that which is expected, the 
ABO could be greater than the fair value of pension plan assets. If this were to occur, Pepco 
could be required to recogiuze ^i additional minimum liability as prescribed by SFAS No. 87. 
The liabiUty would be recorded as a reduction to common equity through a charge to Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI), and would not affect net income for the year. The charge to 
OCI would be restored through common equity in fiiture periods when the fair value of plan 
assets exceeded the ABO. Pepco's fimding poUcy is to make cash contributions to the pension 
plan sufficient for plan assets to exceed the ABO, and avoid the recognition of an additional 
ininimxmi liability. 
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Use of altemative assumptions could also impact the expected fiiture cash funding 
requirements for the pension plan if Pepco's defined benefit plan did not meet the minimum 
funding requirements of ERISA. 

Energy companies are subject to adverse publicity, which may render Pepco vulnerable to 
negative regulatory and Utigation outcomes. 

The energy sector has been among the sectors ofthe economy that have been the subject of 
highly publicized aUegations of misconduct in recent years. In addition, many utility companies 
have been publicly criticized for their performance during recent natural disasters and weather 
related incidents. Adverse publicity ofthis nature may render legislatures, regulatory 
authorities, and other government officials less likely to view energy companies such as Pepco 
in a favorable light and may cause Pepco to be susceptible to adverse outcomes with respect to 
decisions by such bodies. 

Because Pepco is a wholly owned subsidiary of PHI, PHI can exercise substantial control 
over its dividend policy and business and operations. 

All ofthe members of Pepco's board of directors, as well as many of Pepco's executive 
officers, are officers of PHI. Among other decisions, Pepco's board is responsible for decisions 
regarding payment of dividends, financing and capital raising activities, and acquisition and 
disposition of assets. Within the limitations of applicable law, and subject to the financial 
covenants under Pepco's outstanding debt instruments, Pepco's board of directors wiU base its 
decisions concerning the amount and timing of dividends, and other business decisions, on 
Pepco's earnings, cash flow and capital stmcture, but may also take into account the business 
plans and financial reqiurements of PHI and its other subsidiaries. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Some ofthe statements contahied ui this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, and are subject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995. These statements include declarations regarding Pepco's intents, beliefs and current 
expectations. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such 
as "may," "will," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "beUeves," "estimates," "predicts," 
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. Any 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results could 
differ materially finm those indicated by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 
statements involve esthnates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that may cause Pepco's or Pepco's industry's actual results, levels of activity, perfonnance 
or achievements to be materially different from any fiiture results, levels of activity, performance 
or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-lookUig statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified in their entirety by reference 
to the foUowing important factors, which are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties, are 
beyond Pepco's control and may cause actual results to (Hffer materially fixjm those contained in 
forward-looking statements: 
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Prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions affecting the energy industry, 
including witii respect to allowed rates of return, industry and rate stmcture, acquisition 
and disposal of assets and facUities, operation and construction of plant facilities, 
recovery of purchased power expenses, and present or prospective wholesale and retail 
competition; 

Changes m and compliance with envuronmental and safety laws and policies; 

Weather conditions; 

Population growth rates and demographic patterns; 

Competition for retaU and wholesale customers; 

General economic conditions, including potential negative impacts resulting fix)m an 
economic downturn; 

Growth in demand, sales and capacity to fulfill demand; 

Changes m tax rates or policies or m rates of inflation; 

Changes in project costs; 

Unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

The ability to obtain fiinding in the capital markets on favorable terms; 

Restrictions uiposed by Federal and/or state regulatory commissions; 

Legal and admiiustrative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settlements that 
influence Pepco's business and profitability; 

Volatility in m^ket demand and prices for energy, capacity and fuel; 

Interest rate fluctuations and credit market concerns; and 

Effects of geopolitical events, including the threat of domestic terrorism. 
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Any forward-looking statements speak only as to the date ofthis Annual Report and Pepco 
undertakes no obligation to i^date any forward-looking statements to reflect events or 
circumstances after the date on which such statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of 
unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for Pepco to 
predict all of such factors, nor can Pepco assess the impact of any such factor on Pepco's 
business or the extent to which any factor, or combmation of factors, may cause resuUs to differ 
materially from those contained m any forward-looking statement. 

The foregoing review of factors should not be constmed as exhaustive. 

120 



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

121 



DPL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

RESTATEMENT 

Our parent company, Pepco Holdings, restated its previously reported consoUdated financial 
statements as of December 31, 2004 and for the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, the 
quarterly financial information for the first three quarters in 2005, and all quarterly periods in 
2004, to conect the accounting for certain defened compensation arrangements. The restatement 
includes the conection of other errors for the same periods, primarily relating to uiibUled revenue, 
taxes, and various accmal accounts, which were considered by management to be 
immaterial. These other errors would not themselves have required a restatement absent the 
restatement to correct the accounting for defened compensation arrangements. The restatement of 
Pepco Holdings consolidated financial statements was required solely because the cumulative 
impact ofthe conection, if recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, would have been material to 
that period's reported net income. The restatement to conect the accounting for the deferred 
compensation arrangements had no impact on DPL; however, DPL restated its previously 
reported financial statements as of December 31,2004 and for the years ended December 31, 
2004 and 2003, the quarterly financial information for the first three quarters in 2005, and all 
quarterly periods m 2004, to reflect the correction of other errors. The conection of these other 
enors, primarily relating to unbUled revenue, taxes, and various accmal accounts, was considered 
by management to be immaterial. See Note 13 "Restatement" for fiirther discussion. 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

Delmarva Power & Light Company (DPL) is engaged in the transinission and distribution of 
electricity in Delaware and portions of Maryland and Vkginia. DPL provides Default Electricity 
Supply, which is the supply of electricity at regulated rates to retaU customers in its territories 
who do not elect to purchase electricity fi^m a competitive supplier. Default Electricity Supply 
is also known as Default Service in Virginia, as Standard Offer Service (SOS) in Maryland and 
in Delaware on and after May 1,2006, and as Provider of Last Resort service m Delaware before 
May 1,2006. DPL's electricity distribution service territory covers approximately 6,000 square 
mUes and has a population of approximately 1.28 miUion. As of December 31,2005, 
approximately 65% of delivered electricity sales were to Delaware customers, approximately 
31 % were to Maryland customers, and approximately 4% were to Virginia customers. DPL also 
provides natural gas distribution service in northem Delaware. DPL's natural gas distribution 
service territory covers approximately 275 square miles and has a population of approximately 
523,000. 

DPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Conectiv, which is wholly owned by Pepco Holdings, 
Inc. (PHI). Because PHI is a public utiUty holding company subject to the PubUc UtUity Holding 
Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005), the relationship between PHI and DPL and certam 
activities of DPL are subject to tiie regulatory oversight of FERC under PUHCA 2005. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The accompanying results of operations discussion is for the year ended December 31, 
2005 compared to the year ended December 31,2004. Other than this disclosure, information 
under this item has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction I(2)(a) to the Form 
10-K, All amounts in the tables (except sales and customers) are in millions. 

Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 
Default Supply Revenue 
Other Electric Revenue 

Total Electric Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 382.6 

676.2 
23.5 

$ 1,082.3 

2004 
$ 369.6 

628.2 
19,6 

$ 1,017.4 

Change 
$ 13.0 

48.0 
3.9 

$ 64.9 

The table above shows the amount of Electric Operating Revenue earned that is subject to 
price regulation (Regulated T&D (Transmission and Distribution) Electric Revenue and Default 
Supply Revenue) and that which is not subject to price regulation (Other Electric Revenue). 
Regulated T&D Electric Revenue mcludes revenue DPL receives for delivery of electricity to its 
customers, for which DPL is paid regulated rates. Default Supply Revenue is the revenue 
received fiom Default Electricity Supply. The costs related to the supply of electricity are 
included in Fuel and Purchased Energy expense. Other Electric Revenue includes work and 
services performed on behalf of customers including other utihties, which is not subject to price 
regulation. Work and services includes mutual assistance to other utilities, highway relocation, 
rents, late payments, and coUection fees. 

Regulated T&D Electric 

Regulated T^D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other (Includes PJM) 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

S 

$ 

2005 

183.7 
104.4 
20.7 
73.8 

382.6 

2004 

$ 178.5 
100.5 
20.1 
70.5 

$ 369.6 

Change 

$ 5.2 
3.9 

.6 
3.3 

$ 13.0 

Regulated T&D Electric Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Oths 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Sales 

2005 

5,578 
5.410 
3,063 

50 
14,101 

2004 

5349 
5,244 
3,258 

51 
13.902 

Change 

229 
166 

(195) 
_J1I 

199 
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Regulated T&D Electric Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Customers 

2005 

449 
59 

1 
1 

510 

2004 

441 
58 

1 
1 

501 

Change 

8 
1 

9 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue increased by $13.0 million due primarily to: (i) $5.4 
miUion increase due to other sales and rate variances, (ii) $4.8 nullion due to customer growth, 
the result ofa 1.8% customer increase in 2005, and (iii) $4.0 miUion increase due to weather, 
primarily the result ofa 16,7% increase m Coolmg Degree Days in 2005, offset by (iv) $1.2 
mUlion reduction in estimated unbiUed revenue recorded in the second quarter of 2005, 
primarily reflecting higher estimated power line losses (estimates of electricity expected to be 
lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers). 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Supply Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier (hicludes PJM) 

Total Default Supply Revenue 

2005 

$ 323.8 
261.2 

88.0 
3.2 

$ 676.2 

2004 

$ 279.6 
254.0 
91.7 
2.9 

$ 628.2 

Change 

$ 44.2 
7,2 

(3.7) 
.3 

$ 48.0 

Default Electricity Supply Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Sales 

2005 

5,589 
4,822 
1,720 

51 
12,182 

2004 

5,340 
4,715 
1,906 

48 
12,009 

Change 

249 
107 

(186) 
3 

173 

Default Electricity Supply Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Customers 

2005 

449 
58 

1 
1 

509 

2004 

441 
56 

1 
1 

499 

Cliange 

8 
2 

10 
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Default Supply Revenue increased $48.0 million due primarily to the following: (i) $39.3 
mUlion higher retail energy rates, primarily resulting from new market based Maryland SOS 
effective June 2005, (u) $14.5 million increase due to customer growth, (in) $13.4 miUion 
increase due to favorable weather, offset by (iv) $9.0 miUion decrease due to customer 
migration, (v) $7.4 mUlion decrease due to otiier sales and rate variances, and (vi) $2.8 miUion 
reduction m estimated unbilled revenue primarily reflecting higher estimated power Ime losses 
recorded in the second quarter of 2005. Default Supply Revenue is partially offeet in Fuel and 
Purchased Power expense. 

For the twelve months ended December 31,2005, DPL's Delaware customers served by an 
altemate supplier represented 10% of DPL's total Delaware sales and DPL's Maryland customers 
served by an altemate supplier represented 23% of DPL's total Maryland sales. For the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2004, DPL's Delaware customers served by an altemate supplier 
represented 11% of DPL's total Delaware sales and DPL's Maryland customers served by an 
altemate supplier represented 19% of DPL's total Maryland sales. 

Other Electric Revenue 

Other Electric Revenue increased by $3.9 million to $23.5 million m 2005 from $19.6 miUion 
in 2004 primarily due to mutual assistance work related to storm damage Ui 2005 (primarily 
offset in Other Operation and Maintenance expense). 

Natural Gas Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 
Other Gas Revenue 

Total Natural Gas Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 198.7 

62.8 
$ 261.5 

2004 
$ 169.7 

58.9 
$ 228.6 

Change 
$ 29.0 

3.9 
$ 32.9 

The table above shows the amounts of Natural Gas Operating Revenue from sources that are 
subject to price regulation (Regulated Gas Revenue) and those that generally are not subject to 
price regulation (Other Gas Revenue), Regulated Gas Revenue includes the revenue DPL 
receives for on-system natural gas delivered sales and the transportation of natural gas for 
customers. Otiier Gas Revenue hicludes off-system natural gas sales and the release of excess 
system capacity. 

Regulated Gas 

Regulated Gas Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Revenue 

2005 

$ 115.0 
68.5 
10.6 
4.6 

$ 198.7 

2004 

$ 100.2 
56.7 
8.3 
4.5 

$ 169.7 

Change 

$ 14.8 
11.8 
2.3 

.1 
$ 29.0 
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Regulated Gas Sales (Bcf) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Sales 

2005 

8.4 
5.6 
1.1 
5.6 

20.7 

2004 

8.7 
5.5 
1.2 
6.2 

21.6 

Change 

(•3) 
.1 

(.1) 
(.6) 
(.9) 

Regulated Gas Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Coimnercial 
Industrial 
Transportation and Other 

Total Regulated Gas Customers 

2005 

111 
9 

120 

2004 

109 
9 

118 

Change 

2 

2 

Regulated Gas Revenue mcreased by $29.0 mUlion primarily due to a $30.6 million increase 
m die Gas Cost Rate (GCR) effective November 2004 and 2005, due to higher natural gas 
commodity costs (primarily offset in Gas Purchased expense). 

Other Gas Revenue 

Otiier Gas Revenue mcreased by $3.9 to $62.8 miUion m 2005 from $58.9 million m 2004 
primarUy due to increased capacity release revenues. 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy 

Fuel and Purchased Energy mcreased by $42.4 miUion to $698.0 milUon in 2005 from $655.6 
miUion ui 2004. The mcrease is primarily due to: (i) $33.0 million mcrease in higher average 
energy costs, the result of new Maryland SOS supply contracts in June 2005 and (ii) $10.9 
nullion increase due to customer growth and (iii) $6.6 mUlion increase in other sales and rate 
variances, partially offset by (iv) $8.1 mUUon decrease due to higher customer migration. This 
ej^ense is primarily offset in Default Supply Revenue. 

Gas Purchased 

Total Gas Purchased increased by $33.1 miUion to $196.8 miUion ui 2005 from $163,7 
million in 2004. This increase was primarily due to: (i) $30.3 million increase due to higher 
wholesale commodity costs partially offset by storage injections, (ii) $10.0 miUion increase in 
defened fuel costs, partially offset by (iii) $7.2 mUUon decrease from the settiement of financial 
hedges (entered mto as part of DPL's regulated natural gas hedge program). This expense is 
primarily offset in Regulated Gas Revenues. 
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Other Operation and Maintenance 

Other Operation and Maintenance expenses increased by $3.1 rruUion to $180.1 milUon in 
2005 from $177.0 million in 2004. This increase was primarUy due to a $3.5 mUUon increase for 
mutual assistance work related to 2005 storm damage (primarily offset in Other Electric 
Revenues). 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and Amortization expenses increased by $1.8 million to $75.7 million in 2005 
from $73.9 mUlion in 2004, primarily due to utiUty property additions. 

Gain on Sale of Assets 

Gain on Sale of Assets represents a $3.6 nullion gain on sale of land in 2005. 

Income Tax Expense 

DPL's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,2005 was 43% as compared to the 
federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net 
of federal benefit), changes in estimates related to tax Uabilities of prior tax years subject to audit 
(primarily due to the mixed service cost issue under IRS Rule 2005-53), and the flow-through of 
certain book tax depreciation differences partiaUy offset by the flow-through of deferred 
investment tax credits. 

DPL's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,2004 was 43% as compared to the 
federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net 
of federal benefit), changes in esthnates related to tax Uabilities of prior tax years subject to 
audit, and the flow-through of certain book tax depreciation differences partiaUy offset by the 
flow-through of deferred investenent tax credits, 

RISK FACTORS 

The business of DPL is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including the events or 
conditions identified below. The occurrence of one or more of these events or conditions could 
have an adverse effect on the business of DPL, including, depending on the circumstances, its 
results of operations and financial conditioiL 

DPL is a public utUity that is subject to substantial governmental regulation. If DPL 
receives unfavorable regulatory treatment, DPL*s business could be negatively affected. 

DPL's utility business is subject to regulation by various federal, state and local regulatory 
agencies that significantiy affects its operations, DPL's operations are regulated in Maryland by 
the MPSC, in Delaware by the DPSC and m Virgmia by tiie VSCC with respect to, among other 
thuigs, the rates it can charge retail customers for the simply and distribution of electricity and 
gas. In addition, the rates that DPL can charge for electricity transmission are regulated by 
FERC, DPL carmot change supply, distribution or transmission rates without approval by the 
appUcable regulatory authority. While the approved distribution and transmission rates are 
intended to permit DPL to recover its costs of service and cam a reasonable rate of return, DPL's 
profitabiUty is affected by the rates it is able to charge. In addition, if the costs inclined by DPL 
in operating its transmission and distribution faciUties exceed the aUowed amounts for costs 

127 



DPL 

included in the approved rates, DPL's financial results will be adversely affected. 

DPL also is required to have numerous permits, approvals and certificates from governmental 
agencies that regulate its business. DPL believes that it has obtauied or sought renewal ofthe 
material permits, approvals and certificates necessary for its existing operations and that its 
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, DPL is unable to predict the 
impoct of fiiture regulatory activities of any of these agencies on its business. Changes m or 
reinterpretations of existing laws or regulations, or the imposition of new laws or regulations, 
may require DPL to incur additional expenses or to change the way it conducts its operations. 

The operating results of DPL fluctuate on a seasonal basis and can be adversely affected by 
changes in weather. 

DPL's utility businesses are seasonal and weather patterns can have a material impact on its 
operating performance. Demand for electricity is generally greater in the summer months 
associated witii cooUng and demand for electricity and gas is generally greater in the winter 
months associated with heatUig as compared to other times ofthe year. Accordingly, DPL 
historicaUy has generated less revenues and income when weather conditions are milder in the 
winter and cooler in the summer. 

DPL*s faciUties may not operate as planned or may require significant maintenance 
expenditures, which could decrease its revenues or increase its expenses. 

Operation of transmission and distribution faciUties involves many risks, including the 
breakdovm or faUiure of equipment, accidents, labor disputes and performance below expected 
levels. Older facilities and equipment, even if maintained in accordance with sound engineering 
practices, may require significant capital expenditures for additions or iq)grades to keep them 
operating at peak efficiency, to comply with changing environmental requirements, or to provide 
reUable operations. Natural disasters and weather-related incidents, including tornadoes, 
hurricanes and snow and ice storms, also can dismpt transntission and distribution delivery 
systems. Operation of transmission and distribution facilities below expected capacity levels 
can reduce revenues and result m the uicunence of additional expenses that may not be 
recoverable from customers or through insurance. Furthermore, if DPL is unable to perform its 
contractual obligations for any of these reasons, it may incur penalties or damages. 

DPL's transmission faciUties are interconnected with the facilities of other transmission 
facility owners whose actions could have a negative impact on DPL's operations. 

The electricity transmission facilities of DPL are directly Uiterconnected with the 
transmission facilities of contiguous utilities and as such are part of an interstate power 
transmission grid. FERC has designated a number of regional transmission operators to 
coordinate the operation of portions ofthe interstate transmission grid. DPL is a member of 
PJM, which is the regional transinission operator that coordinates the movement of electricity in 
aU or parts of Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North 
Carolma, Ohio, Pennsylvaiua, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virgmia and the District of Columbia. 
DPL operates Us transmission faciUties under the direction and control of PJM. PJM and the 
other regional transntission operators have established sophisticated systems that are designed to 
ensure the reliability ofthe operation of transmission faciUties and prevent the operations of one 
UtUity from having an adverse impact on the operations ofthe other utihties. However, the 
systems put m place by PJM and the other regional transmission operators may not always be 
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adequate to prevent problems at other utihties from causuig service intermptions in the 
transmission faciUties of DPL. If DPL were to suffer such a service uitermption, it could have a 
negative impact on its business. 

The cost of compliance with environmental laws is significant and new environmental laws 
may increase DPL's expenses. 

DPL's operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules 
and regulations relating to air quality, water quality, spiU prevention, waste management, natural 
resources, site remediation, and health and safety. These laws and regulations require DPL to 
make capital expenditures and to incur other expenditures to, among other things, conduct site 
remediation and perform envhonmental monitoring. DPL also may be requured to pay 
significant remediation costs with respect to third party sites. If DPL fails to comply with 
applicable environmental laws and regulations, even if caused by factors beyond its control, such 
failure could result in the assessment of civil or criminal penalties and liabiUties and the need to 
expend significant sums to come into corr^Uance. 

In addition, DPL incurs costs to obtain and comply with a variety of environmental permits, 
licenses, inspections and other approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required 
environmental regulatory approval, or if DPL fails to obtain, maintain or comply with any such 
approval, operations at affected faciUties could be halted or subjected to additional costs. 

New enviromnental laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existing laws and 
regulations, could in^ose more stringent limitations on DPL's operations or reqmre it to incur 
sigruficant additional costs. DPL's current compliance strategy may not successfiUly address the 
relevant standards and interpretations ofthe future. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect DPL's electricity and gas delivery businesses. 

Increased conservation efforts and advances in technology could reduce demand for 
electricity and gas supply and distribution, which could adversely affect DPL's business. In 
addition, changes in technology also could alter the channels through which retail electric 
customers buy electricity, which could adversely affect DPL's business. 

Acts of terrorism could adversely affect DPL's business. 

The threat of or actual acts of tenorism may affect DPL's operations m unpredictable ways 
and may cause changes in the insurance markets, force DPL to increase security measures and 
cause dismptions of power markets. If any of DPL's fiiel storage, transmission or distribution 
facilities were to be a direct target, or an indirect casualty, of an act of terrorism, its operations 
could be adversely affected. Instability in the financial markets as a result of terrorism also 
could affect the abiUty of DPL to raise needed capital. 
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DPL's insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover all casualty losses that it might 
incur. 

DPL currentiy has insurance coverage for its facilities and operations in amounts and with 
deductibles that it considers appropriate. However, there is no assurance that such insurance 
coverage will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms. In addition, some 
risks, such as weather related casualties, may not be insurable. In the case of loss or damage to 
property, plant or equipment, there is no assurance that the insurance proceeds, if any, received 
will be sufficient to cover the entire cost of replacement or repair. 

DPL may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generally result in decreased demand for power, 
particularly by industrial and large commercial customers. As a consequence, recessions or 
other downturns in the economy may result in decreased revenues and cash flows for DPL. 

DPL is dependent on its ability to successfuUy access capital markets. An inabUity to 
access capital may adversely affect its business. 

DPL relies on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term capital markets as a 
source of liquidity and to satisfy its capital requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from its 
operations. Capital market disnqitions, or a downgrade in DPL's credit ratings, would increase 
the cost of borrowing or could adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial 
markets. Dismptions to the capital markets could include, but are not limited to: 

recession or an economic slowdown; 
the bankmptcy of one or more energy companies; 
sigruficant increases in the prices for oil or other fuel; 
a terrorist attack or threatened attacks; or 
a significant transmission failure. 
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In accordance with the requhements ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the SEC mles 
thereunder, DPL's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal control 
over financial reporting and is required to assess annually the effectiveness of these controls. 
The inability to certify the effectiveness of these controls due to the identification of one or more 
material weaknesses in these controls also could increase the financing costs of PHI and its 
subsidiaries or could adversely affect their ability to access one or more financial markets. 

DPL's future defined benefit plan funding obligations are affected by its assumptions 
regarding the valuation of its benefit obUgations and the performance of plan assets; actual 
experience which varies from the assumptions could result in an obligation of DPL to make 
significant unplanned cash contributions to the plan. 

DPL follows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accountmg for Pensions" in 
accounting for pension benefits under the Retirement Plan, a non-contributory defmed benefit 
plan. In accordance with these accounting standards, DPL makes assumptions regarding the 
valuation of benefit obUgations and the performance of plan assets. Changes in assimqjtions 
such as the use ofa different discount rate or expected retum on plan assets, affect the 
calculation of projected benefit obligations, accumulated benefit obligations (ABO), reported 
pension liabiUty on DPL's balance sheet, and reported armual net periodic pension benefit cost 
on DPL's statement of earnings. 

Furthermore, if actual pension plan experience is different from that which is expected, the 
ABO could be greater than the fair value of pension plan assets. If this were to occur, DPL 
could be required to recognize an additional minimum liability as prescribed by SFAS No. 87. 
The Uability would be recorded as a reduction to common equity tiirough a charge to Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI), and would not affect net income for the year. The charge to 
OCI would be restored through common equity in future periods when the fair value of plan 
assets exceeded the ABO. DPL's fundmg policy is to m^e cash contributions to the pension 
plan sufficient for plan assets to exceed the ABO, and avoid the recognition of an additional 
minimum UabUity. 

Use of altemative assumptions could also inpact the expected fiiture cash funding 
requirements for the pension plan if DPL's defined benefit plan did not meet the minimum 
fimding reqiurements of ERISA. 

Energy companies are subject to adverse pubUcity, which may render DPL vulnerable to 
negative regulatory and Utigation outcomes. 

The energy sector has been among the sectors ofthe economy that have been the subject of 
highly publicized allegations of misconduct m recent years. In addition, many utility companies 
have been publicly criticized for their performance during recent natural disasters and weather 
related incidents. Adverse pubUcity ofthis nature may render legislatures, regulatory 
authorities, and tribunals less likely to view energy comparues such as DPL in a favorable light 
and may cause DPL to be susceptible to adverse outcomes with respect to decisions by such 
bodies. 
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Because DPL is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of PHI, PHI can exercise substantial 
control over its dividend policy and business and operations. 

All ofthe members of DPL's board of directors, as well as many of DPL's executive officers, 
are officers of PHI. Among otiier decisions, DPL's board is responsible for decisions regarding 
payment of dividends, financing and capital raising activities, and acquisition and disposition of 
assets. Within the limitations of ^jplicable law, and subject to the financial covenants under 
DPL's outstanding debt insfruments, DPL's board of directors will base its decisions concerning 
the amount and timing of dividends, and other business decisions, on DPL's earnings, cash flow 
and capital stmcture, but may also take into account the business plans and financial 
requirements of PHI and its other subsidiaries. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Some ofthe statements contained m this Armual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, and are subject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995. These statements include declarations regarding DPL's intents, beliefs and current 
expectations. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as 
"may," "wiU," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," 
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of such terms or other comparable temunology. Any 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of fiiture performance, and actual results could 
differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 
statements involve esthnates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that may cause DPL or DPL's mdustry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or 
achievements to be materially different fix)m any future results, levels of activity, performance or 
achievements expressed or unplied by such forward-looking statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to 
the followmg mqjortant factors, which are difficult to predict, contaui uncertainties, are beyond 
DPL's control and may cause actual results to differ materially fix)m those contained in forward-
looking statements: 

• Prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions affecting the energy industry, 
including witii respect to allowed rates of retum, industry and rate stmcture, acquisition 
and disposal of assets and facilities, operation and constmction of plant facilities, recovery 
of purchased power expenses, and present or prospective wholesale and retaU competition; 

• Changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies; 

• Weather conditions; 

• Population growth rates and demographic patterns; 

• Competition for retaU and wholesale customers; 

• General economic conditions, mcluding potential negative impacts resulting from an 
economic downturn; 
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Growth in demand, sales and capacity to fulfill demand; 

Changes m tax rates or poUcies or in rates of inflation; 

Changes in project costs; 

Unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

The ability to obtain fimding ui the capUal markets on favorable terms; 

Restrictions imposed by Federal and/or state regulatory commissions; 

Legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settiements that 
influence DPL's business and profitability; 

VolatUity m market demand and prices for energy, capacity and fuel; 

Interest rate fluctuations and credit market concerns; and 

Effects of geopolitical events, including the threat of domestic terrorism. 

Any forward-looking statements speak only as to the date ofthis Aimual Report and DPL 
undertakes no obligation to update any forward looking statements to reflect events or 
cuxjumstances after the date on which such statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of 
anticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for DPL to 
predict all of such factors, nor can DPL assess the impact of any such factor on our business or 
the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materiaUy 
from those contained in any forward-looking statement. 

The foregoing review of factors should not be constmed as exhaustive. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTMC COMPANY 

RESTATEMENT 

Our parent con^any, Pepco Holdings, restated its previously reported consoUdated financial 
statements as of December 31,2004 and for the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, the 
quarterly financial information for the first three quarters Ui 2005, and all quarterly periods in 
2004, to correct the accounting for certain deferred compensation arrangements. The restatement 
includes the conection of other enors for the same periods, primarUy relating to unbUled revenue, 
taxes, and various accmal accounts, which were considered by management to be 
immaterial. These other enors would not themselves have required a restatement absent the 
restatement to conect the accounting for deferred compensation arrangements. The restatement of 
Pepco Holdings consolidated financial statements was required solely because the cumulative 
impact ofthe conection, if recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005, would have been material to 
that period's reported net income. The restatement to correct the accounting for the deferred 
condensation arrangements had no impact on ACE; however, ACE restated Us previously 
reported consolidated financial statements as of December 31,2004 and for the years ended 
December 31,2004 and 2003, the quarterly financial information for the first three quarters in 
2005, and all quarterly periods Ui 2004, to reflect the correction of other errors. The correction of 
these other errors, primarily relating to taxes and various accrual accounts, was considered by 
management to be immaterial. See Note 14 "Restatement" for further discussion. 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE) is engaged in the generation, transmission, and 
distribution of electricity in southem New Jersey. ACE provides Default Electricity Supply, 
which is the supply of electricity at regulated rates to retail customers m its service territory who 
do not elect to purchase electricity fix>m a competitive supplier. Default Electricity Supply is 
also known as Basic Generation Service (BGS) in New Jersey. ACE's service territory covers 
approximately 2,700 square miles and has a population of approximately 998,000. 

ACE is a wholly owned subsidiary of Conectiv, which is wholly owned by Pepco Holdings, 
Inc. (PHI or Pepco Holdings). Because PHI is a public utility holding company subject to the 
PubUc Utility Holdmg Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005), tiie relationship between PHI and 
ACE and certam activities of ACE are subject to the regulatory oversight of FERC under 
PUHCA 2005, 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The accompanying results of operations discussion is for the year ended December 31,2005 
compared to the year ended December 31,2004. Other than this disclosure, information 
under this item has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction I(2)(a) to the Form 
10-K, All amounts in the tables (except sales and customers) are in millions. 

135 



ACE 

Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 
DefauU Supply Revenue 
Other Electric Revenue 

Total Operating Revenue 

2005 
$ 355.2 

1,147.0 
18.2 

$ 1,520.4 

2004 
$ 351.6 

962.0 
19.6 

$ 1,333.2 

Change 
$ 3.6 

185.0 
(1.4) 

$ 187.2 

The table above shows the amount of Operating Revenue eamed that is subject to price 
regulation (Regulated T&D (Transmission and Distribution) Electric Revenue and Default 
Supply Revenue) and that which is not subject to price regulation (Other Electric Revenue). 
Regulated T&D Electric Revenue consists ofthe revenue ACE receives for deUvery of 
electricity to its customers for which service ACE is paid regulated rates. Default Supply 
Revenue is the revenue received by ACE for providing Default Electricity Supply. TTie costs 
related to the supply of electricity are included in Fuel and Purchased Energy expense. Also 
included in Default Supply Revenue is revenue fix)m non-utility generators (NUGS), transition 
bond charges, market transUion charges (MTC) and other restructuring related revenues (see 
Deferred Electric Service Costs). Otiier Electric Revenue includes work and services performed 
onbehalf of customers includmg other utilities, which is not subject to price regulation. Work 
and services includes mutual assistance to other utihties, highway relocation, rents, late 
payments, and coUection fees. 

Regulated T&D Electric 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other (Includes PJM) 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

2005 

$ 175.8 
108.5 
16.1 
54.8 

$ 355.2 

2004 

$ 170.4 
110.9 
17.3 
53.0 

$ 351.6 

Change 

$ 5,4 
(2.4) 
(1.2) 
1.8 

$ 3.6 

Regulated T&D Electric Sales (Owh) 

Residential 
Coimnercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Sales 

2005 

4,444 
4,366 
1,224 

46 
10,080 

2004 

4,275 
4,337 
1,213 

49 
9,874 

Change 

169 
29 
11 
(3) 

206 

Regulated T&D Electric Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other 

Total Regulated T&D Electric Customers 

2005 

468 
62 

1 
1 

532 

2004 

461 
61 

1 
1 

524 

Change 

7 
1 

8 
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Regulated T&D Electric Revenue mcreased by $3.6 million primarily due to the foUowmg: 
(i) $6.8 mUlion increase due to weather, the result of a 28% mcrease m Cooling Degree Days in 
2005, (ii) $4.3 mUlion due to customer growth, the result ofa 1.5% customer mcrease in 2005, 
offset by (iii) $4.0 million reduction in estimated unbilled revenue recorded in the second 
quarter of 2005, primarily reflecting higher estunated power lUie losses (estimates of electricity 
expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers) and (iv) $3,5 
mUlion decrease due to other sales and rate variances. 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Supply Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other (Includes PJM) 

Total Default Supply Revenue 

2005 

$ 367.8 
278.7 
46.2 

454.3 
$1,147.0 

2004 

$ 336.5 
264.9 
49.0 

311.6 
$ 962.0 

Change 

$ 31.3 
13.8 
(2.8) 

142.7 
$ 185.0 

Default Electricity Supply Sales (Gwh) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Sales 

2005 

4,456 
3,028 

338 
46 

7,868 

2004 

4,244 
2,991 

386 
48 

7,669 

Change 

212 
37 

(48) 
(2) 

199 

Default Electricity Supply Customers (000s) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Default Electricity Supply Customers 

2005 

467 
62 

1 
1 

531 

2004 

460 
61 

1 
1 

523 

Change 

7 
1 

8 
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Default Supply Revemie is primarily subject to deferral accounting, with differences in 
revenues and expenses deferred to the balance sheet for subsequent recovery under the New 
Jersey restmcturing deferral. The $185.0 milUon mcrease in Default Supply Revenue primarUy 
resulted from the following: (i) $142.2 milUon mcrease m wholesale energy revenues fix)m sales 
of generated and purchased energy into PJM (iiKluded ui Other) due to higher market prices ui 
2005, (ii) $22.3 miUion increase due to weather, primarily in the third quarter of 2005, (iii) $16.8 
railUon increase due to higher retail energy rates resulting from the new market based New 
Jersey BGS effective October 2005, (iv) $10.3 miUion due to other sales and rate variances, and 
(v) $9.8 miUion increase due to customer growth, offset by (vi) $8.5 million decrease resulting 
from customer migration (load) and (vii) $7.9 million decrease due to a reduction m estunated 
unbiUed revenue recorded m the second quarter of 2005, primarily reflecting higher estimated 
power line losses (estimates of electricity expected to be lost in the process of its transmission 
and distribution to customers). Default Supply Revenue is partially offset in Fuel and Purchased 
Power expense. 

ACE's New Jersey customers served by an altemate supplier represented 22% of ACE's total 
load for the twelve months ended December 31,2005 and 2004, 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Costs of Sales 

Fuel and Purchased Energy increased by $105.3 mUlion to $912,0 million in 2005, from 
$806.7 miUion m 2004. The increase is primarUy due to: (i) $84.5 million increase m higher 
average energy costs, the result of New Jersey BGS supply contracts in June 2005 and (ii) $21.6 
mUlion increase due to customer growth and (iii) $15.2 million increase in other sales and rate 
variances, partially offset by (iv) $16.0 mUUon decrease due to higher customer nugration. This 
expense is primarily offset in Default Supply Revenue. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and Amortization expenses decreased by $8.9 miUion to $123.9 miUion Ui 2005, 
from $132.8 million m 2004. The decrease is primarily due to a $7.6 mUUon decrease fix)m a 
change in depreciation technique resulting from a 2005 final rate order firom the NJBPU. 

Other Taxes 

Otiier Taxes increased by $2.2 million to $22.9 million m 2005, from $20.7 mUUon in 2004, 
The increase is primarily due to a $2.5 miUion true-up for the Transitional Electricity FaciUties 
Adjustment (TEFA), which decreased Other Taxes expense in 2004. 
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Deferred Electric Service Costs 

Deferred Electric Service Costs uicreased by $83.9 miUion to $120.2 mUUon in 2005, fixMn 
$36.3 million in 2004. The $83.9 mUlion increase represents (i) $77,1 milUon net over-recovery 
associated with New Jersey BGS, NUGS, market transition charges and other restmcturing items 
and (ii) $4,5 mUUon in regulatory disallowances (net of amounts previously reserved) associated 
witii the AprU 2005 NJBPU settlement agreement. At December 31,2005, ACE's balance sheet 
included as a regulatory UabUity an over-recovery of $40.9 mUUon with respect to these items, 
which is net ofa $47.3 million reserve for items disallowed by the NJBPU in a ruling that is 
under appeal. 

Gain on Sale of Assets 

Gain on Sale of Assets represents a $14.7 miUion gain from the 2004 condemnation 
settiement with the City of Vineland, New Jersey relating to the transfer of ACE's distribution 
assets and customer accounts to the city. 

Other Income (Expenses) 

Other expenses decreased by $3.2 mUlion to a net expense of $50.7 miUion in 2005, fiism a 
net expense of $53.9 million in 2004. The decrease is primarily due to (i) lower uiterest expense 
resulting fix>m maturities of debt in March, July and August of 2005 and (ii) an increase in 
interest income due to higher interest rates in 2005. 

Income Tax Expenses 

ACE's effective tax rate before extraordinary hem for the year ended December 31,2005 was 
44% as compared to the federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference 
were state income taxes (net of federal benefit), the flow-through of certain book tax 
depreciation differences and changes in estimates related to tax liabiUties of prior tax years 
subject to audit (primarily due to the mixed service cost issue under IRS Rule 2005-43), partiaUy 
offset by the flow-through of defened investment tax credits, 

ACE's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,2004 was 41% as compared to the 
federal statutory rate of 35%. The major reasons for this difference were state income taxes (net 
of federal benefit) and the flow-through of certain book tax depreciation differences, partiaUy 
offset by the flow-through of deferred Uivestment tax credits. 

Extraordinary Item 

On April 19, 2005, ACE, tiie staff of tiie New Jersey Boarti of PubUc Utilities (NJBPU), tiie 
New Jersey Ratepayer Advocate, and active mtervenor parties agreed on a settiement m ACE's 
electric distribution rate case. As a result ofthis settlement, ACE reversed $15.2 million in 
accmals related to certain deferred costs that are now deemed recoverable. The after tax credit to 
income of $9.0 milUon is classified as an extî aordinary gaui in the 2005 financial statements since 
the original accmal was part of an extraordinary charge in conjunction with the accounting for 
competitive restmcturing in 1999. 
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RISK FACTORS 

The busmess of ACE is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including the events or 
conditions identified below. The occunence of one or more these events or conditions could 
have an adverse effect on the business of ACE, including, depending on the circumstances, its 
results of operations and financial condition. 

ACE is a public utility that is subject to substantial governmental regulation. If ACE 
receives unfavorable regulatory treatment, ACE's business could be negatively affected. 

ACE's utility business is subject to regulation by various federal, state and local regulatory 
agencies that sigruficantiy affects its operations. ACE's operations are regulated Ui New Jersey 
by the NJBPU with respect to, among other things, the rates it can charge retail customers for 
the supply and distribution of electricity. In addition, the rates that ACE can charge for 
electricity transmission are regulated by FERC. ACE cannot change supply, distribution or 
transntission rates without approval by the applicable regulatory authority. While the approved 
distribution and transmission rates are intended to permit ACE to recover its costs ofservice and 
earn a reasonable rate of retum, ACE's profitability is affected by the rates it is able to charge. 
In addition, if the costs incuned by ACE in operating its transmission and distribution facilities 
exceed the allowed amounts for costs included in the approved rates, ACE's financial results wiU 
be adversely affected. 

ACE also is required to have numerous permits, approvals and certificates fii^m 
governmental agencies that regulate its business. ACE believes that it has obtained or sought 
renewal ofthe material permits, approvals and certificates necessary for its existing operations 
and that its business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, ACE is unable 
to predict the impact of future regulatory activities of any of these agencies on its business. 
Changes in or reuiterpretations of existing laws or regulations, or the imposition of new laws or 
regulations, may require ACE to incur additional expenses or to change the way it conducts its 
operations. 

The operating results of ACE fluctuate on a seasonal basis and can be adversely affected 
by changes in weather. 

ACE's electric utility business is seasonal and weather pattems can have a material impact on 
its operating perfonnance. Demand for electricity is generally greater in the summer months 
associated with cooling and in the winter months associated with heating as compared to other 
times ofthe year. Accordingly, ACE historicaUy has generated less revenues and income when 
weather conditions are milder in the winter and cooler in the summer. 

ACE's facilities may not operate as planned or may require significant maintenance 
expenditures, which could decrease its revenues or increase its expenses. 

Operation of generation, transmission and distribution faciUties involves many risks, 
including the breakdown or failure of equipment, accidents, labor disputes and performance 
below expected levels. Older facilities and equipment, even if maintained in accordance with 
sound engineering practices, may require sigruficant capital expenditures for additions or 
upgrades to keep them operating at peak efficiency, to comply with changing environmental 
requirements, or to provide reliable operations. Natural disasters and weather-related incidents, 
including tornadoes, hurricanes and snow and ice storms, also can dismpt generation, 
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transmission and distribution delivery systems. Operation of generation, transmission and 
distribution faciUties below expected capacity levels can reduce revenues and result in the 
incurrence of additional expenses that may not be recoverable fix)m customers or through 
insurance. Furthermore, if ACE is unable to perform its contractual obligations for any of these 
reasons, it may incur penalties or damages. 

ACE's transmission facilities are interconnected with the faciUties of other transmission 
faciUty owners whose actions could have a negative impact on ACE's operations. 

The transmission facilities of ACE are directiy interconnected with the transmission facilities 
of contiguous utilities and, as such, are part of an interstate power transmission grid, FERC has 
designated a number of regional transmission operators to coordinate the operation of portions 
ofthe interstate transmission grid. ACE is a member of PJM, which is the regional transmission 
operator that coordinates the movement of electricity in all or parts of Delaware, Illinois, 
Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolma, Ohio, Pennsylvania, 
Tennessee, Virginia, West Virgirua and the District of Columbia. ACE operates its transmission 
facUities under the direction and control of PJM. PJM and the other regional transmission 
operators have established sophisticated systems that are designed to ensure the reliabiUty ofthe 
operation of transmission facilities and prevent the operations of one utiUty from having an 
adverse impact on the operations ofthe other utUities. However, the systems put in place by 
PJM and the other regional transmission operators may not always be adequate to prevent 
problems at other utilities from causing service intermptions in the transmission faciUties of 
ACE, If ACE were to suffer such a service interruption, it could have a negative impact on its 
business. 

The cost of compliance with environmental laws is significant and new environmental laws 
may increase ACE's expenses. 

ACE's operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules 
and regulations relating to air quality, water quaUty, spill prevention, waste management, natural 
resources, site remediation, and health and safety. These laws and regulations require ACE to 
make capital expenditures and to incur other expenditures to, among other things, meet 
emissions standards, conduct site remediation and perform environmental monitoring. ACE also 
may be reqiured to pay significant remediation costs with respect to third party sites. If ACE 
fails to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations, even if caused by factors 
beyond its control, such failure could result in the assessment of civil or criminal penalties and 
liabilities and the need to expend significant sums to come into compliance. 

In addition, ACE incurs costs to obtain and comply with a variety of environmental permits, 
licenses, inspections and otiier approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required 
environmental regulatory approval, or if ACE fails to obtain, maintain or comply with any such 
approval, operations at affected faciUties could be halted or subjected to additional costs. 

New environmental laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existing laws and 
regulations, could impose more stringent Unutations on ACE's operations or require it to incur 
significant additional costs. ACE's current compliance strategy may not successfully address the 
relevant standards and interpretations ofthe future. 
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Changes in technology may adversely affect ACE's electricity deUvery businesses. 

Increased conservation efforts and advances in technology could reduce demand for 
electricity supply and distribution, which could adversely affect ACE's busuiess. In addition, 
changes in technology also could alter the channels through which retaU electric customers buy 
electricity, which could adversely affect ACE's business. 

Acts of terrorism could adversely affect ACE's business. 

The threat of, or actual acts of, terrorism may affect ACE's operations in unpredictable ways 
and may cause changes in the insurance markets, force ACE to increase security measures and 
cause dismptions of power markets. If any of ACE's fuel storage, generation, transmission or 
distribution facilities were to be a direct target or an indu'ect casualty of an act of terrorism, its 
operations could be adversely affected. InstabiUty in the financial markets as a result of 
terrorism also could affect the abiUty of ACE to raise needed capital. 

ACE's insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover aU casualty losses that it might 
incur. 

ACE cunentiy has insurance coverage for its facilities and operations in amounts and with 
deductibles that it considers appropriate. However, th^e is no assurance that such insurance 
coverage wUl be available in the fiiture on commercially reasonable terms. In addition, some 
risks, such as weather related casualties, may not be insurable. In the case of loss or damage to 
property, plant or equipment, there is no assurance that the insurance proceeds, if any, received 
will be sufficient to cover tiie entire cost of replacement or repair. 

ACE may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generaUy result in decreased demand for power, 
particularly by industrial and large commercial customers. As a consequence, recessions or 
other downturns m the economy may result in decreased revenues and cash flows for ACE. 

ACE is dependent on its ability to successfully access capital markets. An inability to 
access capital may adversely affect its business. 

ACE relies on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term capital markets as a 
source of liquidity and to satisfy its capital reqiurements not satisfied by the cash flow from its 
operations. Capital market dismptions, or a dovmgrade in ACE's credit ratings, would increase 
the cost of borrowing or could adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial 
markets. Dismptions to the capUal markets could Uiclude, but are not limited to: 

• recession or an economic slowdown; 
• the bankmptcy of one or more energy companies; 
• significant increases in the prices for oil or other fuel; 
• a tenorist attack or threatened attacks; or 
• a significant transmission failure. 
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In accordance with the requirements ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC rules 
thereunder, ACE's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal control 
over financial reporting and is required to assess annuaUy the effectiveness of these controls. 
The inability to certify the effectiveness of these controls due to the identification of one or 
more material weaknesses in these controls also could increase the financing costs of PHI and 
its subsidiaries or could adversely affect their ability to access one or more financial markets. 

ACE's future defined benefit plan funding obligations are affected by its assumptions 
regarding the valuation of its benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets; 
actual experience which varies fi'om the assumptions could result in an obUgation of ACE 
to make significant unplanned cash contributions to the plan. 

ACE follows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions" in 
accounting for pension benefits under the Retirement Plan, a non-contributory defined benefit 
plan. In accordance with these accounting standards, ACE makes assun^tions regarding the 
valuation of benefit obUgations and the performance of plan assets. Changes in assumptions 
such as the use ofa different discount rate or expected retum on plan assets, affect the 
calculation of projected benefit obligations, accumulated benefit obligations (ABO), reported 
pension benefit obligation on ACE's Consolidated Balance Sheet, and reported armual net 
periodic pension benefit cost on ACE's ConsoUdated Statement of Earnings. 

Furthermore, if actual pension plan experience is different from that which is expected, the 
ABO could be greater than the fair value of pension plan assets. If this were to occur, ACE 
could be required to recognize an additional minimum liability as prescribed by SFAS No. 87. 
The liabiUty would be recorded as a reduction to common equity through a charge to Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI), and would not affect net income for the year. The charge to 
OCI would be restored through common equity in fiiture periods when tiie fan- value of plan 
assets exceeded the ABO. ACE's fimding policy is to make cash contributions to the pension 
plan sufficient for plan assets to exceed the ABO, and avoid the recognition of an additional 
minimum UabUity. 

Use of altemative assumptions could also inqjact the expected future cash funding 
requirements for the pension plan if ACE's defined benefit plan did not meet the minimum 
fundmg requirements of ERISA. 

Energy companies are subject to adverse pubUcity, which may render ACE vulnerable to 
negative regulatory and litigation outcomes. 

The energy sector has been among the sectors ofthe economy that have been the subject of 
highly pubUcized aUegations of misconduct in recent years, hi addition, many utUity conqjanies 
have been publicly criticized for their performance during recent natural disasters and weather 
related incidents. Adverse pubUcity ofthis nature may render legislatures, regulatory authorities, 
and other goverrmient officials less likely to view energy comparues such as ACE in a favorable 
light and may cause ACE to be susceptible to adverse outcomes with respect to decisions by such 
bodies. 

Because ACE is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of PHI, PHI can exercise substantial 
control over its dividend poUcy and business and operations. 

All ofthe members of ACE's board of directors, as weU as many of ACE's executive officers, 
are officers of PHI. Among other decisions, ACE's board is responsible for decisions regardUig 
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payment of dividends, financing and capUal raismg activities, and acquisition and disposition of 
assets. Within the limitations of applicable law, and subject to the financial covenants under 
ACE's outstanding debt instruments, ACE's board of directors will base its decisions concerning 
the amount and timing of dividends, and other business decisions, on ACE's earnings, cash flow 
and coital stmcture, but may also take into account the business plans and financial 
requirements of PHI and its other subsidiaries. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Some ofthe statements contained in this Armual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking 
statements within the mearung of Section 2 IE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, and are subject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995. These statements include declarations regarding ACE's intents, beUefs and current 
oqjectations. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as 
"may," "wiU," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "beUeves," "estimates," "predicts," 
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. Any 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of fiiture performance, and actual results could 
differ materially fix)m those indicated by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 
statements involve estimates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and otiier 
factors that may cause ACE or ACE's industry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or 
achievements to be materiaUy different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or 
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified Ui their entirety by reference to 
the following unportant factors, which are difficult to predict, contain uncertamties, are beyond 
ACE's control and may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-
looking statements: 

• Prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions affecting the energy industry, 
including with respect to aUowed rates of retum, industry and rate stmcture, acquisition 
and disposal of assets and faciUties, operation and constmction of plant facilities, recovery 
of purchased power expenses, and present or prospective wholesale and retail competition; 

• Changes in and compliance with envhonmental and safety laws and policies; 

• Weather conditions; 

• Population growth rates and demographic pattems; 

• Competition for retail and wholesale customers; 

• General economic conditions, uicluding potential negative impacts resulting fiom an 
economic downturn; 

• Growth m demand, sales and capacity to fiilfiU demand; 

• Changes in tax rates or policies or m rates of inflation; 

• Changes in project costs; 
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• Unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

• The ability to obtain funding in the capital maikets on favorable terms; 

• Restrictions unposed by Federal and/or state regulatory cormnissions; 

• Legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settiements that 
influence ACE's busmess and profitability; 

• Volatility in market demand and prices for energy, capacity and fiiel; 

• Interest rate fluctuations and credit market concerns; and 

• Effects of geopolitical events, mcluding the threat of domestic terrorism. 

Any forward-looking statements speak orUy as to the date ofthis Annual Report and ACE 
undertakes no obligation to update any forward looking statements to reflect events or 
circumstances after the date on which such statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of 
anticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for ACE to 
predict all of such factors, nor can ACE assess the impact of any such factor on our business or 
the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materiaUy 
from those contained in any forward-looking statement. 

The foregoing review of factors should not be constmed as exhaustive. 
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Ttem7A. OUANTITATFVE AND OUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

As of March 2003, Conectiv Energy ceased all proprietary tradUig activities, which generally 
consist of tiie entry into contracts to take a view of market direction, capture market price 
change, and put capital at risk. PHI's competitive energy segments are no longer engaged in 
proprietary tradmg; however, the market exposure under certain contracts entered into prior to 
cessation of proprietary trading activities was not eliminated due to the illiquid market 
environment to execute such elimination. Some of these contracts remamed hi place through 
December 2005. 

The competitive energy segments actively engage in commodity risk management activities 
to reduce their financial exposure to changes in the value of their assets and obligations due to 
commodity price fluctuations. Certam of tiiese risk management activities are conducted using 
instruments classified as derivatives under SFAS 133. In addition, the competitive energy 
segments also manage commodity risk with contracts that are not classified as derivatives. The 
competitive energy segments' primary risk management objectives are to manage the spread 
between the cost of fuel used to operate their electric generation plants and the revenue received 
from the sale ofthe power produced by those plants and manage the spread between retaU sales 
commitments and the cost of supply used to service those commitments ui order to ensure stable 
and known minimum cash flows and fix favorable prices and margins when they become 
available. To a lesser extent, Conectiv Energy also engages in market activities in an effort to 
profit from short-term geographical price differentials in electricity prices among markets. PHI 
collectively refers to these energy market activities, including its commodity risk management 
activities, as "other energy commodity" activities and identifies this activity separately fix>m tiiat 
ofthe discontinued proprietary trading activity. 

PHI's risk management policies place oversight at the senior management level through the 
Corporate Risk Management Comnuttee which has the responsibiUty for establishing corporate 
compliance requirements for the competitive energy segments' energy market participation, PHI 
uses a value-at-risk (VaR) model to assess the market risk of its competitive energy segments' 
otiier energy commodity activities and its remaining proprietary trading contracts, PHI also uses 
other measures to linut and monitor risk m its commodity activities, mcluding lunits on the 
nominal size of positions and periodic loss limits. VaR represents the potential mark-to-maricet 
loss on energy contracts or portfolios due to changes ui market prices for a specified tune period 
and confidence level. PHI estimates VaR using a delta-gamma variance / covariance model with 
a 95 percent, one-taUed confidence level and assuming a one-day holding period. Since VaR is 
an estimate, it is not necessarUy indicative of actual rcsults that may occur. 
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Value at Risk Associated with Energy Contracts 
For the Year Ended December 31,2005 

95% confidence level, one-day 
holdmg period, one-taUed(3) 
Period end 
Average for the period 
High 
Low 

(MilUons of doUars) 

Proprietary 
Trading 
VaRd) 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

VaR for 
Competitive 

Energy 
Activity (2) 

$17.0 
$ 9.7 
$23.1 
$ 2.9 

Notes: 
(1) Includes aU remaining proprietary trading contracts entered into prior to cessation ofthis 

activity prior to March 2003, 
(2) This column represents aU energy derivative contracts, normal purchase and sales 

conti:m;ts, modeled generation output and fuel requirements and modeled customer load 
obUgations for both the discontinued proprietary tradmg activity and the ongoii^ other 
energy commodity activities. 

(3) As VaR calculations are shown in a standard delta or delta/gamma closed form 95% 1-day 
holding period 1-taU normal distribution form, traditional statistical and financial methods 
can be employed to reconcile prior Form 10-K and Form 10-Q VaRs to the above 
approach. In this case, 5-day VaRs divided by the square root of 5 equal 1-day VaRs; and 
99% 1-taU VaRs divided by 2.326 times 1.645 equal 95% 1-taU VaRs. Note tiiat tiiese 
methods of conversion are not valid for converting fixim 5-day or less holding periods to 
over 1-month holding periods and should not be applied to "non-standard closed form" 
VaR calculations in any case. 

For additional quantitative and qualitative information on the fair value of energy contracts 
see Note (13) "Use of Derivatives m Energy and Interest Rate Hedguig Activities" to the 
consoUdated financial statements of Pepco Holdings included in Item 8. 

The competitive energy segments' portfolio of electric generating plants includes "raid-merit" 
assets and peaking assets. Mid-merit electric generating plants are typicaUy combined cycle 
units that can quickly change their megawatt output level on an economic basis. These plants 
are generaUy operated during times when demand for electricity rises and power prices are 
higher. The coir^jetitive energy segments dynamically (economicaUy) hedge both the estunated 
plant output and fiiel requiremraits as the estunated levels of output and fiiel needs change. 
Dynamic (or economic) hedge percentages include the estimated electricity ou^ut of and fuel 
requirements for the competitive enei^ segment's generation plants that have been 
economicaUy hedged and any associated financial or physical commodity contracts (including 
derivative contracts that are classified as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133, other derivative 
instruments, wholesale normal purchase and sales contracts, and load service obUgations). 
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During the fourth quarter of 2005, Conectiv Energy revised its energy commodity hedging 
targets to reflect several factors, including improving market conditions that are predicted for the 
eastem portion ofthe PJM power market. Conectiv Energy intends to maintain a forward 36 
month program with targeted rar^es for hedgmg energy and capacity margins as follows: 

Month 

1-12 

13-24 

25-36 

Tareet Ranee 

50-100% 

25-75% 

0-50% 

The primary purpose ofthe hedging program is to improve the predictability and stabiUty of 
generation margms by seUing forward a portion of Us projected plant output, and buying forward 
a portion of its projected fuel supply requirements. Within each period, hedged values can vary 
significantiy above or below the average reported values. 

As of December 31,2005, Conectiv Energy was within the established target ranges for each 
ofthe forward twelve month periods. The projected amount of on peak output hedged on 
average was 91%, 66% and 18% for the 1-12 month, 13-24 month and 25-36 montii forward 
periods respectively. While Conectiv Energy attempts to place hedges that are expected to 
generate energy margins at or near its forecasted gross margin levels, the volumetric percentages 
vary significantiy by month and often do not capture the peak pricing hours and the related high 
margins that can be realized. As a result the percentage of on peak output hedged does not 
represent the amount of expected value hedged. 

Not all of Conectiv Energy's Merchant Generation gross margms can be hedged such as 
ancillary services and fiiel switching. Also the hedging of locational value and capacity can be 
Umited. These margms can be material to Conectiv Energy. 
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This table provides information on the con^etitive energy segment's credit exposure, net of 
collateral, to wholesale counterparties. 

Schedule of Credit Risk Exposure on Competitive Wholesale Energy Contracts 
(Millions of dollars) 

December 31,2005 

Rating CD 

Exposure Before 
Credit 

Collateral (2) 
Credit Net 

Collateral {3> Exposure 

Number of 
Counterparties 
Greater Than 

10% * 

Net Exp<«ure of 
Counterparties 

Greater Tlian 10% 

Investment Grade 
Non-Investment Grade 
No External Ratings 

Credit reserves 

S440.8 
7.1 

29.2 

$147.1 
1.0 

15.6 

$293.7 
6.1 

13.6 

$ 2.4 

1 $64.8 

(1) Investment Grade - primarily determined using publicly available credit ratings ofthe counterparty. If the 
counterparty has provided a guarantee by a higher-rated entity (e.g., its pa^nt), it is determined based upon 
the rating of its guarantor. Included in "Investment Grade" are counterparties with a minimum Standard & 
Poor's or Moody's rating of BBB- or Baa3, respectively. 

(2) Exposure before credit collateral - includes the MTM eneigy contract net assets for openAmrealized 
transactions, the net receivable/payable for realized transactions and net open positions for contracts not 
subject to MTM. Amounts due from counterparties are offset by liabilities payable to those coimterparties 
to the extent that legally enforceable netting arrangements are in place. Thus, ibis column presents the net 
credit exposure to counterparties after reflecting ail allowable netting, but before considermg collateral 
held. 

(3) Credit coUater^ - the face amount of cash deposits, letters of credit and performance bonds received from 
counterparties, not adjusted for probability of default, and, if applicable, property interests (including oU 
and gas reserves). 

* Using a percentage ofthe total exposure. 

OUANTTTATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 

Pepco Holdings. Inc. 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and 
prices. Certain of Pepco Holdings financial mstruments are exposed to market risk in the form 
of mterest rate risk, equity price risk, commodity risk, and credit and nonperformance risk. 
Pepco Holdmgs management takes an active role in the risk management process and has 
developed policies and procedures that require specific administrative and business fimctions to 
assist in the identification, assessment and control of various risks. Management reviews any 
open positions in accordance with strict poUcies in order to limit exposure to market risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries floating rate debt is subject to the risk of fluctuating 
interest rates in the normal course of business. Pepco Holdings manages interest rates through 
the use of fixed and, to a lesser extent, variable rate debt. The effect of a hypothetical 10% 
change in interest rates on the annual interest costs for short-term and variable rate debt was 
approximately $3.2 milUon as of December 31, 2005. 
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Commodity Price Risk 

Pepco Holdings is at risk for a decrease m market liquidity to levels that affect Us c^abUity 
to execute its commodity participation strategies. PHI believes the commodity markets to be 
sufficientiy Uquid to support Us market participation. 

Credit and Nonperformance Risk 

Certain of PHI's subsidiaries' agreements may be subject to credit losses and nonperformance 
by the counterparties to the agreements. However, PHI anticipates that the coimterparties will 
be able to fuUy satisfy their obUgations under the agreements. PHI's subsidiaries attempt to 
minimize credit risk exposure to wholesale energy counterparties through, among other things, 
formal credit policies, regular assessment of coimterparty creditworthiness and the establishment 
of a credit limit for each counterparty, monitoring procedures that mclude stress testing, the use 
of standard agreements which allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated 
with a single coimterparty and coUateral requirements under certain circumstances, and has 
established reserves for credit losses. As of December 31, 2005, credit exposure to wholesale 
energy counterparties was weighted 94% with investment grade counterparties, 4% with 
coimterparties without external credit quality ratings, and 2% with non-investment grade 
coimterparties. 

Potomac Electric Power Companv 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arismg fix)m adverse changes in market rates and 
prices. Certain of Pepco's fmancial instruments are exposed to market risk m the form of interest 
rate risk, equity price risk, commodity risk, and credit and nonperformance risk. Pepco's 
management takes an active role in the risk management process and has developed poUcies and 
procedures that require specific administrative and business functions to assist in the 
identification, assessment and control of various risks. Management reviews any open positions 
in accordance with strict policies in order to limit exposure to market risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Pepco's debt is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates ui the normal course of 
business. Pepco manages interest rates through the use of fixed and, to a lesser extent, variable 
rate debt. The effect ofa hypothetical 10% change in interest rates on the annual uiterest costs 
for short-term debt was approxunately $.2 mUUon as of December 31,2005. 

Delmarva Power & Light Companv 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising fi-om adverse changes in maiket rates and 
prices. Certain of DPL's financial mstruments are exposed to market risk m the form of mterest 
rate risk, equity price risk, commodity risk, and credit and nonperformance risk. DPL's 
management takes an active role m the risk management process and has developed policies and 
procedures that require specific administrative and business fimctions to assist in the 
identification, assessment and control of various risks. Management reviews any open positions 
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in accordance with strict policies in order to limit exposure to market risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

DPL's debt is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business. 
DPL manages interest rates through the use of fixed and, to a lesser extent, variable rate debt. 
The effect ofa hypothetical 10% change in mterest rates on the annual interest costs for short-
term debt was approximately $.7 miUion as of December 31,2005. 

Atiantic Citv Electric Companv 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and 
prices. Certain of ACE's financial instruments are exposed to market risk in the form of interest 
rate risk, equity price risk, commodity risk, and credit and nonperformance risk. ACE's 
management takes an active role in the risk management process and has developed poUcies and 
procedures that require specific administrative and business fimctions to assist in the 
identification, assessment and control of various risks. Management reviews any open positions 
in accordance with strict policies in order to limit exposure to market risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

ACE's debt is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business. 
ACE manages interest rates through tiie use of fixed and, to a lesser extent, variable rate debt. 
The effect ofa hypothetical 10% change in interest rates on the annual interest costs for short-
term debt was approximately $.3 miUion as of December 31,2005. 

Items. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

Listed below is a table that sets forth, for each registrant, the page number where the 
information is contained herein. 

152 



PEPCO HOLDINGS 

Registrants 

Item 

Management's Report on Intemal Control 
Over Financial Reporting 

Report of Independent Registered 
Public Accounting Firm 

Consolidated Statements of Earnings 

Consolidated Statements 
of Comprehensive Income 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Consolidated Statements 
of Shareholders' Equity 

Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Pepco 
Holdings Pepco* DPL* 

155 

163 

164 

ACE 

N/A N/A N/A 

156 239 284 321 

158 240 285 322 

159 241 N/A N/A 

160 242 286 323 

162 244 288 325 

245 289 326 

246 290 327 

* Pepco and DPL have no subsidiaries and therefore their financial statements are not consoUdated. 
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Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

The management of Pepco Holdings is responsible for estabUshing and maintaming adequate 
intemal control over financial reporting. Because of inherent limitations, intemal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become madequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of con^liance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Management assessed its intemal control over financial reportmg as of December 31,2005 
based on the fi*amework in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment, the 
management of Pepco Holdings concluded that Us mtemal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 31, 2005. 

Management's assessment ofthe effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting 
as of December 31,2005 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Uidependent 
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which is included herein. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors 
of Pepco Holdings, Inc.: 

We have completed integrated audits of Pepco Holdings, Inc.'s 2005 and 2004 consolidated 
financial statements and of its intemal control over fiiwncial reporting as of December 31,2005, 
and an audit of its 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards ofthe 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our 
audits, are presented below, 

ConsoUdated financial statements and financial statement schedules 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed m the accompanying index, present 
fairly, ui aU material respects, the financial position of Pepco Holduigs, Inc. and its subsidiaries 
at December 31,2005 and 2004, and the results of then operations and then* cash flows for each 
ofthe three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting 
principles generaUy accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the 
financial statement schedules Usted in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) present fairly, in 
aU material respects, the mformation set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related 
consoUdated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules 
are the responsibiUty ofthe Company's management. Our responsibiUty is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards reqiure that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

As disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company restated its 
financial statements as of December 31,2004 and for the years ended December 31,2004 and 
2003. 

Intemal control over financial reporting 

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Management's Report on Intemal 
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 8, that the Company maintained 
effective intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2005 based on criteria 
established in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (COSO), is fahly stated, in all material respects, 
based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, m all material 
respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2005, based on 
criteria established in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The 
Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial 
reporting and for its assessment ofthe effectiveness of Uitemal control over financial reporting. 
Our responsibility is to express opiiuons on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of 
the Company's intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
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audit of intemal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards ofthe Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in aU material respects. An audit of intemal control over 
financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial 
reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of intemal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary 
in the circumstances. We believe that our audU provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes m accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(i) pertam to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company; (U) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
dUectors ofthe company; and (iU) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, mtemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or 
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to fiiture periods are 
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of corr^liance with the poUcies or procedures may deteriorate. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Washington, D.C. 
March 13,2006 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, ESC. ANO SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOHDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 
(Restated) 

2004 
(Restated) 

2003 
(In millions, except per share data) 

Operating Revenue 
Power DeUvery 
Competitive Energy 
Other 

Total Operating Revenue 

Operating Expenses 
Fuel and purchased energy 
Other services cost of sales 
Other operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other t^tes 
Deferred electric service costs 
hnpahment loss^ 
Gain on sales of assets 
Gain on settlement of claims with Mirant 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Other Income (Expenses) 
Interest and dividend income 
Interest e?q)ense 
(Loss) Income ^ m equity investments 
Impairment loss on equity investment 
Other income 
Other expenses 

Total Other Expenses 

Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements of Subsidiaries 

Income Before Income Tax Expense and Extraordinary Item 

Income Tax Expense 

Income Before Extraordinary Item 

Extraordinary Item (net of income taxes of $6.2 mflUon 
and $4.1 miUion for the years ended December 31,2005 
and 2003, respectively) 

Net Income 

Eammgs Per Share of Common Stock 
Basic Before Extraordinary Item 
Basic - Extraordinary Item 
Basic Eamings Per Share of Common Stock 

Diluted Before Extraordinary Item 
Diluted - Extraordinary Item 
Diluted Eamings Per Share of Common Stock 

$4,702.9 
3,288.2 

74.4 

362.2 

9.0 

$4,377.7 
2,755.5 

89.9 

260.6 

$4,015.7 
3.135.8 

117.2 
8,065.5 

4,904.4 
712.3 
815.7 
422.6 
342.2 
120.2 

-
(86.8) 
(70.5) 

7,160.1 

905.4 

16.0 
(337.6) 

(2-2) 
(4.1) 
50.8 
(8.4) 

(285.5) 

2.5 

617.4 

255.2 

7,223.1 

4,258.3 
637.9 
796.6 
440.5 
311.4 
36.3 

-
(30.0) 

-
6,451.0 

772.1 

8.7 
(373.3) 

14.4 
(11.2) 
29.3 
(9.3) 

(341.4) 

2.8 

427.9 

167.3 

7^68.7 

4,626.2 
577.6 
771.4 
422.1 
272.2 

(7.0) 
64.3 

(68.8) 
-

6,658.0 

610.7 

17.3 
(372.8) 

(.9) 
(102.6) 

41.9 
(16.2) 

(433.3) 

13.9 

163.5 

62.1 

101.4 

5.9 

$ 371.2 

$ 1.91 
$ ,05 
$ 1.96 

$ 1.91 
$ .05 
$ 1.96 

$ 260.6 

$ 1.48 
$ 
$ 1.48 

$ 1.48 
$ 
$ 1.48 

$ 107.3 

$ .60 
$ .03 
$ .63 

S .60 
$ .03 
$ .63 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these ConsoUdated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEiWENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 

2005 
(Restated) (Restated) 

2004 2003 
(MUUons of dollars) 

Net income 

Other comprehensive eamings Qosses) 

Unrealized gains (losses) on commodity 
derivatives des^ated as cash flow hedges: 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) 
arising during period 

Less: reclassification adjustment for 
gains included in net earnings 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on 
commodity derivatives 

Realized gains on Treasury lock transaction 

Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swap 
agreements designated as cash flow hedges: 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising 
during period 

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains Gosses) 
included in net earnings 

Net unrealized gains on interest rate swaps 

Unrealized (losses) gains on marketable securities: 

Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising 
during pariod 

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains 
included in net earnings 

Net unreaUzed (losses) gains on maricetable 
securities 

Minimum pension liability adjustment 

Other comprehensive eamings (losses), before income taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

Other comprehmsive eamings (losses), net of income taxes 

Comprehensive eamings 

S371.2 

1.5 

1.1 
.4 

$260.6 

(4.5) 

(9.6) 
5.1 

(3.6) 

$107.3 

117.1 

76.1 

41.0 

11.7 

(20,9) 

33.4 

(54.3) 

11.7 

45,0 

18.9 

26.1 

11.7 

3.4 

(5.6) 
9.0 

6.1 

.3 

(5.2) 

47.9 

18.7 

29.2 

$400.4 

(4,4) 

(6.9) 

(48.8) 

(19.5) 

(29.3) 

$231.3 

5.8 

52.6 

22.4 

30.2 

$137.5 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statemaits. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

(Restated) 
December 31, December 31, 

2005 2004 
(Millions of doUars) 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 
uncollectible accounts of $40.6 million and 
$43.7 miUion, respectively 

Fuel, materials and suppUes - at average cost 
Unrealized derivative receivables 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Total Oirrent Assets 

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 
Goodwill 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in finance leases held in Trust 
Prepaid pension expense 
Other 
Total Inyestmaits and Other Assets 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 121.5 
23,0 

1,363.1 
340.1 
185.7 
118.3 

2,151.7 

1,431.3 
1,202.0 
1,297,9 

208.9 
414.0 

4,554.1 

11,384.2 
(4,072.2) 
7,312.0 

$14,017.8 

$ 29.5 
42,0 

1,122.8 
268.4 
90.3 

119.5 
1,672,5 

1,430.5 
1,335,0 
1,218,7 

165.7 
437.8 

4,587,7 

11,047,8 
(3,957.2) 
7,090,6 

$13,350.8 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(Restated) 
December 31, December 31, 

2005 2004 
(In milUons, except share data) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Short-term debt 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Capital lease obligations due within one year 
Taxes accrued 
Interest accrued 
Otiier 
Total Current Liabilities 

DEFERRED CREDITS 
Regulatory liabilities 
Income taxes 
Investment tax credits 
Other postretirement benefit obligations 
Other 
Total Deferred Credits 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding 
Long-term project funding 
Capital lease obligations 
Total Long-Term LiabiUties 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 12) 

PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARIES 
Serial preferred stock 
Redeemable serial preferred stock 
Total jM f̂erred stcxJc 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $.01 par value - authorized 400,000,000 shares -
issued 189,817,723 shares and 188,327,510 shares, respectively 

Premium on stock and other capital contributions 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Retained earnings 
Total Shareholders' Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

$ 156.4 
469.5 

1,002.2 
5.3 

322.9 
84.6 

358.4 
2,399.3 

594.1 
1,935.0 

51,0 
284.2 
284.9 

3,149.2 

4^02.9 
494.3 
25.5 

116.6 
4,839,3 

$ 319.7 
516.3 
664.8 

4.9 
56.7 
90.1 

287.8 
1,940,3 

391.9 
1,953.3 

55.7 
279.5 
263.4 

2,943.8 

4,362.1 
523.3 
65,3 

122.1 
5,072.8 

21.5 
24.4 
45.9 

1.9 
2,586.3 

(22.8) 
1,018.7 
3,584.1 

$14,017.8 

27.0 
27.9 
54.9 

1.9 
2,552.7 

(52.0) 
836.4 

3,339.0 

$13,350.8 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSmiARIES 

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 
(R«$t»ted> 

2004 
(Restftted) 

M03 
(Minions of dollars) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net iiti:oiBe to net cash 
IxY)vided by (used in) [̂ >eTating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on sale of assets 
Gain on settlement of claims »^th Mirant 
Proceeds Gnwa sale of claims vnth Mirant 
Gain on sEile of other invesbnenl 
Exnaordinary item 
Rents received from leveraged leases under income eamed 
Impairment losses 
Deferred income taxes 
Invesbnent tax credit adjustments 
Prepaid pension ecpense 
Energy su]^ly contracts 
Other defeired charges 
Other deferred credits 
Changes in: 
Accounts receivable 
Regulatory assets and liabilities 
I^epaid expenses 
Mataials and supplies 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Intnest and taxes accrued 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

INVESTING ACTIVmES 
Investm^it in property, plant and equiimieiit 
Proceeds fiom/chai^K in: 
Sale of ofRce buildii^ and other properties 
Sale of Statpowo: investmoit 
Proceeds from conibttstton turbine contract cancdtation 
Proceeds fiom sale of marketable securities 
Purchase of maHcetable securities 
Purchases of other investments 
Proceeds fitim sale of other investments 
Nrt investmettt in receivables 
Changes in restricted cash 
N^ other investing activities 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 

FINANCING AClTVmES 
Dividends paid on ]x«ferred stock ofsubsidiarira 
Dividends paid on common stock 
Common stock issued to die [^vtdend Reinvestment Plan 
Redemption of d(^entnres issued to financing trust 
Redemption of Trust Preferred Stock of subsidiaries 
Redemption of preferred stock of Subsidiaries 
Redemption of variable rate demand bonds 
Issuance of common stock 
Issuances of long-term dAt 
Redemption of long-term debt 
(Repayments) issuances of short-teim debt, net 
Cost of issuances and financings 
Net otha- financing activities 
Net Cash Used In Finandi^ Activities 
Net increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

NON-CASH AcnvrriES 
Excess accumulated depreciation transferred to regulatory liabiHties 
Sale of financed project accounC receivables 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash How InfcHmation 
Cash paid for intCTCst (net of capitalized intraest of $3.8 million, 
$2.9 million and $11.3 million, respectively) and paid (received) for income taxes: 
Interest 
Income (axes 

371:2 260.6 107.3 

$ 

$ 
s 

422.6 
(86.8) 
(70.5) 
U2.9 
(8.0) 

(15.2) 
(79J) 

4.1 
(51.6) 
(5.1) 

(43.2) 
(11-3) 
17.0 

(29.1) 

(153.7) 
76.1 
10.3 

(7L7) 
327.5 
270.7 
986.9 

(467.1) 

84.1 
-
-
-
-

(2.1) 
33.8 
(7.1) 
19.0 
5J 

(333.9) 

(2.5) 
(188.9) 

27.5 
-
-

(9.0) 
(2.0) 
5.7 

532.0 
(755.8) 
(161.3) 

(9.0) 
2.3 

(561.0) 
92.0 
29.5 

I21J $ 

131.0 
50.0 

440.5 
(30.0) 

-
-
-
-

(76.4) 
112 

217.5 
(8.0) 

.9 
(12.3) 

3.9 
(25.4) 

(171.0) 
(11-3) 
22.0 
9.2 

120.4 
(36.1) 
715.7 

(517.4) 

46.4 
29.0 

-
117.6 
(98.2) 

(.3) 
15.1 
2.9 

(17.8) 
5.4 

(417J) 

(2.8) 
(176.0) 

29.2 
(95.0) 

-
(53J) 

-
283.8 
650.4 

(1.119.7) 
136.3 
(26.7) 

9.7 
(359.1) 
(60.7) 
90.2 
29.5 S 

• 

422.1 
(68.8) 

-
-
-

(10.0) 
(72.4) 
166.9 
197.0 
(5.3) 

(17.3) 
(21.6) 
59.1 
(5.9) 

49.0 
(75.1) 
(23.1) 
(18.0) 
(59.1) 
37.6 

662.4 

(598.2) 

147.7 
-

52.0 
715.2 

(558.6) 
(11.0) 
11.5 

(43.2) 
31.0 

.9 
(252.71 

(4.6) 
(170.7) 

31.2 
-

(195.0) 
(2.5) 

-
1.6 

1,136.9 
(692.2) 
(452.7) 
(14.6) 
(8.1) 

(370.7) 
39.0 
51.2 
90.2 

. 

$ 
$ 

328.4 
44.1 

S 

s 
356.9 
(19.9) 

$ 
S 

390.3 
(144.1) 

The accompanyii^ Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In millions, except share data) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 
(AS REPORTED) 

RESTATEMENT 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2002 
(RESTATED) 

Net Income (RESTATED) 
Other comprehensive income 
Dividends on common stock 
($LOO/sh.) 

Issuance of common stock: 
Original issue shares 
DRP original shares 

Release of restricted stock 
Reacquired Ctonectiv and 

Pepco PARS 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31.2003 
(RESTATED) 

Net Income (RESTATED) 
Other comprehensive loss 
Dividends on common stock 
($1.00/sh.) 

Reacquisition of subsidiary 
preferred stock 

Issuance of common stock; 
Original issue shares 
DRP original shares 

Reacquired Conectiv and 
P^JCOPARS 

Vested options converted to 
Pepco Holdings options 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2004 
(RESTATED) 

Net Income 
Odier comprehensive income 
Dividends on common stock 

($1.00/sh.) 
Reacquisition of subsidiary 
preferred stock 

Issuance of common stock: 
Original issue shares 
DRP original shares 
Reacquired Conectiv and 
Pepco PARS 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2005 

Ck)inmon Stock 
Shares Par Value 

169,982,361 

169,982,361 

80,665 
1,706,422 

171,769,448 

15,086,126 
1,471,936 

188,327,510 

261,708 
1,228,505 

$1.7 

$1.7 

$ 1.7 

.2 

$ 1.9 

Premium 
on Stock 

$2,212.0 

-

$2,212.0 

. 

Capital 
Stock 

Expense 

$ (3.2) 

-

$ (3.2) 

_ 

Accumulated 
Other 

Compr^etKive 
(Loss) Earnings 

$(52.9) 

-

$(52.9) 

. 

Retained 
Eamings 

$838.2 

(23.0) 

$815.2 

107.3 

1.6 
31.2 

.1 

1.7 

(-1) 

$2,246.6 $ (3.3) 

1.0 

288.6 
29.2 

,6 

.2 

(10.2) 

$2,566.2 $(13.5) 

5.7 
27.5 

30.2 

$(22.7) 

(29.3) 

$(52.0) 

29.2 

(170.7) 

S75I.8 

260.6 

(176.0) 

$836.4 

371.2 

(188.9) 

189,817,723 $ 1.9 $2,599.8 $(13.5) $(22.8) $1,018.7 

The accompanying Notes are MI integral pari: of these Consolidated Fmancial Statements. 

163 



PEPCO HOLDINGS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. 

(1) ORGANIZATION 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. (T*epco Holdings or PHI) is a diversified energy company that, through 
its operating subsidiaries, is engaged in two principal business operations: 

• electricity and natural gas delivery (Power Delivery), and 

• con:q)etitive energy generation, marketing and supply (Competitive Energy). 

PHI was incorporated in Delaware in February 2001, for the purpose of effecting the 
acquisition of Conectiv by Potomac Electric Power Company (Pepco). The acquisition was 
completed on August 1,2002, at which time Pepco and Conectiv became wholly owned 
subsidiaries of PHI. Conectiv was formed m 1998 to be the holding company for Dehnarva 
Power & Light Company (DPL) and Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE) in connection with a 
merger between DPL and ACE. As a result, DPL and ACE are wholly owned subsidiaries of 
Conectiv. 

On February 8, 2006, the Public Utility Holding Con^any Act of 1935 (PUHCA 1935) was 
repealed and the Public Utihty Holding Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA 2005) went into effect. 
As a result, PHI has ceased to be regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 
as a public utility holduig company and is now subject to the regulatory oversight ofthe Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). As permitted under FERC regulations promulgated 
imder PUHCA 2005, PHI will give notice to FERC that it will continue, until fiirther notice, to 
operate pursuant to the authority granted in the financing order issued by the SEC imder PUHCA 
1935, which has an authorization period ending June 30,2008, relating to the issuance of 
securities and guarantees, other financing transactions and the operation ofthe money pool. 

PHI Service Company, a subsidiary service company of PHI, provides a variety of support 
services, including legal, accounting, tax, financial reporting, treasury, purchasing and 
information technology services to Pepco Holdings and its operating subsidiaries. These services 
are provided pursuant to a service agreement among PHI, PHI Service Company, and the 
participating operating subsidiaries that was filed with, and approved by, the SEC under PUHCA 
1935. The expenses ofthe service company are charged to PHI and the participating operating 
subsidiaries in accordance with costing methodologies set forth in the service agreement. PHI 
expects to continue operating under the service agreement. 

The following is a description of each of PHI's two principal business operations. 

Power Deliverv 

The largest component of PHFs business is power delivery, which consists ofthe 
transmission and distribution of electricity and the distribution of natural gas. PHI's Power 
Delivery business is conducted by its three regulated utility subsidiaries: Pepco, DPL and ACE. 
Each subsidiary is a regulated public utility in the jurisdictions that comprise its service territory. 
Together the three companies constitute a single segment for financial reporting purposes. Each 
company is responsible for the dehvery of electricity and, in the case of DPL, natural gas in its 
service territory, for which it is paid tariff rates established by the local public service 
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commission. Each company also supplies electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its 
service territory who do not elect to purchase electricity fix)m a competitive energy supplier. The 
regulatory term for this supply service varies by jurisdiction as follows: 

Delaware Provider of Last Resort service (POLR) ~ before May 1, 2006 

Standard Offer Service (SOS) -- on and after May 1,2006 

District of Columbia SOS 

Maryland SOS 

New Jersey Basic Generation Service (BGS) 

Virginia Default Service 

PHI and its subsidiaries refer to this supply service m each of the jurisdictions generally as 
Default Electricity Supply. 

The rates each company is permitted to charge for the wholesale transmission of electricity 
are regulated by FERC. 

The profitability ofthe Power Dehvery business depends on its abihty to recover costs and 
earn a reasonable retum on its capital investments through the rates it is permitted to charge. 

Competitive Energy 

The Competitive Energy business provides competitive generation, marketing and supply of 
electricity and gas, and related energy management services, primarily in the mid-Atlantic 
region. PHI's Competitive Energy operations are conducted through subsidiaries of Conectiv 
Energy Holding Company (collectively, Conectiv Energy) and Pepco Energy Services, Inc. and 
its subsidiaries (collectively, Pepco Energy Services). Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy 
Services are separate operating segments for financial reporting purposes. 

Other Business Operations 

Over the last several years, PHI has discontinued its investments in non-energy related 
businesses, mcluding the sale of its aircraft mvestments and the sale of its 50% uiterest in 
Starpower Communications LLC (Starpower). Through its subsidiary, Potomac Capital 
Investment Corporation (PCI), PHI continues to maintain a portfolio of cross-border energy sale-
leaseback transactions, with a book value at December 31,2005 of approximately $1.3 billion. 
This activity constitutes a fourth operating segment, which is designated as "Other Non-
Regulated" for financial reporting purposes. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidation Pohcv 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pepco Holdings 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances ar^ transactions between 
subsidiaries have been ehminated. Pepco Holdings uses the equity method to report 
investments, corporate jouit ventures, partnerships, and affiliated corxqjanies in which it holds a 
20% to 50% votmg interest and cannot exercise control over the operations and policies ofthe 
investment. Under the equity method, Pepco Holdings records its interest in the entity as an 
investment in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, and its percentage share ofthe 
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entity's eamings are recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Eamings. 
Additionally, the proportionate interests in jomtiy owned electric plants are consohdated. 

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Interpretation No. 46R (revised December 2003), entitied "Consohdation of Variable Interest 
Entities," Pepco Holdmgs deconsohdated several entities that had previously been consolidated 
and consolidated several small entities that had not previously been consolidated. FIN 46R 
addresses conditions under which an entity should be consolidated based upon variable interests 
rather than voting interests. For additional information regarding the impact of implementing 
FIN 46R, see the FIN 46R discussion later m this Note. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, such as compliance with Statement of Position 94-6, 
"Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties," requires management to make 
certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, habilities, revenues 
and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabihties in the consolidated 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Examples of significant estimates used by Pepco 
Holdings include the assessment of contingencies, the calculation of fiiture cash flows and fair 
value amounts for use in goodwill and asset impakment evaluations, fair value calculations 
(based on estunated market pricmg) associated with derivative instruments, pension and other 
postretirement benefits assumptions, unbiUed revenue calculations, and judgment mvolved with 
assessing the probability of recovery of regulatory assets. Additionally, PHI is subject to legal, 
regulatory, and other proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. 
PHI records an estimated liabiUty for these proceedings and claims based upon the probable and 
reasonably estimable criteria contained in SFAS No. 5 "Accounting for Contingencies." 
Although Pepco Holdings believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are 
based upon information avaUable to management at the time the esthnates are made. Actual 
results may differ significantiy fix)m these estimates. 

Changes m Accounting Estimates 

During 2005, Pepco recorded the unpact of an increase in estimated imbilled revenue 
(electricity and gas deUvered to the customer but not yet biUed), primarily reflecting a change in 
Pepco's unbilled revenue estimation process. This modification in accounting estimate increased 
net eamings for the year ended December 31,2005 by approximately $2.2 milUon. 

Also, during 2005, DPL and ACE each recorded tiie impact of reductions m estunated 
imbilled revenue, primarily reflecting an mcrease m the estimated amount of power line losses 
(electricity lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers). These changes 
in accounting estimates reduced net eamings for the year ended December 31, 2005 by 
approximately $7.4 miUion, of which $1.0 million was attributable to DPL and $6.4 million was 
attributable to ACE. 

During 2005, Conectiv Energy increased the estimated useftd lives of its generation assets 
that resulted in lower depreciation expense of approximately $5.3 million. 
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Revenue Recogrrition 

Regulated Revenue 

The Power DeUvery businesses recognize revenues jBrom the supply and deUvery of electricity 
and gas upon delivery to the customer, including amounts for services rendered but not yet billed 
(unbUled revenue). Pepco Holdings recorded amounts for imbilled revenue of $198.2 miUion 
and $227.4 miUion as of December 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. These amounts are 
included in the "accounts receivable" Une item m the accompanying Consolidated Balance 
Sheets. Pepco Holdings utility operations calculate unbilled revenue using an output based 
methodology. This methodology is based on the supply of electricity or gas distributed to 
customers. The imbilled revenue process requires management to make assumptions and 
judgments about ir^ut factors such as customer sales mix and estimated power Une losses, which 
are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change fix)m period to period, the impact of which 
could be material. 

The taxes related to the consumption of electricity and gas by the utiUty customers, such as 
fuel, energy, or other similar taxes, are components ofthe tariff rates charged by PHI 
subsidiaries and, as such, are billed to customers and recorded in Operating Revenues. Accruals 
for these taxes by the respective companies are recorded in Other Taxes. Excise tax related 
generally to the consmrqjtion of gasoUne by PHI and its subsidiaries in the normal course of 
business is charged to operations, maintenance or construction, and is de minimis. 

Competitive Revenue 

The Competitive Energy businesses recognize revenues for the supply and delivery of 
electricity and gas upon delivery to the customer, including amounts for services rendered, but 
not yet billed, Conectiv Energy recognizes revenue when deUvery is complete. Unrealized 
derivative gains and losses are recognized in current eamings as revenue if the derivative activity 
does not qualify for hedge accounting or normal sales treatment under SFAS No. 133. Pepco 
Energy Services recognizes revenue for its wholesale and retail commodity business upon 
delivery to customers. Revenues for Pepco Energy Services' energy efficiency construction 
business are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition 
which recognizes revenue as work is completed on the contract, and revenues fi-om its operation 
and maintenance and other products and services contracts are recognized when earned. 
Revenues from the other non-regulated business lines are principaUy recognized when services 
are performed or products are deUvered; however, revenues from utility mdustry services 
contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition. 

Regulation of Power Deliverv Operations 

The power delivery operations of Pepco are regulated by the District of Columbia Public 
Service Commission (DCPSC) and the Maryland Public Service Commission (MPSQ. 

The power delivery operations of DPL are regulated by the Delaware Public Service 
Conunission (DPSC), the MPSC, and the Virgmia State Clorporation Commission (VSCC). 

The power delivery operations of ACE are regulated by the New Jersey Board of Public 
UtUities (NJBPU). 
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The wholesale power transmission operations of each of Pepco, DPL, and ACE are regulated 

by FERC. 

The requirements of SFAS No. 71 apply to the Power Delivery businesses of Pepco, DPL, 
and ACE. SFAS No. 71 aUows regulated entities, in appropriate circumstances, to estabUsh 
regulatory assets and liabUities and to defer the income statement impact of certain costs that are 
expected to be recovered m future rates. Management's assessment ofthe probabiUty of recovery 
of regulatory assets requires judgment and interpretation of laws, regulatory commission orders, 
and other factors. If management subsequentiy determines, based on changes in facts or 
cUcumstances, that a regulatory asset is not probable of recovery, then the regulatory asset must 
be eliminated through a charge to eamings. 

The components of Pepco Holdings' regulatory asset balances at December 31, 2005 and 
2004, are as follows: 

Securitized stranded costs 
Deferred energy supply costs 
Deferred recoverable income taxes 
Deferred debt extinguishment costs 
Unrecovered purchased power contract costs 
Deferred other postretirement benefit costs 
Otiier 

Total regulatory assets 

2005 
(Millions 
$ 823.5 

18.3 
150.5 
80.9 
18.2 
17.5 
93.1 

$1,202.0 

2004 
of dollars) 

$ 887.7 
109.1 
162.2 
78.3 
22.6 
20.0 
55,1 

$1,335.0 

The components of Pepco Holdings' regulatory liability balances at December 31,2005 and 
2004, are as follows: 

Deferred income taxes due to customers 
Deferred energy supply costs 
Regulatory liability for Federal and 
New Jersey tax benefit 

Generation Procurement Credit, customer sharing 
commitment and other 

Accrued asset removal costs 
Excess depreciation reserve 

Total regulatory liabUities 

2005 2004 
(MiUions of dollars) 

$ 73.2 $ 71.0 
40.9 

37.6 

76.5 
244.2 
121.7 

$594,1 

40.7 

26.1 
254.1 

-

$391.9 

A description for each category of regulatory assets and regulatory liabiUties follows: 

Securitized Stranded Costs: Represents stranded costs associated with a non-utUity 
generator (NUG) contract termination payment and the discontinuation ofthe application of 
SFAS No. 71 for ACE's electricity generation business. The recovery of these stranded costs has 
been securitized through the issuance of Transition Bonds by Atiantic City Electric Transition 
Funding LLC (ACE Fundmg). A customer surcharge is collected by ACE to fund principal and 
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interest payments on the Transition Bonds. The stranded costs are amortized over the life ofthe 
Transition Bonds, which mature between 2010 and 2023. 

Deferred Energy Supply Costs: The regulatory asset balances primarily represent deferred 
costs related to the provision of BGS and other restmcturing related costs incurred by ACE as 
weU as deferred fuel costs for DPL's gas business. All deferrals receive a retum, with ACE 
deferrals recovered over the next 8 years and DPL's deferred fuel costs recovered annually. The 
regulatory liability balance at December 31,2005 relates to ACE and reflects net over recovery 
associated with New Jersey BGS, NUGS, Market transition charges, and other restructuring 
items. 

Deferred Recoverable Income Taxes: Represents deferred income tax assets recognized 
fi^m the normalization of flow-through items as a result of amounts previously provided to 
customers. As temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets 
reverse, deferred recoverable income taxes are amortized. There is no retum on these deferrals. 

Deferred Debt Extinguishment Costs: Represents the costs of debt extinguishment for 
which recovery through regulated utility rates is considered probable and, if ^proved, wiU be 
amortized to mterest expense during the authorized rate recovery period. A retum is received on 
these deferrals. 

Unrecovered Purchased Power Contract Costs: Represents deferred costs related to 
purchase power contracts at ACE and DPL, The ACE amortization period began in July 1994 
and wUl end in May 2014. The DPL amortization period began in Febmaiy 1996 and wUl end in 
October 2007. Botii earn a retum. 

Deferred Other Postretirement Benefit Costs: Represents the non-cash portion of other 
postretuement benefit costs deferred by ACE during 1993 tiifough 1997. This cost is being 
recovered over a 15-year period that began on January 1,1998. There is no retum on this 
deferral. 

Other: Represents misceUaneous regulatory assets that generally are being amortized over 1 
to 20 years and generally do not receive a retum. 

Deferred Income Taxes Due to Customers: Represents the portion of deferred income tax 
liabilities applicable to utility operations of Pepco, DPL, and ACE that has not been reflected hi 
current customer rates for which fiiture payment to customers is probable. As temporary 
differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets reverse, deferred recoverable 
income taxes are amortized. 

Regulatory Liability for Federal and New Jersey Tax Benefit: Securitized stranded costs 
include a portion of stranded costs attributable to the fiiture t ^ benefit expected to be realized 
when the higher tax basis of generating plants divested by ACE is deducted for New Jersey state 
income tax purposes as well as the fiiture benefit to be reaUzed through the reversal of federal 
excess deferred taxes. To account for the possibility that these tax benefits may be given to 
ACE's regulated electricity delivery customers through lower rates in the future, ACE 
established a regulatory liability. The regulatory liabiUty related to federal excess deferred taxes 
wUl remam until such time as the Intemal Revenue Service issues its final regulations with 
respect to normalization of these federal excess deferred taxes. 

Generation Procurement Credit (GPC) and Customer Sharing Commitmeiit: Pepco's 
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settiement agreements related to its December 2000 generation divestiture, approved by both the 
DCPSC and MPSC, required the sharing between customers and shareholders of any profits 
eamed during the four-year transition period fix)m Febmary 8,2001 through Febmary 7,2005 in 
each jurisdiction. The GPC represents the customers' share of profits that P^co has realized on 
the procurement and resale of Standard Offer Service electricity supply to customers in 
Maryland and the District of Columbia that has not yet been distributed to customers. Pepco is 
currentiy distributing the customers' share of profits monthly to customers in a biUing c r ^ t . 
The GPC increased by $42.3 miUion in December 2005 due to the settiement ofthe Pepco TPA 
claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate. 

Accrued Asset Removal Costs: Represents Pepco's and DPL's asset retirement obligations 
associated with removal costs accmed using public service commission-approved depreciation 
rates for transmission, distribution, and general utility property. In accordance with the SEC 
interpretation of SFAS 143, accmals for removal costs were classified as a regulatory Uability. 

Excess Depreciation Reserve: The excess depreciation reserve was recorded as part ofa 
New Jersey rate case settiement. This excess reserve is the result ofa change in depreciable 
Uves and a change m depreciation technique from remaining life to whole life. The excess wiU 
be amortized over 8.25 years, beginning June 2005. 

Accounting For Derivatives 

Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries use derivative instruments primarily to manage risk 
associated with commodity prices and interest rates. Risk management policies are determined 
by PHI's Corporate Risk Management Committee (CRMC). The CRMC monitors mterest rate 
fluctuation, commodity price fluctuation, and credit risk exposure. The CRMC sets risk 
management poUcies that establish limits on unhedged risk and determine risk rqjorting 
requirements. 

PHI accounts for its derivative activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended by subsequent pronouncements. 
SFAS No. 133 requires derivative mstruments to be measured at fair value. Derivatives are 
recorded on the ConsoUdated Balance Sheet as other assets or other Uabilities with offsetting 
gams and losses flowing through eamings unless they are designated as cash flow hedges. 
Derivatives can be accounted for in four ways under SFAS No. 133: (i) marked-to-market 
through current eamings, (ii) cash flow hedge accounting, (iii) fair value hedge accounting, and 
(iv) normal purchase and sales accounting. 

Mark-to-market gains and losses on derivatives that are not designated as hedges are 
presented on the ConsoUdated Statements of Eammgs as operating revenue. PHI uses mark-to-
market accounting through eamings for derivatives that eitiier do not quaUfy for hedge 
accounting, or that management does not designate as hedges. Derivatives that were used for 
Conectiv Energy's discontinued proprietary trading activities were marked-to-market through 
eamings. 
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The gain or loss on a derivative that hedges ejq>osure to variable cash flow ofa forecasted 

transaction is initially recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (a separate component of 
common stockholders' equity) and is subsequentiy reclassified into eamings m the same category 
as the item being hedged when the forecasted transaction occurs. If a forecasted transaction is no 
longer probable, the deferred gain or loss m accumulated other comprehensive income is 
immediately reclassified to eamings. Gains or losses related to any ineffective portion of cash 
flow hedges are also recognized in eamings immediately. 

Changes in Ihe fair value of other hedguig derivatives, designated as fan value hedges, result 
in a change in the value of the asset, liabiUty, or firm commitment being hedged. Changes in fair 
value ofthe asset, Uability, or firm commitment, and the hedging instrument, are recorded in the 
Consolidated Statements of Eamings. 

Certain commodity forwards are not required to be recorded on a mark-to-market basis of 
accounting as pmvided under the guidance of SFAS No. 133. These contracts are designated as 
"normal purchases and sales" as permitted by SFAS No. 133. This type of contract is used m 
normal operations, settles physically, and follows standard accrual accounting. Unrealized gains 
and losses on these contracts do not appear on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Examples of 
these transactions include purchases of fiiel to be consumed in power plants and actual receipts 
and deliveries of electric power. Normal purchases and sales transactions are presented on a 
gross basis, normal sales as operating revenue, and normal purchases as fuel and purchased 
energy expenses. 

PHI uses option contracts to mitigate certain risk. These options are normally m^ked-to-
market through current eamings because ofthe difficulty ui qualifying options for hedge 
accounting treatment. Option premiums are deferred as prepaid expenses or other liabilities until 
the exercise period ofthe option is realized. Market prices, when available, are used to value 
options. If market prices are not avaUable, the market value ofthe options is estimated usir^ 
Black-Scholes closed form models. Option contracts typically make up only a small portion of 
PHI's total derivatives portfolio. 

The fair value of derivatives is determined using quoted exchange prices where available. For 
instruments that are not traded on an exchange, external broker quotes are used to determine fair 
value. For some custom and con^lex instruments, an intemal model is used to interpolate 
broker quality price information. Models are also used to estimate volumes for certain 
transactions. The same valuation methods are used to determine the value of non-derivative, 
commodity exposure for risk management purposes. 

The impact of derivatives that are marked-to-market through current eamings, the ineffective 
portion of cash flow hedges, and the portion of fair value hedges that flows to current eamings 
are presented on a net basis on the Consolidated Statements of Eamings. When a hedging gain 
or loss is realized, it is presented on a net basis in the same category as the underlying item being 
hedged. Normal purchase and sales transactions are presented gross on the Consolidated 
Statements of Eamings as they are realized. The unrealized assets and liabilities that offset 
unrealized derivative gains and losses are presented gross on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
except where contractual netting agreements are in place. 

Conectiv Energy engages in commodity hedging activities to minimize the risk of market 
fluctuations associated with the purchase and sale of energy commodities (natural gas, 
petroleum, coal and electricity). The majority of these hedges relate to the procurement of fiiel 
for its power plants, fixing the cash flows fix)m the plant ouQjut, and securing power for electric 

171 



PEPCO HOLDINGS 
load service, Conectiv Energy's hedging activities are conducted using derivative instruments, 
including forward contracts, swaps and futures, designated as cash flow hedges which are 
designed to reduce the variabUity ui fiiture cash flows. Conectiv Energy's commodity hedgmg 
objectives, in accordance with its risk management poUcy, are primarily the assurance of stable 
and known cash flows and the fixing of favorable prices and margins when they become 
available. 

Conectiv Energy assesses risk on a total portfoUo basis and by component (e.g. generation 
output, generation fuel, load supply, etc.). Portfolio risk combines the generation fleet, load 
obligations, miscellaneous commodity sales and hedges. Accounting hedges are matched against 
each component using the product or products that most closely represent the underlying hedged 
item. The total portfoUo is risk managed based on its megawatt position by month. If the total 
portfolio becomes too long or too short for a period, steps are taken to reduce or increase hedges. 
Portfolio-level hedging includes the use of accounting hedges (derivatives designated as cash 
flow hedges), derivatives that are being marked-to-market through eamings, and other physical 
commodity purchases and sales, 

DPL uses derivative instruments (forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-traded and 
over-the-counter options) primarily to reduce gas commodity price volatility while limiting its 
firm customers' oqposure to increases in the market price of gas. DPL also manages commodity 
risk with capacity contracts that do not meet the definition of derivatives. The primary goal of 
these activities is to reduce the exposure of its regulated retail gas customers to natural gas price 
spikes. All premiums paid and otiier transaction costs incurred as part of DPL's natural gas 
hedging activity, in addition to aU gains and losses on the natural gas hedging activity, are fuUy 
recoverable through the fuel adjustment clause approved by the DPSC and are deferred under 
SFAS No. 71 until recovered. At December 31,2005, DPL's Balance Sheet mcluded a deferred 
derivative receivable of $21.6 miUion, offset by a $21.6 million regulatory liabiUty. 

Pepco Energy Services purchases electric and natural gas futures, swaps and forward 
contracts to hedge price risk in connection with the purchase of physical natural gas and 
electricity for delivery to customers in future months. Pepco Energy Services accounts for its 
futures and sw^ contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions. Its forward contracts 
are accounted for under standard accmal accounting as these contracts meet the requirements for 
normal purchase and sale accounting under SFAS No. 133. 

Conectiv Bethlehem, LLC (CBI), a subsidiary of Conectiv Energy, entered into an interest 
rate swap agreement for the purpose of managing its overall borrowing rate and limiting its 
interest rate risk associated with debt it incurred. CBI hedged 75% ofthe mterest rate payments 
for its variable rate debt. CBI formally designated its interest rate swap agreement as a cash flow 
hedge. CBI repaid aU of its external debt and settled its interest rate swap agreement ($6.8 
million gain) in September 2004, 

PCI has entered into interest rate swap agreements for the purpose of managing its overaU 
borrowing rate and managing its interest rate exposure associated with debt it has issued. 
Approximately 72.9% of PCI's fixed rate debt for its Medium Term Note program has been 
swapped into variable rate debt. AU of PCX's hedges on variable rate debt expired when the 
variable rate debt incurred under its Medium-Term Note program matured during 2005. 

Emission Allowances 

Emission allowances for Sulfur Dioxide (S02) and Nitrous Oxide (NOX) are allocated to 
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generation owners by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) based on Federal programs 
designed to regulate the emissions firom power plants. The EPA allotments have no cost basis to 
the generation owners. Depending on the run-time of a generating unit in a given year, and other 
pollution controls it may have, the unit may need additional allowances above its allocation or it 
may have excess allowances. Allowances are traded among companies in an over-the-counter 
market, which aUows companies to purchase additional allowances to avoid incurring penalties 
for noncompliance with applicable emissions standards or to sell excess aUowances. 

Pepco Holdings accounts for emission allowances as inventory. Allowances from EPA 
allocation are added to current inventory each year at a zero basis. Additional purchased 
allowances are recorded at cost. Allowances sold or consumed at the power plants are exp^ised 
at a weighted-average cost. This cost tends to be relatively low due to the zero-basis aUowances. 
Pepco Holdings has a committee established to moiutor compUance with emissions regulations 
and whether its power plants have the required number of allowances. 

Accounting for Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquisition over the fair value of 
the net assets acqiured. The accounting for goodwUl is govemed by SFAS No. 141, "Busmess 
Combinations," and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Pepco Holduigs' 
goodwill balance that was generated fixim Pepco's acquisition of Conectiv has been allocated to 
the Power Delivery business. SFAS No. 141 requires business combinations initiated after 
June 30,2001 to be accounted for usmg the purchase method of accoimting and broadens the 
criteria for recording intangible assets apart fi\)m goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires that 
purchased goodwill and certain indefinite-Uved intangibles no longer be amortized, but instead 
be tested for unpairment at least annually. Substantially all of Pepco Holdings' goodwUl was 
generated by the acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco in 2002. 

A roU forward of PHPs goodwUl balance follows (MiUions of dollars): 

Balance, December 31, 2003 $1,432.3 
Less: Adjustment to pre-merger tax reserve (1,8) 

Balance December 31,2004 $1,430.5 
Add: Adjustment to pre-merger tax reserve 8̂ 

Balance, December 31, 2005 $1.431.3 

Goodwill Impairment Evaluation 

The provisions of SFAS No. 142 require the evaluation of goodwill for impairment at least 
annually or more firequentiy if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be 
impaired. Examples of such events and circumstances include an adverse action or assessment 
by a regulator, a significant adverse change in legal factors or ui the business climate, and 
unanticipated competition. SFAS No. 142 indicates that if the fau value of a reporting unit is 
less than its carrying value, including goodwill, an inqiaument charge may be necessary. During 
2005, Pepco Holdings tested its goodwUl for mpairment as of July 1,2005. This test mdicated 
that none of Pepco Holdings' goodwill balance was impaired. 

Long-Lived Assets Inyairment Evaluation 

Pepco Holdings is required to evaluate certain long-lived assets (for example, generating 
property and equipment and real estate) to determine if they are in^aired when certain 
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